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Reed Elsevieris aworld leading provider of
information solutions for professional customers
across industries. We help scientists make new
discoveries, lawyers win cases, doctors save lives,
corporations build commercial relationships,
Insurance companies assess risk, and government
and financial institutions detect fraud.

Get more information online

Afull pdf of the Annual Reportand further
information about Reed Elsevier and our
businesses canbe found online at our
corporate website: www.reedelsevier.com

Forward-looking statements

The Reed Elsevier Annual Reports and Financial Statements 2013 contain forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the US Securities Act of 1933, as
amended, and Section 21E of the US Securities Exchange Act of 1934, asamended. These statements are subject toa number of risks and uncertainties that could cause actual
results or outcomes to differ materially from those currently being anticipated. The terms “estimate”, “project”, “plan”, “intend”, “expect”, “should be”, “willbe”, “believe” and
similar expressionsidentify forward-looking statements. Factors which may cause future outcomes to differ from those foreseenin forward-looking statementsinclude, but
are not limited to competitive factorsintheindustriesinwhich Reed Elsevier operates; demand for Reed Elsevier's products and services; exchange rate fluctuations; general
economicand business conditions; legislative, fiscal, taxand regulatory developments and political risks; the availability of third-party content and data; breaches of our data
security systemsand interruptionsin ourinformation technology systems; changesin lawand legalinterpretations affecting Reed Elsevier'sintellectual property rights and
otherrisks referenced fromtimetotimeinthefilings of Reed Elsevier with the US Securities and Exchange Commission.
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2 OVERVIEW
REED ELSEVIER

2013 Financial highlights

Underlying revenue up 2% (3% excluding biennial exhibition cycling]

Underlying adjusted operating profit up 5%

Adjusted EPS up 9% to 54.0p for Reed Elsevier PLC; up 5% to €0.99 for Reed Elsevier NV
Reported EPS up 9% to 48.8p for Reed Elsevier PLC; up 5% to €0.91 for Reed Elsevier NV

Full year dividend up 7% to 24.60p for Reed Elsevier PLC and up 8% to €0.506 for
Reed Elsevier NV

Return oninvested capital up 0.4pts to 12.1%

Net debt stable at £3.1bn; 2.1x EBITDA pensions and lease adjusted (1.6x unadjusted)

£m €m £m €m
Underlying Growth +2%/+3%* Underlying Growth +5%
7,523 7121 2,076 2,064
6,116 6,035 1,688 1,749
2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013

* Excluding biennial exhibition cycling.

Adjusted EPS Dividend Adjusted EPS Dividend
pence pence € €
Growth +9% Growth +7% Growth +5% Growth +8%
d 0.99
49.4 54.0 0.94
230 246 0.4¢7  0.506
2012 ‘ 2013 ‘ 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013

Adjustedand underlying figures are additional performance measures used by management. Adjusted figures are reconciled to the reported figures in note 10 to the combined financial
statementsand note 9 to the respective parent company financial statements. 2012 comparative financial information has been restated following the adoption of IAS19 Employee
Benefits (revised), see the accounting policies section in the combined financial statements on page 106. Underlying growth rates are calculated at constant currencies, and exclude the
results of allacquisitions and disposals made in both the yearand prioryearand assets held for sale. Constant currency growth rates are based on 2012 fullyear average and hedge
exchangerates. Theunderlying growthinrevenue and inadjusted operating profitare the key performance indicators used by Reed Elsevierin assessing performance.
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Chairman’s statement

Anthony Habgood
Chairman

Reed Elsevier continued to deliver
onits long-term strategicand
financial priorities in 2013.
Continued underlying revenue
and profit growth was achieved
across all five major business
units, with improved profitability
driven by process innovation and
portfolio development. Our strong
cash flow enabled us to step up
our share buyback programme
while maintaining balance

sheet strength.

Growth of underlying revenues, which exclude the effects of currency
translation, acquisitions and disposals, was 2%, or 3% excluding
the cycling effect of biennial exhibitions, with all five business
areas contributing to underlying growth. Our reported revenues
declined by 1% to £6,035m expressedinsterlingand 5%to €7,121m
expressedineuros, ordown 3% at constant exchange rates,
reflecting disposals made across the businesses.

Underlying adjusted operating profits grew 5%, with the
improvementin profitability reflecting a combination of process
innovationand portfolio developmentacrossall business areas.
Adjusted operating profits grew 4% to £1,749m expressed in
sterling, down 1%to €2,064m expressedin euros.

Adjusted earnings per share grew 9% to 54.0p for Reed Elsevier
PLC,and5%to€0.99 for Reed Elsevier NV. Reported earnings per
share grew 9% to 48.8p for Reed Elsevier PLC, and 5%to €0.91 for
Reed Elsevier NV.

Dividends

The Boards are recommending equalised final dividends of 17.95p
for Reed Elsevier PLC and €0.374 for Reed Elsevier NV, up
respectively 6% and 11% against the prioryear. This brings the total
dividends for the year to 24.60p for Reed Elsevier PLC, up 7% and
€0.506 for Reed Elsevier NV, up 8%. The differing growth rates of
theinterimand final dividends for the two parent companies reflect
movements in the sterling-euro exchange rate between dividend
announcement dates.

Balance sheet

Netdebtwas £3.1bn/€3.7bn on 31 December 2013, compared with
£3.1bn/€3.8bn last year. Net debt/EBITDA on a pensions and lease
adjusted basis for 2013 was 2.1x, down from 2.2x last year, and on
anunadjusted basis, itwas 1.6x, down from 1.7x last year. Adjusted
operating cash flow conversionwas 97%, up from 95% in 2012, with
capital expenditure at 5% of revenues.

Share buybacks

Strong cash flow, together with proceeds from the disposal of
businesses, enabled us to step up our share buyback programme
while maintaining a strong balance sheet. In 2013 we deployed
atotal of £600m on share buybacks, and by the end of February
2014 we had deployed an additional £100m. In 2014, although we
expectdisposal proceeds to be lower, we intend to deploy a total of
£600m on share buybacks, based on our strong balance sheetand
cash flow.

The Boards

In September, Duncan Palmer, Chief Financial Officer, offered his
resignation from the Boards of Reed Elsevier. This was a result of
family circumstances which unexpectedly required him to return to
the US. Duncan has made animportant contribution to the
business and we wish him the best for the future. In January 2014,
we announced Nick Luff would take over from Duncan. Nick has
been Chief Financial Officer at Centrica plc, the UK energy group,
since 2007, and prior to that was at P&0, the FTSE 100 logistics and
shipping group. Nick’s manyyears of experience as Chief Financial
Officerata FTSE 30 company and involvement in dual UK/US and
Netherlands-based listings, make him an excellent fit for Reed
Elsevier.He will join the companyin 2014.

Following the introduction of new legislation in the Netherlands
and the approval of changes to the articles of association of Reed
Elsevier NVbyits shareholders, the Directors adopted a unitary
board structure in May 2013. This further aligns the structure of the
two parent companies.

During theyear, we also continued the process of progressively
refreshing the non-executive element of the Boards. Atthe Annual
General Meetingsin April,a number of changes were made. Sir
David Reid and Mark Elliott retired as Non-Executive Directors
after 10years’ service. Lisa Hook, who joined the Boards in April
2006, became the Senior Independent Director. As previously
announced, Wolfhart Hauser joined the Boards in April. lwould like
to thank David and Mark for their many years of advice and wisdom,
and welcome Wolfhart to Reed Elsevier.

Corporate responsibility

Our focus on corporate responsibility remains a source of strength
for Reed Elsevier. | fully supportall our effortsto ensure the
highest levels of ethical management. We are making consistent
progressagainst our corporate responsibility objectives, and with
our commitmenttoincrease the diversity of our Boards.

Anthony Habgood
Chairman
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4 OVERVIEW
CHIEF EXECUTIVEOFFICER'S REPORT

Chief Executive Officer’s report

Erik Engstrom
Chief Executive Officer

In 2013 we continued to make
good progress on our strategy to
systematically transform our
business into a professional
information solutions provider
that combines content and data
with analytics and technology to
deliver improved outcomes for

customers. We are enhancing the

quality of our earnings to deliver
more predictable revenues, a
higher growth profile and
improving returns.

UNDERLYING REVENUE GROWTH
Excluding biennial exhibition cycling

Strategicdirection

Our strategy remains consistent: to become a global professional
information solutions provider, acompany that delivers improved
outcomes for professional customers acrossindustries. Our goal
isto help our customers make better decisions, get better results
and be more productive. We do this by leveraging a deep
understanding of our customers to create innovative solutions
which combine content and data with analytics and technology in
global platforms. These solutions often account for about 1% of
our customers’ total cost base but can have a significantand
positive impact on the economics of the remaining 99%.

We continue to build leading positions in long-term global growth
markets by leveraging our skills, assets and resources across
Reed Elsevier, both to build solutions for our customers and to
pursue cost efficiencies.

During the year we continued to make progress in this strategic
direction. We are systematically migrating all of our businesses
across Reed Elsevier, primarily through organic investment.

We are supplementing this organic transformation with selective
acquisitions of targeted data and content sets, and assets in high-
growth markets and geographies, where we are the natural owner
and can accelerate our strategy with good returns. We continue to
divest assets thatwe are unable to migrate orwhere we do not see
significant future value creation for Reed Elsevier.

By focusing on evolving the fundamentals of our business we
believe that, overtime, we are improving the business profile of
Reed Elsevierand the quality of our earnings. This is leading to
more predictable revenues through a better asset mixand
geographic balance; a higher growth profile by expandingin
higher growth segments, exiting from structurally challenged
businesses and gradually reducing the drag from print format
declines; and improved returns by focusing on organic
development with strong cash generation.

UNDERLYINGADJUSTED OPERATING PROFITGROWTH

+3% +3% +3%

2010 201 2012 2013

+5% +6% +5%

-1%

2010 2011 2012 2013
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2013 progress

In 2013 we remained focused onimproving the business profile of
our assets and the quality of our earnings. We did this primarily
through organicinvestment.

We maintained our positive operating and financial momentum
throughout the year. All five major business areas again delivered
underlying revenue and profit growth. We improved profitability
through process innovation and portfolio development.

By the end of 2013, 81% of our revenues were in our targeted
formats of electronic and face-to-face, generating average
underlying revenue growth rates of 5% to 7%.

During the year, we continued the reshaping of our portfolio,
making a small number of data, content and exhibition
acquisitionsin high-growth markets and geographies. We also
continued our disposal activity, exiting businesses thatare not
likely to transforminto the type of business that we want to be in,
orwhere we do not see significant future value creation for Reed
Elsevier. We also exited businesses where we have made a
decision not to invest further to pursue a global leadership
position. For example, we completed the disposal of our
employment screening business from within Risk Solutions and
exited additional print magazines within Business Information.

With a strong balance sheet, strong cash flow characteristics and
with average acquisition spend comfortably covered by free

cash flow after dividends we continued to take a pragmatic
approach to ensuring that the value compounding within the
businesstranslatesintoshareholdervalue. As part of this we
increased our share buyback programme to £600min 2013.

Financial performance

Underlying revenue growth was 2%, or 3% excluding the effects of
biennial exhibition cycling. Underlying operating profit grew 5%,
and adjusted earnings per share grew 7% at constant exchange
rates. Despite continued organic investmentin our business and
the completion of a number of small acquisitions, our return on
invested capitalincreased to 12.1%. At the end of 2013 our net
debt/EBITDA ratiowas 2.1 times on a pensions and lease adjusted
basis, or 1.6 times on an unadjusted basis, both slightly lower than
the prioryear,and we remainin a leverage range with whichwe
arevery comfortable.

Scientific, Technical & Medical achieved good volume growth in
primary research submissions and usage, and in databases &
tools, across scientific, technical & medical markets. Journal
quality, as measured by Impact Factor, continued to improve.
Electronic revenues, which now account for 72% of total revenues,
grew strongly across all segments.

Allbusiness segmentsin Risk Solutions achieved strong growth
in 2013. Growthin the insurance segment was driven by good take
up of new products and services, expansion into adjacent market
verticals, and volume growth in the core underwriting business.
Business Services growth reflected strong demand for identity
verification and fraud detection solutions. Growth in government
revenues reflected new product sales.

In Business Information underlying revenue growth accelerated
in 2013 reflecting continued good growth in data services and
modest growth elsewhere.

InLegalunderlying revenue growth was maintainedin 2013
despite subdued market conditions in the US and Europe.
Electronic revenues continued to show good growth, largely offset
by printdeclines. The roll out of new product releases continued,
with over 70% of US legal customers activated on the New Lexis
platform at period end, and new product usage progressing well.

Exhibitions maintained strong underlying revenue growth of 7%
excluding the effect of biennial show cycling. While growth in
Europe was modest, the US, Japan, Braziland other markets all
grew strongly.

o P e

-6%
2010 2011 2012 2013

10.6% 11.2% 11.7%* 121%
.6% .

2010 201 2012 2013

*2012ROICrestated for IAS19.
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OVERVIEW
CHIEF EXECUTIVEOFFICER'S REPORT

Corporateresponsibility
We prioritise corporate responsibility in order to maximise the
beneficialimpact we have on society. In 2013, for example,
LexisNexis Legal & Professional drafted Global Rule of Law
Business Principles, outlining the responsibilities companies
have to promote justice. These were launched at an event with UN
Secretary-General Ban Ki-moon. We also made progressinthe year
onour corporate responsibility objectives, including responding

to global Employee Opinion Survey results across our business
segments and launching a new product accessibility policy.

REVENUE BY FORMAT

Outlook

Erik Engstrom
Chief Executive Officer

REVENUEBY GEOGRAPHICAL MARKET

REVENUEBYTYPE

Earlytrendsacross our businessin 2014 remain broadly
consistent with full year 2013, with some smallvariations by
market and by geography. We are confident that, by continuing to
execute on our strategy, we will deliver anotheryear of underlying
revenue, profitand earnings growthin 2014.

In 2014 we againintend to deploy a total of £600m on share
buybacks, reflecting our strong balance sheetand cash flow.

£6,035m
19%

M Electronic
[ Facetoface
M Print/Other

15%
66%

£6,035m
51%

21% W NorthAmerica
[ Europe

M RestofWorld

28%

£6,035m

4%

M Subscriptions
M Transactional
W Advertising
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8 BUSINESS REVIEW
REED ELSEVIER

Reed Elsevier

Reed Elsevier is aworld leading provider of information solutions
for professional customers across industries. We help scientists
make new discoveries, lawyers win cases, doctors save lives,
corporations build commercial relationships, insurance
companies assess risk, and government and financialinstitutions
detect fraud.

We achieve this by using our deep customer understanding to
combine high-quality content & data with analytics & technology in
global platforms. These solutions often account for about 1% of our
customers’ total cost base but can have a significant, positive impact
on the economics of the remaining 99%. We seek to build leading
positions in long-term growth markets by leveraging our institutional
skills, assets and resources across Reed Elsevier, both to build
solutions for our customers and to pursue cost efficiencies.

Across Reed Elsevier, we are systematically migrating in this
direction, primarily through organic development, by investing in
the transformation of our assets and building out new products
and solutions in adjacent markets and geographies. We are
supplementing organic growth with selective acquisitions that
can accelerate our strategy with good returns. We continue

to divest assets that we are unable to alignin this direction,

or where we do not see significant future value creation.
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£ € Changeat
2013 2012** 2013 2012** constant Change
Fortheyearended31December £m £m Change €m €m Change  currencies  underlying
Revenue 6,035 6,116 -1% 7,121 7,523 -5% -3% +2%/+3%*
Operating profit 1,376 1,333 +3% 1,624 1,639 -1% +1%
Profit before tax 1,196 1,151 +4% 1,412 1,416 0% +2%
Net profit 1,110 1,044 +6% 1,310 1,284 +2% +3%
Net margin 18.4% 17.1% 18.4% 17.1% g
Net borrowings 3,072 3,127 3,686 3,846 5
:
o
£ € Changeat s
2013 2012*%* 2013 2012** constant Change g
Fortheyearended31December £m £m Change €m €m Change  currencies  underlying
Operating profit 1,749 1,688 +4% 2,064 2,076 -1% +1% +5%
Operating margin 29.0% 27.6% 29.0% 27.6%
Profit before tax 1,572 1,472 +7% 1,855 1,811 +2% +4%
Net profit 1,197 1,121 +7% 1,413 1,379 +2% +4%
Net margin 19.8% 18.3% 19.8% 18.3%
Operating cash flow 1,703 1,603 +6% 2,010 1,972 +2% +4%
Operating cash flow conversion 97% 95% 97% 95%
Return oninvested capital 12.1% 11.7% 12.1% 11.7%
%’1
Q
3
o,
o
ReedElsevier PLC Reed Elsevier NV Changeat E
constant g
2013 2012 Change 2013 2012 Change  currencies
Adjusted earnings pershare 54.0p 49.4p +9% €0.99 €0.94 +5% +7%
Reported earnings per share 48.8p 44.8p +9% €0.91 €0.87 +5%
Ordinarydividend per share 24.6p 23.0p +7% €0.506 €0.467 +8%
* Excluding biennial exhibition cycling.
**2012 comparative financialinformation has been restated following the introduction of IAS19 Employee Benefits (revised).
The Reed Elsevier combined businesses encompass the businesses of Reed Elsevier Group plc and Elsevier Reed Finance BV, together with their two parent companies,
Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV (the “Reed Elsevier combined businesses”). The results of Reed Elsevier PLC reflect its shareholders’ 52.9% economic interestin the
Reed Elsevier combined businesses. The results of Reed Elsevier NV reflectits shareholders’ 50% economicinterestin the Reed Elsevier combined businesses. The respective
economicinterests of the Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NVshareholders take account of Reed Elsevier PLC's 5.8% indirectinterestin Reed Elsevier NV.
@
3
[0}
3
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(0]

90%
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'I 0 BUSINESS REVIEW
REED ELSEVIER

LEVERAGING INNOVATION
ACROSS REED ELSEVIER:
HPCC SYSTEMS

High Performance Computing Cluster Systems
(HPCC), is one of the most advanced, fast-performing
Big Data processing technologies available today. It
isopensource and used to solve large-scale,
complex data and analytics challenges. Within Reed
Elsevier, HPCC Systems is being leveraged across
our largest market segments. HPCC Systems P
combines proven data processing methodologies
with Reed Elsevier’s proprietary linking algorithms,
to enable our customers to turndataintointelligence
- better, faster and cheaper.

HPCC Systems was developed by LexisNexis Risk

Solutions and currently powers core products from

this division, which had 2013 revenues of £933m.

Similarly Lexis Advance, our legal segment’s new

flagship product, is also enriched and managed by

HPCC Systems, providing unrivalled capabilities and

solutions for our customers. The latest version of

SciVal, our scientific, technical & medical segment’s 15
toolforuniversities and other institutions to assess

their relative performance, runs on HPCC Systems ‘
technology. SciVal provides analysis of over 30m

pieces of contentand 350m citations from 4,600

institutions in 220 countries. The business is deploying

HPCC Systems on ScienceDirect, its primary research

database, aimed at recommending related articles.

The scheme increased click-throughs by 65%.
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WITHHPCC SYSTEMS, WE ARE
UNLOCKING THEINTELLIGENCE IN
OURCONTENTAND LINKING NEW
SOURCES OF DATATO CREATE THE
NEXTLEVEL OF ANALYTICS AND
SOLUTIONS THAT WILL IMPROVE
OUTCOMES FOR OUR CUSTOMERS.

Jeffrey Honious

Vice President
Innovation,
Reed Elsevier

K

37bn

records

LEXISNEXISRISK
SOLUTIONS' PUBLIC
RECORDS DATABASE
CONTAINS 37BN RECORDS

30m

transactions
per hour

HPCC SYSTEMSIS AN
OPEN-SOURCE, BIG DATA
PROCESSING PLATFORM
THAT CAN HANDLE 30M
TRANSACTIONS PER HOUR

] 4

petabytes of
unique data

RISKSOLUTIONS' PUBLIC
ORDS DATABASE
DS2PETABYTES OF

UNIQUE DATAWITHA

CAPACITYTOHOLD

4PETABYTES



'I 2 BUSINESS REVIEW
REED ELSEVIER

Reed Elsevier operates across a number of market segments

MARKETSEGMENTS SEGMENTPOSITION KEYBRANDS

In Scientific, Technical & Medical markets, we provide information and Global #1

tools to help customersimprove scientificand healthcare outcomes.

In Risk Solutions & Business Information, we provide data, analytics and
insightthat enable customers to evaluate and manage risks, and develop
market intelligence, supporting more confident decisions, improved
economic outcomes, and enhanced operational efficiency.

Key verticals #1

@' LexisNexis* ‘ Risk Solutions

Q\ Reed Business Information

US #2
Outside US#1or 2

InLegal markets, we are aworld leading provider of legal, regulatory and
news & business information and analysis to legal, corporate,
governmentand academic customers.

6‘ LexisNexis ‘ Legal &Professional

In Exhibitions, we are the world’s leading events business, with almost Global #1

500 eventsinover 30 countries. Q‘ Reed Exhibitions

Financial summary by market segment

2013 2012 Change at constant Change
£m £m Change currencies underlying
Revenue
Scientific, Technical & Medical 2,126 2,063 +3% +1% +2%
Risk Solutions 933 926 +1% -1% +8%
Business Information 547 663 -17% -19% +4%
Legal 1,567 1,610 -3% -4% +1%
Exhibitions 862 854 +1% +2% +2%/+7%*
6,035 6,116 -1% -3% +2%/+3%*
Adjusted operating profit
Scientific, Technical & Medical 826 780 +6% +2% +3%
Risk Solutions 414 392 +6% +4% +8%
Business Information 107 119 -10% -11% +14%
Legal 238 234 +2% +1% +5%
Exhibitions 213 210 +1% +4% +4%
Unallocateditems (49) (47)
1,749 1,688 +4% +1% +5%

*Excluding biennial exhibition cycling.

Adjustedand underlying figures are additional performance measures used by management. Adjusted figures are reconciled to the reported figuresin note 10to the combined financial
statementsand note 9 to the respective parent company financial statements. 2012 comparative financialinformation has been restated following the adoption of IAS19 Employee
Benefits (revised], see the accounting policies section in the combined financial statements on page 106. Underlying growth rates are calculated at constant currencies, and exclude the
results of allacquisitions and disposals made inboth the yearand prioryearand assets held for sale. Constant currency growth ratesare based on 2012 fullyear average and hedge
exchangerates. The underlyinggrowthinrevenue andinadjusted operating profitare the key performance indicators used by Reed Elsevierinassessing performance.

REVENUE ADJUSTED OPERATING PROFIT
£6,035m £1,749m
14% 12%

[ Scientific, [ Scientific,
Technical 0 Technical
& Medical (S & Medical

B RiskSolutions 46% B RiskSolutions

[l Business o [ Business

4% Information ? Information
0
B egal B Legal
B Exhibitions B Exhibitions
90/lj 160/0
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'I 4 BUSINESS REVIEW
SCIENTIFIC, TECHNICAL & MEDICAL

Scientific, Technical & Medical

Elsevieristheworld’s leading provider of scientific, technical &
medicalinformation serving scientists, health professionals, and
students worldwide. Its objectiveis to helpits customers advance
science and improve healthcare by providing world-class content
and innovative information solutions that enable them to make
critical decisions, enhance productivity, and improve outcomes.

Revenues fortheyear ended 31 December 2013 were £2,126m.
Elsevierisaglobalbusinesswith principal operationsin

Amsterdam, Beijing, Boston, Chennai, Delhi, London, Madrid,
Munich, New York, Oxford, Paris, Philadelphia, Rio de Janeiro,

St. Louis, San Diego, Singapore and Tokyo. It has 6,700 employees.

Approximately 38% of revenue by destinationin 2013 was derived
from North America, 30% from Europe and the remaining 32%
fromtherestoftheworld.

Elsevier serves the needs of the science, technology & medical
markets by publishing primary research, reference, and
education content, as wellas by providing a range of database and
workflow solutions. Elsevier's customers are scientists,
academicinstitutions “educators”, research leaders and
administrators, medical researchers, doctors, nurses, allied
health professionals and students, as well as hospitals, research
institutions, healthinsurers, managed healthcare organisations,
research-intensive corporations, and governments. All of these

intelligence

8

CLINICAL

Combines leading reference and
evidence-based medical contentintoits
fullyintegrated clinicalinsight engine

THE LANCET

One of the world's leading medicaljournals
since 1823

Scival

Provides research performance tools
foracademicinstitutions and funding

Aninnovative research managementand
social collaboration platform

customersrely on Elsevier to provide high-quality contentand
criticalinformation for making scientificand medical decisions;
toreview, publish, disseminate and preserve research findings;
to create innovative tools to help focus research strategies,
increase research effectiveness, improve medical outcomes, and
enhance the efficiency of healthcare and healthcare education.

Inthe primary research market during 2013, over 1mresearch
paperswere submitted to Elsevier. Over 10,000 editors managed
the peerreview and selection of these papers, resulting in the
publication of more than 350,000 articles in over 2,000 journals,
many of which are the foremost publicationsin their fieldand a
primary point of reference for new research. This content was
accessed byaround 11m people, with more than 700m full text
article downloads lastyear. Contentis provided free or atvery low
costin most of the world’s poorest countries. Elsevier’s journals
are primarily published and delivered through the ScienceDirect
platform, the world’s largest database of scientificand medical
research, hosting over 12m pieces of content, and 26,000 full text
e-books. Flagshipjournalsinclude Celland The Lancet families
of titles.

In 2013 Elsevieracquired Mendeley, aninnovative research
management and social collaboration platform. Researchers
use Mendeley’s desktop and cloud-based tools to manage
and annotate documents, create citations and bibliographies,
collaborate onresearch projects and network with

fellow academics.

Elsevierisalsoagloballeaderinthe scientific, technical &
medical reference market, providing authoritative and current
professional reference content. While reference has traditionally
beenaprintindustry, Elsevier hasbeenaleaderindriving the
shift from print to electronic. Flagship titles include works such
as Gray's Anatomy, Nelson’s Pediatrics and Netter's Atlas of

Human Anatomy.

Premier life sciences journal with the
highestimpact factorin biochemistry
and molecular biology

WREAXYS

Leadingweb-based chemical reaction
workflow solution forindustrial chemists

CPM

ScienceDirect

Theworld’s largest database of scientific
and medicalresearcharticles

Aleading comprehensive care planning and
clinicaldocumentation system
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Elsevier launched ClinicalKeyin 2012, providing physicians with
accessto leading Elsevier and third-party reference and
evidence-based medical contentinasingle, fully integrated site.
Since launch ClinicalKey has grown rapidly, and currently serves
over 1,000 institutions.

In medical education, Elsevier serves students of medicine,
nursing and allied health professions through printand electronic
books, aswell as electronic solutions. For example, Evolve, an
online suite of solutions designed to help students of nursing and
allied health professions, had over 4mregistered usersin 2013.

Elsevier's database and workflow products provide arange
of tools and solutions for professionals in the science,
technicaland medicalfields. Customersinclude academic
and corporate researchers, research administrators and
healthcare professionals.

Foracademicand corporate researchers, significant products
include Scopus, Reaxys, and Knovel. Scopus is the largest abstract
and citation database of research literature in the world, with over
50m abstractand bibliographicinformation records from more
than 20,000 peer-reviewed journals and 5,000 international
publishers. Reaxys is a leading solution for synthetic chemists,
integrating chemical reaction and compound data searching with
synthesis planning.

Knovel provides arange of web-based productivity tools for
the engineering community, integrating technical information
with analytics and search to deliver trusted answers and
drive innovation.

Elsevier serves academicand governmentresearch
administrators through its SciVal suite of products that help them
evaluate theirinstitutions’ research performance, determine
research strategies and increase institutional efficiencies.
Leveraging bibliometric data, such as citations from Scopus, SciVal
Spotlight helps institutions and governments to identify their
distinctive research strengths, evaluate performance and
increase the focus of their research and development
investments. SciVal Funding assists researchers and institutions in
identifying grants thatare most relevantintheirresearchareas.

For healthcare professionals, Elsevier develops products to deliver
patient-specific solutions at the point of care to improve patient
outcomes. Its clinical solutions include Gold Standard, which
provides criticalinformation on druginteractions to assist effective
treatmentand CPM Resource Center, which provides a data-driven
framework to support nursesin undertaking procedures.
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Scientific, technical & medicalinformation markets have good
long-term growth characteristics. Theimportance of research and
development to economic performance and competitive positioning
iswellunderstood by governments, academic institutions and
corporations. Thisis reflected in the long-term growth in research
and development spend and inthe number of researchers
worldwide. Growth in health marketsis driven by ageing populations
in developed markets, rising prosperity in developing markets
andthe increasing focus onimproving medical outcomes and
efficiency. Given that a significant proportion of scientific research
and healthcareis funded directly orindirectly by governments,
spendingisinfluenced by governmental budgetary considerations.
The commitment to research and health provision does, however,
remain high, evenin more difficult budgetary environments.

Elsevier’'s strategic goalis to lead the way in providing information
solutions thatadvance science, technology and health. To achieve
this, Elsevier creates solutions that reflect deep insight into the
way its users work and the outcomes they are seeking to achieve;
strives for excellence in content, service and execution; constantly
adaptsand revitalisesits products, business models and
technology; and leveragesits institutional skills, assets and
resources to promote innovation and efficiency.

Elsevier's strategic priorities are to continue to increase content
volume and quality; to expand content coverage, building out
integrated solutions combining Elsevier, third-party and customer
data; toincrease content utility, using “Smart Content” to enable
new e-solutions; to combine content with analytics and
technology, focused on measurably improving productivity and
outcomes for customers; and to continue to drive operational
efficiency and effectiveness.

Inthe primary research market, Elsevieraims to grow volume
through newjournallaunches, expansion of author-pays journals
and growth from emerging markets; to enhance quality by building
onour premium brands; and to add value to core platforms by
implementing new capabilities such as advanced
recommendations on ScienceDirect and social collaboration
through Mendeley.

Inclinical reference markets, priorities are to expand content
coverage, including licensing high-quality third-party content for
ClinicalKey, as well as ensuring consistent tagging to link content
assetsacross products.

£2,126m

Print
27%

Face-to-face
1%
Electronic
72%

£2,126m

Rest of World
32%

North America
38%

Europe 30%
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SCIENTIFIC, TECHNICAL & MEDICAL

Science and medicalresearchis principally disseminated on a
paid subscription basis to the research facilities of academic
institutions, governmentand corporations, and, in the case of
medical and healthcare journals, also to individual practitioners
and medical society members. Foranumber of journals,
advertising and promotionalincome represents a small
proportion of revenues predominantly from pharmaceutical
companiesin healthcare titles.

Overthe past 15 years alternative payment models for the
dissemination of research such as “author-pays open access” or
“author’s-funder-pays” have emerged. While it is expected that
paid subscription will remain the primary distribution model,
Elsevier haslonginvestedin alternate business models to
address the needs of customers and researchers. Over 1,600 of
Elsevier'sjournals now offer the option of funding research
publishing and distribution viaa sponsored article fee. In addition,
Elsevier now publishes more than 50 open access journals.

Electronic products, such as ScienceDirect, Scopus and ClinicalKey,
aregenerally sold direct to customers through a dedicated sales
force that has offices around the world. Subscription agents
facilitate the sales and administrative process for print journals.
Books are sold through traditionaland online book stores,
wholesalersand, particularly in medical and healthcare markets,
directlytoend users.

Competition within science and medical publishingis generally on
atitle-by-title and product-by-product basis. Competing journals,
books and databases are typically published by learned societies
and other professional publishers. Workflow tools face similar
competition aswellas from software companies and internal
solutions developed by customers.

1.02 1.06 1.08 1.1

2010 2011 2012 2013

Improvementin quality of Elsevier journal content relative to other
publishers. Relative impact factors based on journal-levelimpact factors
released by Thomson Reutersinthe givenyear. (Industry average=1.)

+9%

—

2012 2013

Continuedincreaseinnumberof article submissions submitted to
Elsevierjournals.




Reed Elsevier AnnualReportsandFinancial Statements 2013

17

2013 2012 Change at constant Change

£m £m Change currencies underlying

Revenue 2,126 2,063 +3% +1% +2%
Adjusted operating profit 826 780 +6% +2% +3%

Strongvolume growthin primaryresearch submissions and
usage, and in databases & tools, across the scientific, technical
and medical segments. Electronic revenues, which now account
for 72% of the total, grew strongly across all segments. Print
book sales and pharma promotion continued to decline.

Underlying revenues grew 2% and underlying adjusted operating
profits grew 3%.

Inprimaryresearch, growth in article submissions and usage
remained strong across the scientific, technical and medical
segments, and journal quality, as measured by Impact Factor,
continued toimprove. Revenue growth was driven by solid
subscription renewals and new sales. “Author-pays” or
“author’s-funder-pays” article volumes continued to grow
strongly from a smallbase. Good growth in scientific databases
&tools and electronic clinical solutions was also supported by
strong new sales.

Print book sales and pharma promotion continued to decline
reflectinga combination of format migration and structural
changesin the pharmaceuticalindustry.

Portfolio development continued in 2013. Disposals included
Elsevier Business Intelligence and a number of small printand
pharma focused assets. We supported our organic growth
strategy with smalltargeted acquisitions, including Mendeley,
anonline reference managementand collaboration solution.

2014 Outlook

The customer environment remains broadly unchanged on
lastyear, with variations by geography and customer segment.
We expect continued volume growth and strong demand for
electronic products and solutions, and continued declinesin print
book and pharma promotion revenues. Overall we expect another
year of modest underlying revenue growth in 2014.

£m

2,026 2,058 2,063 2,126

2010 20M 2012 2013

i 826
724 768 780

2010 201 2012 2013
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'I 8 BUSINESS REVIEW

SCIENTIFIC, TECHNICAL & MEDICAL

700m

each year

MORETHAN 11M SCIENTISTS
DOWNLOAD MORETHAN
700M ARTICLES FROM
SCIENCEDIRECT, THE
WORLD’S LEADING PRIMARY
SCIENTIFIC, TECHNOLOGY &
MEDICAL DATABASE
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SCIENCEDIRECT:
PREMIER PLATFORM
FOR DISCOVERING
WORLD OF RESEARCH

Asone of the largest research-intensive
universitiesin the UK, the University of Leedsis
hometo 7,600 staff and 30,000 students from
over 130 countries. The university engagesin
world-class researchacross an exceptionally
diverserange of disciplinesandis rankedin the
UK’stop 10 for research power'. The university
has particular strengthsininterdisciplinary
researchinareas such as energy, water and
climate change, human health and wellbeing.

The University of Leeds Libraryincludes three
campus facilities, which together house around
3mvolumes as well as countless individual
manuscriptand archivalitems. The Library
provides access to over 35,000 electronic journal
titlesas wellas anincreasing number of
electronic databases and monographs.

In August 2000, the University of Leeds first
subscribedto Elsevier’'s ScienceDirect database.
Initially the university took print copies of journals
alongside the electronicinformation, but
switched to electronic onlyin 2002.

12008 Research Assessment Exercise

Jii

UNIVERSITY OF LEED

AboutScienceDirect

ScienceDirectis one of theworld’s
largest databases of peer-reviewed
full-text scientific, technicaland
medical content. Over 11m researchers,
healthcare professionals, teachers,
students and information professionals
around the globe rely on ScienceDirect
asatrusted source of over 2,000
journalsand 26,000 book titles.
ScienceDirect supports research and
education withinteractive elementsin
articles such asaudio, video, graphs,
tablesandimages, and offers tools so
users can easily setalerts. With over
12m content pieces available,
ScienceDirectis a premier platform for
discovering the world of research.

/)

INFORMATION IN THE FORM OF
PEER-REVIEWED ARTICLES
FORMS A ‘HIGH-OCTANE FUEL FOR
RESEARCH.SCIENCEDIRECT’'S
VAST ARRAY OF QUALITY
JOURNALS, MANY OF WHICH ARE
CENTRALTO THEIR DISCIPLINES,
FORMS AN ESSENTIAL PART OF
THE RESEARCH INFRASTRUCTURE
HERE AT LEEDS. IT IS HIGHLY
VALUED BY OUR ACADEMIC
COMMUNITY.

- o Dr Stella Butler

University Librarian
and Keeper of the
Brotherton Collection
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Risk Solutions & Business Information

In Risk Solutions & Business
Information, we provide data,
analytics and insight that enable
customers to evaluate and
manage risk, and develop market
intelligence, supporting more
confident decisions, improved
economic outcomes, and
enhanced operational efficiency.

Risk Solutions

LexisNexis Risk Solutions is a leading provider of solutions that
combine proprietary, publicand third-party information, with
advanced technology and analytics, and are powered by High
Performance Computing Cluster (HPCC) Systems. These solutions
assist customersin evaluating, predictingand managing risk and
improving operational effectiveness, predominantly in the US.

Revenues forthe yearended 31 December 2013 were £933m.
LexisNexis Risk Solutions, headquartered in Alpharetta, Georgia,
has principal operationsin Georgia, Florida, and Ohio, and has
3,300 employees.

LexisNexis Risk Solutions is organised around market-facing
industry/sector groups: insurance, business services (including
the financial services, receivables management and corporate
groups), government, and healthcare. The largest of these is
insurance. These groups are supported by a shared infrastructure
fortechnology operations, data management, and other support
functionsincluding compliance and marketing. Anumber of

transactional supportactivities, including some financial
processes, are provided from a shared services organisation
managed by the LexisNexis Legal & Professional business.

The Legal & Professional business also distributes Risk Solutions
productsinto legal marketsinthe US and internationally.

Insurance Solutions provides a comprehensive combination of
dataandanalytics to property and casualty, personaland
commerciallinesinsurance carriers and life insurance carriersin
the US toimprove critical aspects of their business, from customer
acquisition and underwriting to claims handling. Information
solutions, including the most comprehensive US personal loss
history database, C.L.U.E.% help insurers assessrisks and provide
importantinputs to pricingand underwriting insurance policies.
Additional key products include LexisNexis® Data Prefill, which
provides criticalinformation on customers, potential customers
and theirauto, property and life policy information directly into the
insurance workflow, and LexisNexis® Current Carrier, which identifies
currentor previous insurance as wellas any lapsesin coverage.

Business Services provides financial institutions with risk
management, identity management, fraud detection, credit risk
management, and compliance solutions. These include “know
your customer” and anti-money laundering (AML] products. The
businessalso provides risk and identity management solutions for
corporate customersin retail, telecommunications and utilities
sectors. Receivables management solutions help debt recovery
professionals in the segmentation, managementand collection of
consumerand business debt.

Government Solutions provides data and analytics to US federal,
stateand local law enforcement and government agencies to help
solve criminaland intelligence cases and to identify fraud, waste
and abuse in government programmes.

Health Care Solutions provides identity, fraud, and clinical
analytics solutions across key stages of the healthcare workflow
toenableintelligentdecision making for payers and providers.

The Risk Solutions business also provides risk-related information
tothe legalindustry through LexisNexis Legal & Professional.

@ LexisNexis' | Risksolutions LexisNexis® Data Prefill LexisNexis® Current Carrier
Toolto automate insurance application Database thatidentifies the existence of
process providing criticalinformation currentorpreviousinsurance, and whether
insurers need to quoteand underwriteapolicy  ornottheapplicanthashadapossible lapse

incoverage
LexisNexis®
CLUES® Accurint® for Collections Identity Management

Most comprehensive US personalinsurance
claims database

LexisNexis® Anti-Money
Laundering Solutions

The leading online US solution to help locate
debtors quicklyand accurately

LexisNexis® RiskView

Range of solutions to help clients verify that
anidentity exists and authenticate individuals

LexisNexis® Revenue
Recovery and Discovery

Contentandinformation foranti-money
laundering compliance, risk mitigation
and enhanced due diligence

Comprehensive suite of credit risk
management tools to helpassess consumer
creditworthiness and risk potential

Suite of tools to enable governments to
leverage publicrecords and analytics to
identifyinstances of fraud and to more
efficiently collect on outstanding debts
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Risk Solutions continues to focus on developing a pipeline of new
solutions todrive growth in existing business segments and
selected adjacent markets and geographies. In 2013, this strategy
was reinforced with a number of focused acquisitions.

Inthe Insurance business, Risk Solutions acquired Mapflow, an
industry-leading geographic risk assessment technology
company basedin Dublin, Ireland. Mapflow’'s technology
combined with Risk Solutions’ comprehensive data, advanced
analytics, supercomputing platform (HPCC Systems) and linking
capabilities help commercialand home insurers better
understand property-level geographic peril risk to make more
informed underwriting decisions.

In Business Services, Risk Solutions acquired the remaining stake
in WorldCompliance, a leading provider of customer and vendor
screening content, to complement existing AML and compliance
solutions. Risk Solutions also acquired RSA Security’s consumer
Knowledge Based Authentication technology to drive further
innovation and strengthen its leadership position in identity
management. In Health Care, the acquisition of Enclarity
supplements the existing identity and fraud, waste, and abuse
solutions with the most comprehensive provider information
available. The transition of MEDai from Elsevier to Risk Solutions’
Health Care business was announced, enabling the combination of
MEDai’s clinical expertise with Risk Solutions” analytics, data, and
HPCC technology to create leading clinical analytics solutions.

Theidentity managementand risk evaluation solutions provided
by Risk Solutions utilise comprehensive database platforms of
public records and proprietary information with more than

2 petabytes of unique data, which makes it the largest database of
its kind in the US market today. LexisNexis Accurint is a flagship
product, powered by the HPCC technology. This market-leading
technology enables Risk Solutions to provide its customers with
highly relevant search results swiftly and to create new, low-cost
solutions quickly and efficiently. Itisalso increasingly used across
other Reed Elsevier markets such as Legal and Scientific,
Technical & Medical.

In February 2013, Risk Solutions completed the sale of its
Screening business. Thisallows ittoincreaseits focus on
higher-growth segments leveraging its core data, technology and
analytical capabilities. The Screening business presented limited
opportunities to apply these capabilities to generate unique
customervalue, sustained growth, and superior margins.
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Market opportunities

Risk Solutions operates in markets with strong long-term
underlying growth driversincluding: insurance underwriting
transactions; insurance, healthcare, taxand entitlement fraud;
creditdefaults and financial fraud; regulatory compliance and due
diligence requirements surrounding customer enrolment; and
securityand privacy considerations.

Inthe insurance segment, growth is supported by increasing
transactional activity in the auto, property and life insurance
markets and the increasing adoption by insurance carriers of more
sophisticated dataand analyticsin the prospecting, underwriting
and claims evaluation processes, to assess underwriting risk,
increase competitiveness and improve operating cost efficiency.
Transactional activity isdriven by growth ininsurance quoting
and policy switching, as consumers seek better policy terms.
This activity is stimulated by increasing competition between
insurance companies, high levels of carrier advertising, and
rising levels of internet quoting and policy binding.

Anumber of factors support growth for risk solutions in the
financial services market, including new credit originations,
continued high fraud losses, stringent regulatory compliance
requirements, and increasing anti-money launderingfines. In
receivables management, demand is driven mainly by levels of
consumer debtandthe prospect of recovering that debt, which is
impacted by employment conditions in the US. In corporate
markets, demand is supported by growth in online retail sales and
continued high levels of credit card fraud. Growth in government
markets is driven by theincreasing use of data and analytics to
combat criminal activity, fraud and tax evasion, and to address
securityissues. The leveland timing of demand in this marketis
influenced by government funding and revenue considerations. In
Health Care, there are numerous growth drivers for fraud and
analytics solutions including the expansion of insurance coverage
under the Affordable Care Actand the focus on cost containment
and better patient outcomes.

REVENUE BY FORMAT REVENUE BY SEGMENT
£933m . £933m
Print 4% Other
Government

Electronic Insurance

96% Solutions
Business
Services
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Strategicpriorities

Risk Solutions’ strategic goalis to make businesses and
government more effective, through a better understanding of the
risks associated with individuals, other businesses and
transactions and by providing the highest quality tools to help
manage those risks efficiently and cost effectively. To achieve this,
Risk Solutionsis focused on: delivering innovative new products
across customer workflows; expanding the range of risk
management solutions across adjacent markets; addressing
international opportunities in selected markets to meet local risk
management needs; and continuing to strengthen its content,
technology, and analytical capabilities.

Business model, distribution channels and competition
Risk Solutions’ products are predominantly sold directly, with
pricing mostly on atransactional basis forinsurance carriers
and corporations, and primarily on a subscription basis for
government entities.

Risk Solutions and Verisk, a competitor, each sell data and
analytics solutions toinsurance carriers but largely address
differentactivities. Risk Solutions’ principal competitorsin
commercialand government segmentsinclude Thomson Reuters
and major credit bureaus, which in many cases address different
activitiesinthese segments as well.

GROWTH INDATAPREFILLSOLUTIONS

GROWTHINANTI-MONEY LAUNDERING SCREENINGS

+16%

2012 2013

Growthinautomated solutions that deliver information for quoting and
underwriting at the point of initial contact with the consumer.

246%

2012 2013

Growthinanti-money laundering screenings driven by strong regulatory
enforcement.
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2013 2012 Change at constant Change

£m £m Change currencies underlying

Revenue 933 926 +1% -1% +8%
Adjusted operating profit 414 392 +6% +4% +8%

2013 financial performance

Allbusiness segments achieved strong growthin 2013. The
improvementinadjusted operating margin largely reflects the
impact of portfolio changes, as underlying cost growth wasin
line with underlying revenue growth, reflecting continued new
productdevelopment.

Underlying revenues grew 8% and underlying adjusted operating
profits grew 8%.

Revenue growthinthe insurance segmentwasdriven by good take
up of new products and services across the insurance workflow,
expansion into adjacent market verticals, and volume growth in
the core underwriting business. The expansion into international
markets is progressing well, although the absolute revenue
contribution remains small relative to Risk Solutions overall.

Business Services growth reflected strong demand for identity
authentication and fraud detection solutions across markets. The
US mortgage refinancing market did slow down in the second half
as expected, but the impact of this was largely offset by continued
good growth elsewhere.

REVENUE

£m

927 908 926 933

2010 20m1 2012 2013

New product sales drove strong growth in government revenues
forthe year, somewhat tempered by a slowdown in federal
markets inthe fourth quarter.

The 2013 results reflect the impact of portfolio changes, including
the disposal of the pre-employment screening businessin the first
half,and some smallacquisitions, including Mapflow and
Enclarity. Taken together, portfolio changes had the effect of
reducing reported revenues butincreasing the adjusted operating
profit margin, with underlying cost growth broadly matching
revenue growth.

2014 Outlook

The outlook for the federal government segmentand mortgage
refinancing marketis uncertain, but the fundamental growth
drivers of the Risk Solutions business remain strong. We will
continue toinvestin new products that leverage our leading
contentand analytics expertise, and to extend our services in new
verticals and geographies. Overall we expect good underlying
revenue growth across market segments.

ADJUSTED OPERATING PROFIT

£m
392 414
354* 362
2010 20m 2012 2013
*Comparative profit figures for 2010 are presented on a pro forma basis.
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LEXISNEXIS RISK SOLUTIONS:
PARTNERING TO PROTECT
-LORIDA'S BENEFITS

RECIPIENTS
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BYVERIFYING THE IDENTITY OF THE CUSTOMER
BEFORE PROCESSING THEIR APPLICATION, WE KNOW
WHETHER THE PERSON SEEKING BENEFITS IS TRULY
THE INDIVIDUAL APPLYING FOR THEM. WE EXPECT
THISNEW APPROACH TO FIGHTING FRAUD WILL
SAVE TAXPAYER DOLLARS, EXPEDITE APPLICATION
PROCESSING AND MAKE CERTAIN THAT ONLY
THOSEWHO NEED BENEFITS RECEIVE THEM.

Suzanne Vitale

Former Deputy Secretary
for the Florida DCF
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Identify theftand fraud has grownintoareal threatto
governments and individuals alike. In Florida, which
ranksfirstin the US for identity theft, LexisNexisis
working alongside the Department of Childrenand
Families (DCF) to tackle the problem.

In May 2013, the state of Florida launched the
Customer Authentication Program in partnership with
DCF. LexisNexis technology is integrated into Florida’s
ACCESS* program which helps confirm that benefit
applicants are who they say they are. With about 90%
of Florida’s benefits recipients applying for assistance
online, the program plays a critical role in detecting
andinvestigating fraud. Inits earliest stages alone,
the program detected three times the levels of

fraud expected.

Following the success of the pilot, the partnership
between LexisNexis and DCF is being rolled out
across the state and is expected to save taxpayers
millions of dollars.

* Automated Community Communication Economic Self Sufficiency
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Business Information

Reed Business Information (RBI) provides information and online
data servicesto business professionals worldwide. RBI provides
its customers with high-value industry critical data services,
information and tools as well as producing conferences, websites
and business magazines. It has many strong global brands with

market-leading positions across awide range of industry sectors.

Revenues forthe year ended 31 December 2013 were £547m.
RBlisaglobal businesswith principal operationsin London,
Amsterdam, Chicago, Atlanta and Shanghai. RBl has 3,900
employees worldwide. Approximately 28% of revenue in 2013
came from North America, 20% from the United Kingdom, 39%
from Continental Europe and 13% from the rest of the world.

RBI's customers use its dataand online services to help make key
strategic decisions, toimprove productivity and performance,
toidentify new business opportunities and to reduce risk. RBI's
magazines and websites deliver high-value news, information
and opinion to business professionals across many industry
sectorswhile also providing an effective marketing channel

for customers.

RBI's market-leading data servicesinclude: /CIS, an information
and data service in chemicals, fertilisers and energy; Accuity,
aprovider of services and solutions to the banking and corporate
sectors focused on payment efficiency, Know Your Customer
(KYC), anti-money laundering (AML] and compliance. XpertHR,
anonline service providing regulatory guidance, best practices
and tools for HR professionals; and Reed Construction Data, a
provider of online construction data and information to the
constructionindustry.

RBI's other leading brands include Flightglobal, New Scientist,
Farmers Weekly, Estates Gazette, Elsevier and Boerderij.

In 2013, RBI continued to reshape its portfolio, exiting areas not
coretoits paid content strategy. As part of this strategy RBl has
continued to exitits Marketing Solutions businesses. Approved
Indexwas sold in 2013, BuyerZone has been sold since year end
andthe sale process of emediais ongoing. In addition RBI
completed its exit of its publishing businesses in Australia,
France, Spainand Italy. /C/S made a smallacquisition in the carbon
trading information space, Tschach Solutions.

@ Fightglobal

AVIATION CoNNECTED ()

Q Reed Business Information

aviationindustry

Xpert[5

Online HR Intelligence

*ICIS

Data, news and advisory services for
professionals workingin the global

Paymentrouting data, AML services
and compliance tools for the banking
and corporate sectors worldwide

@ estatesgazette

making property move

Global provider of news, price benchmarks,
data, analyticsand researchtothe energy,
chemicaland fertiliserindustries

[%BME.E.Q

Provider of actionable insight for the
constructionindustry through cost data,
project leads, market intelligence, and
marketing solutions

Online services with reference data,
compliance informationand good practice
guides for HR professionals

ELSEVIER

VERRASSEND MUCHTER

Leading news and opinion magazine
inthe Netherlands

News, dataandresearch services forthe
UK commercial propertyindustry

FARMERS

WEEKLY

News, insight and software solutions for
farmersandagricultural businesses
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Market opportunities
The growing need for high-quality industry data and information

andinsightisdriving demand for online subscription data services

and providing new opportunities.

Strategicpriorities

RBI's strategic goalis to help business professionals achieve
better outcomes with information and decision supportinits
individual markets. Its areas of strategic focus are: further
growing the data services businesses; restructuring the
advertising-driven portfolio and focusing other products on
paid content; and driving further organisational effectiveness.

Business model, distribution channels and competition
Acrossthe RBI portfolio, user and subscription revenues
now account for 78% of the total business with the remaining
22% derived from printand online advertising and lead
generation. RBl electronic revenue streams now account
for 60% of total revenue.
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Data servicesare typically sold directly ona subscription or
transactional basis. Business magazines are mainly distributed
ona paid basis. Advertising revenues are sold directly or
through agents.

RBI's products compete with a number of information providers
onaservice and title-by-title basis including: IHS, McGraw Hill
and Wolters Kluwer aswellas many niche and privately owned
competitors. RBl competes for online advertising with other
business-to-business websites, search engines and social media.

REVENUE BY FORMAT USERAND SUBSCRIPTION REVENUE
Print
78%
33% 62% 69% °
59%
Electronic
60%
Face-to-face
7% r T T T
2010 20M 2012 2013

REVENUEBY SEGMENT

REVENUE BY GEOGRAPHICAL MARKET

£547m

Other Business
Magazines & Services

Major Data
Services

Leading Brands

Marketing
Solutions

£547m Rest of World

13%

North America
28%

Rest of
Europe
39% UK
20%
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2013 2012 Change at constant Change

£m £m Change currencies underlying

Revenue 547 663 -17% -19% +4%
Adjusted operating profit 107 19 -10% -1% +14%

2013 financial performance

Underlying revenue growth accelerated in 2013 reflecting
continued good growth in dataservices and modest growth
elsewhere. Focus on processinnovationdrove a further
improvementinadjusted operating profit margin.

Underlying revenues grew 4%, and underlying adjusted operating
profits grew 14%.

Major Data Services, which now accounts for over 50% of
continuing portfolio revenue, achieved strong growth in 2013
driven by Accuity, ICIS and XpertHR.

Leading Brands and Other Business Magazines & Services
achieved modest growth, despite weak printadvertising
markets, with solid results from data solutions and the
agricultural segments.

The improvementin adjusted operating profit marginin the year
was entirely the result of the continued organic transformation
of the business.

In 2013 we continued to exit from businesses that no longer fit our
strategy, with disposals during the period including RBI Australia,
Italy,and France. Since the beginning of 2014 we have also divested
BuyerZone inthe Marketing Services segment.

Since bringing the management structure of Business Information
and Risk Solutions more closely together at the end of 2012 we have
made good initial progress on leveraging Risk Solutions’ strengthin
data, analytics and technology across Business Information’s
broader geographic footprint.

2014 Outlook

We expect continued good underlying growth in Major Data
Servicesand stable Leading Brands and Other Business
Magazines & Services.

REVENUE ADJUSTED OPERATING PROFIT
£m £m
718 695 663 10 19 107
547 89
2010 201 2012 2013 2010 201 2012 2013
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ICIS:

LANXESS, the leading speciality chemicals

D E I_ |V E R | N G company, needs up-to-date, trusted dataand
high-value news and analysis on which to make
critical commercial decisions.
| | E U ; | E D DA | A Toachieve thisitrelies on ICIS, the world’s largest
petrochemical market information provider. Over 30

| D E | | N years, ICIS has builtan unrivalled global network,
respected methodologies and a team of distinguished

industry experts in petrochemicals, energy and

M A K E R S fertilisers to give companies in global commodities
markets a competitive advantage.

LANXESS DEALS IN OVER 1,300 CHEMICALS ANDIT’S
ESSENTIAL THAT WE ACCESS THE SAME TRANSPARENT,
GLOBAL DATA AS OUR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS. THAT
DATACOMES FROM ICIS.

ASWELL AS DATA, ICIS’ DAILY NEWS SERVICE IS THE FIRST
THING I LOOK AT EACH MORNING. IT COVERS NEWS ABOUT
THE MARKETS, OUR SUPPLIERS AND OUR COMPETITION.

ICISISASCLOSETOAONE-STOP-SHOP AS WE HAVE FOUND.

Holger Hiippeler

Head of Global Procurementand
Logistics, LANXESS AG
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Legal

In Legal markets, we are aworld
leading provider of legal,
regulatory and news & business
information and analysis to law
firm, corporate, government and
academic customers.

Serving customersin more than 175 countries, LexisNexis Legal
& Professional provides resources and services thatinform
decisions, increase productivity and drive new business.

Revenues fortheyear ended 31 December 2013 were £1,567m.
LexisNexis Legal & Professionalis headquarteredin New York
and has principal operationsinthe New York area, Ohio and North
Carolinainthe US, Toronto in Canada, London and Parisin Europe,
and citiesin several other countries in Africa and Asia Pacific. It
has 10,000 employees worldwide. Approximately 68% of revenue
by destination in 2013 was derived from North America, 21% from
Europe and the remaining 11% from the rest of the world.

LexisNexis Legal & Professionalis organised in market-
facing groups. These are supported by global shared
services organisations providing platform and product
development, operationaland distribution services, and
other support functions.

Legal & Professional ‘ LeX|S®

@ LexisNexis

Unparalleled legal, news and public records

Inthe US, in Research & Litigation Solutions, electronic
information solutions and innovative workflow tools, developed
through close collaboration with customers, help legaland
business professionals make betterinformed decisionsin

the practice of lawand in managing their businesses. Flagship
products for legalresearch are Lexis.com and Lexis Advance, which
provide federal and state statutes and case law, together with
analysis and expert commentaries from sources such as Matthew
Benderand Michie and the leading citation service Shepard’s,
which advises on the continuing relevance of case law precedents.
Research solutions alsoinclude news and business information,
ranging from daily news to company filings, as well as public
records information and analytics. Through its litigation solutions,
LexisNexis provides lawyers with a suite of tools covering case
preparation to processing and review to trial preparation.
LexisNexis partners with law schools to provide services to
students as part of their training.

In 2013, LexisNexis continued to release new versions of Lexis
Advance, aninnovative web application designed to transform how
legal professionals conduct research. Built on an advanced
technology platform, Lexis Advance allows primary researchers
within legaland professional organisations to find highly relevant
information more easily and efficiently, helping them to drive better
outcomes. Future releases will continue to expand content and
outreach and add new innovative tools. LexisNexis employs
lawyers and trained editors with professional legal backgrounds
who review, annotate and update the legal content to help ensure
each documentinthe collectionis currentand comprehensive.
This domain expertise combined with the application of Reed
Elsevier's “big data” HPCC technology means LexisNexis is able to
update its entire legal collection faster and more efficiently, while
alsoidentifyingand linking content, enabling customers to uncover
previously undiscovered relationships between documents.

Lexis® Library
LexisNexis® UK flagship legal online product

content for legal professionals

Matthew Bender®

Criticalanalysis, checklists, forms, and
practice guides authored by industry experts
covering over 50 major practice areas

Shepard’s’

Lexis Advance”

New online legal research tool that
transforms the way legal professionals
conductresearch

Premier citations service

Lexis® Practice Advisor

New resource that offers guidance to help
attorneys handle transactional matters more
efficiently and effectively

Lexis® PSL

LexisNexis® UK legal practical
guidance service

JurisClasseur

Largest, mostauthoritative online legal
resourceinFrance
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New workflow and analytical tools and content sets are regularly
introduced on Lexis Advance. For example, in 2013 LexisNexis
launched MedMal Navigator, a workflow tool that integrates
medicaland legal research with case facts, assisting attorneysin
determining their course of action. Also, LexisNexis launched new
modules for Lexis Practice Advisor,aweb-based practical guidance
product tailored for attorneys who handle transactional matters.
Additionally, LexisNexis strengthened its core content offering
through the acquisitions of Sheshunoffand A.S. Prattand
analyticaltitles from Oxford University Press - providing attorneys
with enhanced informationin online and ebooks formats.

In litigation solutions, LexisNexis launched its web-enabled Early
Data Analyzer which enables users to determine the nature and
amount of relevant datainalawsuit atits source location.
Additionally, LexisNexis released a new version of Concordance
Evolution supporting the directimport of files from LAW
PreDiscovery -reducing time, costs and storage needs by
streamlining electronic discovery workflow.

LexisNexis Business of Law Software Solutions provides law
firms with practice management solutions, including time and
billing systems, case management, cost recoveryand document
management services.

In August 2013, LexisNexis Martindale-Hubbell and Internet
Brands announced the set-up of ajointventure, bringing together
Martindale-Hubbelllawyer directory, including Lawyers.com, with
Internet Brands’ online marketing services for lawyers.

InInternational markets outside the US, LexisNexis serves legal,
corporate, government, accounting and academic marketsin
Europe, Canada, Africa and Asia Pacific with local and
international legal, regulatory and business information. The
most significant businesses areinthe UK, France, Australia,
Canada and South Africa.

LexisNexis focuses on providing customers with leading
collections of contentand innovative online solutions to help legal
and business professionals make better decisions more
efficiently. Penetration of online information services has grown
strongly and electronic solutions now account for 60% of revenue
outside the US.

REVENUE BY FORMAT

31

Inthe UK, LexisNexis is a leading legalinformation provider
offering an unrivalled collection of primary and secondary
legislation, case law, expert commentary, and forms and
precedents. Its extensive portfolio includes anumber of heritage
brands: Halsbury’s, Tolleys and Butterworths. The contentis
delivered through multiple formats - from print to online to mobile
apps and embedded in customers” workflow.

In 2013, LexisNexis launched additional modules for the UK
LexisPSL product suite which provides lawyers a single
destination for their practical legalinformation needs with direct
links to the relevant cases, legislation, precedents, forms,
practical guidance and expert commentary. Similar practical
guidance services were launched in Canada, South Africa

and Australia.

InFrance, LexisNexis is a leading online provider of information to
lawyers, notaries and courts. A heritage brand JurisClasseur and
leading authoritative contentis provided through multiple formats
- lexisnexis.fr, mobile and in print. These content sources are, as
inthe UK, being combined with new contentand innovative
workflow tools to develop practical guidance and practice
management solutions. In 2013, LexisNexis France continued to
enhance Lexis 360, the first semantic search online tool combining
legalinformation, practical contentand results from the web by
providing tailored solutions for the notary market.

Following the success of Lexis for Microsoft Office (LMO) in the US
and Canadian markets, an Australian version was launched in
2013.LMO enables customerstoaccess LexisNexis contentand
servicesviaadd-ins/toolbars within Microsoft Word and Outlook.

In 2013, LexisNexis Legal & Professional strengthened its
positionsin Asia through acquisitions and enhanced products
created specifically for legal professionals and practitioners,
corporate counsels, legal researchers and government
institutionsin marketsincluding India, Chinaand Japan. In China,
LexisNexis acquired LegalStudio, a leading provider of model
contracts and practical guidance, strengtheningits positionin
high-growing Corporate and Intellectual Property practice areas.

REVENUEBY GEOGRAPHICAL MARKET

£1,567m
Print
23%

Face-to-face
1%

Electronic
76%

Rest of World
1%

£1,567m

Europe
21%

North America
68%
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Market opportunities

Longer-term growthin legaland regulatory markets worldwide is
driven by increasing levels of legislation, regulation, regulatory
complexity and litigation, and anincreasing number of lawyers.
Additional market opportunities are presented by the increasing
demand foronline information solutions and practice
management tools thatimprove the quality and productivity of
research, deliver better legal outcomes, and improve business
performance. Notwithstanding this, legal activity and legal
information markets are also influenced by economic conditions
and corporate activity, as has been seen with the dampening
impacton demand of the recent global recessionand the
somewhat subdued environment that followed in North America
andin Europe.

Strategicpriorities

LexisNexis Legal & Professional’s strategic goalis to enable
better legal outcomes and be the leading provider of productivity-
enhancing information and information-based workflow solutions
inits markets. Toachieve this LexisNexis is focused on introducing
next generation products and solutions on the global New Lexis
platformandinfrastructure; leveraging New Lexis globally to
continue to drive print to electronic migration and long-term
international growth; and upgrading operationalinfrastructure,
improving process efficiency and gradually improving margins.

Inthe US, LexisNexis  focusis on the continuing development of
next generation legal research and practice solutions. Itis also
conductinga major upgrade in operations infrastructure and

LEXIS ADVANCE US LEGAL CUSTOMER PENETRATION

customer service and support platforms. This will provide
customerswith anintegrated and superior experience across
multiple products and solutions. Over the next fewyears
progressive productintroductions, often based on the New Lexis
platform, leveraging big data HPCC technology, will combine
advanced technologywith enriched content, sophisticated
analytics and applications to enable LexisNexis' customers to
make better legal decisions and drive better outcomes for their
organisations and clients.

Outside the US, LexisNexis is focused on growing online services
and developing further high-quality actionable content and
workflow tools, including the development of practical guidance
and practice management applications. In 2014, LexisNexis will
continue tointroduce New Lexis globally. Additionally, LexisNexis
isfocusing on the expansion of its activities in emerging markets.

Business model, distribution channels and competition
LexisNexis Legal & Professional products and servicesare
generally sold directly to law firms and to corporate, government,
accountingand academic customers on a paid subscription basis,
with subscriptions with law firms often under multi-year contracts.

Principal competitors for LexisNexis in US legal markets are
West (Thomson Reuters) and CCH (Wolters Kluwer). In news

and business information they are Bloomberg and Factiva

(News Corporation). Competitors in litigation solutions also
include software companies. Significantinternational competitors
include Thomson Reuters, Wolters Kluwer and Factiva.

MOBILEDOCUMENTACCESSES

73%

45%

2012 2013

Increasing uptake of next generation legal platform.

143%

2012 2013

Increasing use of Lexis Advance and lexis.com mobile content.
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2013 2012 Change at constant Change

£m £m Change currencies underlying

Revenue 1,567 1,610 -3% 4% +1%
Adjusted operating profit 238 234 +2% +1% +5%

2013 financial performance

Positive underlying revenue growth was maintainedin 2013
despite subdued market conditionsin the US and Europe.
Electronicrevenues continued to show good growth, largely
offset by printdeclines.

Underlying revenues grew 1%, and underlying operating profits
grew 5%.

Inthe US and in our major European markets, conditions remained
subdued, with growthin online solutions largely offset by
continued printdeclines. Otherinternational markets achieved
good growth.

Therollout of new product releases continued, with 73% of US
legal customers activated on the New Lexis platform at period
end, and new product usage progressing well.

Ongoing process innovation and some initial decommissioning of
oldinfrastructure more than offsetinflation and higher
depreciation, contributing toa 0.7 percentage point margin
improvementin 2013.

REVENUE

The 2013 results reflect the impact of portfolio reshaping over
the last 18 months, including the disposal of the US document
retrievaland filing business in late 2012 and other small print
assetsearlyin2013. Inthe second half of 2013 LexisNexis
Martindale-Hubbell, the US lawyer directory, was spun out into
ajointventure with Internet Brands, a broad-based internet
marketing firm.

2014 Outlook

We will continue the roll out of our new technology platforms
and productsin 2014, and will maintain our focus on process
improvement. Our customer markets remain subdued, however,
limiting the scope for underlying revenue growth.

ADJUSTED OPERATING PROFIT

£m

1,691 1,634 1,610 1,567

2010 2011 2012 2013

£m

238* 229 234 238

2010 20M 2012 2013

*Comparative profit figures for 2010 are presented on a pro forma basis.
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LEXIS ADVANCE:

FAST AND EASY EXPERT
INSIGHT AND ANALYTICS

The Clore Law Group, based inthe US and
headquarteredin Charleston, South Carolina,
handles sophisticated medical malpractice
lawsuits, advanced personalinjury issues and
wrongful death claims.

The firmis noted for applying advanced trial science
towin settlements and jury trials forits clients.
Recognised foritsinnovative use of technology to
optimise case preparation and management, Clore
competes successfully against much larger firms
across the country.

Averaging 180 days on the road, Clore’s attorneys
depend on fast, reliable and comprehensive legal
information systems that they can access anytime to
research, assess, and present their cases. They use
the Lexis Advance portfolio of content, analytical and
productivity tools for trusted information and deep
legalinsights: LexisNexis Verdict & Settlement
Analyzer enables them to compare similar verdicts
and settlements, LexisNexis MedMal Navigator
delivers their litigators analytics and insights into
related cases and medicalissues, and LexisNexis
Profile Suite helps them identify and evaluate
expertwitnesses.

About Lexis Advance

Lexis Advance provides lawyers
with essentialinformation and
analyticaltools coveringall
aspects of their daily work. Built
ontheinnovative New Lexis
platform and powered by Reed
Elsevier's HPCC big data
technology, the Lexis Advance
product portfoliois regularly
updated and expanded. Recent
additionsinclude the expert
witness resource LexisNexis
Profile Suite, and the medical
malpractice research and
analytics solution LexisNexis
MedMal Navigator, which
combines LexisNexis’
comprehensive legal content
with Elsevier’s extensive health
information to help attorneys
understand the underlying
medicalissues and related
points of law.

100%

more efficient

WITH MEDMAL NAVIGATOR,
THE CLORE LAW GROUP
FINDS EXPERTWITNESSES
INHALFTHETIME.

<[>

TOBEASUCCESSFUL
LITIGATOR, YOU NEED
TOSTAY AHEAD OF THE
CURVEAND GET THE
INFORMATION AND
ANALYSIS YOU NEED AS
QUICKLY AS POSSIBLE.

SamAllen

Litigator
Clore Law Group
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SamAllen,
Litigator, Clore Law Group
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Exhibitions

We operate the world’s leading
exhibitions business, with 500
eventsin over 30 countries.

Reed Exhibitions’ portfolio of exhibitions and conferences serves
43industry sectors across the globe. In 2013, Reed Exhibitions
broughttogether over 6m event participants fromaround

the world, generating billions of dollars of business and
facilitating entry into new markets for its customers and
boosting the local economies where the events are hosted.

Revenues fortheyear ended 31 December 2013 were £862m.
Reed Exhibitionsis a global business headquarteredin London
and has principal offices in Paris, Vienna, Norwalk (Connecticut),
Sao Paulo, Abu Dhabi, Beijing, Moscow, Tokyo, and Sydney.

Reed Exhibitions has 3,400 employees worldwide. In 2013,
approximately 16% of Exhibitions’ revenue came from North
America, 43% from Europe and the remaining 41% from the rest
of the world on an event location basis.

Reed Exhibitions organises market-leading events which are
relevanttoindustry needs, where participants from around the
world meet face-to-face todo business, to network and to learn.
Its exhibitions and conferences encompass a wide range of
sectors. Theyinclude construction, electronics, energy and
alternative energy, engineering, entertainment, gifts and
jewellery, healthcare, hospitality, interior design, logistics,
manufacturing, pharmaceuticals, real estate, recreation, security
and safety, transportand travel.

Q Reed Exhibitions’

International construction trade fair

e . -
3 "
“ULLUIEL
International exhibition of environmental
equipment, technologies and services

GIFTS&
HOME

RIRE-HE

One of the largest business giftsand home
fairsinChina

FEICON

BATIMAT

£ mipimv

Theworld’s property market

World Smart Energy Week

Aworld leading event for smartand
renewable energy

Market opportunities

Growthinthe exhibitions marketis influenced by both business-to-
business marketing spend and business investment. Historically,
these have beendriven by levels of corporate profitability, which in
itsturn has followed overall growth in GDP. Emerging markets and
higher growth sectors provide additional opportunities for Reed
Exhibitions. As some events are held other than annually, growthin
anyoneyearis affected by the cycle of non-annual exhibitions.

Strategicpriorities

Reed Exhibitions’ strategic goalis to understand and respond to its
customers’ evolving needs and objectives better than its
competition through deep knowledge of its customers and the
markets they serve.

Reed Exhibitions delivers a platform for industry communities to
conductbusiness, to network and to learn through a range of
market-leading eventsin growth sectors, especially in higher
growth geographies, enabling exhibitors to target and reach new
customers quickly and cost effectively.

Organic growth will be achieved by continuing to generate greater
customervalue through the intelligent application of customer
knowledge, by developing new events, and by building out
technology platforms to ensure the rapid deployment of innovation
and best practices across the organisation. Reed Exhibitions is
also shapingits portfolio through a combination of strategic
partnerships and acquisitions in high-growth sectors and
geographies as well as by withdrawing from markets and
industries with lower long-term growth prospects.

tor 0 )

International perfumeryand cosmetics
exhibition

7 world
J travel
' market

Premier global event for the travel
industry

2 "-J'..{'.j
a9
e

UShomeimprovementand DIY trade fair
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Reed Exhibitions is committed to continually improving customer
solutions and experience. By providing a variety of services,
including its integrated web platform, the company continues to
drive customer satisfaction. Using customerinsights, Reed
Exhibitions has developed aninnovative product offering which
enhances the value proposition for exhibitors by broadening their
optionsinterms of the type and location of stand they take and the
timing of their commitment to the event.

In 2013 Reed Exhibitions launched 37 new events. These included
events which extended the geographical footprint of the luxury
travelbrand, ILTM, to Africaand the artbrand, Paris Photo, to

Los Angeles. Reed Exhibitions Japan responded again to customer
demand by replicating its Tokyo-based World Smart Energy Week
in Osaka. The UK-based event, Oceanology International, was
successfully launched in China through a collaborative effort
betweenthe Chinese and UK teams. Regional strategies remain a
key element of building businessin China and Brazil, taking more
events to China’s second tier cities and cloning events from

Sao Pauloto Recifein Brazil's fast developing north east. Reed

Exhibitions now organises nearly 200 events in emerging markets.

Anumber of targeted acquisitions were completed during 2013.
Theseincluded the Capsule portfolio of contemporary fashion
events, located mainly in North America; Travelweek Sao Paolo,
ahigh-end travel event servicing premium buyers across Latin
America, and Expo Ferretera, the leading hardware eventin
Mexico. Elsewhere, acquisitions were made to expand Reed
Exhibitions’ footprintin China andits global positionin the

NUMBEROF EVENT LAUNCHES

37

advanced materials sector. Reed Exhibitions also entered into a
partnership with Thebe Exhibitions, one of the leading events
companiesin South Africa, to form Thebe Reed Exhibitions, which
willrunanumber of events, primarily in the traveland interior
design sectors.

Business model, distribution channels and competition

The substantial majority of Reed Exhibitions’ revenues are from
sales of exhibition space. The balance includes conference fees,
online and offline advertising, sponsorship fees and, for some
shows, admission charges. Exhibition space is sold directly or
through local agents where applicable. Reed Exhibitions often
worksin collaboration with trade associations, which use the
events to promote access for members to domestic and export
markets, and with governments, forwhom events can provide
important support to stimulate foreign investmentand promote
regionaland national enterprise. Increasingly, Reed Exhibitions is
offering visitors and exhibitors the opportunity to interact before
and after the show through the use of online tools such as
directories and matchmaking.

Reed Exhibitionsis the global market leaderinafragmented
industry, holding less than a 10% global market share. Other
international exhibition organisersinclude UBM, InformallR and
some of the larger German Messe, including Messe Frankfurt,
Messe Disseldorfand Messe Munich. Competition also comes
fromindustry trade associations and convention centre and
exhibition hall owners.

EVENTS INEMERGING MARKETS

37

2012 2013

192
165

2012 2013

Increasein events taking place in high-growth geographies through
launchesandacquisitions.

REVENUE BY FORMAT

REVENUEBY GEOGRAPHICAL MARKET*

£862m

Print 1% Electronic 2%

Face-to-face
97%

£862m

North America
16%

Rest of World
41%

Europe
43%

*Onanevent location basis.
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2013 2012 Change at constant Change

£m £m Change currencies underlying

Revenue 862 854 +1% +2% +2%/+7%*
Adjusted operating profit 213 210 +1% +4% +4%

* Excluding biennial exhibition cycling.

2013 financial performance

In 2013 Exhibitions maintained strong underlying revenue
growth of 7% excluding the effect of biennial show cycling.
While growth in Europe was modest, the US, Japan, Brazil and
other marketsallgrewwell.

Underlying revenues grew 2% (7% excluding biennial cycling),
and underlying adjusted operating profits grew +4%.

The US and Japan achieved strong revenue growth for the year.
US shows reported good growth invisitor numbers, and growth
in Japanwas supported by leadership of the alternative energy
sectorand new launches. Braziland China continued to generate
strong growth.

In Europe good growthininternational events more than offset
softnessin some domestic continental European events, resulting
inmodest overall growth.

In 2013 we launched 37 new events, primarily in high-growth
geographiesand sectors, including the highly successful
launch of World Travel Market Latin America, building on
aglobalfranchise.

We undertook a number of portfolio changes during the year, with
acquisitionsincluding Expo Ferreterain Mexico, IPSAin Russia,
Travelweek Sao Pauloin Braziland Capsulein the US. Disposals
include anumber of Spanish events aswellas some smaller
eventsacross geographies.

The impact of biennial exhibition cycling has steadily been reduced
from 10%in 2011 through 8% in 2012, to 5%in 2013.

2014 Outlook

We expect good underlying growth inthe USand Japan, and
limited growth in Europe. In other markets we expect growth to
remain strong, albeit at a slightly lower rate thanin 2013.1n 2014,
whichisa “cycling-in” year, we expect the impact of cycling to be
furtherreducedto around 2 percentage points of growth.

REVENUE ADJUSTED OPERATING PROFIT
£m £m
854 862
210 213
693 707 105 167
2010 201 2012 2013 2010 2011 2012 2013
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INTERNATIONAL
LUXURY TRAVEL

MARKET: BUILDING

GLOBAL BRANDS

/)

EACHYEARILTM CONTINUESTO FAR EXCEED OUR
EXPECTATIONS. IT REALLYISTHE MOST EFFICIENT AND
EFFECTIVEWAY TO PROMOTE AND GAIN BUSINESS. THE
FOCUSED AND PROACTIVE APPROACH IN EACH OF THE
SHOWS ENSURES HIGH-QUALITY APPOINTMENTS ARE
MADE. THE PEOPLE YOU MEET ARE THE PEOPLE THAT
ARE TRULY SELLING LUXURY.

Steve Odell
President
R ¢ Silversea Cruises

39

Reed Exhibitions works collaboratively
across bordersto leverage the strength
of the two most valuable assetsinthe
company - its people and its brands.

In 2013, Reed Exhibitions launched overa
dozen events by taking established brands
into new geographies.

Reed Exhibitions has sought to tap into the
changing dynamics of the luxury travel
market by expandingits highly regarded
International Luxury Travel Market (ILTM)
brand. The flagship ILTM event s held
annually at the Palais des Festivals et des
Congrésin Cannes and has been launched
into high-growth markets forinbound and
outbound tourismincluding Asia Pacific,
the Americas, Africaand Japanaswellas
the spaand wellbeing sector.

’\'—' s LN
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Corporate
responsibility

The Corporate Responsibility Reportis an
integral part of our Annual Reports and
Financial Statements. This section highlights
key achievements relative to our 2013 corporate
responsibility objectives. You can read the full
2013 Corporate Responsibility Report at
www.reedelsevier.com/go/CRReport
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Corporate responsibility

Constant engagement with stakeholders, including shareholders,
employees, governments, and communities in which we operate,
helps us determine material corporate responsibility issues.

The Reed Elsevier Boards, senior management, and the
Corporate Responsibility Forum oversee corresponding
objectives and monitor performance against them.

We concentrate on the contributions we make as a business
and on good management of the material areas that affect all
companies, encompassing:

Our unique contributions
Governance

People

Customers

Community

Supply chain

Environment

We focus on areas where we can make a positive impact on society
through our knowledge, resources and skills. This includes
universal sustainable access to information, advance of science
and health, protection of society, and promotion of the rule of law
and accesstojustice.

Elsevier,theworld’s leading provider of scientific, technical, and
medicalinformation, plays animportant role inadvancing human
welfare and economic progress through its science and health
information, which spurs the diffusion of innovation and enables
critical decision making. To ensure access to this information,
Elsevier supports key programmes in placeswhereresourcesare
often scarce. Amongthem s Researché4Life, a partnership with
United Nations agencies and other publishers; we provide core
and cutting-edge scientific information to researchersin more
than 100 developing countries. As a founding partner, we
contribute 25% of the content available in Researché4Life,
encompassing all ScienceDirect content, including approximately
3,000 Elsevierjournalsand 12,000 books. In the year, there

were more than 3m Research4Life article downloads from
ScienceDirect. Research undertaken by Elsevierin 2013 shows
African authors have nearly doubled their output of research
articles overthe pastdecade, aided by programmes like
Research4Life. In addition to support for ongoing projects, the
Elsevier Foundation committed $700,000 to libraries, new
scholars, and nurses, including a grant to the Mariners’
Polytechnic Colleges Foundation of the Philippines.

LexisNexis Risk Solutions tools and resources help protect
society. During the year, it launched Social Media Monitor, a new
capability withinits Accurint for Law Enforcement platform, to
assist law enforcement officials with investigations into critical
incidents such as gangviolence, drug dealing, crimes against
children, and human trafficking. Social Media Monitor allows law
enforcement personnelto identify posts and tweets by keyword
and geographic location as an additional resource alongside
traditional public records data. The business unit’s analytic
technologyalso helps governments fight fraud. In the year,
LexisNexis Risk Solutions partnered with investigators, Tax
Management Associates, Inc., to help Greenville County, South
Carolinarecover nearly $3min revenue by detecting fraudulent
tax exemptionfilings, including individuals receiving exemptions
under the names of deceased property owners. Astudy
commissioned in 2013 by LexisNexis Risk Solutions using its
Fraud Multiplier tool, calculated the actual cost of US fraud -
retailers lost $279 for every $100 of fraud, attributable to fees and
interest owed to financialinstitutions, charge-backs, and other
replacement costs. The study advocated greater awareness of the
wide range of fraud schemes, particularly those associated with
online purchases.

Reed Business Information (RBI) uses the power of its brands to
aid communities. In 2013, RBI's Community Care drew attention to
shortcomingsin England’s mental health provisionin ajoint
investigation with the BBC. This led the UK government’s Care
Services Minister to pledge an end to “institutional bias against
mental health”in the National Health Service. ICIS, an RBl service
providing news and market intelligence to the chemicals, energy,
and fertiliser sectors, held its 10th Innovation Awards in 2013 to
reward industry innovation.
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ADAM PROGRAM:
BRINGING HOME
MISSING CHILDREN

<[>

WE ARE GRATEFUL TO LEXISNEXIS FORITS LONG-
STANDING COMMITMENT TO HELPING FIND MISSING
CHILDREN THROUGH THE ADAM PROGRAM. BY ENABLING
THE RAPID DISTRIBUTION OF PHOTOGRAPHS, THEY

ARE HELPING BRING MISSING CHILDREN HOME AND
DELIVERING HOPE TO THEIR FAMILIES.

JohnRyan

CEO, National Centre for
Missing and Exploited Children

(K

children recovered
since 2000
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More than three-quarters of abducted
childrenwho are murdered are killed
within the first three hours after

their disappearance.

This terrifying reality led a team of
LexisNexis Risk Solutions employees to
develop the Automated Delivery of Alerts
on Missing Children (ADAM] Program,
which assists in the safe recovery of
missing children. The initiative’s name is
alsoin memory of a six-year old boy, Adam
Walsh, whowas kidnappedin 1981. ADAM
alerts circulate missing child postersin
minutes - more than 2min 2013 - to police,
news media, schools, businesses, medical
centres, and other recipients within a
specific geographic search area. Since
launchingin 2000, 139 children have been
located, including fourin 2013. ADAM is
designated for use by the National Center
for Missing and Exploited Children
(NCMEC] in the US. The colleagues behind
ADAM exemplify the Reed Elsevier values
of innovation, boundarylessness, and
valuing people.
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Boston-based Cabot Corporation was chosen overallwinnerand
winner of the Innovation with Best Environmental Benefit award
forits aerogel building insulation technology (lightweight, silica
materials consisting of 90% air which prevent heat transfer)
whichincreases energy efficiency and cost savings, and reduces
carbon footprints.

LexisNexis Legal & Professional promotes justice throughits
productsand services. In 2013, in association with the Atlantic
Council, it launched a draft set of Global Rule of Law Business
Principles to help businesses, law firms, non-governmental
organisations, and otherinstitutions promote and uphold the rule
of law. In conjunction with the launch, the first-ever LexisNexis
Rule of Law Awards were awarded to UN Secretary-General Ban
Ki-moon, former President of Ireland, Mary Robinson, and former
President of the American Bar Association, Laurel Bellows, all of
whom have each made significant contributions to the rule of law
around the world. Aung San Su Kyi, Chair of the National League
for Democracy and Parliamentary Rule of Law and Tranquility
Committee (Pyithu Hluttaw), also received an inaugural award
and accepted from Myanmar. LexisNexis Legal & Professional will
be working with the UN to refine and advance the Principlesin the
yearahead. In 2013, staff in South Africa launched the Human
Trafficking Awareness Index, building on atool developed by UK
colleaguesin2012. It uses the business unit’s Nexis news service
to highlight emerging trends within and across national borders to
aid campaigners and the South African Police Service in their
efforts to combat trafficking.

Reed Exhibitions” trade shows provide platforms for supporting
our corporate responsibility focus areas. During the 2013 PSI
Trade Show, the leading European show for the promotional
productsindustry, Reed Exhibitions, with the European
Promotional Products Association (EPPA), launched the EPPA
Certification Program for CSR. The aimis to help industry
companies comply with laws and regulations and International
Labor Organization standards. Atthe 2013 World Travel Market,
its global event for the travelindustry, Reed Exhibitions hosted
World Responsible Tourism Day with events available to the
show’s more than 50,000 attendees on topics ranging from
poverty reduction to wildlife protection and reducing greenhouse
gas emissions. Over the past 10 years, Reed Exhibitions has given
free space atthe London Book Fair to Book Aid International,
which annually provides more than 500,000 books - including
those donated from across Reed Elsevier - to readersin the
developingworld, enabling the charity to engage with awide range
of potential book and financial donors.

Drawing on expertisein alternative energy across Reed Elsevier,
in 2013, we launched the Alternative Energy Roundtable to
facilitate cross-business understanding of our products and new
developmentsinalternative energy. At meetings held during the
year, more than 30 colleagues from our business units discussed
topics such as emerging markets, R&D, and customer
engagement. Inaddition, itwas the theme of our 2013 CR Forum
Stakeholder Session withinternaland external specialists,
including Jan Paul Grollé, Elsevier's Managing Director of
Alternative Energy; Richard Sobelsohn, LexisNexis Legal &
Professional’s Director of Contentand Product Initiatives; Blaine
Collison, Director of the US Environmental Protection Agency’s
Green Power Partnership; and Professor Jinyue Yan, Director of
Future Energy at Sweden’s Royal Institute of Technology.

During theyear, we progressed our collaboration with UNICEF on
the report, Social protection, Disaster Risk Reduction, and Climate
Change Adaptation in East Asia and the Pacific, providing access to
contentand subject experts, and editorial assistance. The report,
featuringin-depth case studies from Thailand and the Philippines,
was profiled at aworkshop for corporate peersand NGOs to
advance awareness of climate change resilience. A follow-up
workshop willbe held in 2014 for academics, practitioners, and
policymakers to explore translating the report’s findings into
programming and policy for childrenin East Asia and the Pacific.

Progress

New partnerships through
Reed Elsevier Environmental
Challenge to share waterand
sanitation expertise

Partnership with Dutch
WASH Alliance:

Funded $15,000 third
prize and collaboration
on 2013 prize ceremony
atWorld Water Week in
Stockholm

Provided judge and
reviewers

Contributed $2,500 for
training to advance
winners’ personal
development

Over 30 cross-business
participants

Create cross-business
alternative energyroundtable
to foster knowledge sharing

and product development Meetings on emerging

topics; also presentations
by internal/external
experts

Renewable energy
industry event planned

Deliverworkshopswith = Hostedworkshop for
UNICEF on child-centred corporate peers and
climate change adaptationin NGOs toadvance

awareness of climate
changeresilience,
focusing on Philippine
case study in the wake
of Typhoon Haiyan

high-risk locations

Continued in-kind
assistanceincluding
accesstoinformation,
subject experts, and
editorial support

Partnerwith United Nations Global Compact torefine and
launch stakeholder consultation on the Global Rule of Law
Business Principles

Develop media and/or academic partnership to further
awareness and engagement with the Reed Elsevier
Environmental Challenge

Collaboration with Oxfam to advance the Raising Her Voice
women’s leadership programme in Nepal
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The Reed Elsevier Code of Ethics and Business Conduct (The Code)
isdisseminated to every employee, setting the standard for our
corporate and individual conduct. It covers topics such as fair
competition, anti-bribery, conflicts of interest, employment
practices, and protectingintellectual property. Italso encourages
the reporting of violations, and prohibits retaliation. The Code
makes clear our commitment to humanrights, incorporating the
principles of the United Nations Global Compact (UNGC). In
accordance with the UN's Guiding Principles on Business and
Human Rights, we have considered where and how we operate and
have concluded that there is low human rights risk in our direct
employment activities (for more information on human rights see
Supply Chain).

Allemployees complete training on the Code, both as part of their
new hireinductionand atregularintervals, to update their
understanding and acknowledgement of the Code. We also
provide mandatory online training on anti-bribery, competition
laws, protecting data, and preventing workplace harassment,
supplemented by in-person training for higherrisk roles.

We achieve 100% completion rates for all courses within six
months of issuance.

In 2013, we remained diligentin our ongoing efforts to ensure
compliance with applicable bribery laws, including the UK Bribery
Actand US Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, through intermediary
due diligence and monitoring, strict limits on gifts, hospitality and
gratuities, and employee awareness efforts, among other steps.
Alsothisyear, we developed employee training onintellectual
property and using social media, and enhanced internal
investigation procedures and training of investigators forall types
of alleged employee misconduct. We also translated our Record
Management Policy, Record Retention Schedule, and related
resources for non-English-speaking employees to help them
properly manage company records.

Asasignatory to UNGC and its principles, encompassing labour,
environment, anti-corruption, as wellas humanrights, we
demonstrated leadershipin 2013 by serving on the UNGC Advisory
Group forthe UKand the UNGC Supply Chain Advisory Group.

We were also part of the UNGC's CEO Water Mandate Steering
Group and represented the initiative on the board of the Alliance
for Water Stewardship. Amember of the UNGC Caring for
Climate Advisory Group, we participated in the Caring for Climate
Business Forumin Warsaw, held during the UN Climate Change
Conference (COP 19), to supportinnovation and collaboration on
climate action. The UNGC judged our 2013 Communication on
Progress, required of signatories eachyear, to have attained
Advanced Level. Inthe year, we provided content for the UNGC
Lawyersas Leadersvideo series, and hosted UNGC meetingsin
Londonand New York.

43

Progress

Achieve 100% completion of all
computer-based compliance
courses

100% completion
achieved within six
months of issuance

Translations completed
and disseminated to
relevantemployees

Advance Record Management
Policy implementationand roll
outtranslations

Implementation
guidelines and tools
available in multiple
languages; ongoing
collaboration with
business unitteams

Enhanced training programme
forinternalinvestigators of
Code of Ethicsand Business
Conduct breaches

Completed training of US
HR personnel, data
privacy and security
investigators, and
Corporate Audit Services
representatives.

2014 training of HR
representatives outside
the US planned

and compliance efforts
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Our 28,200 people are our strength. Our workforce is 53% female
and 47% male, with an average length of service of eight years.
There were 44% female and 56% male managers and 30% female
and 70% male senior operational managers.

The Reed Elsevier Nominations Committee considers the
knowledge, experience and background of individual Board
Directors. Byyearend 2013, women made up 30% of the members
of the Reed Elsevier NV Board and 22% of the members of the
Reed Elsevier PLC Board. The two Executive Directors of the
Board, who constitute senior management, are male.

The Reed Elsevier Diversity and Inclusion [D&I) Statement
(www.reedelsevier.com/go/Diversity), articulates our
commitmentto adiverse workforce and environment that
respectsindividuals and their contributions, regardless of their
gender, race, or other characteristics. Our D& Strategy is focused
ontranslating the Statementinto practicalaction. Among its
commitmentsis maintaininga D&l Advisory Group comprised of a
senior business and HR leader from each business unit, supported
by abroader D& Working Group. We expanded D&l training in the
year, with in-person sessions for Elsevier managersin six US
cities; online training for LexisNexis Risk Solutions US managers;
in-person sessions for LexisNexis Legal & Professional UK
managers, and Reed Elsevier head office managers. Course
contentincludes making the business case for D&l on ethical,
economic, regulatory, and reputational grounds. We encourage
both affinity groups, such as women’s forums, which provide
supportand mentoring, and community involvement.

In 2012, we conducted a global Employee Opinion Survey (EOS) to
understand how our people view Reed Elsevier. We donated $1 for
every completed survey to our global fundraising effort for Plan
UK focused on education for girlsin Peruand pre-school
education for ethnic minority children in China, and had 77% EQS
participation. Overall, employees rate Reed Elsevierasa company
that employs strong, ethical principlesinits business practices
with improved scores since the last surveyin 2009 in overall
satisfaction, innovation, and customer focus. Local action plans
led by managers have been undertaken inall business units; at
LexisNexis Risk Solutions for example, follow-up hasincluded
focus groups and manager coaching, and senior leaders have key
performance objectives toimprove EOS and pulse survey (shorter,
more frequent staff polling) results.

Our employees have the right to a healthy and safe workplace as
outlined in the Reed Elsevier Global Health and Safety Policy. We
concentrate on areas of greatest risk, for example, warehouses,
events, and exhibitions. However, as a primarily office-based
company, our key impact areas are manual handling, slips, trips
andfalls. To reduce our severity rate (lost days per 200,000 hours
worked), we conduct risk assessments, and work with a third
partyinthe UStoassignanurse case managerto each complexor
severe claim. The number of lost time reportable cases decreased
intheyear (36in2013vs49in 2012).

Inthe US, where we have our largest concentration of employees,
the REACH programme promotes workplace wellbeing through
health screenings, online assessments, stress awareness
training, and weight loss and smoking cessation programmes,
with financialincentives for participation. In 2013, we have

launched a health coach programme to provide personalised
support, available to allUS employees. Of them, 226 have made
contactwith a coach for helpwithissues such as diet, exercise,
and smoking cessation, and 2,808 calls were made to Care
Connect, a health concierge service.

Ourannualre:fit2win global wellbeing competition encourages
employees to establish fitness teams to compete for cash prizes
forthe charities of their choice. Across Reed Elsevier 79 teams
took partand ran, walked, cycled and swam a total of 73,382 miles/
118,097 kilometres, with anincrease of 50 miles/80 kilometres
per personover 2012.

Progress

Expand diversity and inclusion
trainingacross business units

Training expanded
across the USand into
the UK

Extensive efforts across
all business units;
trackingimprovements
ininterim pulse survey
scores

2,808 calls logged; 226
staffengagedina
lifestyle management
programme

Follow up on global Employee
Opinion Survey results

Institute health coach
programme to provide
personalised support to staff

Sign up tothe UN Women’s Empowerment Principles;
review practice relative to Principles

Developinclusive leadership as a core management
competency

10% increase in re:fit2win participants

In 2013, we surveyed approximately 500,000 customers through
Net Promoter Score (measuring customer loyalty) and business
dashboard programmes. This allows us to deepen understanding
of their needs and further drives forward a customer-centric
culture across Reed Elsevier. Results, reviewed by the CEO and
senior operational managers and communicated to staff, highlight
where we are doing welland where we must do better. To aid
colleagues whowork with customers, during the year, we have
worked toincorporate CR into customer-facing staff training with
outreach to key sales and marketing teams. We have updated our
intranetresource, CRas a Sales Tool; created a CR Fast Facts
document fordistribution across the business; and developed new
CRSales Academy content.

Inthe year, we shared the Reed Elsevier Editorial Policy with all
employeesinanemail from the Chief Legal Officerand Company
Secretary highlightingits importance and key provisions,
including our responsibility to make clear distinctions between
factand opinion and user-generated or other content. With help
from our cross-business Editorial Policy Working Group, we
created anew section of our globalintranet with input from our
editors and others who have shared what the principles mean to
themand their businesses.
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ENVIRONMENTAL
CHALLENGE:
ADVANCING ACCESS
TO SAFEWATER
AND SANITATION

The $25,0002013 second prize winner
was Gadgil Laboratory at UC Berkeley,
forits scalable arsenic remediation of
groundwater projectin South Asia.

Forthefirsttime, a $15,000 WASH Alliance
prize was awarded to the third place
finisher, Textto Change, for a project
mapping Uganda’s water points using

The Reed Elsevier Environmental
Challenge advances sustainable access
tosafe water and sanitationwhereitis
presently atrisk.

Projects must be innovative, scalable,
involve local communities, and address
issues such as health, education, and
non-discrimination. The $50,000 2013

first prize winner was WaterSHED, an
NGO which works with local enterprises
and governments to develop sustainable,

smart phone technologyin ordertoalert
water providerswhen repairs are needed.
The WASH Alliance is a consortium of six

market-based approaches to effective
water and sanitation provision in
Cambodia, Laos and Vietnam.

Dutch NGOs promoting hygienic use of
sustainable water and sanitation.

i |
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<[>

BY SHARING OUR
INFORMATION, EXPERTISE,
AND NETWORKS THROUGH
THE REED ELSEVIER
ENVIRONMENTAL
CHALLENGE, WE HELP
INDIVIDUALS AND
ORGANISATIONS ADVANCE
ACCESS TO SAFE WATER
AND SANITATION.

Youngsuk ‘YS’ Chi

Director of
Corporate Affairs

past three years

Textto Change uses mobile technology to benefit communities in Africa, South America, and Asia.
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We are committed to improving access to our products and
services forallusers, regardless of physical ability. In 2013, we
consulted onanew Reed Elsevier Accessibility Policy that aims to
lead the industryin providing accessibility solutions to customers,
while contributing to international standards with products that
are operable, understandable, and robust. The Accessibility Policy
was formally launched to allmanagers before the close of the
year, withalaunchinearly 2014 to allemployees by the Chief
Strategy Officer.In 2013, members of the Accessibility Working
Group logged over 80 accessibility projects and Elsevier’s Global
Books Digital Archive fulfilled more than 4,000 disability requests,
60% of them through AccessText.org, a service it helped establish.

Progress

Incorporate corporate
responsibility componentinto
regular customer-facing staff
training

Engagement of key sales
and marketing teams

Updatedintranet resource,
CRasaSales Tool

Created a CR Fast Facts
document for distribution
acrossthe business

Developed new CR Sales
Academy content

Launched by Chief Legal
Officerand Company
Secretaryina
communication toall
employees

Embed updated Editorial Policy

New Editorial Policy
resource created on
globalintranet with
input from editors and
othersacrossthe

business

Consulton Reed Elsevier
Accessibility Policy and begin
implementation

Consultation with Reed
Elsevier Accessibility
Working Group

RE Cares, our global community programme, promotes education
for disadvantaged young people aligned with our unique
contributions as a business, and allows staff up to two days’ paid
leave peryear for their own community work. We donated £2.5min
cash (including through matching gifts) and the equivalent of
£3.Tminproducts, services, and staff time in 2013. 31% of
employees were engaged involunteering through RE Cares and
we reached more than 17,000 disadvantaged young people
through time, in-kind, and cash donations. In the year, we
spotlighted the benefit of skills-based volunteering through
awareness-raising campaigns, RE Cares on the globalintranet,
andtheinvolvementof 172 cross-business RE Cares Champions.

Each September, we hold RE Cares Month to celebrate our
community activitiesand in 2013, 56% of Reed Elsevier locations
around the world were involved. Among them, LexisNexis Legal &
Professional New Zealand ran a Live Below the Line Challenge;
staff attempted to live on $2.25 per day (the extreme poverty line)
foraweek, with funds they would have spent on food donated to
Habitat for Humanity to aid poor families. Reed Elsevier
Philippines held a science fair for 51 students at their office.

During RE Cares Month, we held our annual global book drive
yielding more than 9,200 books for local and developing world
readers, and announced the winners of the third Recognising
Those Who Care Awards to highlight the contributions to RE Cares
of eightindividuals and four RE Cares teams. Individual winners
from across the business spent a week with Afrikids, a child rights
organisationworking to raise standards for children in Northern
Africa, which Reed Elsevier has supported for 10years. The trip
was led by one of Reed Elsevier's senior leaders, Youngsuk “YS”
Chi, Director of Corporate Affairs. Among the winning teams was
the Amsterdam Slootermeer School Project Group, comprised of
30 Elsevier, RBI, and LexisNexis Legal & Professional volunteers
who help children with reading skills on a weekly basis, and the
RBI Skokie, ILlinois Accuity in Action Team, which over a 12 month
period organised 22 volunteer programmes to benefit staff and
the local community.

Progress

Launched to managers
across the company

Chief Strategy Officer
named senior
accessibility champion;
engaged business unit
chieftechnology officers

Rollout translations of the Reed Elsevier Editorial Policy;
launch related Reed Elsevier Data Quality Standards

Create CR ‘blueprint’ to help sales staff enhance their
customer conversations; put CR onthe agenda at five key
sales conferences

Embed Accessibility Policy and conduct accessibility review

of at least 10 key product sites

Skills-based Two Days volunteer
drive (all staff have two days
eachyear for community work of
their own choosing)

Cares Month

Drive consisted of
awareness-raising
efforts - collateral,
intranet content, and the
involvement of 172 RE
Cares Champions
across the business

25% of locations involved in RE

56% achieved

Increase use of Two Days volunteering by 10%

Expand RE Cares Champions network and create new

induction programme
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We require our suppliers to meet the high standards we set for
ourselves. Our Supplier Code of Conduct stipulates adherence to
alllaws and best practicein areas such as human rights, labour,
and the environment. Through our Socially Responsible Supplier
(SRS) database, in 2013, we tracked 613 critical, preferred and
strategic suppliers, and those we deem high risk according to
criteria encompassing the Corporate Executive Board's Global
Country Analysis Support Tool, human trafficking data from the
US State Department, and the Environmental Performance Index
produced by Yale University and Columbia University. The tracking
list changesyear-on-year based onthe number of suppliers we do
business withwho meet the required criteria. We started 2013
with 51% of suppliers on the SRS tracking list as signatories to the
Supplier Code and reached 79% by year end. We have embedded
signing the Supplier Code into our e-sourcing tool as one of the
criteriafor doing business with usand an additional 2,784
suppliers have signed up.

Specialist supply chain auditors undertook 56 external audits of
high-risk suppliersin 2013. Any incidence of non-compliance with
the Supplier Code identified in the audit process triggersa
corrective action plan with supplier remediation required on all
issues. Intheyear, we began using our external audit partner’s
Workplace Conditions Assessment template to benchmark
high-risk supplier audit performance.

We developed anew US Supplier Diversity Plan in 2013 to identify
and create opportunities for diverse suppliers. Among its
provisionsis providing successfuland non-awarded diverse
suppliers with feedback after competitive bidding and capacity
building opportunities.

Progress
78% of key suppliers as 79% (487 of 613 key
Supplier Code of Conduct suppliers); 2,784 other
signatories Supplier Code
signatories
55 external audits of high risk 56 completed
suppliers
Develop new US Supplier Planand
Diversity Plan implementation
process developed

Supplier Code of Conduct incorporatedinto terms and

““Expand use of Workplace Conditions Assessment tool to
enhance high-risk supplier audits

49

Ourtargets reflect our performance and keyissuesand can be
found alongwith full detailsin the 2013 Corporate Responsibility
Reportatwww.reedelsevier.com/go/CRReport.

We attained 40% of our electricity from renewable sourcesin
theyearand were ranked among the top FTSE 350 companies for
disclosure and performance inthe 2013 CDP Leadership Index,
representing 722 investors with assets of $87,000bn.

Our Environmental Champions network, employee-led Green
Teams, and engagement through networks such as Publishers
database for Responsible Ethical Paper Sourcing, inform how we
address our environmentalimpact. Among them is the Reed
Elsevier Environmental Standards programme, which sets
benchmark performance levels and inspires green competition
among offices. In 2013, 77 sites (64% of key locations) achieved five
or more standards attaining green status. Reed Elsevier's Chief
Financial Officer wrote to all staff recognising their achievement
onWorld Environment Day and also identified Green Heroes
across the company, nominated by their peers for their
environmental efforts.

We have a positive environmentalimpact through our
environmental publications and services which spread good
practice, encourage debate, and aid researchers and decision
makers. The most recent results from independent Market
Analysis System show our share of citations in environmental
science represented 40% of the total market, and 81% in energy
and fuels. Inthe year, we mapped the range of Reed Elsevier
environmental products and services which includes 490
products encompassing topics such as ocean and coastal
management, forestry, environmental law, waste management,
andtrade shows on environmental engineering, renewable
energy, and water.

Progress

40% achieved

35% of electricity from
renewable energy or offsets
64% achieved (77
locationsvs. 69in2012)

60% of key locations to achieve
five or more updated RE
Environmental Standards
490 productsidentified;
information shared
across the business

Map range of Reed Elsevier
environmental products
andservices

45% of electricity from renewable energy or offsets

70% of key locations to achieve five ormore RE
Environmental Standards

action
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Intensity Absolute 2013
achievement achievement 2013 Intensity figure
Target todate todate Absolute (per £ million
2015vs 2010 2013vs 2010 2013vs 2010 figure turnover)
. -20% intensity -1M% -1M% 11,810tC0Oe
Climate change : :
-10% intensity -25% -25%  111,036tCO,e
-20% intensity -26% -27% 107,951 MWh
Percentage of energy from
Energy renewable or offset 40% 77,384 MWh
Average data centre Po
Usage Effectiveness (PUE) 1.69 absolute 1.68 107,265 MWh
Percentééé‘f)'f”ké'y locations
Water inwater stressed areas
achieving usage of 10m? of
water per person peryear 100% absolute 67% 20 locations
Waste Waste diverted from landfill 75% absolute 69% 7,156 tonnes

We have reported on all emission sources required under the Companies Act 2006 (Strategic Reportand Directors’ Report),
Regulations 2013. These sources fall within our consolidated financial statement. We do not have responsibility for any emission
sources notincluded in our consolidated statement.

We have used the GHG Protocol Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard (revised edition) and the data has been assured by an

independent third party. Further details of methodology and the assurance statement can be viewed in the 2013 Corporate Responsibility

reportatwww.reedelsevier.com/go/CRReport.

Business in the Community
CRIndex

CDP Performance and
Disclosure Leadership

), -
ECPIS =i,

ECPI Ethical Funds
—included

v Lot g ot~ Mamemndidad w

Dow Jones Sustainability
Indices

- Platinum status Indices -included
-included
¥r -
BUSINESS
FlISkd 000

Ethibel Pioneer and
Ethibel Excellence
Investment Registers
—included (reconfirmed

-included

FTSE4Good Index

UK National Business

Awards

- Sustainability Awards
finalist

Oekom

- best media company
for sustainability of
46 companies

October2013)
NYSE
EURDOMEXT
sl Triodos @ Bank
Vigeo top 20 RobecoSAM Sustainability Triodos Sustainable Natural Capital Leaders

-Beneluxregion Yearbook 2013

-media sector sustainability
leaderrunnerup

Equity/Bond Fund
-Bestinclassinthe
publishing sector

Index
—included

THEFULL 2013 CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY REPORT ISAVAILABLE ATWWW.REEDELSEVIER.COM/GO/CRREPORT
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Chief Financial Officer’s report

Duncan Palmer
Chief Financial Officer

In 2013 we maintained the trends
in financial performance delivered
in 2012. Underlying revenue and
adjusted operating profit growth
was 3% [excluding exhibition
cycling) and 5% respectively.
Return on invested capital
improved to 12.1%. Our balance
sheet remains strong with net debt/
EBITDA of 2.1 times (on a pensions
and lease adjusted basis).

Adjusted figures

Underlying revenue growth was 2%, or 3% excluding the effects of
biennial event cyclingin our exhibitions business. Reported
revenue was £6,035m (2012: £6,116m), down 1%.

RECONCILIATION OF REVENUE YEAR-ON-YEAR

YEARTO 31 DECEMBER £m Change
2012 revenue 6,116

Underlying growth 136 2%/3%*
Acquisitions 69 +1%
Disposals (362) -6%
Currency effects 76 +2%
2013 revenue 6,035 -1%

*Excluding biennial exhibition cycling.

The overallimpact of disposals in 2013 was to reduce revenues by
6%, partially offset by a 1% increase from acquisitions. There have
beendisposalsin each of our businesses, but the effectis most
significantin Risk Solutions, where we sold the pre-employment
screening business, in Business Information where we made a
number of disposals, and in Legal where Martindale-Hubbell, the
US legaldirectory business, was spun outinto ajoint venture.
Disposals made throughout 2013 will continue toimpact reported
revenues and operating profit growth rates in 2014.

Theimpact of currency movementswas to increase revenues by
2%, principally due to the strengthening of the US dollar, on
average, against sterling during 2013.

Underlying adjusted operating profit grew 5%. Total adjusted
operating profitwas £1,749m (2012: £1,688m), up 4%.

RECONCILIATION OF ADJUSTED OPERATING PROFIT
YEAR-ON-YEAR

YEARTO 31DECEMBER £m Change
2012 adjusted operating profit 1,688

Underlying growth 75 +5%
Acquisitions 1 -
Disposals (62) ~4%
Currency effects 37 +3%
2013 adjusted operating profit 1,749 +4%

The impact of disposals was to reduce adjusted operating profit
by 4%. Currency effects increased adjusted operating profit by 3%.

REVENUE

£m

6,055 6,002 6,116 6,035

2010 2011 2012 2013
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Change
2013 2012** atconstant Change
£m £m Change  currencies  underlying
Reported figures
Revenue 6,035 6,116 -1% -3% +2%/+3%*
Operating profit 1,376 1,333 +3% +1%
Profit before tax 1,196 1,151 +4% +2%
Net profit 1,110 1,044 +6% +3%
Net margin 18.4% 17.1%
Net borrowings 3,072 3,127
Adjusted figures
Operating profit 1,749 1,688 +4% +1% +5%
Operating margin 29.0% 27.6%
Profit before tax 1,572 1,472 +7% +4%
Net profit 1,197 1,121 +7% +4%
Net margin 19.8% 18.3%
Operating cash flow 1,703 1,603 +6% +4%
Operating cash flow conversion 97% 95%

Return oninvested capital

12.1% 11.7%

* Excluding biennial exhibition cycling.

**2012 comparative financialinformation has been restated following the adoption of IAS19 Employee Benefits (revised), see the accounting policies section in the combined

financial statementson page 106.

Reed Elsevier uses adjusted and underlying figures as additional performance measures. Adjusted figures primarily exclude items related to acquisitions and disposals, and
the associated deferred tax movements. Reconciliation between the reported and adjusted figures are set outin note 10 to the combined financial statements on page 120.
Underlying growthrates are calculated at constant currencies, and exclude the results of all acquisitions and disposals made in both the year and prioryearand assets held for
sale.Constantcurrency growth ratesare based on 2012 full year average and hedge exchange rates.

Underlying costs were up 2%, reflecting investment in global
technology platforms and launching of new products and
services, partly offset by continued process improvements.
Actions were taken across our businesses, especially Legal, to
improve cost efficiency. Total operating costs, including the
impact of acquisitions and disposals, decreased by 3%.

The net pension expense, excluding the net pension financing
charge, was £61m (2012: £89m), including settlement and
past service credits of £59m (2012: £20m), mainly arising from
benefits changesinthe US, which will reduce future costs for
our USbusinesses.

The overall adjusted operating margin of 29.0% was 1.4
percentage points higherthaninthe prioryear. Thisincluded a
0.5 percentage point benefit to margin from portfolio changes as
wellasa 0.3 percentage point benefit from currency effects.

Interest expense was £177m (2012: £216m). The reduction

primarily reflects the benefit of term debt refinancing at lower rates.

Adjusted profit before taxwas £1,572m (2012: £1,472m), up 7%,
and up 4% at constant currencies, reflecting the increase in
adjusted operating profits and lowerinterest expense.

The adjusted effective tax rate on adjusted profit before tax was
23.5%, inline with the prioryear. The effective tax rate excludes
movements in deferred taxation assets and liabilities related to
goodwilland acquired intangible assets, and includes the benefit
of taxamortisation where available on those items. Adjusted
operating profits and taxation are grossed up for the equity share
of taxesinjointventures.

The application of tax law and practice is subject to some
uncertaintyand amounts are provided in respect of this.
Discussionswith tax authorities relating to cross border
transactions and other matters are ongoing. Although the
outcome of these discussions cannot be predicted, no significant
impact on the financial position of Reed Elsevieris expected.

The adjusted net profit attributable to shareholders of £1,197m
(2012: £1,121m) was up 7%, and up 4% at constant currencies.

1,749
1655 1626 1688

2010 201 2012 2013

*2012restated for IAS19.

25.7% 271% 27.6%* 29.0%
]

2010 2011 2012 2013

*2012restated for IAS19.
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Reported operating profit, afteramortisation of acquired
intangible assets and acquisition related costs, was £1,376m
(2012: £1,333m).

The amortisation chargein respect of acquired intangible assets,
including the share of amortisationin joint ventures, amounted to
£318m (2012: £329m). Acquisition related costs were £43m (2012:
£21m), including a charge for deferred consideration payments
required to be expensed under IFRS.

The reported profit before taxwas £1,196m (2012: £1,151m).

2013 2012

£m £m

Adjusted profit before tax 1,572 1,472
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets (318) (329)
Acquisition related costs (43) (21)
Reclassification of taxin joint ventures (12) (5)
Net pension financing charge (19) (11)
Disposals and other non-operating items 16 45
Reported profit before tax 1,196 1,151

Reported net finance costs include a charge of £19m (2012: £11m)
inrespect of the defined benefit pension schemes. Net pre-tax
disposal gainswere £16m (2012: £45m) arising from a gain on the
sale of Risk Solutions’ pre-employment screening business, offset
by anetlossonotherdisposals. These were offset by a related tax
charge of £34m (2012: £58m credit).

2013 2012

£m £m

Adjusted tax charge (370) (346)
Taxondisposals and other non-operatingitems  (34) 58
Deferred tax credits fromintangible assets 300 84
Exceptional prioryear tax credit - 96
Otheritems 23 6
Reported tax charge (81) (102)

Thereported tax charge was £81m (2012: £102m). This included
adeferredtax creditof £221marising on the alignment of certain
business assets with their global management structure. The
reported net profit attributable to the parent companies’
shareholderswas £1,110m (2012: £1,044m).

Adjusted operating cash flowwas £1,703m (2012: £1,603m), up 6%
compared with the prioryearand up 4% at constant currencies.
Adjusted operating cash flow conversion was 97% (2012: 95%).

2013 2012
£m £m

Adjusted operating profit 1,749 1,688
Capital expenditure (308) (333)
Depreciation and amortisation of internally

developed intangible assets 249 227
Working capitaland otheritems 13 21
Adjusted operating cash flow 1,703 1,603
Cash flow conversion 97% 95%

Capital expenditure was £308m (2012: £333m), including £25Tm
(2012: £263m) in respect of capitalised development costs. This
reflects sustained investmentin new products and related
infrastructure, particularly inthe Legal business. Depreciation and
amortisation of capitalised development costs were £249m (2012:
£227m). Capital expenditure was 5.1% of revenue (2012: £5.5%).
Depreciation and amortisation were 4.1% of revenue (2012: 3.7%).

Free cash flow - after interest and taxation - was £1,161m (2012:
£1,098m) before acquisition related spend and cash flows relating
to prioryear exceptional restructuring programmes. Cash taxes
paid were £347m (2012: £281m), reflecting increased taxable
profits, predominantly in the US.

Payments made inrespectof acquisition related costs amounted
to £28m (2012: £37m). Payments for exceptional restructuring
programmes from prioryears were £12m (2012: £25m),
principally property costs.

Free cash flow before dividends was £1,131m (2012: £1,075m).
Ordinarydividends paid to shareholdersin the year, being the 2012
finaland 2013 interim dividends, amounted to £549m (2012:
£521m). Free cash flow after dividends was £582m (2012: £554m).

11.2% 1M7%* 121%

10.6%

2010 201 2012 2013

*2012restated for IAS19.

98% 93% 95%* 97%

2010 20m1 2012 2013

*2012restated for IAS19.
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2013 2012

£m £m

Adjusted operating cash flow 1,703 1,603
Interest paid (195) (224)
Tax paid (347) (281)
Acquisition related/restructuring costs* (30) (23)
Free cash flow before dividends 1,131 1,075
Ordinary dividends (549) (521)
Free cash flow post dividends 582 554

*Including cash taxrelief.

Cash spenton acquisitionswas £221m (2012: £316m), including
deferred consideration of £21m (2012: £30m) on past acquisitions.
Spend onventure capitalinvestments was £10m (2012: £7m).

Total consideration from disposal transactions closed in 2013 was
£331m, including £6minrespect of freehold properties. The net
cashreceivedinthe calendaryear from business disposals, after
timing differences and separation and transaction costs, was
£195m (2012: £160m). Net tax paid in respect of disposals was
£25m (2012: tax recovered £26m).

Share repurchases by the parent companiesin 2013 were £600m
(2012: £250m), with a further £100m repurchasedin 2014 as at
26 February. Proceeds from the exercise of share options were
£125m (2012: £48m).

2013 2012

£m £m

Netdebtat 1 January (3,127) (3,433)
Free cash flow post dividends 582 554
Net disposal proceeds 195 160
Acquisitions (231) (323)
Sharerepurchases (600) (250)
Net proceeds from share options exercised 125 48
Other* (44) 10
Currencytranslation 28 107
Net debtat31 December (3,072) (3,127)

* Cash taxrelief/payments on disposals, distributions to minorities and finance leases.
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Debt

Net borrowings at 31 December 2013 were £3,072m, a decrease of
£55m since 31 December 2012. The majority of our borrowings are
denominated in US dollars and the strengthening of sterling
againstthe dollarsince the start of the year resulted in slightly
lower net borrowings when translated at year-end rates. Excluding
currency translation effects, net borrowings decreased by £27m.
ExpressedinUSdollars, netborrowings at31 December 2013 were
$5,089m, in line with the prioryear.

Gross borrowings after fair value adjustments at 31 December
2013 amounted to £3,281m (2012: £3,892m). The fair value of
related derivative assetswas £77m (2012: £124m). Cash balances
have been reduced to £132m (2012: £641m), increasing the
efficiency of our balance sheet.

The effective interest rate on gross borrowings was 4.8%in 2013,
down from 5.6% inthe prioryear. As at 31 December 2013, after
takingintoaccountinterest rate and currency derivatives, a total
of 57% of Reed Elsevier's gross borrowings were at fixed rates with
aweighted average remaining life of 6.0 years.

The ratio of net debt to 12 months trailing EBITDA (adjusted
earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation) as at
31 December 2013 was 2.1x (31 December 2012: 2.2x) on a pensions
and lease adjusted basis. Onan unadjusted basis net debt to
EBITDAwas 1.6x (31 December 2012: 1.7x).

Liquidity

During July 2013, Reed Elsevier's committed bank facility,
maturingin June 2015, was cancelled and replaced with a new
$2,000m facility, maturing in July 2018. This back-up facility
provides security of funding for short-term debtissuance and
isundrawn.

In March 2013, $309m of US dollar denominated fixed rate term
debt maturing in January 2019, with a coupon of 8.625%, was
exchanged for $389m of the 3.125% term debt due in 2022 and cash.
InJune 2013, $282m of Swiss franc denominated fixed rate term
debtduein2018wasissued ata coupon of 1.0%.

In December 2013, $461m of US term debt maturing in January
2014 was redeemed, taking advantage of the make-whole election.

Reed Elsevier hasample liquidity and access to debt capital markets,
providing the ability to repay or refinance borrowings as they mature
and to fund ongoing operational requirements.

£m

3,455 3,433 3127 3,072

2010 201 2012 2013

$m

993

663 758
476 532
420 357
286 282
150
0

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 >2023
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2013 2012

£m £m

Goodwilland acquiredintangible assets* 6,980 7173

Internally developed intangible assets* 720 647
i *

Property, plantand equipment 454 443

and investments
Net assets held for sale 18 201

Net pension obligations (379) (466)
Working capital (1,156) (1,139)
Net capitalemployed 6,637 6,859

*Netofaccumulated depreciationand amortisation.

Net capital employed was £6,637m at 31 December 2013 (2012:
£6,859m), adecrease of £222m.

The carryingvalue of goodwilland acquired intangible assets fell
by £193m, reflecting the annualamortisation charge, divestments
and currency effects, partly offset by acquisitions in 2013.
Anamount of £133m was capitalised in the year reflecting
acquiredintangible assets and £157m was recorded as goodwill.

Development costs of £251m (2012: £261m) were capitalised
within internally developed intangible assets, most notably
investmentin new products and related infrastructure in the
Legalbusiness.

Net pension obligations, i.e. pension obligations less pension
assets, decreased to £379m (31 December 2012: £466m). There
was a deficit of £219m (31 December 2012: £306m] in respect of
funded schemes, whichwere on average 95% funded at the end of
theyearonanIFRS basis. The lower deficit reflects improvements
inassetsvalues during 2013 and benefits changesin the US.

Negative working capital, driven by advanced receipts in our
subscription and exhibition businesses, was largely unchanged
at£1,156m.

Gross capitalemployed at 31 December 2013 was £11,155m
(2012: £11,338m) after adding back accumulated amortisation
and impairment of acquired intangible assets and goodwill.

The decrease of £183m principally reflects business divestments
and currency effects.

The post-tax return on average invested capital in the year was
12.1% (2012: up 0.4 percentage points as restated). This is based on
adjusted operating profits for the year, less tax at the effective
rate, and the average of the gross capitalemployed at the
beginning and end of the year, retranslated at the average
exchange rates, adjusted to exclude the gross up to goodwillin
respect of deferred tax liabilities established on acquisitions in
relationtointangible assets. The increase inthe return reflects
the improved trading performance.

Structure

Elsevier Reed Finance BV, the Dutch parent company of the
Elsevier Reed Finance BV group ("ERF”), isdirectly owned by
Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV. ERF provides treasury,
finance, intellectual propertyand reinsurance services to the
Reed Elsevier Group plc businesses throughits subsidiariesin
Switzerland: Elsevier Finance SA("EFSA”), Reed Elsevier
Properties SA("REPSA”]) and Elsevier Risks SA("ERSA”). These
three Swiss companies are organised under one Swiss holding
company, whichisinturnowned by Elsevier Reed Finance BV.

Activities

EFSAisthe principaltreasury centre for the Reed Elsevier
combined businesses. Itis responsible for allaspects of treasury
advice and support for Reed Elsevier Group plc’'s businesses
operatingin Continental Europe, Latin America, the Pacific Rim,
India, China and certain other territories, and undertakes foreign
exchange and derivatives dealing services for the whole of Reed
Elsevier. EFSAalsoarrangesordirectly provides Reed Elsevier
Group plc businesses with financing for acquisitions, product
developmentand other generalrequirements and manages cash
pools, investments and debt programmes on their behalf.

REPSA actively managesintellectual property assetsincluding
trademarks such as The Lancet and databases such as Reaxys and
PharmaPendium. ERSAis responsible for reinsurance activities
for Reed Elsevier.

Major developments

In 2013, EFSAwas active inarranging the financing and foreign
currency contracts for Reed Elsevier Group plc companies related
to cross border dividends and acquisitions. EFSAissued $282m

of term debt notesin June 2013. It negotiated and advised

Reed Elsevier Group plc companies onanumber of banking and
cash managementarrangementsin Continental Europe and
Asiaand continued to advise on treasury matters, including
interest rate and foreign currency managementand certain
otherfinancial exposures.

The average balance of cash under management by EFSAin 2013,
on behalf of Reed Elsevier Group plc and its parent companies,
was approximately US$0.4bn (2012: US$0.5bn).

Liabilities and assets

At 31 December 2013, 85% (2012: 82%) of ERF’s gross assets
were heldin US dollars and 10% (2012: 17%) in euros, including
US$8.2bn (2012: US$8.4bn) and €0.5bn (2012: €0.6bn) in loans
to Reed Elsevier Group plc subsidiaries. Loans made to

Reed Elsevier Group plc businesses are funded from equity,
long-term debt of US$1.9bn and short-term debt of US$0.3bn
backed by committed bank facilities. Sources of long-term
debtinclude Swiss domestic public bonds, euro notes, bilateral
term loans, private placements and syndicated bank facilities.
Short-term debtis primarily derived from euroand US
commercial paper programmes.
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Change
2013 2012* atconstant
Reed Elsevier PLC £m £m Change  currencies
Reported net profit 572 538 +6%
Adjusted net profit 633 593 +7% +4%
Reported earnings per share 48.8p 44.8p +9%
Adjusted earnings pershare 54.0p 49.4p +9% +7%
Ordinarydividend pershare 24.6p 23.0p +7%
Reed Elsevier NV €m €m
Reported net profit 655 642 +2%
Adjusted net profit 707 689 +3% +4%
Reported earnings per share €0.91 €0.87 +5%
Adjusted earnings per share €0.99 €0.94 +5% +7%
Ordinarydividend pershare €0.506 €0.467 +8%

* 2012 comparative financial information has been restated following the adoption of IAS19 Employee Benefits (revised), see the accounting policies section in each of the

parent company consolidated financial statements on page 164 and page 184.

Thereported earnings per share for Reed Elsevier PLC
shareholderswas 48.8p (2012: 44.8p) and for Reed Elsevier NV
shareholderswas€0.91(2012: €0.87), reflecting the improved
trading performance and deferred tax credits.

Adjusted earnings per share were up 9% at 54.0p (2012: 49.4p) and
5% at€0.99 (2012: €0.94) for Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier
NVrespectively. At constant rates of exchange, the adjusted
earnings per share of both companiesincreased by 7%.

The equalised finaldividends proposed by the respective Boards
are 17.95p per share for Reed Elsevier PLC and €0.374 per share
for Reed Elsevier NV, 6% and 11% higher respectively against the
prioryear final dividends. This gives total dividends for the year of
24.60p (2012:23.0p) and €0.506 (2012: €0.467), up 7% and 8%
respectively. The difference in growth ratesin the equalised final
dividends, and in the earlierinterim dividends, reflects changesin
the euro: sterling exchange rate since the respective prioryear
dividend announcement dates.

Dividend cover, based on adjusted earnings per share and the
totalinterim and proposed final dividends for the year, is 2.2x
(2012: 2.2x] for Reed Elsevier PLC and 2.0x (2012: 2.0x] for

Reed Elsevier NV. The dividend policy of the parent companiesis,
subject to currency considerations, to grow dividends broadly in
line with adjusted earnings per share while maintaining dividend
cover (defined as the number of times the annual dividend is
covered by the adjusted earnings per share] of at least two times
overthe longerterm.

During 2013, 41.9m Reed Elsevier PLC shares and 25.2m Reed
Elsevier NVshares (including R shares) were repurchased. As at
31 December 2013, sharesinissue for Reed Elsevier PLC and
Reed Elsevier NVrespectivelyamountedto 1,157.4m and 709.7m.
Afurther 6.0m Reed Elsevier PLC sharesand 3.5m Reed Elsevier
NV shares have beenrepurchased in Januaryand February 2014.

Reed Elsevier PLC Reed Elsevier NV
pence €
Growth +9% Growth +5%
54.0
49.4 0.94 0.99
2012 2013 2012 2013

Reed Elsevier PLC Reed Elsevier NV
pence €

Growth +7% Growth +8%
23.0 24.6 0467  0.506

L m L |

2012 2013 2012 2013
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The combined financial statements are prepared inaccordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by
the European Union and asissued by the International Accounting
Standards Board following the accounting policies shown on
pages 102to 107. The accounting policies and estimates which
require the most significantjudgement relate to the valuation of
goodwill and intangible assets, the capitalisation of development
costs and taxation. Further detailis provided in the accounting
policies on pages 105and 106.

AmendmentstolAS19 - Employee Benefits

With effect from 1 January 2013, IAS19 Employee Benefits
(revised) inter alia changed the methodology used in the
calculation of the net pension financing credit or charge inrelation
to defined benefit pension schemes. Under the revised standard,
pension asset returnsincluded within the net pension financing
creditor charge are calculated by reference to the discount rate of
high-quality corporate bonds (being also the discount rate applied
inthe calculation of pension obligations) and are no longer based
onthe expected returns on scheme assets. The effectis toreduce
the assetreturnsrecognisedintheincome statement.

Adoption of IAS19 (revised) has had noimpact on Reed Elsevier’s
combined statement of financial position and statement of cash
flows. The net pension financing credit or charge is now presented
within net finance costsin Reed Elsevier's combined income
statement, rather than within operating profitas previously
reported. Given that the revised standard may introduce greater
volatility to the income statement, the net pension financing credit
or charge has been excluded from the adjusted figures used by
Reed Elsevier as additional performance measures.

Asrequired underthe revised standard, comparative figures have
beenrestated. Fortheyearended 31 December 2012, operating
profits are £25m lower and net finance costs are £11m higher than
previously reported. On an adjusted basis, profit before tax s
£25m lower.

Following areview of activities, assets and costs across the
business, Reed Elsevier willintroduce a new method for the
allocation of corporate and shared costs from January 2014.
Previously unallocated items will be attributed to the business
areas, as will costs relating to shared activities and resources, on
the basis of benefitsaccrued. This newallocation reflects an
increased level of shared resources and capitalised costs. Had this
new method of allocation been applied during 2013, it would have
resultedin the adjusted operating profit figures shown below.

Newmethod Old method
2013 2013
£m £m

Adjusted operating profit
Scientific, Technical & Medical 787 826
Risk Solutions 401 414
Business Information 106 107
Legal 250 238
Exhibitions 210 213
Unallocateditems (5) (49)
1,749 1,749

The Boards of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV have
requested that Reed Elsevier Group plcand Elsevier Reed Finance
BV have due regardto the bestinterests of Reed Elsevier PLC and
Reed Elsevier NVshareholdersinthe formulation of treasury
policies. Financialinstruments are used to finance the Reed
Elsevier businessesandto hedge transactions. Reed Elsevier’s
businesses do not enterinto speculative transactions. The main
treasury risks faced by Reed Elsevierare liquidity risk, interest
raterisk, foreign currencyrisk and credit risk. The Boards of the
parent companies agree overall policy guidelines for managing
each of these risks and the Boards of Reed Elsevier Group plc and
Elsevier Finance SAagree policies (in line with parent company
guidelines) for their respective business and treasury centres.
Asummary of these policies is given below.

Capitaland liquidity management

The capital structure is managed to support Reed Elsevier’s
objective of maximising long-term shareholder value through
appropriate security of funding, ready access to debt and capital
markets, cost effective borrowing and flexibility to fund business
and acquisition opportunities while maintaining appropriate
leverage to ensure an efficient capital structure.
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Overthe long-term, Reed Elsevier seeks to maintain cash flow
conversion of 90% or higher and credit metrics thatare consistent
with asolid investment grade credit rating. The typical credit
metrics are netdebt to EBITDA, onapensions and lease adjusted
and on anunadjusted basis, and free cash flow as percentage of
netdebt.

Reed Elsevier's uses of free cash flow over the longer-term
balance the dividend policy, selective acquisitions and share
repurchases, while retaining the balance sheet strength to
maintain access to cost effective sources of borrowing.

The balance of long-term debt, short-term debt and committed
bank facilities is managed to provide security of funding, taking
into account the cash generation cycle of the business and the
uncertain size and timing of acquisition spend. Reed Elsevier
maintains a range of borrowing facilities and debt programmes
from avariety of sources to fund its requirements at short notice
and at competitive rates. Consistent with the significance of Reed
Elsevier Group plc's US operations, the majority of debt is
denominatedin US dollars. The policy is that no more than
US$1.5bn of term debt issues should mature in any 12-month
period and no more than US$3.0bn inany 36-month period. In
addition, minimum levels of borrowings with maturities over three
andfiveyearsare specified, depending on the level of net debtand
free cash flow. From time to time, Reed Elsevier may redeem term
debtearly or repurchase outstanding debtin the open market
depending on market conditions.

There were no changes to Reed Elsevier’s long-term approach to
capitaland liquidity management during the year.

Interest rate exposure management

Reed Elsevier'sinterest rate exposure management policy aims to
reduce the exposure of the combined businesses to changesin
interest rates at efficient cost. To achieve this Reed Elsevier uses
fixed rate term debt, interest rate swaps, forward rate agreements
andinterestrate options. Interest rate derivatives are used only to
hedge anunderlying risk and no net market positions are held.

After takingintoaccountinterest rate and currency derivatives,
at31 December 2013 interest expense was fixed on 57% of Reed
Elsevier's gross borrowings which had a weighted average
remaining life of 6.0 years.

59

Foreign currency exposure management

Translation exposures arise on the earnings and net assets of
business operationsin countries other than those of each parent
company. Some of these exposures are offset by denominating
borrowingsin USdollars. Currency exposures ontransactions
denominatedin aforeign currencyare required to be hedged using
forward contracts. In addition, recurring transactions and future
investment exposures may be hedged, in advance of becoming
contractual. The precise policy differs according to the specific
circumstances of the individual businesses. Highly predictable
future cash flows may be covered for transactions expected to
occurduring the next 24 months (50 months for the Scientific,
Technical & Medical subscription businesses) within limits
defined according to the period before the transaction is expected
to become contractual. Cover takes the form of foreign exchange
forward contracts.

As at31December 2013, the amount of outstanding foreign
exchange coveragainst future transactions was £1.3bn
(2012: £1.2bn).

Creditrisk

Reed Elsevier has a credit exposure for the full principal amount of
cash and cash equivalents held with individual counterparties. In
addition, ithas a credit risk from the potential non-performance by
counterparties to financialinstruments; this credit risk normally
being restricted to the amounts of any hedge gain and not the full
principalamount being hedged. Credit risks are controlled by
monitoring the credit quality of counterparties, principally
licensed commercial banks and investment banks with strong
long-term credit ratings, and the amounts outstanding with

each of them.

Reed Elseviertreasury policies do not allow concentrations of
risk with individual counterparties and limit significant treasury
exposures with counterparties which are rated lower than A-/A3
by Standard & Poor’s, Moody’s and Fitch. At 31 December 2013,
cash and cash equivalents totalled £132m, of which 90% was held
with banks rated A-/A3 or better.

DuncanPalmer
Chief Financial Officer
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Principal risks

Reed Elsevier has established risk management practices that
are embedded into the operations of the businesses, based on the
framework ininternal controlissued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organisations of the Treadway Commission (COSO0).
The principalrisks facing Reed Elsevier, which have been
considered by the Audit Committees and Boards, are described
below. Itis not possible to identify every risk that could affect our
businesses, and the actions taken to mitigate the risks described
below cannot provide absolute assurance thatarisk will not
materialise and/or adversely affect our business or financial

performance. Our risk managementand internal control
processesare described in the Structure and Corporate
Governance section. Adescription of the businessand a
discussion of factors affecting performanceis setoutin the Chief
Executive Officer's reportand Business Review. Financial risks
arediscussed inthe Chief Financial Officer’sreportandin note 18
tothe combined financial statements. Our approach to managing
environmentaland other non-financialrisks is setoutin the
Business Review and the separate Corporate Responsibility
Report. Important specific risks identified include:

Risk Descriptionandimpact Mitigation

Economyand Demand for our productsand servicesmaybe  Ourbusinessesare focused on professional markets which have

market impacted by factors such as the economic generally been more resilientin periods of economic downturn.

conditions environmentinthe US, Europe and other We deliverinformation solutions, many on a subscription basis,

major economies, and government funding. which areimportantto our customers’ effectiveness and

efficiency. We have extended our positionin long-term global
growth markets through organic new launches supported by the
selective acquisition of small content and data sets. We continue to
dispose of businesses that no longer fit our strategy.

Intellectual Our productsand services are largely We actively engage in developing and promoting the legal

propertyrights comprised of intellectual property content
delivered through avariety of media. We rely
ontrademark, copyright, patentand other
intellectual property laws to establish and
protectour proprietaryrightsinthese
products and services. Thereisarisk thatour
proprietaryrights could be challenged,
limited, invalidated or circumvented which
may impactdemand forand pricing of our

products and services.

protection of intellectual property rights. Our subscription
contracts with customers contain provisions regarding the use of
proprietary content.

We arevigilant as to the use of our contentand, as appropriate,
take legalactionto challengeillegal distribution sources.

Anumber of our businesses rely extensively
upon contentand data from external sources.
Datais obtained from public records,
governmentalauthorities, customers and
otherinformation companies, including
competitors. The disruption or loss of data
sources, either because of changesin the law
or because data suppliers decide not to supply
them could adversely affect our products and
services.

Dataresources

We seek as faras possible to have proprietary content. Where
contentis supplied to us by third parties, we aim to have contracts
which provide mutual commercial benefit. We also maintain an
active dialogue with regulatory authorities on privacy and other
datarelatedissues, and promote, with others, the responsible
use of data.

Our scientific, technical and medical (STM)
primary publications, like those of most of our
competitors, are published largely on a paid
subscription basis. Thereis debate inthe
government, academic and library
communities, which are the principal
customers for our STM publications,
regarding whether such publications should
be fundedinstead through fees chargedto
authors or authors’ funders and/or made
freely available aftera period following
publication. If these methods of STM
publishing are widely adopted or mandated, it
could adversely affect our revenue from paid
subscription publications.

Paid
subscriptions

better understand their needs and deliver value to them. We are
opentoservingthe STM community under any payment model
that can sustainably provide researchers with the critical
information tools that they need. We focus on the integrity and
quality of research through the editorial and peerreview process;
we invest in efficient editorial and distribution platforms andin
innovation in platforms and tools to make content and data more
accessible and actionable; and we ensure vigilance on plagiarism
andthe long-term preservation of research findings.
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Risk Descriptionandimpact Mitigation

Customer Reed Elsevier's businessesare dependenton ~ Weare focused on the needs and economics of our customers and

acceptance of the continued acceptance by our customersof  seekto provide contentand innovative solutions that help them

products our products and services and the value achieve better outcomes and enhance productivity.
placed onthem. Failure to meet evolving
customer needs could impact demand for our
products and consequently adversely affect
ourrevenue.

Competition Our businesses operate in highly competitive We continuously invest significant resourcesin our products an
markets, which continue to evolve inresponse  services, and the infrastructure to support them. We gain insights
totechnologicalinnovations, changing into our markets, evolving customers’ needs, the potential
legislation, regulatory changes, the entrance  application of new technologies and business models, and the
of new competitors and other factors. Failure  actions of competitors. These insights inform our market
toanticipate market trends could impact the strategies and operational priorities.
competitiveness of our products and services
and consequently adversely affect our
revenue.

Acquisitions We regularly make smallacquisitions to Acquisitions are made within the framework of our overall
strengthen our portfolio. If we are unable to strategy, which emphasises organic development. We have a well
generate the anticipated benefits such as formulated process for reviewing and executing acquisitions and
revenue growth, synergies and/or cost for managing the post-acquisition integration. This processis
savings associated with these acquisitions underpinned with clear strategic, financial and ethical criteria. We
this could adversely affect return on invested closely monitor the integration and performance of acquisitions.
capitaland financial condition.

Risk Descriptionand impact Mitigation

Technology Ourbusinesses are dependent on electronic We have established procedures for the protection of our

failure platforms and networks, primarily the technology assets. These include the development of business

Datasecurity

Supply chain

dependencies

Talent e

orsecurity breach.

of loss or litigation and increased regulation.

financial condition.

internet, for delivery of products and
services. These could be adversely affected if
ourelectronic delivery platforms or networks
experience a significant failure, interruption,

continuity plans, including IT disaster recovery plans and back-up
delivery systems, to reduce business disruptionin the eventof a
major technology failure.

Our businesses maintain databases and
information online, including personal
information. Breaches of our data security or
failure to comply with applicable legislation or
regulatory or contractual requirements could
damage our reputation and expose us torisk

We have established data privacy and security programmes. W
testand re-evaluate our procedures and controls with the aim of
ensuring that personal datais protected and that we comply with
relevant legislation, regulatory and contractual requirements.

Ourorganisational and operational
structures are dependenton outsourced and
offshored functions. Poor performance or
failure of third parties towhom we have
outsourced activities could adversely affect
our business performance, reputationand

levels that we closely monitor, including through key performance
indicators and targeted supplier audits. We have developed
business continuity plans to reduce disruptionin the event of a
major failure by a vendor.

The implementation and execution of our
strategies and business plans depend on our
ability to recruit, motivate and retain
high-quality people. We compete globally and
across business sectors for talented
managementand skilled individuals,
particularly those with technology and data
analytics capabilities. Aninability to recruit,
motivate or retain such people could
adversely affect our business performance.

We have well established management developmentand talen
review programmes. We monitor capability needs and
remuneration schemes are tailored to attract and motivate the
besttalentavailable atanappropriate level of cost. We actively
seek feedback from employees, which feeds into plans to enhance
employee engagement and motivation.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
PRINCIPAL RISKS

Risk Descriptionandimpact Mitigation

Pensions We operate a number of pension schemes around the We have professional management of our pension
world. Historically, the largest schemes have been local ~ schemesand we focus on maintaining appropriate asset
versions of the defined benefit type inthe UK, the USand  allocation and plan designs. We review our funding
the Netherlands. The assets and obligations associated ~ requirements on aregular basis with the assistance of
with those pension schemes are sensitive to changes independentactuaries and ensure that the funding
inthe marketvalues of assets and the market related plansare appropriate.
assumptions used tovalue scheme liabilities. Adverse
changestointeraliaassetvalues, discountratesor
inflation could increase future pension costs and
funding requirements.

Tax Our businesses operate globallyand our earnings are We have clearand consistent tax policies and tax
subject to taxation in many differing jurisdictions and at matters are dealt with by a professional tax function,
differing rates. We seek to organise our affairsin atax supported by externaltax advisors. We maintain an
efficient manner, taking account of the jurisdictionsin open dialogue with the relevant tax authoritiesand are
which we operate. However, tax laws that apply to Reed vigilantin ensuring that we comply with tax legislation.
Elsevier businesses may be amended by the relevant
authorities orinterpreted differently, which could
adversely affect our reported results.

Treasury The Reed Elsevier combined financial statementsare Reed Elsevier's approach to fundingand management
expressedin pounds sterlingand are subject to of interest rate and foreign currency exposures is
movementsin exchange rates on the translation of the described on pages 58and 59. The approach to the
financialinformation of businesses whose operational management of financialrisksis described in note 18
currencies are other than sterling. The US is our most to the combined financial statements.
important marketand, accordingly, significant
fluctuationsin the US dollar exchange rate could
significantly affect our reported results.

Macro economic, politicaland market conditions may
alsoadversely affect the availability of shortand
long-term funding, volatility of interest rates, currency
exchange rates and inflation.
Risk Descriptionandimpact Mitigation
Ethics Asaworld leading provider of professionalinformation The Reed Elsevier Code of Ethics and Business Conduct

Environmental Ourbusinesses have animpact on the environment,

solutions to the scientific, technical & medical, risk
solutions & businessinformation, legal, and exhibitions
markets we are expected to adhere to high standards of
independence and ethical conduct. Abreach of
generally accepted ethical business standards could
adversely affect our business performance, reputation

and financial condition.

principally through the use of energy and water, waste
generationand, in our supply chain, through paperuse
and printand production technologies. Failure to
manage our environmentalimpact could adversely
affect our reputation.

is provided to every employee and is supported by
training. It encompasses such topics as fair competition,
anti-briberyand humanrights and encourages open
and principled behaviour. We have well established
processes for reporting and investigating instances of
unethical conduct. Our major suppliers are required to

adopt our Supplier Code of Conduct.

We are committed to reducing these environmental
impacts by limiting resource use and efficiently
employing sustainable materials and technologies.

We require our major suppliers and contractors to meet
the same objectives. We seek to ensure that all Reed
Elsevier businesses are compliant with relevant
environmental regulation.

The Strategic Report, as set outon pages 2to 62, has been approved by the Board.

By order of the Board Registered Office
Henry Udow 1-3 Strand
Company Secretary London

26 February 2014 WC2N5JR
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GOVERNANCE
BOARD DIRECTORS

64

Executive Directors

Erik Engstrom (50)
Chief Executive Officer

Non-Executive Directors

Anthony Habgood (67)
Chairman

00

Wolfhart Hauser (64) o0
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

Appointed: Chief Executive Officer since 2009.
Joined Reed Elsevier as Chief Executive Officer
of Elsevierin 2004.

Nationality: Swedish

Pastappointments: Priortojoining Reed
Elsevierwasapartnerat General Atlantic
Partners. Before that was Presidentand Chief
Operating Officer of Random House Incand,
before its merger with Random House,
Presidentand Chief Executive Officer of Bantam
Doubleday Dell, North America. Began his
careerasa consultantwith McKinsey. Served
asaNon-Executive Director of Eniro ABand
Svenska Cellulosa Aktiebolaget SCA.
Education: Holds a BSc from Stockholm School
of Economics, an MSc from the Royal Institute
of Technology in Stockholm, and gained an

MBA from Harvard Business Schoolas a
FulbrightScholar.

[

Duncan Palmer (48)
Chief Financial Officer

Appointed: 2012

Nationality: British and American
Otherappointments: Non-Executive Director
of Oshkosh Corporation.

Pastappointments: Priortojoining Reed
Elsevier was Chief Financial Officerand Senior
Vice President of Owens Corning Inc. from 2007
having previously held various senior finance
positions within Royal Dutch Shell for 20 years
inthe UK, the Netherlands and the US.
Education: Holds an MAin Mathematics from
Cambridge Universityand an MBA from
Stanford University, and is a UK-qualified
Chartered Management Accountant.

Appointed: 2009

Nationality: British

Other appointments: Chairman of Whitbread plc,
Pregin Holding Limited and Norwich Research
Partners LLP.

Pastappointments: Chairman of Bunzl plcand
of Mdlnlycke Health Care Limited and served as
Chief Executive of Bunzl plc, Chief Executive of
Tootal Group plcand a Director of The Boston
Consulting Group. Formerly Non-Executive
Director of Geest plc, Marks and Spencerplc,
National Westminster Bank plc, Norfolk and
Norwich University Hospitals Trust,

Powergen plc,and SVG Capital plc.

Education: Holdsan MAin Economics from
Cambridge Universityand an MSin Industrial
Administration from Carnegie Mellon University.
Heisavisiting Fellow at Oxford University.

Marike van Lier Lels (54) (C)
Non-Executive Director
of Reed Elsevier NV

Appointed: 2010

Nationality: Dutch

Other appointments: Member of the Supervisory
Boards of KPN NV, USG People NV, TKH Group
NVand Eneco Holding NV,and a memberof the
Executive Committee of the Aegon Association.
Amember of various Dutch governmental
advisoryboards.

Pastappointments: Member of the Supervisory
Board of Maersk BV, Executive Vice President
and Chief Operating Officer of the Schiphol
Group. Priorto joining Schiphol Group, was a
member of the Executive Board of Deutsche
Post Euro Express and held various senior
positions with Nedlloyd.

Appointed: 2013

Nationality: German

Other appointments: Chief Executive Officer

of Intertek Group plc.

Pastappointments: Chairman of
Dragenopharm GmbH & Co AG from 2002 to
2006. Priorto that he was Chief Executive Officer
of TUV Suddeutschland between 1998 and 2002
and Chief Executive Officer of TUV Product
Service GmbH for 10years. Servedasa
Non-Executive Director of Logica Plcand
Intertek Group plc before his current position
atthe company.

RobertPolet (58)
Non-Executive Director

Appointed: 2007

Nationality: Dutch

Other appointments: Chairman of Safilo Group
S.p.A.andaNon-Executive Director of Philip
Morris InternationalInc, William Grant & Sons
Limited, Scotchand Soda NVand Crown Topco
Limited, parent company of Vertu. Member of
the Supervisory Board of Nyenrode Foundation.
Pastappointments: Presidentand Chief
Executive Officer of Gucci Group from 2004

to 2011, having previously spent 26 years at
Unilever workinginavariety of marketing

and senior executive positions throughout
theworld, including President of Unilever’s
Worldwide Ice Cream and Frozen Foods
division. Formerly a Non-Executive Director
of Wilderness Holdings Limited.

(RIC)
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Adrian Hennah (56)
Non-Executive Director

00

Lisa Hook (55)
Senior Independent Director

00

Appointed: 2011

Nationality: British

Otherappointments: Chief Financial Officer

of Reckitt Benckiser Group plc.
Pastappointments: Chief Financial Officer

of Smith & Nephew plc from 2006 to 2012. Before
thatwas Chief Financial Officer of Invensys plc,
having previously held various senior finance and
management positions with GlaxoSmithKline
for 18years.

Linda Sanford (61)
Non-Executive Director

Appointed: 2012

Nationality: American

Other appointments: Senior Vice President,
Enterprise Transformation, IBM Corporation.
Servesontheboard of directors of The Business
Council of New York State and the Partnership
for New York City. Also serves on the board of
trustees of the State University of New York,
StJohn’s University, Rensselaer Polytechnic
Institute and the New York Hall of Science.
Pastappointments: Non-Executive Director
of ITT Corporation until May 2013.

00

Appointed: 2006

Nationality: American

Other appointments: Presidentand Chief
Executive Officer of NeustarIncand a Director
of Island Press.

Pastappointments: Presidentand Chief
Executive Officerat Sun Rocket Inc. Before that
was President of AOL Broadband, Premium and
Developer Services. Priorto joining AOL, was a
founding partnerat Brera Capital Partners LLC.
Previously Chief Operating Officer of Time
Warner Telecommunicationsand has served as
senioradvisorto the Federal Communications
Commission Chairmanand a senior counsel
toViacom Cable. Formerlya Directorof The
Ocean Foundation.

Benvander Veer(62)
Chairman of the Audit Committees

Appointed: 2009

Nationality: Dutch

Otherappointments: Member of the Supervisory
Boards of Aegon NV, TomTom NV and Koninklijke
FrieslandCampina NV.

Pastappointments: Chairman of the Executive
Board of KPMGinthe Netherlandsanda
member of the Management Committee of the
KPMG International board until his retirement
in 2008, having joined KPMG in 1976. Formerly a
member of the Supervisory Board of Siemens
Nederland NV.

000

65

Board Committee Membership

0 Audit Committees: Reed Elsevier Group plc, Reed
Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV

0 Remuneration Committee: Reed Elsevier Group plc

0 Nominations Committee: joint Reed Elsevier PLC
and Reed Elsevier NV

G Corporate Governance Committee:joint Reed
Elsevier PLCand Reed Elsevier NV

Both of the Executive Directors are directors of
Reed Elsevier Group plc, Reed Elsevier PLC and
Reed Elsevier NV.

Marikevan Lier LelsisaNon-Executive Director of
Reed Elsevier NV. Allof the other Non-Executive
Directorsaredirectors of Reed Elsevier Group plc,
Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV.
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BUSINESS LEADERS

Reed Elsevier Business Leaders

Senior Business Executives

Mark Kelsey

Chief Executive Officer

Risk Solutions and Business
Information

Mike Rusbridge
Chief Executive Officer
Exhibitions

Ron Mobed
Chief Executive Officer
Scientific, Technical & Medical

Mike Walsh
Chief Executive Officer
Legal

Joinedin 1989. Appointed CEO
Business Informationin2010and
CEORisk Solutions 2012.

Hasheld anumberof senior
positionsacross Reed Elsevier
over the past 30years. Studied at
LiverpoolUniversity and received

his MBA from Bradford University.

Joinedin 1994. Appointed to
current positionin 1996.

Previously President of Reed
Exhibitions Europe and Asiaand
President Reed Exhibitions North
America. Prior to that worked with
leading US exhibition organiser,
Clappand Poliak. Studied at
Manchester University and
Harvard Business School.

Joinedin2011. Appointed to
currentpositionin 2012.

Previously President of Cengage
Learning’'s Academic &
Professional Group and
Co-Presidentand Co-Chief
Operating Officer with information
services company, IHS. Holds a
degree from Trinity College,
Cambridge and a master'sdegree
from Imperial College, London.

Joined in 2003. Appointed to
current positionin 2011.

Previously CEO of LexisNexis US
Legal Markets and Director of
Strategic Business Development
Home Depot. Priortothatwasa
practising attorney at Weil, Gotshal
and Mangesin Washington D.C. and
servedasa consultantwith The
Boston Consulting Group. Holds a
Juris Doctor degree from Harvard
Law Schoolandisagraduate of
Yale University.
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lan Fraser
Human Resources Director

current positionatthattime.

Previously Global HR Director at
BHP Billiton (1998 to 2005). Holds
anMBAinFinance and
International Business from
London’s City Universityand an MA
from Edinburgh University. lanis
alsoaChartered Psychologist.

)

Kumsal Bayazit
Chief Strategy Officer

current positionin 2012.

Previously Executive Vice
President of Global Strategy and
Business Development for
LexisNexis Legaland Professional.
Priorto that she worked with Bain
& Companyin New York, Los
Angeles, Johannesburgand
Sydney. Holds an MBA from
Harvard Business Schoolandisa
Graduate of the University of
Californiaat Berkeley.

Youngsuk “YS” Chi
Director of Corporate Affairs and
Chairman Elsevier

Joinedin 2005. Appointed to
current positionin2011.

Previously he was Presidentand
Chief Operating Officer of Random
House, founding Chairman of
Random House Asiaand Chief
Operating Officer for Ingram
Book Group. Holds an MBA from
Columbia Universityandisa
Graduate of Princeton University.

67

Henry Udow
Chief Legal Officer and
Company Secretary

current position at thattime.

Previously Chief Legal Officerand
Company Secretary of Cadbury plc
having spent 23 years working with
the company. Priorto thathe
worked at Shearman & Sterlingin
New York and London. Holds a
Juris Doctor degree from the
University of Michigan Law School
and abachelor'sdegree fromthe
University of Rochester.
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Chairman’s introduction to corporate governance

The Boards of Reed Elsevier PLC, Reed Elsevier NVand Reed
Elsevier Group plc are committed to high standards of corporate
governance and believe that such standards are integral to the
success of Reed Elsevier. The Boards have putin place policies
and procedures that promote transparency, accountability and
probity, andinclude the Reed Elsevier Code of Ethics and Business
Conductwhich sets the standard for our corporate and individual
behaviour. The Code of Ethics and Business Conduct applies to all
Directorsand employees of Reed Elsevier and more information
onitsapplication can be foundin the Corporate Responsibility
section on page 45.

As Reed Elsevieris listed in the UK, the Netherlands and the US,
itissubjectto corporate governance requirementsin those
jurisdictions. The following report describes Reed Elsevier’s
governance structures and procedures, and the work of the
Boards and their Committees. Itisintended to provide
shareholderswith a clear view of Reed Elsevier’'s governance
arrangements and how Reed Elsevier has complied with the
applicable corporate governance codes of best practice during
the year. Statements with regard to compliance with corporate
governance codes and in particular the UK Corporate Governance
Code published by the Financial Reporting Councilin September
2012 (the UK Code) are setout on page 69.

Reed Elsevier keeps under review developments and trends in
corporate governance. During 2013, there were a number of
changesinthe Netherlands and the UK which became effective:

InJanuary 2013, legislation to formalise the unitary board
structure inthe Netherlands Civil Code was enacted. The then
Combined Board of Reed Elsevier NV resolved to establisha
unitary board and shareholders approved the necessary
changestothe articles of association at the Annual General
Meeting in April 2013. The unitary board structure was
implemented in May 2013 and furtheraligns the governance
structures of the two parent companies.

Areas of significant skills and expertise of the Non-Executive Directors on the Boards

New principles and provisions included in the UK Code applied
to Reed Elsevier for the first time during 2013. The Boards have
applied the changesinthe UK Code and these are reflected in
the Report of the Nominations Committee and the Report of the
Audit Committees. In addition, regulationsintroducing a new
form Strategic Reportand arevised Directors’ Remuneration
Reportalsoapplied to Reed Elsevier for the first time.

The Strategic Reportis set out on pages 2to 62, and the
Directors’ Remuneration Reportis set out on pages 78to 94.

During 2013, there were anumber of changes to our Boards.
Details of these are set outin the Structure and Corporate
Governance section on page 71.In September, Duncan Palmer,
Chief Financial Officer, offered his resignation from the Boards as
aresult of family circumstances which unexpectedly required him
toreturntothe US. In January 2014, we announced that Nick Luff
would take over from Duncan at a date to be confirmed.
Biographical details for Nick can be found on page 71. We will be
asking shareholdersto elect Nick as a Director, with effectfroma
future date in 2014, at the forthcoming Annual General Meetings
in Apriland more details of this are contained in the Notices of the
2014 Annual General Meetings.

Inaccordance with the UK Code, we conducted, through the
Corporate Governance Committee, evaluations of the Boards,
their Committees and the performance of the individual Directors.
The outcome of these evaluations confirmed that the Boards and
the Committees continue to function effectively, and that all of

our Directors are committed to their roles. More information
regarding these evaluationsis set out on page 70. All the current
Directorswill stand for re-election atthe Annual General
Meetingsin April 2014 and their biographical details are set out
onpages 64and 65.

Following the changes to the Boards during the yearand given the
outcome of the evaluations of the Boards, their Committees and
theindividual Directors, | believe that the current composition

of the Boards and their Committees continues to provide an
appropriate balance of skills, experience, independence,
knowledge and diversity to ensure that they candischarge their
duties effectively. | also believe that the corporate governance
arrangementsin place are appropriate and continue to support
the growth and success of Reed Elsevier.

Anthony Habgood
Chairman
26 February 2014

Percentage of the
Non-Executive Directors

Executive board experience inalarge international listed company 63
Knowledge of corporate governance issues for listed companies 100
Operational experience in Reed Elsevier's product markets 38
Operational experience in Reed Elsevier’'s main geographical markets 100
Marketing, customer relations 88
Operational experience with telecommunication/computer technology, electronic publishing 63
Management of human resources, selection and remuneration of executives 100
Corporate responsibility 100
Legal matters 88
Banking, taxand corporate finance 38
Financialand organisational audit 75
Corporate strategy and organisation 100
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Structure and corporate governance

REED ELSEVIER PLC REED ELSEVIER NV

REED ELSEVIER GROUP PLC

Publishing and Information Businesses

ELSEVIER REED FINANCE BV
Financing Activities

Reed Elsevier was created in January 1993, when Reed Elsevier
PLC and Reed Elsevier NV contributed their respective
businesses to two jointly owned companies, Reed Elsevier Group
plc, a UK-registered company which owns the publishing and
information businesses, and Elsevier Reed Finance BV, a
Dutch-registered company which owns the financing activities.
Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV have retained their
separate legal and nationalidentities and are publicly-held
companies. Reed Elsevier PLC's securities are listed in London
and New York, and Reed Elsevier NV's securities are listed in
Amsterdam and New York. Following the merger of their
respective businesses, Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV
enteredintoa Governing Agreement to regulate their relationship,
including the economicinterests of the parties and the
composition of their Boards and those of Reed Elsevier Group plc
and of Elsevier Reed Finance BV.

Equalisationarrangements

Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV each hold a 50% interest
in Reed Elsevier Group plc. Reed Elsevier PLC holds a 39%
interestin Elsevier Reed Finance BV, with Reed Elsevier NV
holding a 61% interest. Reed Elsevier PLC additionally holds a
5.8% indirect equity interestin Reed Elsevier NV, reflecting the
arrangements entered into between the two companies at the
time of the merger, which determined the equalisation ratio
whereby one Reed Elsevier NVordinary shareis, in broad terms,
intended to confer equivalent economicintereststo 1.538 Reed
Elsevier PLC ordinary shares. The equalisation ratiois subject to
change to reflect share splits and similar events that affect the
number of outstanding ordinary shares of either Reed Elsevier
PLC or Reed Elsevier NV.

Underthe equalisation arrangements, Reed Elsevier PLC
shareholders have a 52.9% economicinterestin the Reed Elsevier
combined businesses, and Reed Elsevier NV shareholders (other
than Reed Elsevier PLC) have a 47.1% economic interestin the
Reed Elsevier combined businesses. Holders of ordinary shares
in Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV enjoy substantially
equivalent dividend and capital rights with respect to their
ordinary shares.

The Boards of both Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV have
agreed, otherthanin special circumstances, to recommend
equivalent gross dividends (including, with respect to the dividend
on Reed Elsevier PLC ordinary shares, the associated UK tax
credit) based on the equalisation ratio. AReed Elsevier PLC

ordinary share pays dividends in sterling and is subject to UK tax
lawwith respect todividend and capital rights. AReed Elsevier NV
ordinary share pays dividends in euros and is subject to Dutch tax
lawwith respectto dividend and capital rights. The exchange rate
used for each dividend calculation is the spot euro/sterling
exchangerate, averaged over a period of five consecutive
business days commencing on the tenth business day before
theannouncement of the proposed dividend.

Compliance with codes of best practice

The Boards of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV have
implemented standards of corporate governance and disclosure
policies applicable to companies listed on the stock exchanges of
the UK, the Netherlands and the US. The effect of thisis that a
standard applying to one will, where notin conflict, also be
observed by the other.

The Boards of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV support
the principles and provisions of corporate governance contained
inthe UK Corporate Governance Code issued by the Financial
Reporting Councilin September 2012 (the UK Code) and those
containedinthe Dutch Corporate Governance Code issued in
December 2008 (the Dutch Code).

Thisreportandthe compliance statement set out below are made
inrelationtothe UKCode. The principles and provisions set outin
the UK Code and the Dutch Code have applied throughout the
financialyear ended 31 December 2013. Reed Elsevier PLC, which
hasits primary listing on the London Stock Exchange, has
complied throughout the year with the UK Code. Reed Elsevier NV,
which hasits primary listing on the NYSE Euronext Amsterdam
Stock Exchange, has also complied throughout the year with the
UK Code, and subject to limited exceptions, as explained in the
Reed Elsevier NV Report of the Board on pages 179 and 180, has
applied the best practice provisions of the Dutch Code. The ways in
which Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV have applied the
main principles of the UK Code are described below. For further
information on the application of the Dutch Code by Reed Elsevier
NV, see the Corporate Governance Statement of Reed Elsevier NV
published on the Reed Elsevier website, www.reedelsevier.com.

Business model

As required by Provision C.1.2 of the UK Code, pages 2 to 39
describe the business and the progress made in 2013 against Reed
Elsevier'slong-term business priorities, aimed at delivering
better outcomes for our customers and creating value for Reed
Elsevierand shareholders.
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Relations with shareholders

Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV participate in regular
dialogue with institutional shareholders. Presentations on the
Reed Elsevier combined businesses are made by the Chairman,
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer following the
announcement of the interim and full-year results and these are
simultaneously webcast. A conference call with investors was
also held following the third quarter Interim Management
Statement. In addition, two investor presentations focusing on the
LexisNexis Risk Solutions insurance business and Reed Travel
Exhibitions were held during the year. These presentations which
described the market background, business activities and growth
plans forthe businesses were also made available on the Reed
Elsevier website. The Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial
Officer and the investor relations team meet institutional
shareholdersonaregular basis and the Chairman also makes
himself available to majorinstitutions as appropriate. Atrading
updateis provided ahead of the Annual General Meetings of the
two companies and towards the end of the financial year through
Interim Management Statements. The interim and annual results
announcements and presentations, together with the Interim
Management Statements, investor seminar presentations, other
importantannouncements and corporate governance documents
concerning Reed Elsevier, are published on the Reed Elsevier
website, www.reedelsevier.com. In accordance with the
provisions of the Dutch Code, Reed Elsevier NV has adopted a
bilateral shareholder contact policy, which is also published on
the Reed Elsevier website. The Boards of Reed Elsevier PLC and
Reed Elsevier NVcommission periodic reports on the attitudes
andviews of the companies’institutional shareholders and the
results are presented to the respective Boards.

Both Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV offer electronic

voting facilities in relation to proxy voting at shareholder meetings.

The Annual General Meetings provide an opportunity for the
Boards to communicate with individual shareholders. The
Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer,
the chairmen of the Board Committees, other Directorsand a
representative of the external auditors are available to answer
questions from shareholders.

Board induction and information

Following appointmentand as required, Directors receive training
appropriate to their level of experience and knowledge. This
includes the provision of a tailored induction programme so as to
provide newly appointed Directors with information about the
Reed Elsevier businesses and other relevant information to assist
themin performing their duties. Non-Executive Directors are
encouraged tovisitthe Reed Elsevier businesses to meet
management and senior staff.

All Directors have fulland timely access to the information
required to discharge their responsibilities fully and efficiently.
They have access to the services of the respective company
secretaries, other members of Reed Elsevier's management and
staff, and externaladvisors. Directors may take independent
professionaladvice in the furtherance of their duties, at the
relevant company’s expense.

In addition to scheduled Board and Board Committee meetings
held during theyear, the Directors attend other meetings and site
visits. Where a Directoris unable to attend a Board or Board
Committee meeting he or sheis provided with all relevant papers
and informationrelating to that meeting andis able to discuss
issues arising with the respective chairman and other Board and
Committee members.

Board evaluation

During theyear, the Corporate Governance Committee, supported
by the company secretaries, assessed the performance of
individual Directors and, led by the Senior Independent Director,
alsoassessed the performance of the Chairman. Using
questionnaires completed by all of the Directors, the Committee
reviewed the functioning and constitution of the Boards and their
Committees, including the balance of skills, experience,
independence, knowledge of Reed Elsevier, and diversity, including
gender. The Chairman conducted interviews with each member of
the Boards todiscuss individually Board effectiveness. The results
were subsequently considered ina meeting of the Boards. The
Chairman of the Boards was not present during a discussion by the
Non-Executive Directors asit related to him. Based on these
assessments, and the board effectiveness review, the Committee
believes that the performance of each Director continues to be
effective and that they demonstrate commitment to their
respective roles. The Committee also believes that the Boards and
their Committees function effectively and collaboratively and with
anappropriate level of engagement with management, and that
the diverse membership provides a broad range of skills and
perspectives. The effectiveness review confirmed that adequate
steps had beentakeninresponse to the prioryear’s
recommendations to ensure that the Boards appropriately
reviewed risk-related matters alongside strategic, financial and
operationalissues. The review suggests that the Boards continue
to monitor the level of detail provided to and balance of focus by the
Boards between financial data and strategic matters. The outcome
of the last externally-facilitated evaluation process was reported
inthe 2011 Annual Reportand Accounts.

The Boards of Reed Elsevier PLC, Reed Elsevier NVand Reed
Elsevier Group plcare harmonised. All of the Directors of Reed
Elsevier Group plcare also Directors of Reed Elsevier PLC and
Reed Elsevier NV. Reed Elsevier NV may nominate for appointment
tothe Board up to two Non-Executive Directors who are not
appointed to the Boards of either Reed Elsevier PLC or Reed
Elsevier Group plc. Currently, one such Director, Marike van Lier
Lels, has been appointed to the Board of Reed Elsevier NV. The
names, nationalities and biographical details of each Director at
the date of thisreportappear on pages 64 and 65.

Following the enactmenton 1 January 2013 of legislation to
formalise the unitary board governance structure in the
Netherlands Civil Code, the then Combined Board of Reed Elsevier
NV resolved to take the necessary steps to establish such a board
governance structure. Amendments to the articles of association
of Reed Elsevier NVwere approved by shareholders at the Annual
General Meeting of Reed Elsevier NVin April 2013 and the unitary
Board structure was implemented in May 2013.
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Thereisaschedule of matters reserved to the Boards and
approved delegated authorities to the Chief Executive Officer and
othersenior executives. There is a clear separation of the roles

of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer which are set out
inwriting.

The Boards of Reed Elsevier PLC, Reed Elsevier NV, Reed Elsevier
Group plcand Elsevier Reed Finance BV each comprise a balance
of Executive and Non-Executive Directors who bringawide range
of skills and experience to the deliberations of the Boards. The
Boards of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV review the
independence of the Non-Executive Directors everyyear, based on
the criteriaforindependence set outin the UK Code. The UK Code
does not consider the Chairman to be independent due to the
unique role he hasin corporate governance. Notwithstanding this,
Anthony Habgood met the independence criteria contained in the
UK Code when he was appointed Chairmanin 2009. The Boards
consider all Non-Executive Directors (other than the Chairman) to
beindependent of managementand free fromany business or
otherrelationship which could materially interfere with their
ability to exercise independent judgement.

The Boards of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV have
appointed Lisa Hook to act as Senior Independent Director, whois
available to meet with institutional shareholders and assistin
resolving concernsin cases where alternative channelsare
deemed inappropriate. The Senior Independent Directoralso
leads the annual assessment of the performance of the Chairman
of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV. A profile, which
identifies the skills and experience of the Non-Executive
Directors of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV, is set
outon page 68andis available on the Reed Elsevier website,
www.reedelsevier.com.

Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV shareholders maintain
their rights to appointindividuals to the respective Boardsin
accordance with the provisions of the articles of association of
these companies. Subject to this, noindividual may be appointed to
the Boards of Reed Elsevier PLC, Reed Elsevier NV or Reed
Elsevier Group plc unless recommended by the joint Nominations
Committee. Members of the Committee abstain when their own
re-appointmentis being considered.

Asageneralrule, letters of appointmentin respect of
Non-Executive Directors of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier
NV provide thatindividuals will serve foraninitial term of three
years, and are typically expected to serve two three-year terms,
although the Boards may invite anindividual to serve foran
additional period of three years.

The respective articles of association of Reed Elsevier PLC and
Reed Elsevier NV provide thatall Directors should be subject to
retirement at least every threeyearsand are then able to make
themselves available for re-election by shareholders at
subsequent Annual General Meetings. Notwithstanding the
provisions of the articles of association, itis the Boards’ policy
to comply with the recommendations contained in the UK Code,
and all Directorswill seek re-election by shareholders annually.
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Board changes

Changesduring the yearin the composition of the Boards of Reed
Elsevier PLC, Reed Elsevier NVand Reed Elsevier Group plcare
setoutinthetable on page 72.

Mark Elliott and Sir David Reid retired from the Boards of Reed
Elsevier NVand Reed Elsevier PLC following the conclusion of the
Annual General Meetings in April 2013. Wolfhart Hauser was
electedtothe Boardsin April 2013 and succeeded Mark Elliottas
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee. Lisa Hook succeeded
Sir David Reid as the Senior Independent Directorin April 2013.

Inaccordance with the UK Code, all Directors will retire from the
Boards of Reed Elsevier NVand Reed Elsevier PLC at the
respective Annual General Meetings and, being eligible, they will
offerthemselves forre-election. Based on the assessments made
by the Corporate Governance Committee of the qualifications,
performance and effectiveness of eachindividual seeking
re-election, the Boards have accepted a recommendation from
the Nominations Committee that each of these Directors be
proposed for re-election atthe 2014 Annual General Meeting of
the respective company.

In September 2013, Duncan Palmer gave notice of his resignation
as Chief Financial Officer effective as of 25 September 2014, or
such other earlier date as Reed Elsevier may designate.

The Nominations Committee retained an external search
consultancy to conductarigorous search process in conjunction
with the Boards to identify a suitable candidate to succeed Mr
Palmer. Following the conclusion of the search process and on the
recommendation of the Nominations Committee, the Boards
announced, in January 2014, the appointment of Nick Luff as Chief
Financial Officer to be effective at a date to be confirmed but is
expected to be no later than 15 December 2014.

Nick Luff has been Chief Financial Officer of Centrica plc, the UK’s
biggest consumer energy group, since 2007. Prior to that, he was
at P&0, the FTSE 100 logistics and shipping group as well as its
affiliated companies, including P&O0 Princess Cruises and Royal
Nedlloyd. While at P&0, he worked for 15yearsin avariety of
seniorfinance roles, including Chief Financial Officer of the parent
company for sevenyears. He is a Non-Executive Director of Lloyds
Banking Group plc and aformer Non-Executive Director of QinetiQ
Group plcand Royal P&0 Nedlloyd NV. He has afirst class degree
in mathematics from the University of Oxford and is a qualified UK
Chartered Accountant.

Inaccordance with the articles of association of Reed Elsevier
PLC, Directorsare normally subject to election by shareholders at
the first Annual General Meeting following their appointment by
the Board. Notwithstanding the date of Nick Luff’'s appointment
remains to be confirmed, shareholders will be asked to elect

Mr Luffatthe Reed Elsevier Annual General Meetingsin
April2014. Subject to his election at the Annual General Meetings,
Mr Luff will be appointed to the Board of Reed Elsevier Group plcin
due course.
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STRUCTURE AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Reed Elsevier PLC

Reed Elsevier NV

Reed Elsevier Group plc

Number of Number of Number of

Date of appointment/ meetings ~ Number of meetings Number of meetings Number of

(cessation) held while meetings held while meetings held while meetings

Members during theyear adirector attended adirector attended adirector attended
Anthony Habgood (Chairman) 6 6 6 6 7 7
Mark Elliott (April 2013) 2 1 2 1 2 1
Erik Engstrom 6 6 6 6 7 7
Wolfhart Hauser April 2013 4 3 4 3 5 4
Adrian Hennah 6 6 6 6 7 7
LisaHook 6 6 6 6 7 7
Marikevan Lier Lels n/a n/a 6 6 n/a n/a
Duncan Palmer 6 6 6 6 7 7
Robert Polet 6 5 6 5 7 6
Sir David Reid (April 2013) 2 0 2 0 2 0
Linda Sanford 6 6 6 6 7 6
BenvanderVeer 6 6 6 6 7 7

Elsevier Reed Finance BV has a two-tier board structure comprising a Supervisory Board and a Management Board. The Supervisory
Board consists of Rudolfvan den Brink (Chairman), Duncan Palmer, Benvan der Veer and Marike van Lier Lels, with the Management
Board consisting of Alberto Romaneschi, Gerben de Jong and Jans van der Woude. Duncan Palmer gave notice of his resignationas a
member of the Supervisory Board effective as of 25 September 2014 or such other earlier date as the Boards may designate.
Appointments to the Supervisory Board and the Management Board are made by Elsevier Reed Finance BV's shareholders,
inaccordance with the company’s articles of association.

Date of Number of

appointment/ meetings Number of

(cessation) held while meetings

Members during theyear adirector attended
Rudolfvanden Brink 3 2
Gerbende Jong 3 3
Marike van Lier Lels 3 2
Duncan Palmer 3 3
Alberto Romaneschi 3 3
BenvanderVeer 3 3
Jansvander Woude 3 3
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Inaccordance with the principles of good corporate governance, the following Committees have been established by the respective
Boards. All of the Committees have written terms of reference, which are published on the Reed Elsevier website,
www.reedelsevier.com. Membership of each Committee and attendance during the year are set out below.

The Boards of Reed Elsevier PLC, Reed Elsevier NVand Reed Elsevier Group plc have established Audit Committees. The Committees
comprise onlyindependent Non-Executive Directors. The Committees are chaired by Benvan der Veer. Areport of the Audit
Committees, setting out their role and main activities during the year, appears on pages 95 and 96.

Number of

Date of meetings
appointment/ heldwhilea ~ Number of
(cessation) ~ Committee meetings
Members during theyear member attended
Benvander Veer (Committee Chairman) 5 5
Adrian Hennah 5 3
Sir David Reid (April 2013) 2 2
Linda Sanford 5 5

The functions of an audit committee in respect of the financing activities are carried out by the Supervisory Board of Elsevier Reed
Finance BV.

The Board of Reed Elsevier Group plc has established a Remuneration Committee, which is responsible for considering the
remuneration of the Executive Directors and the Chairman. The Committee comprises only Non-Executive Directors and is chaired by
Wolfhart Hauser who succeeded Mark Elliott as Chairmanin April 2013. A Directors’ Remuneration Report, which has been approved by
the Boards of Reed Elsevier Group plc, Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV, appears on pages 78 to 94. Thisreport serves as
disclosure of the Directors’ Remuneration Policy and Annual Remuneration Report which contains the remuneration of the Directors
andtheirinterestsinthe shares of the two parent companies, Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV.

Number of

Date of meetings
appointment/  heldwhilea Number of
[cessation]  Committee meetings
Members during theyear member attended
Wolfhart Hauser (Committee Chairman) April 2013 3 3
Mark Elliott (April 2013) 2 1
Anthony Habgood 5 5
LisaHook 5 5
Robert Polet 5 5
Sir David Reid (April 2013) 2 1
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The Boards of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV have established a joint Nominations Committee. The Committee comprises only
Non-Executive Directors, and is chaired by Anthony Habgood. Areport of the Nominations Committee, setting out its role and main
activities during the year, appears on page 77.

Number of

Date of meetings
appointment/  heldwhilea  Number of
(cessation]  Committee meetings
Members duringtheyear member attended
Anthony Habgood [Committee Chairman) 5 5
Mark Elliott (April 2013) 2 1
LisaHook 5 5
Sir David Reid (April 2013) 2 1
BenvanderVeer 5 4

The Boards of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV have established ajoint Corporate Governance Committee, which is responsible
for reviewing ongoing developments and best practice in corporate governance. The Committee is also responsible for assessing the
performance of the Directors and recommending the structure and operation of the various Committees of the Boards and the
qualifications and criteria for membership of each Committee, including the independence of members of the Boards. The Committee
comprises only Non-Executive Directors, and is chaired by Anthony Habgood.

Number of

Date of meetings
appointment/  heldwhilea Number of
(cessation]  Committee meetings
Members duringtheyear member attended
Anthony Habgood [Committee Chairman) 5 5
Mark Elliott (April 2013) 2 1
Wolfhart Hauser April 2013 3 2
Adrian Hennah 5 5
LisaHook 5 5
Marikevan Lier Lels 5 5
Robert Polet 5 5
Sir David Reid (April 2013) 2 0
Linda Sanford 5 4
BenvanderVeer 5 5
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Parent companies

The Boards of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV exercise
independent supervisoryroles over the activities and systems of
internal control of Reed Elsevier Group plc and Elsevier Reed
Finance BV.The Boards of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier
NV have each adopted a schedule of matters which are required to
be brought to them for decision. In relation to Reed Elsevier Group
plcand Elsevier Reed Finance BV, the Boards of Reed Elsevier PLC
and Reed Elsevier NV approve the strategy and the annual
budgets, and receive regular reports on the operations, including
the treasury and risk managementactivities of the two
companies. Major transactions proposed by the Boards of Reed
Elsevier Group plcor Elsevier Reed Finance BV require the
approval of the Boards of both Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed
Elsevier NV.

The Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV Audit Committees
meetonaregular basis to review the systems of internal control
and risk management of Reed Elsevier Group plc and Elsevier
Reed Finance BV.

Operating companies

The Board of Reed Elsevier Group plcis responsible for the system
of internal control of the Reed Elsevier publishing and information
businesses, while the Boards of Elsevier Reed Finance BV are
responsible for the system of internal controlin respect of the
finance group activities. The Boards of Reed Elsevier Group plc
and Elsevier Reed Finance BVare alsoresponsible for reviewing
the effectiveness of their systems of internal control.

The Boards of Reed Elsevier Group plc and Elsevier Reed Finance
BV have eachimplemented an ongoing process foridentifying,
evaluating, monitoring and managing the more significant risks
faced by their respective businesses. These processes have been
in place throughoutthe yearended 31 December2013and up to
the date of the approvals of the Annual Reports and Financial
Statements 2013.

Reed Elsevier Group plc

Reed Elsevier Group plc has an established framework of
proceduresand internal controls, with which the management of
each businessis required to comply. Group businesses are
required to maintain systems of internal control which are
appropriate tothe nature and scale of their activities and address
all significant operational and financial risks that they face. The
Board of Reed Elsevier Group plc has adopted a schedule of
matters thatare required to be broughttoit for decision.

Reed Elsevier Group plc has a Code of Ethics and Business
Conduct that provides a guide for achieving its business goals and
requires officersand employees to behave inan open, honest,
ethicaland principled manner. The Code also outlines confidential
procedures enabling employees to reportany concerns about
compliance, or about Reed Elsevier's financial reporting

practice. The Codeis published on the Reed Elsevier website,
www.reedelsevier.com.
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Each division has identified and evaluated its major risks, the
controlsin place to manage those risks and the levels of residual
risk accepted. Risk management and control procedures are
embedded into the operations of the business and include the
monitoring of progressin areas forimprovement that come to
managementand board attention. The principal risks facing
Reed Elsevierare setouton pages 60to 62.

The majorrisks facing the Reed Elsevier Group plc businesses are
regularly reported to and considered by the Board and Audit
Committee. With the close involvement of business management
andthe central functions, the risk management and control
procedures ensure that Reed Elsevieris managingits business
risks effectivelyandin a coordinated manner across the business
with clarity on the respective responsibilities and
interdependencies. Litigation and other legal regulatory matters
are managed by legaldirectorsin Europe and the US.

The Reed Elsevier Group plc Audit Committee receives regular
reports on the identification and management of material risks
and reviews these reports. The Audit Committee also receives
regularreports from both internal and external auditors on
internal controland risk management matters. In addition, each
divisionisrequired, atthe end of the financialyear, to review the
effectiveness of internal controls and risk management and
reportits findings on a detailed basis to the management of

Reed Elsevier Group plc. Thesereports are summarised and, as
partof the annualreview of effectiveness, submitted to the Audit
Committee of Reed Elsevier Group plc. The Chairman of the Audit
Committee reports to the Board on any significant internal control
matters arising.

Elsevier Reed Finance BV

Elsevier Reed Finance BV has established policy guidelines, which
are appliedtoall Elsevier Reed Finance BV companies. The
respective Boards of Elsevier Reed Finance BV have adopted
schedules of matters thatare required to be brought to them for
decision. Procedures arein place for monitoring the activities of
the finance group, including a comprehensive treasury reporting
system. The major risks affecting the finance group have been
identified and evaluated and are subject to regular review. The
controlsin place to manage these risks and the level of residual
risk accepted are monitored by the Boards.

Annualreview

As partoftheyear-end procedures, the Audit Committees and
Boards of Reed Elsevier PLC, Reed Elsevier NV, Reed Elsevier
Group plcand Elsevier Reed Finance BV review the effectiveness
of the systems of internal control and risk management during the
last financialyear. The objective of these systems is to manage,
ratherthan eliminate, the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives. Accordingly, they can only provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatementor loss. The
Boards have confirmed, subject to the above, that as regards
financial reporting risks, the respective risk management and
control systems provide reasonable assurance against material
inaccuracies or loss and have functioned properly during the year.
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The Directors of Reed Elsevier PLC, Reed Elsevier NV, Reed
Elsevier Group plcand Elsevier Reed Finance BV are required to

prepare financial statements as at the end of each financial period,

inaccordance with applicable law and regulations, which give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs, and of the profit or loss, of
the respective companies and their subsidiaries, joint ventures
and associates. Theyare responsible for maintaining proper
accounting records, for safeguarding assets, and for taking
reasonable stepsto preventand detect fraud and other
irregularities. The Directors are also responsible for selecting
suitable accounting policies and applying them on a consistent
basis, making judgements and estimates thatare prudent
andreasonable.

Applicable accounting standards have been followed and the
Reed Elsevier combined financial statements, which are the
responsibility of the Directors of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed
Elsevier NV, are prepared using accounting policies which comply
with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Having takenintoaccountallthe matters considered by the
Boards and brought to the attention of the Boards, the Directors
are satisfied that the Annual Reportand Accounts, takenasa
whole, is fair, balanced and understandable, and provides the
information necessary for shareholders to assess the company’s
performance, business model and strategy.

The Directors of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV, having
made appropriate enquiries, consider that adequate resources
exist for the combined businesses to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future and that, therefore, itis
appropriate toadopt the going concern basis in preparing the 2013
financial statements. In reaching this conclusion, the Directors of
Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV have had due regard to
the combined businesses’ financial positionas at 31 December
2013, the strong free cash flow of the combined businesses,

Reed Elsevier’s ability to access capital markets and the principal
risks facing Reed Elsevier.

Acommentaryon the Reed Elsevier combined businesses’

cash flows, financial position and liquidity for the year ended

31 December 2013is set outin the Chief Financial Officer’s report
on pages 52t059. This shows that after taking account of available
cash resources and committed bank facilities that back up short-
term borrowings, none of Reed Elsevier's borrowings fall due
within the nexttwoyears. Reed Elsevier’s policies on liquidity,
capital managementand management of risks relating to interest
rate, foreign exchange and credit exposures are set out on pages
58and 59. Furtherinformation on liquidity of the combined
businesses can be foundin note 18 of the combined financial
statements. The principalrisks facing Reed Elsevier are setouton
pages 60to 62.

Asrequired by Section 302 of the US Sarbanes-Oxley Act 2002 and
by related rulesissued by the US Securities and Exchange
Commission, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer of Reed Elsevier PLC and of Reed Elsevier NV certifyin the
respective Annual Reports 2013 on Form 20-F to be filed with the
Commission thatthey are responsible for establishing and
maintaining disclosure controls and procedures and that

they have:

designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure
that materialinformation relating to Reed Elsevieris made
known to them;

evaluated the effectiveness of Reed Elsevier's disclosure
controlsand procedures;

based ontheir evaluation, disclosed to the Audit Committees
and the externalauditors all significant deficienciesin the
design or operation of disclosure controls and procedures and
any frauds, whether or not material, thatinvolve management
or other employees who have a significantrole in Reed
Elsevier'sinternal controls; and

presentedin the Reed Elsevier Annual Report 2013 on Form
20-F their conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure
controlsand procedures.

ADisclosure Committee, comprising the company secretaries of
Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV and other senior Reed
Elsevier managers, provides assurance to the Chief Executive
Officerand Chief Financial Officer regarding their Section

302 certifications.

Section 404 of the US Sarbanes-Oxley Act 2002 requires the Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of Reed Elsevier PLC
and of Reed Elsevier NVto certifyin the respective Annual Reports
2013 on Form 20-F that they are responsible for maintaining
adequate internal control structures and procedures for financial
reportingand to conductan assessment of their effectiveness.
The conclusions of the assessment of internal control structures
and financial reporting procedures, which are unqualified, are
presentedinthe Reed Elsevier Annual Report 2013 on Form 20-F.
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Report of the Nominations Committee

Thisreporthasbeen prepared by the joint Nominations
Committee of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NVand has
been approved by the respective Boards.

Role of the Committee

The principal role of the Committee is to provide assistance to the
Boards of Reed Elsevier PLC, Reed Elsevier NVand Reed Elsevier
Group plc byidentifying individuals qualified to become Directors
and recommending to the Boards the appointment of such
individuals. The responsibilities of the Committee are set outin
written terms of reference (available at www.reedelsevier.com)
andinclude:

(i) todevelopandagreethe desired profile for potential
candidates for Board membership;

(i) inconsultation with external search consultants, agree
the specification for the recruitment of new directors which
provides aformaland transparent procedure for the
selectionand appointment of new directors to the Boards;

(i) torecommend tothe Boards the appointment of candidates
subject, where appropriate, to the approval of shareholders
of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV;

(iv] torecommend tothe Boards Directorstoserve on Board
Committees, having regard to the criteria for service on
each committee as set outinthe terms of reference for such
committees, and torecommend membersto serve asthe
Chair of those committees; and

(v)] tomakerecommendations tothe Boardsinrelation tothe
electionorre-election of Directors at the Annual General
Meetings of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV.

Committee membership

The Committee comprises only Non-Executive Directors, and is
chaired by Anthony Habgood. The other members are Lisa Hook
and BenvanderVeer. The Committee met five times during
theyear.

Composition of the Boards and Committees
During the year, the main areas of focus for the Committee were:

the appointment of a Non-Executive Director;

the appointment of a Senior Independent Directorin place of
Sir David Reid who retired from the Boards in April 2013;

the appointment of a Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee in place of Mark Elliott who retired from the Boards
inApril 2013;

the appointment of a Chief Financial Officer to succeed
Duncan Palmer who gave notice of his resignationin
September 2013; and

progress against Reed Elsevier’s aspirational goals regarding
the percentage of women onits Boards.

The Committee seeks to ensure that the Boards and their
Committees comprise an appropriate balance of skills,
experience, independence, knowledge of Reed Elsevier’s
businesses, and diversity, including gender and in doing so takes
into account the outcome of Board evaluations. More information
on Board evaluation can be found on page 70.

The Committee has established a formal, rigorous and
transparent procedure for the recruitment of candidates to the
Boards and recommendations by the Committee are made on the
basis of a candidate’s merit, against objective criteria and with due
regard for the benefits of diversity. The Committee retained
recruitment consultants specialising in senior and non-executive
appointments to carry out searches fora Non-Executive Director
and anew Chief Financial Officer. Spencer Stuartwas retained in
connection with the search fora Non-Executive Director. Spencer
Stuartisanindependent executive search consulting firm with no
other connection to Reed Elsevier. The Committee worked closely
with the consultants and following a rigorous process of
interviews and assessments, recommended to the Boards the
appointment of Wolfhart Hauser as a Non-Executive Director

and Nick Luffas Chief Financial Officer. The Boards approved
these recommendations.

Inlight of the retirement of Mark Elliott and Sir David Reid, the
Committee undertook a review of the roles and responsibilities of
the Non-Executive Directors. Followingthe review, the
Committee recommended to the Boards the appointment of Lisa
Hook as the Senior Independent Director and Wolfhart Hauser as
the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee. The Boards
approved these recommendations.

Inresponse to the publication of the Davies Review, “Women on
Boards”in 2011, the Boards announced their aspirational goals
that by 2013 the Reed Elsevier NV Board would be comprised of
30% women and the Reed Elsevier PLC Board would be comprised
of 22% women. Following the Annual General Meetings held in
April 2013, the Boards met these goals. The Committee will
continue to monitor the composition of the Boards against their
aspirational goals while taking into account the benefits of
diversity more generally.

Details of Reed Elsevier's approach to diversity and inclusionin
itsworkforce can be found inthe Corporate Responsibility report
on page 46.
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

The Directors’ Remuneration Report (the Report) describes
how Reed Elsevierapplies the principles of good governance
relating todirectors’ remuneration. This Report has been
prepared by the Remuneration Committee of Reed Elsevier
Group plcinaccordance with the UK Corporate Governance
Code, the UK Listing Rules, the Large and Medium-sized
Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports) (Amendment)
Regulations 2013 (the new UK Regulations) and the Dutch
Corporate Governance Code [the Dutch Code).

The Reportwas approved by the Boards of Reed Elsevier PLC,
Reed Elsevier NVand Reed Elsevier Group plc. This year,
shareholders will be invited to approve both our remuneration
policy (by way of a binding vote) and our 2013 Annual
Remuneration Report (by way of a non-binding advisory vote)
atthe 2014 Annual General Meeting of Reed Elsevier PLC.

Our remuneration policyis set out on pages 79 to 85 (the Policy
Report] and the 2013 Annual Remuneration Reportis set out
on pages 86 to 94.

The audited sections of the Report are clearly marked.

|am pleased to present my first Reportas Chairman of the Reed
Elsevier Remuneration Committee.

Asyouwill have read elsewhere in this Annual Report, 2013 was
anotheryear of good progress for the company. 2013 annual
incentive payments for the Executive Directors were just above
targetand performance measures under the 2011-13 cycle of the
BIP (Bonus Investment Plan) and the ESOS (Executive Share
Option Scheme) will resultin respective outcomes for the CEO
close toand at the fullamount of the original awards. In line

with increases for the wider employee population, the
Remuneration Committee has approved a 2014 salary increase
for the CEO of 2.5%.

Atthe Annual General Meetingsin 2013, shareholders approved
our proposed new LTIP (Long-Term Incentive Plan) and our
renewed ESOS and the first grants were made under these plans
to Executive Directorsin May 2013. The Executive Directors also
participatedinthe 2013-15 cycle of the BIP. The 2013 awards
granted tothe CFO, Duncan Palmer, under these plans lapsed on
his notice of resignation in September 2013.

For 2014 we areintroducing claw-back provisions for the annual
incentive, similar to the provisions which are already in place for
our multi-yearincentives.

Earlierthisyear,we announced the appointment of Nick Luffas
CFO. Atadatetobedetermined laterin 2014, Nick Luff will take
over from Duncan Palmer, who will leave the businesswhen a
hand-over has been completed. The remuneration arrangements
for Nick Luff will be provided inthe 2014 Notices of Annual General
Meetings which will be available on the company’s website.

Subject to shareholderapproval, our remuneration policy will
apply from the conclusion of the 2014 Reed Elsevier PLC Annual
General Meeting until the Reed Elsevier PLC Annual General
Meetingin2017.Itis intended to be comprehensive, butalso
sufficiently flexible to allow it to operate throughout this time
period. Itis designed fora global business with two parent
companies, with listingsin London, Amsterdam and New York.
The policyis based on the following principles:

Performance-related pay with demanding performance
measures linked to our strategy;

Creation of shareholder value;

Competitive remuneration to attractand retain the best

talent globally;

Abalance between fixed and variable elements, and annual and
longer-term performance;

Aligning the interests of Executive Directors with shareholders
and other stakeholders;

Operating the company consistent with long-term
sustainability; and

Discouraging inappropriate risk taking.

The performance measures for the annualand multi-year
incentives are designed to drive management behaviourinaway
which supports the company’s strategy to transform the core
business through organicinvestment and the organic build out of
new productsinto adjacent markets and geographies,
supplemented by selective portfolio acquisitions and divestments.
Theannualincentiveisfocused on operational excellence,
measured by revenue, profitand cash generationand on the
achievement of individual key performance objectives which align
with our strategic plans. The performance measuresin the
multi-yearincentives, which focus on return on capital, returns
toshareholders and sustained earnings growth, further support
our strategy.

Thisyear's Report has been preparedina mannerwhich balances
the specific local requirements of the new UK Regulations and the
Dutch Code with the desire to provide additional information which
may be helpfulto our broaderinvestor base.

Wolfhart Hauser
Chairman, Remuneration Committee
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Setoutinthissectionisthe company's remuneration policy for Directors, which, subject to shareholder approval, willapply from the
conclusion of the Reed Elsevier PLC Annual General Meeting to be held on 24 April 2014.

Remuneration policy table - Executive Directors
Allfootnotes to the policy table can be found on page 82.

Purpose and link to strategy

Operation
Salaries for Executive Directors are set and reviewed annually by the Remuneration Committee (the Committee) with changes
typically taking effect on 1 January. In exceptional circumstances, the Committee may review more frequently. The following factors
are considered:
The executive'srole and sustained value to the company in terms of skill, experience and overall contribution.
Competitiveness with companies which are comparable in respect of industry, size, international scope and complexity. Examples of
global peersinclude Thomson Reuters, WPP, Pearson, John Wiley, Wolters Kluwer, Experian, McGraw-Hilland Equifax.
The company’s guidelines for salaries for allemployees for the year.

Maximum value
Salaryincreases to Executive Directors are within the range of increases for the wider employee population. However, the Committee
has discretion to exceed this to take account of individual circumstances such as change in responsibility, increasesin scale or

Performance framework
n/a

Recovery of sums paid
No provision.

Purpose and link to strategy

Our policyis to offer competitive long-term sustainable defined contribution plans. Any amount above applicable limits, for example
HMRC's annualallowance inthe UK, will be paid in cash and will be subject to tax and social security deductions. In certain
circumstances, executives can take cash instead of pension contributions.

The UK defined benefit scheme s closed to new hires. Continued membership of legacy defined benefit schemes requires annual
increases to contributions or participation fees from all members, who have a choice to switch to the defined contribution plan atany time.

The CEOisamember of a UK legacy defined benefit pension arrangement, accruing 1/30th of final year pensionable earnings (base
salary) for eachyear (pro-rated for partyears] of service, with anormal retirement age of 60. The CEO contributes 7% of salary up to the
scheme earnings cap. Inline with all UK defined benefit scheme members, the CEO’s contributions willincrease to 8% from April 2014
and thenbyafurther 1% each yeartoarate of 11%in April 2017. In addition, the CEO currently pays a participation fee equal to 1% of the
amount of his base salaryin excess of the scheme earnings cap. On 1 April 2014, and each April thereafter, this fee will increase by 2% of

Maximum value
Defined benefit scheme - accrual of 1/30th of salary for everyyear of service up to a maximum of 2/3rds of salary.

Performance framework
n/a

Recovery of sums paid
No provision.

M3IAIBAQ

MaIAaJ SSauIsSNg

MaIASJ eIDUBUIS

9JUBUIBA0Y

UOI}BW 04Ul J3U}0 PUB S}USWID)E)S |BIDUBUI



80 GOVERNANCE
DIRECTORS'REMUNERATION REPORT

Purpose and link to strategy
To provide competitive benefits atappropriate cost.

Operation

Other benefits, subject to periodic review, mayinclude private medicaland dental cover, life assurance, tax return preparation costs,
car benefits, directors’ and officers’ liability insurance, relocation benefits and expatriate allowances and other benefits available to
employees generally, including, where appropriate, the tax on such benefits.

Maximum value

Over the past three years, ongoing benefits for Executive Directors (excluding relocation benefits) have amounted to between 3% and
5% of salary, in line with our policy that the maximum payable should not exceed 5% of salary. However, the Committee may provide
reasonable benefits beyond thisamountin unexpected situations, such asa changein the individual's circumstances caused by the
company, orif thereisasignificantincrease in the cost of the benefit.

Performance framework
n/a

Recovery of sums paid
No provision.

Purpose and link to strategy
Providesfocus onthe delivery of annual financial targets and the achievement of annual objectives and milestones which are chosen to
align with the company’s strategy and create a platform for sustainable future performance.

Why performance measures are chosen and howtargetsare set

Performance measuresinclude a balanced set of financial targets and Key Performance Objectives [KPOs), which are appropriately
weighted and which support current strategy and incentivise the Executive Directors to achieve the desired outcomes without undue risk
of focusing onany one financial measure.

The targets are designed to be challenging. They are setwith reference to the previous year’s performance and internal and external
forecasts for the following year.

Operation

The Committee reviews and sets the financial targets and KPOs annually, taking into account internal forecasts and strategic plans.
Itapproves four to six KPOs for each Executive Director, reflecting critical business priorities for which each is accountable. At least one
KPO willrelate to the achievement of sustainability targets.

Followingyear end, the Committee compares actual performance with the financial targets and assesses the achievement of
individual KPOs.

Maximum value
The maximum potential annualincentive for Executive Directorsis 150% of annual base salary.

Performance framework
The measuresinclude financial targets, which have a weighting of at least 70%, and individual KPOs, with each element
assessed separately.

The minimum payout is zero.

Ifthe financial measure with the lowest payout at threshold pays out at threshold and the others do not pay out at all, the overall
payout for financial measuresis 5% of salary. If threshold is reached for each of the financial measures, the overall payout for the
financial measuresis 26% of salary. There is no threshold level for KPOs.

Payout fortarget performance (financial measures and KPOs) is 100% of salary.

Following anassessment of achievement and scoring of KPOs, the Committee agrees the overall payout level for each Executive Director.

Committee discretion applies.”?

Recovery of sums paid
Claw-back applies.?
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Purpose and link to strategy

The multi-yearincentive plans are the main component of Executive Directors’ pay. They are designed to provide long-termincentives
for Executive Directors to achieve the key performance measures that supportthe company’s strategy, and to align their interests with
shareholders. The BIP encourages annual personalinvestmentin Reed Elsevier shares.

Why performance measures are chosenand how targets are set
Our strategic focusis on transforming the core business through organic investment and the build out of new products into adjacent
markets and geographies, supplemented by selective portfolio acquisitions and divestments. The performance measuresin the
multi-yearincentives are chosen to support this strategy by focusing on return on capital, returns to shareholders and sustained

earnings growth.

Targets are setwith regard to previous results and internal and external forecasts for the performance period. They are designed to
provide exceptional reward for exceptional performance, whilst allowing a reasonable expectation that reward at the lower end of the
scaleisattainable, subject to robust performance.

Operation

Annually, Executive Directors may use up to
anamount equal to their AIP target for
investmentin Reed Elsevier shares. In
return, they receive a matching award
which vests subject to:

performance measured over three
financialyears;

continued employment; and

retention of the underlying investment
shares.

Dividend equivalents accrued during the
performance period are payable inrespect
of the matching shares that vest.

Vesting may be accelerated onachange
of control.*

Maximumvalue
Up to 100% of the amount invested.

Performance framework

The performance measures are earnings
per share (EPS) and return oninvested
capital (ROIC), weighted equally and
assessed independently, such thata payout
can bereceived under either one of the
measures.

The minimum payout is zero.

If one measure pays out at threshold and
the other does not pay out at all, the
overall payoutis 25%. If both measures
pay out at threshold, the overall payout
is 50%.

Payoutin line with expectations is 67%.

Dividend equivalents are not takeninto
accountinthe above payout levels.

Committee discretion applies."?

Annualawards of performance shares,
with vesting subject to:

performance measured over three
financialyears;

continued employment; and

meeting shareholding requirements.

Executive Directors are required to retain
their netvested shares for a period of at
least sixmonths after release.

Dividend equivalents accrued during the
performance period are payable inrespect
of the performance shares that vest.

Vesting may be accelerated onachange
of control.*

Annualawards of market value options
that vest, subject to performance
measured over three financialyears, and
remain exercisable, subject to continued
employment, until the tenth anniversary
of grant.

Vesting may be accelerated onachange
of control.*

The maximumgrantinanyyearis up to
250% of base salary for the CEO and up
to 200% of base salary for other
Executive Directors.

The maximumgrantinanyyearisupto
250% of base salary for the CEO and up
to 200% of base salary for other
Executive Directors.

The performance measuresare relative
Total Shareholder Return (TSR), EPS and
ROIC, weighted equally and assessed
independently, such thata payout can be
received underany one of the measures
(or, for TSR, in respect of one of the three
comparator groups).

The minimum payout is zero.

If the measure with the lowest payout at
threshold pays out atthreshold and the
othersdo not pay outatall, the overall
payoutis 3%. If each of the measures
pays out at threshold, the overall payout
is 32%.

Payout in line with expectations is 50%.

Dividend equivalents are not taken into
accountinthe above payout levels.

Recovery of sums paid
Claw-back applies.®

The vesting of options is subject to EPS
measured over threeyears.

The minimum payoutis zero.

Payout atthreshold performanceis
33%.

Payoutin line with expectations is 80%.

Committee discretion applies."?

Claw-back applies.®

Claw-back applies.®
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Purpose and link to strategy
The REGPwas introduced in 2010 during a challenging and volatile business environment following the appointment of the current CEO.
Itwas designed as a one-off, five-year plan for the Executive Directors instead of LTIP grantsin 2010, 2011 and 2012.

Operation
The only current participantis the CEO and no further awards will be granted under this plan.

The CEO must retain a personal shareholding in the REGP of 300% of salary (in addition to shares held under the BIP) until vesting
inH12015.

Initial performance share awards vested, based on performance measured over 2010-2012, at 66.8%. 50% of the vested shares were
released (along with a cash dividend equivalent] and 50% were deferred and will only be released in H1 2015. The full 66.8% has been
includedinthe 2012 Single Total Figure on page 86. Matching awards, equal to the number of personal shares and deferred performance
shares, were granted in 2013 and vest, subject to performance, in H1 2015.

Dividend equivalents will be payable in respect of the matching awards and deferred performance shares which vestin H1 2015.

Vesting will be accelerated on a change of control.*

Maximum value
The maximum vesting over the five-year period (2010 -14) of the plan (including what has already vested after year three) is 150% of the
shares comprised in the original performance share award (of 600% of 2010 base salary).

Performance framework

Matching awards - TSR, EPS and ROIC, weighted equally and assessed independently, such that a payout can be received underany one
of the measures (or, for TSR, in respect of one of the three comparator groups). TSR is measured over the five-year period 2010-2014,
EPSis measured over the two-year period 2013-2014 and ROIC is measured at the end of 2014.

The minimum payoutis zero.
Ifthe measure with the lowest payout at threshold pays out at threshold and the others do not pay out at all, the overall payout is 3%.
If each of the measures pays out at threshold, the overall payoutis 50%.
Payoutin line with expectationsis 50%.
Committee discretion applies.™?

Recovery of sums paid/withholding
Claw-back applies.®

1. Discretioninrespect of annualand multi-year incentive plan payout levels: In determining the level of payout under the AIP and vesting under the multi-yearincentives,
the Committee takesintoaccount Reed Elsevier's overall business performance and value created for shareholders overthe periodin review and other relevant factors. It
hasdiscretion toadjustthe vesting and payout levelsifitbelieves thiswould resultinafairer outcome. This discretion willonly be used in exceptional circumstances and the
Committee willexplaininthe nextremuneration reportthe extenttowhichithasbeen exercised and the reasons for doing so.

2. Discretiontovaryperformance measuresapplying to existingannualand multi-yearincentives: The Committee mayvary the financial measures applyingtoacurrent
annualincentiveyearand performance measures for multi-yearincentivesifachangein circumstances leadsitto believe thatthe arrangementis no longerafair measure
of performance. Any new measureswill not be materially less, or more, challenging than the original ones.

3. Applicationof claw-back to annual and multi-yearincentives: The Committee has discretion toapply claw-back if the payout was calculated on the basis of materially
misstated financial or other data, inwhich caseitcan seek torecoverthe differenceinvalue betweentheincorrectaward and the amount that would have been paid had the
correctdatabeenused. Inrespect of multi-yearincentives, the Committee also has discretion toapply claw-back ifa participant breaches post-termination restrictive
covenants, inwhich case it may require repayment of gains arising during a specified period.

4. Multi-yearincentives -change of control: Under the BIP 2010, LTIP 2013 and ESOS 2013, the default position is that awards vest on a change of controlon a pro-rated basis,
subjecttoanassessmentof performance againsttargets at thattime. Alternatively, the Committee may determine thatawards will not vestand willinstead be exchanged
forequivalentawards inthe acquiring company. Under the REGP, awards vest within 30 days of the change of controlona pro-rated basis subject to performance.

5. Explanation of differences betweenthe company’s policy on Directors’ remuneration and the policy for other employees: Alarger percentage of Executive Directors’
remunerationis performance related thanthat of other employees. Allmanagers participate inanannualincentive plan, but participation levels, measures and targets
varyaccordingto theirroleand local business priorities. Approximately 100 senior executives participate in BIPand LTIPand about 1,000in ESOS. Grant levels underall
plansvaryaccordingtorole. All participantsin BIPand LTIP (including the Executive Directors) are subject to the same performance measures. Under ESOS, performance
measures apply only to the Executive Directors and all other participants can choose restricted sharesinstead of options on the basis of a pre-determined exchange ratio.
Therangeand level of benefits provided varyaccordingto role and local market practice.
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Remuneration outcomes in different performance scenarios
The Committee considers the level of remuneration that may be
paidin the context of the performance delivered and value added
forshareholders. The chartisanillustration of how the CEO’s
regularannualremuneration could vary under different
performance scenarios. The salary, benefits and pension levels
arethe sameinallthree scenarios and are based on 2014 salary,
the 2013 benefits figure from the Single Total Figure table and the
2013 pension disclosure (consistent with prior disclosure). Annual
and multi-yearincentives (BIP, LTIP and ESOS) are based on the
policy table and 2014 salary. Given the one-off nature of the REGP
(see page 82 for further details), potential final payoutsin H1 2015
are notreflected in this chart. The performance assumptions
which have been used are as follows: Minimum means no AIP
payoutand no multi-yearincentives vesting. In line with
expectations means AIP payout at 100% of salary, BIP vesting at
67% of the award, LTIP vesting at 50% of the award and ESOS
vesting at 80% of the award. Maximum means AIP payout at 150%
of salaryand multi-yearincentives vesting at 100% of the awards.

No share price movementis assumed and dividend equivalents
payableinrespect of the BIPand LTIP are notincluded. For options
vestingin line with expectations, a valuation factor of 20% of the face
value of the award at grant has been applied. Thisis ourinternal
valuationassumption for options, based on the exchange ratio applied
to participantsin ESOS below Board level who can choose options
orsharesataratio of 5:1. For options vesting at maximum, a higher
valuation factor (to reflect the higher performance achievement) of
33% of the face value of the award at grant has been applied. Thisisin
line with the report on pay and performance published in March 2013
by the Financial Reporting Council, an independent UK regulator.

We have notincluded a chartforthe CFO role as Duncan Palmeris
leaving the companyin 2014. His salary, regular ongoing benefits
(excluding relocation expenses) and pension will continue in line with
2013 levels [see Single Total Figure table on page 86) until his
leaving date. As heis noteligible forapro-rated AIP in respect of

Standard package onrecruitment”

To offer remunerationin line with the policy table (including the limits), taking into account

83

CEO Remuneration (£'000)

8,090
Multi-year incentives
(BIP, LTIP and ESOS)
Annual incentive
5325 59%
Salary,
48% benefits and
pension
1,660 21% A
100% 31% 21%
Minimum In line with Maximum

expectations

time employedin 2014, and his BIP, LTIP and ESOS awards have
lapsed, his remuneration for 2014 is not variable according to
performance. Duncan Palmer’s successor will join the company at
adatewhichis stillto be determined.

Approachtorecruitment remuneration - Executive Directors
When agreeing the components of aremuneration package on the
appointment of a new Executive Director, or an internal promotion
tothe Board, the Committee would seek to align the package with
the remuneration policy stated in the policy table. However, onan
internal promotion to the Board, any existing contractual obligations
and commitments may continue to be honoured, even if not
consistent with the prevailing policy. For example, if the individual
isamember of the legacy defined benefit pension plan, the
Committee will consider the pension arrangements in the context
of the package as awhole and may allow continued participation.

The Committee’s general principle on recruitmentis to offera
competitive remuneration package to attract high-calibre
candidates from a globaltalent pool. The various components and
the company’s approach are as follows:

eprinciples setoutabove.

Compensation for forfeited entitlements

The Committee may make awards and payments on hiring an external candidate to compensate him or her for entitlements forfeited on
leaving the previous employer. If such a decision is made, the Committee will attempt to reflect previous entitlements as closely as
possible using avariety of tools, including cash, share awards and options. Claw-back provisions willapply where appropriate. If
necessary tofacilitate the grant of awards, the Committee may rely on the one person exemption in the UK Listing Rules.

Relocationallowances and expenses

The type and size of relocation allowances and expenses will be determined by the specific circumstances of the new recruit.

*The standard package comprisesannual base salary, AIP, other benefits, annualawards under BIP, LTIP and ESOS and retirement benefits.

Shareholding requirement

The Executive Directors are subject to shareholding requirements. These are a minimum of 300% of annual base salary for the CEO and
200% of annual base salary for the CFO. On joining or promotion to the Board, Executive Directors are given a period of time to build up to

theirrequirement.

Policy on payments for loss of office

Inline with the company’s policy, the service contracts of the existing Executive Directors contain 12-month notice periods.

The circumstances inwhich an Executive Director’'s employmentis terminated will affect the Committee’s determination of any payment
for loss of office, but it expects toapply the principles outlined in the table on the next page. The Committee reserves the right to depart
fromthese principles where appropriate in light of any taxation requirements to which the company or the Executive Directoris subject
(including, without limitation, section 409A of the US Internal Revenue Code), or other legal obligations.

Restricted shareswere granted to Duncan Palmer on his recruitment in 2012 as compensation for forfeited entitlements from his formeremployer.
Thisaward has been pro-rated for service to the date of notice of resignation, with the result that 74,042 PLC ordinary shares and 51,378 NV
ordinary shareswillveston leaving. As the pro-rated shares will only be released upon his yet to be determined leaving date, rather than the
originalvesting dates, a cash adjustment may be paid to himif required to ensure that the value of the pro-rated award received on leaving is
equivalent to that which would have been received under the originalarrangements. Dividend equivalents on the shares will be paid on vesting.
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Policy on payments for loss of office (continued)

Mutually agreed termination/termination by the company other than for cause?

The Executive Director would be entitled to salary, benefits

and other contractual paymentsin the normalway up to the
termination date (including any unpaid annual incentive for any
prioryear)and would be paid for any accrued but untaken holiday.

Salary: Payment of upto 12 months’salary.

Annualincentive: Any unpaid annualincentive for the previous year
anda pro-ratapaymentin respect of the part of the financial year
up to the termination date would generally be payable, with the
amount being determined by reference to the original
performance criteria. However, the Committee has discretion to
decide otherwise depending on the reason for termination and
other specific circumstances. The company would not pay any
annualincentive in respect of any part of the financial year
following the termination date (e.g. for any part of unserved
notice). The annualincentive claw-back provisions would apply.

Other benefits: Where possible, benefits would be continued for up
to the duration of the unserved notice period (not exceeding the
maximum stated in the policy table) or, the Executive Director
would receive a cash payment (not exceeding the cost to the
company of providing those benefits).

Pension: Deferred orimmediate pensioninaccordance with scheme
rules, with a creditin respect of, or payment for up to, the full
period of any unworked period of notice. There is provision under
the defined benefit pension arrangements for members leaving
company service by reason of permanent incapacity to make an
application tothe scheme trustee for early payment of their pension.

Other: The company may pay compensation in respect of any
statutory employment rights and may make other appropriate and
customary payments.

The companywould have due regard to principles of mitigation of
loss. Reductions would be applied to reflect any portion of the
notice period that is worked and/or spent on gardening leave.

Oninjury, disability, ilLhealth or death, the Committee reserves
therighttovarythe treatmentoutlinedin this section.

BIP 2010, LTIP 2013 and ESOS 2013: The default position is that
unvested awards will be pro-rated to reflect time employed and
will vest subject to performance measured at the end of the
relevant performance period. Options are typically exercisable
fora period of two years following vesting. In respect of the BIP,
apro-ratanumber of investment shares will remainin the plan,
with the balance being released on cessation of employment.

The Committee has discretion to allow unvested awards to

vestearlierandtoadjust the application of time pro-rating,
performance conditions and exercise periods subject to the
rules of the respective plans.

REGP: The default positionis that unvested matching shares will
be pro-ratedto reflect time employed and will vest subject to
performance measured at the end of the 2013-14 performance
period. A pro-rata number of personal shares and deferred
performance shares will remainin the plan, with the balance
being released on cessation of employment. The Committee has
discretion to allow the matching shares tovest earlier.

ESOS 2003: The default positionis that options will typically
become exercisable for a six-month period (two years on
retirement) from the termination date, subject to time pro-rating
and performance conditions. The Committee may adjust the
application of time pro-rating, performance conditions and
exercise periods, subject to the rules of the plan.

Employee instigated resignation

The Executive Director would not receive any payments for loss of
office. The Executive Director would be entitled to salary, benefits
and other contractual paymentsinthe normalway up to the
termination date and would be paid for any accrued but untaken
holiday. The Executive Director will be entitled to receive an
annualincentive foracompleted previous year, but not a pro-rated
annualincentive in respect of a partyear up to the termination
date, unless the Committee decides otherwise in the specific
circumstances. Annualincentive claw-back provisions would
apply. Adeferred orimmediate pension would be payablein
accordance with the schemerules.

Alloutstanding awards lapse on date of notice. Any related
personalorinvestmentshares (e.g. under the REGP and the BIP)
will be released.

Dismissalfor cause

The Executive Director would not receive any payments for loss
of office. Adeferred orimmediate pension would be payable in
accordance with the schemerules.

Alloutstanding awards lapse on date of dismissal. Any related
personal orinvestment shares (e.g. under the REGP and the BIP)
will be released.

1. Inadditiontowhatissetoutinthetable, onterminationforanyreason, Erik Engstrom will be entitled to payment of amounts held in his “Retirement Account”. Before he

joined the company’s UK defined benefitarrangement, he was nota member of any company pension scheme and Reed Elsevier made annual contributions of 19.5% of base

salarytoadeferred compensation plan. Contributions to this Retirement Account ceased when he became a member of the UK defined benefitarrangement.
2. Asoutlinedinthe multi-yearincentives column, in cases where the approved leaver treatmentapplies, the multi-yearincentive plans have adefault positionaswell as
giving the Committee discretion to adjust the default treatmentwithin certain parameters. The Committee would expect to exercise such discretion where the Committee

believesthe personal circumstances of the Executive Director sorequire.
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Purpose and link to strategy

Toenable Reed Elsevier to recruit Non-Executive Directors with the right balance of personal skills and experience to make a major

Operation

Reed Elsevier Chairman: Receives an aggregate annual fee with no additional fees, e.g. Committee Chairman fees. Inrespect of Reed
Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier Group plc, the Committee determines, on the advice of the Senior Independent Director, the Chairman’s
fee.Inrespect of Reed Elsevier NV, the Committee makes arecommendation, on the advice of the Senior Independent Director, to the

Board of Reed Elsevier NV, which determines the Chairman’s fee.

Other Non-Executive Directors: Receive an aggregate annual fee in respect of their memberships of the Boards of Reed Elsevier plc, Reed
Elsevier NVand Reed Elsevier Group plc.* Additional fees are payable to the Senior Independent Director and Committee Chairmen.
Since 1 January 2014, fees are also payable for membership of Board Committees. In future, attendance fees may be paid. The Boards

determine the level of fees, subject to applicable law.

Fees may be reviewed annually, although in practice they have changed on a less frequent basis. When reviewing fees, considerationis
givento the time commitment required, the complexity of the role and the calibre of the individual. Comparative market datais also
reviewed, the primary source forwhich is the practice of FTSE 30 companies, with reference also to the NYSE Euronext Amsterdam

(AEX) index and US-listed companies.

Maximum value

The fees paid to the Chairman and the Non-Executive Directors are in respect of their memberships of the Boards of Reed Elsevier PLC,
Reed Elsevier NVand Reed Elsevier Group plc. The shareholders of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier Group plc have approved a
maximum annual fee limit of £500,000 and £700,000 respectively [excluding additional fees for membership of or chairing Board
Committees and assuming additional responsibilities such as actingas Senior Independent Director, all of which are not subject toa
maximum limit). The shareholders of Reed Elsevier NV have approved a maximum annual fee limit of €600,000 for the fees borne by
Reed Elsevier NV. The aggregate annual fee limit is therefore approximately £1.7m.

Purpose and link to strategy
To provide customary benefits atan appropriate cost.

Operation

Other benefits for Non-Executive Directors are reviewed periodically and mayinclude private medical cover, tax return preparation
costs, secretarial benefits and car benefits, including, where appropriate, the tax on such benefits.

Maximum value
Thereisno prescribed maximum amount.

*The fees paid toa Non-Executive Directorwho serves only onthe Board of Reed Elsevier NVreflect the time commitment to that company and to other companies within the

Reed Elsevier combined businesses.

Approach torecruitment remuneration -

Non-Executive Directors

Following recruitment, a new Non-Executive Director will be
entitled to fees and other benefitsinaccordance with the
company’s remuneration policy. No additional remunerationis
paid onrecruitment. However, any reasonable expensesincurred
during the recruitment process will be reimbursed.

Policy on payments for loss of office - Non-Executive Directors
In addition to unpaid accrued fees, the Non-Executive Directors
are entitled toreceive one month’s fees for loss of office if their
appointmentis terminated before the end of its term.

Service contracts and letters of appointment

Thereare nofurther obligationsin the Directors’ service contracts
and letters of appointment which are not otherwise disclosed in
this Report which could give rise to aremuneration payment or
loss of office payment. All Directors’ service contracts and letters
of appointment are available for inspection at the company’s
registered office. The Executive Directors’ service contracts do
not have a fixed expiry date.

Consideration of employment conditions elsewhere

inthe company

When the Committee reviews the Executive Directors’ salaries
annually, it takes into account the company’s guidelines for
salaries forallemployees for the forthcoming year. We do not
currently use any other remuneration comparison metrics when
determining the quantumand structure of Directors’ pay. We do
notthinkitis appropriate to consult with employees in connection
with our policy on Directors’ remuneration.

Consideration of shareholder views

Our practiceisto consult shareholders and consider their views
when formulating, or changing, our policy. Forexample, in early
2013 we consulted with a number of shareholders in connection
with the proposals foranew LTIP and the renewal of the ESOS.
The feedback helped shape the design of the plans.

Prior commitments

The Committee reserves the right to make any remuneration or loss
of office payments if the terms were agreed prior to an individual
being appointed asaDirector or prior to the approval of the policy.
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Single Total Figure of Remuneration - Executive Directors (audited)

(@l (b) (o (@ le) M o (h) (i () (k) 0

Short-term employee benefits Share-basedawards Pension Total
Consistent Consistent Consistent
Annual i New UK Dutch Civil withprior i NewUK  DutchCivil withprior i New UK Dutch Civil with prior
£'000 Salary Benefits®  Incentive basis 47  Codebasis? disclosure347 basis' Codebasis? disclosure3 basis' Codebasis? disclosure?
Erik 2013 1,077 28 1,134% 2,467 3,300 1,301 719 528 528% 5,425 6,067 4,068
Engstrom 2g12 1,051 28 1,50% 8,302 2744 5312 614 470 470 11,045 5443 8,011
Duncan 2013 600 232 609 0 598 0 114 114 114 1,555 2,153 1,555
Palmer® 7012 214 10 2300 867 268 94 4 41 41,362 763 1,409

New UK basis (columns (d), (g) and (j)): These figures are calculated inaccordance with the methodology set outin the new UK Regulations. They include, for performance
related share-based awards, the value attributable to share price appreciation since the date the award was granted. In the case of the CEO's figures, the amountincluded
thatrelatestoshare price appreciationis £3mfor 2012and £1.2m for 2013.

Dutch Civil Code basis (columns (e), (h) and (k)): These figures comply with the requirements of the Dutch Civil Code. The figures for share-based awards comprise the
multi-yearincentives chargesinaccordance with IFRS2 - Share-Based Payment. These IFRS2 charges do not reflect the actualvalue received onvesting. The figures for
pensions reflect the cost of pension provision which comprises (i) for defined benefit schemes, the transfer value of the increase in accrued pension during the year (net of
inflation, Directors’ contributions and participation fee] and (i) for defined contribution schemes, payments made to the scheme or to the Executive Director in lieu of pension.
Consistentwith prior disclosure (columns (f), (i) and (L)): We believe including these figures is helpful for our non-UK shareholders as the calculation methodology for
share-based awards and defined benefit pensionsis consistent with what has been used in previous reports (although we have reflected amounts in the same year as
required by the New UK basis to facilitate comparison). Accordingly, values are calculated as follows: (i) for share-based awards, the value of the vested award at grant
excludingany subsequent share price movement (as showninthe share-based award tablesin prior reports) and including dividend equivalents if applicable; (i) for options,
20% of face value atgrant (based on our previously disclosed 5:1 exchange ratio for options to shares applicable to ESOS participants below the Board, as described in the
2013 Notices of Annual General Meetings); (iii) for defined benefit pension, the transfervalue of the increase in accrued pension during the year (net of inflation, Directors’
contributions and participation fee) and (iv) for defined contribution pension schemes, payments made to the scheme or to the Executive Director in lieu of pension.
Share-based awards for Erik Engstrom (columns (d) and (f)): The 2012 figures reflect the vesting of tranche 1 of the REGP and the 2010 BIP, both measured over the
2010-12 period. The vesting percentages under these plans were determined on 25 April 2013 and are in line with estimates in the 2012 Remuneration Report (pages 81 and
82). The figuresinclude the related dividend equivalent payments paid outin cashin 2013 in respect of both plans. The 2012 REGP figures reflect the entire amount that was
performance tested overthe 2010-12 period, including the 50% of shares deferred until 2015 in accordance with the plan rules. The 2013 figures represent the 2011-13 cycle
ofthe BIPand ESOS. As the BIP vests after the approval date of the Report, and the ESOS vestsin May 2014, the average share prices for the last quarter of 2013 have been
usedtoarrive atan estimated figure under the New UK basis inrespect of bothawards. The proportion of the value of the CEOQ’s share-based awards under the New UK
basis that relates to share price appreciation between the dates of grant and vesting is 36% (or £3m) for 2012and 47% (or £1.2m) for 2013 using, as required, the average
share pricesforthe last quarter of 2013.

Benefits: Each Executive Director receives a carallowance, private medical/dentalinsurance and the company meets the cost of tax return preparation. In 2013, Duncan
Palmerreceived aone-off cash relocation allowance of £500,000 which was paid to himin May 2013 inrecognition of him and his family being required to relocate to the UK
fromthe US (see page 84 of lastyear’s report). Asaresult of his resignation, Duncan Palmer became required to repay this to the company through payroll deductions,

by deduction from his 2013 annualincentive payment, soit has not beenincludedin column (b). He also received reimbursement of direct relocation expenses, under Reed
Elsevier'srelocation policy,amounting to £200,907, whichisincluded.

Duncan Palmer’s 2012 figures: Columns (a) to(c), [g) and (i) reflect the amount Duncan Palmer received from his date of joining Reed Elsevier (24 August 2012 until the end
oftheyear. The 2012 share-based award figuresin columns (d) and (f) relate to the restricted shares granted to compensate him for the forfeiture of awards from his former
employer (as disclosed in lastyear’s report), reduced to reflect time served up to the point of giving notice of resignation. The figure in column (f)includes estimated
dividend equivalents of £46,977.

Exchange rates used for share-based awards: The exchange rates used to convert share-based awards to pounds sterling are (i) for the New UK basis, those that applied
atthe vesting dates or, if vesting has not occurred, the average exchange rates for the last quarter of 2013, (ii) for consistent with prior disclosure, those that applied at the
grantdates, (iii) for dividend equivalents, the exchange rates at the time of payment and (iv) for estimated dividend equivalents yet to be paid, the 31 December 2013 rates
disclosed under “Statement of Financial Position” in note 30 to the combined financial statements.

Totalremuneration for Directors: Thisis setoutin note 29 to the combined financial statements on pages 136 and 137. The table above includes remuneration for the
Executive Directors employed during 2013, whereas note 29 also includes the previous CFO, who retired at the end of 2012.

2013 AnnualIncentive

Reed Elsevier continued to deliver onits long term strategic and
financial priorities in 2013. Underlying revenue growth was 2%
(3% excluding the cycling effect of biennial exhibitions), with
underlying revenue growth across all five major business areas.
Improved profitability was driven by process innovation and

portfolio development. Underlying adjusted operating profit grew

ahead of revenue at 5%. Adjusted operating cash flow was

£1,703m and the rate of conversion of adjusted operating profits
into cash flowwas 97%. The post-tax return on average invested
capitalincreasedintheyearto 12.1%.

Setoutbelowisasummary of performance against each financial
measure and the resulting annualincentive payments for 2013
(payable in March 2014):

Performance measure  Relative weighting Achievementversus target Payoutas % ofsalary  Payoutas % of salary

Erik Engstrom Duncan Palmer
Revenue 30% Attarget Close to 30% Close to 30%
Adjusted profit after 30% Justabove target Justabove 30% Justabove 30%
tax
Cash flow conversion 10% Justabove target Justabove 10% Justabove 10%
rate
Key Performance 30% CEO CFO Closeto30% Just below 30%
Objectives (KPOs) Substantiallyall ~ Mostobjectives met

objectives met
105.3% 101.4%
£1,134,235 £608,550

We do not disclose our annual financial targets or details of the individual KPO targets. The Board believes that these are commercially
sensitive and that disclosing them would give competitors an unfair insight into our strategic direction and annual execution plans.
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Multi-year incentives
Awards were granted to Erik Engstrom under the BIP and the ESOS in May 2011. The Committee assessed the performance measures
forthese awards and the outcome is summarised below.

BIP: 2011-13 cycle performance outcome

Performance measure Weighting Performance range Achievementagainst  Resulting vesting
andvesting the performance percentage
levelssetatgrant’ range
Average growthin adjusted EPS overthe three-year 50% below 4% p.a. 0% 71%p.a. 81%
performance period? 4%p.a. 50%
6.5% p.a. 75%
9% p.a.orabove 100%
ROICinthe thirdyear 50% below 10.4% 0% 1.7% 100%
of the performance period? 10.4% 50%
10.9% 75%
11.4% or above 100%
Totalvesting percentage: 90.5%

1. Calculated onastraight-line basis for performance between the minimum and maximum levels.
2. Thecalculationmethodology for EPSand ROICis set outinthe 2010 Notices of Annual General Meetings, which can be found on the company’s website.

ES0S: 2011-13 cycle performance outcome

Performance measure Weighting Performance range Achievementagainst  Resulting vesting
andvesting the performance percentage
levels setatgrant range
Average growth in adjusted EPS over the three-year 100%  belowé%p.a. 0% above 6%p.a. 100%
performance period 6% p.a.orabove 100%

Single Total Figure of Remuneration - Non-Executive Directors (audited)

Totalfee Benefits' Total
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

Anthony Habgood £550,000 £550,000 £1,900 £1,689 £551,900 £551,689
Mark Elliott (until 25 April 2013) £21,250 £85,000 £1,000 £300 £22,250 £85,300
Wolfhart Hauser (from 25 April 2013) £65,058 £65,058

Adrian Hennah £65,000 £65,000 £500 £300 £65,500 £65,300
Lisa Hook? £80,462 £65,000 £1,000 £300 £81,462 £65,300
Marikevan Lier Lels® £55,085 £52,846 £55,085 £52,846
Robert Polet £65,000 £65,000 £500 £300 £65,500 £65,300
Sir David Reid (until 25 April 2013) £21,250 £85,000 £500 £300 £21,750 £85,300
Linda Sanford (from 4 December 2012) £65,000 £5,416 £1,000 £66,000 £5,416
BenvanderVeer? £93,220 £89,431 £500 £300 £93,720 £89,731

1. Benefits comprise the notional benefit of tax filing support provided to Non-Executive Directors for filings outside their home country resulting from their directorships
with Reed Elsevier. Theincrementalassessable benefit charge pertaxreturnhasbeenagreed by PwC for 2013 toamount to £500. Anthony Habgood's benefitsalsoinclude
£1,400(£1,389in2012)in respect of private medicalinsurance.

2. LisaHookbecame Seniorindependent Directoron 23 April2013 and received additional fees for this role from that date.

3. ThefeesforMarikevanLierLelsand BenvanderVeerwere paidineurosandwere €65,000and €110,000 respectively for 2013. For reporting purposes these were
convertedinto pounds sterling atthe average exchange rate for 2013. The 2012 figures were converted into pounds sterling at the average exchange rate for 2012.

4. Thetotalremuneration for Directorsis setoutin note 29 to the combined financial statements on pages 136 to 137.

2013 Non-Executive Directors’ fees
Thefeesinthe Single Total Figure table for Non-Executive
Directors reflect the following feesin 2013 (unchanged from 2012):

Annualfee2013
Chairman £550,000
Non-Executive Directors £65,000/€80,000
Senior Independent Director £20,000
Chairman of:
- Audit Committee £25,000/€30,000
- Remuneration Committee £20,000
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Total pension entitlements (audited) Pension - New UK Regulations

ErIkE_nQStro_m isamember of the UK Reed El_seVIerdEflr]Ed . Accruedannual pensionat31 Accruedannual pension Singlefigure
benefit pensionarrangements. Further details are provided in the December 2012 adjusted forinflation  at31December 2013 pensionvalue
Policy Report on page 79 and below. £184,940 £221,383 £719,053

Pension - Standard information . . . S
Pension - Consistent with prior disclosure

AgeatDecember Normal Director’s Participation . . : ; : :
2013 retirementage contributions fee Increaseinaccrued pension during Transfervalu§ at31.1.2.130f|ncreasem
theyear net of inflation) accrued pensionduring theyear (net of
50 60 £9,807 £2,340 inflation and Directors’ contributions)
£34,814 £530,417/£528,0772

. S 0
Since October 2_013‘ the CEO pays., aparticipation fee equa_l to 1% of 1. Thetransfervaluerepresentsaliabilityinrespect of Directors’ pension
the amount of his base salary which exceeds the UK earnings cap. entitlements, and is notan amount paid or payable to the Director.

On 1 April 2014, and each April thereafter, this fee willincrease by 2. Afterdeducting Erik Engstrom’s participation fee.

2% of base salary which exceeds the UK earnings cap.

Schemeinterests awarded during the financial year (audited)

Basis onwhich Facevalue  Valueofawardsif Percentageof maximum that End of
award is made ofawardat  vestinlinewith would be received if threshold performance
grant! expectations? performance achieved? period

BIP - matching share awards

Erik Engstrom Opportunity to £1,050,606  £703,906 If one measure pays outatthreshold, 31December
invest cashand/or the overall payoutis 25%. If both 2015
shares uptovalue measures pay out at threshold,
of target bonus the overall payoutis 50%.

opportunity and
receive 1for1
Duncan Palmer matching award £599,984* £04

LTIP - performance share awards

Erik Engstrom 250% of salary £2,626,557  £1,313,279 Ifthe measure with the lowest payout 31 December
DuncanPalmer ~ 200% of salary £1,199.998¢  £0¢ atthreshold pays outatthreshold, 2015
the overall payoutis 3%. If each
measure pays out at threshold,
the overall payoutis 32%.

ESOS - market value options

Erik Engstrom 250% of salary £2,626,557  £420,249 33% 31 December
DuncanPalmer  200%ofsalary £1199.998¢  £0¢ 2015

REGP - matching share awards

Erik Engstrom Inaccordance £7,546,000 £3,773,000 If the measure with the lowest payout 31 December
with the REGP atthreshold pays out at threshold, 2014
planrules® the overall payoutis 3%. If each

measure pays out at threshold,
the overall payoutis 50%.

1. Thefacevalueof the LTIPand ESOS awards s calculated using the middle market quotation of PLC ordinary shares (£7.345), the closing price of NV ordinary shares
(€12.530) and the exchange rate on the day before grant (8 May 2013). These share prices are used to determine the number of awards granted, as well as to set option
exercise prices. The face value of the ESOS options shown in this column has not been reduced to reflect the fact that the aggregate option price is payable on exercise. The
facevalue of the BIP awardsis calculated using the average price of participants’ investment shares purchased by the trustee, between 9 and 13 May 2013, the price for NV
ADRs (whichiis the security which the Executive Directors invested in) being $33.251. The face values for BIP, LTIP and REGP do not take into account the dividend
equivalentsrelating tothose awards. The face value of REGP matching share awards has been determined using the applicable middle market quotations, closing prices
and exchange rates on the date of grant (25 April 2013).

2. ForBIP,LTIPand ESOS, vestingin line with expectationsis as per the performance scenario charton page 83. Forthe REGP, itis as per the policy table on page 82.

3. Threshold payout levels for each measure have beenincluded. Where there are multiple measures, itis possible to achieve threshold, and hence payout, in respect of just
one of the measures (or, for TSR, in respect of one of the three TSR comparator groups). Asummary of the performance measures and targets forawards granted in 2013
undereach of the plansis setout on page 89.

4. Theseawards lapsedonthe date Duncan Palmer gave his notice of resignation.

5. Thenumberof shares comprisedin Erik Engstrom’s REGP matching award was determined inaccordance with the planrules and equals the number of deferred
performance sharesand personalshares held in the plan at the date of the matching award grant (25 April 2013).
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The following targets and vesting scales apply to awards granted
in2013:

BIP: 2013-15cycle
ROIC inthe third

Average growthinadjusted EPS yearof the
Match earned on personal overthethree-year performance
investment performance period* period*
0% below 4% p.a. below 11.2%
50% 4%p.a. 11.2%
75% 6.5%p.a. 11.7%
100% 9% p.a.or above 12.2% or above

*EPSand ROIC have equalweighting and straight-line vesting applies to
performance betweenthe points.

LTIP: 2013-15cycle

Vesting is dependent on three separate performance measures of
equalweighting:a TSR measure, an EPS measure and a ROIC
measure.”

Vesting percentage of each third of TSRrankingwithintherelevant TSR

the TSRtranche? comparator group

0% Below median
30% Median

100% Upper quartile

1. Thecalculation methodology for TSR, EPS and ROIC, and the components of the
TSR comparator groups, are setoutinthe 2013 Notices of Annual General
Meetings, which can be found onthe company’s website.

2. Vestingisonastraight-line basis for performance between the minimumand
maximum levels.

The three TSR comparator groups (Sterling, Euro and US Dollar)
reflect the factthat Reed Elsevier accesses equity capital markets
through three exchanges - London, Amsterdam and New York -
inthree currency zones. Reed Elsevier’s TSR performance is
measured separately against each comparator group and each
ranking achieved will produce a payout, if any, in respect of
one-third of the TSR measure. The proportion of the TSR measure
thatvests will be the sum of the three payouts.

Each comparator group comprises approximately 40 companies,
selected on the following basis for the 2013-15 LTIP cycle:

(a) theywere inarelevant marketindex or are the largest listed
companiesonthe relevant exchanges at the end of the year
before the start of the performance period: the FTSE 100 for
the Sterling group; AEX, NYSE Euronextand the Frankfurt
Stock Exchange for the Euro group; and the S&P 500 for the
US Dollar group;

(b) certain companies were then excluded:

those with mainly domestic revenues (as they do not reflect
the global nature of Reed Elsevier’s customer base);

those engaged in extractive industries (as they are exposed
to commodity cycles); and

financial services companies (as they have a different risk/
reward profile);

(c) the remaining companies were then ranked by market
capitalisation and, for each comparator group, the 20
companies above and below Reed Elsevier were taken;

(d) relevant listed global peers operating in businesses similar to
those of Reed Elsevier but not otherwise included were added.

89

ROICinthethird

Average growth in adjusted yearofthe
Vesting percentage of EPS EPSoverthethree-year performance
and ROIC tranches* performance period period
0% below 5% p.a. below 11.2%
33% 5% p.a. 11.2%
52.5% 6%p.a. 11.45%
65% 7% p.a. 1M.7%
75% 8% p.a. 11.95%
85% 9% p.a. 12.2%
92.5% 10% p.a. 12.45%
100% 11% p.a. or above 12.7% or above

*Vestingis onastraight-line basis for performance between the stated average
adjusted EPS growth/ROIC percentages.

ES0S: 2013-2015 cycle

Average growthin adjusted EPS overthe

Proportion of the award vesting three-year performance period*

0% below 4% p.a.
33% 4% p.a.
80% 6%p.a.
100% 8% p.a.orabove

*Vestingisonastraight-line basis for performance between the stated average
adjusted EPS growth percentages.

REGP: matching awards

Asdisclosed in previous reports, vesting is dependent on three
separate performance measures of equal weighting:a TSR
measure, an EPS measure and a ROIC measure.

Vesting percentage of each third of TSRrankingwithintherelevant TSR

the TSRtranche* comparator group
0% Below median

30% Median
100% Upper quartile

*Vestingisonastraight-line basis for performance between the minimumand
maximum levels.

ROICinthe second

Average growth in adjusted yearofthe
Vesting percentage of EPS EPSoverthetwo-year performance
and ROIC tranches* performance period* period*

0% below 7% p.a. below 10.7%
60% 7% p.a. 10.7%
100% 13% p.a. orabove 12.7% or above

*Vestingis onastraight-line basis for performance between the minimum and
maximum levels.

External appointments

The Committee believes that the experience gained by allowing
Executive Directorsto serve as Non-Executive Directors on the boards
of other organisations is of benefit to Reed Elsevier. Accordingly,
Executive Directors may, subject to the approval of the Chairman
and the CEQ (or the Chairman onlyin the case of the CEQ), serve as
Non-Executive Directors on the boards of up to two non-associated
companies (of which only one may be a major company) and they
may retain remuneration arising from such appointments.

Duncan Palmeris a Non-Executive Director of Oshkosh
Corporationand received fees of £63,141 for 2013.

Payments to past Directors and payments for loss of office
(audited)

There have been no payments to past Directors or payments for
loss of office in 2013.
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Statement of Directors’ shareholdings and other share
interests (audited)

Shareholding requirement

The Committee believes thata closeralignment of interests can
be created between senior managementand shareholders if
executives build and maintain a significant personal stake in Reed
Elsevier. The shareholding requirements applicable to the Executive
Directorsare set outin the table below. Shares that count for this
purpose are any type of Reed Elsevier security owned outright by
theindividual and their spouse, civil partner or dependent child.

Meeting the shareholding requirement is both a vesting condition
forawards granted and a requirement to maintain eligibility for
future awards. Shareholding requirements fall away on leaving
the company.

On 31 December 2013, the Executive Directors’ shareholdings
were as follows (valued using the middle market closing prices of

Share interests

Reed Elsevier PLC
ordinaryshares

1January 31December

Reed Elsevier NV
ordinary shares

1January 31December

2013 2013 2013 2013
Erik Engstrom 107,040 114,552 509,556 513,765
Anthony Habgood 50,000 50,000 25,000 25,000
Wolfhart Hauser* 750
Adrian Hennah 5,163 5163
LisaHook 4,800 4,800
Marikevan Lier Lels
Duncan Palmer 88 30,022
Robert Polet 1,000 1,000
Linda Sanford 3,600
BenvanderVeer 5,000 5,000

*WolfhartHauser was appointed on 25 April 2013.

There have beenno changesinthese shareinterests atthe date of this Report.

Reed Elsevier securities):

Shareholding
requirement (% of
31December2013
annual base salary)

Actualshareholdingas
at31December2013
(% of 31 December 2013

annualbase salary)

Erik Engstrom

Duncan Palmer*

300%
200%

734%
69%

*Duncan Palmerhad been givenuntil31 December 2015 to build up to his required
level of shareholding, which meant retaining net shares earned fromincentive
plansuntilhereachedthis level. On resignation, he forfeited his regularannual
multi-yearincentive awards and will not fulfilthe requirement, which will cease to

applyon leaving.

Erik Engstrom

Multi-year incentive interests (audited)

All outstanding unvested options and share awards in the tables
belowandon page 91 are subject to performance conditions,
except forthe deferred 50% of Erik Engstrom’s already
performance-tested 2010 REGP performance share award (see
page 82) and the RSP award granted to Duncan Palmer onjoining
Reed Elsevier (see page 83). For disclosure purposes, any PLC and
NV ADRs awarded underthe BIP or the REGP have been converted
into ordinary share equivalents. Between 31 December 2013 and
the date of this Report, there have been no changesin the options
or share awards held by Executive Directors.

No. of No. of No. of No. of
options options options Market options
heldon granted exercised price per heldon Unvested Options
Year of Type of 1Jan during Option during shareat 31Dec options exercisable
grant security 2013 2013 price 2013 exercise 2013 vestingon until
ESOS 2004  PLCord 63,460 £4.780 63,460 £7.531
NVord 43,866 €10.300 43,866 €12.810
2005 PLCord 154,517 £5.335 154,517 £8.774
NVord 105,412 €11.310 105,412 €15.277
2006  PLCord 178,895 £5.305 178,895 13May 16
NV ord 120,198 €11.470 120,198 13May 16
2011 PLC ord 139,146 £5.390 139,146 05May 14 05May 21
NVord 92,953 €8.969 92,953 05May 14 05May 21
2012 PLCord 198,836 £5.155 198,836 02May 15 02 May 22
NVord 139,742 €9.030 139,742 02May 15 02May 22
2013 PLCord 178,799 £7.345 178,799 09 May 16 09 May 23
NVord 124,337 €12.530 124,337 09 May 16 09 May 23
LTIP 2004  PLCord 325,163 £4.780 325,163 £7.531
NVord 224,766 €10.300 224,766 €12.810
Total PLC ords 1,060,017 178,799 543,140 695,676
TotalNVords 726,937 124,337 374,044 477,230
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No. of No. of No. of shares Market unvested/,\‘nool:f
unvested shares Market vested/  pricepershare  performance
shares awarded price performance atvesting/ testedshares End of
Year of Type of heldon during pershare testedduring performance heldon performance
grant security 1Jan2013 2013 ataward 2013 testing 31Dec2013 period Date of release
BIP 2010 NVord 140,378 €8.310 125,638 €13.100 Dec 2012 H12013
201" NVord 122,352 €8.969 122,352  Dec?2013 H12014
2012 NVord 136,950 €9.030 136,950  Dec2014 H12015
2013 NVord 96,830 €12.530 96,830  Dec2015 H12016
LTIP 2013 PLCord 178,799 £7.345 178,799  Dec2015 H12016
NVord 124,337 €12.530 124,337  Dec2015 H12016
REGP 2010 PLCord 643,086 £4.665 429,710? £7.774 Dec2012 50%H12013
50%H12015
NVord 422,310 €8.310 282,187? €13.100 Dec2012 50%H12013
50%H12015
2013 PLCord 321,895 £7.760 321,895  Dec2014 H12015
NVord 450,494 €13.150 450,494  Dec?2014 H12015
Total PLC ords 643,086 500,694 429,710 500,694
TotalNVords 821,990 671,661 407,825 930,963

1. Theperformanceoutcomeforthe BIP2011issetoutonpage87.
2. Thenumberofsharesshownrepresentsthe entireamountwhich was performance testedin H12013.50% of this has been deferred and is subject to releasein H12015.

Duncan Palmer

No. of No. of No. of No. of
options options options Market options
heldon granted exercised price per heldon Unvested Options
Year of Type of 1Jan during Option during shareat 31Dec options  exercisable
grant security 2013 2013 price 2013 exercise 2013 vestingon until
ESOS 2012  PLCord 67,331 £6.015 lapsed
NV ord 48,018 €10.560 lapsed
2013  PLCord 81,688 £7.345 lapsed
NV ord 56,806 €12.530 lapsed
Total PLC ords 67,331 81,688
TotalNVords 48,018 56,806
No. of
No. of No. of shares Marketprice  unvested/non-
unvested No. of vested/ pershareat performance
shares shares Marketprice  performance vesting/  testedshares End of
Year of Type of heldon awarded pershareat testedduring performance heldon performance Date of
grant security 1Jan2013 during 2013 award 2013 testing 31Dec2013 period release
BIP 2013 NV ord 55,298 €12.530 lapsed
PSP 2012  PLCord 179,551 £6.015 lapsed
LTIP 2013 PLCord 81,688 £7.345 lapsed
NV ord 56,806 €12.530 lapsed
RSP* 2012  PLCord 249,376 £6.015 72,042 Termination
NV ord 51,378 date
Total PLC ords 428,927 81,688 72,042
TotalNVords 112,104 51,378

*Duncan Palmer's RSP award has been subject to time pro-rating following his resignation. The number of unvested shares held on 31 December 2013 is the number that will
vestontermination. Inaccordance withthe terms of the award, half of it is being settled with Reed Elsevier NVordinary shares.
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Performance graphs and CEO historic pay table

The graphs below show total shareholder returns for Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV, calculated on the basis of the average
share priceinthe 30 trading days before the respective year end and assuming dividends were reinvested. Reed Elsevier PLC’s
performance is compared with the FTSE 100 and Reed Elsevier NV with the AEX Index (to reflect their respective memberships of those
indices), over the five years from 31 December 2008 to 31 December 2013. Charts showing performance over a four-year period are
included to reflectthe current CEO’s tenure and the launch of the one-off REGP in 2010. The three-year charts cover the performance
period of the 2011-2013 cycles of BIP and ESOS.
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The table below shows the historic CEO pay over a six-year period. 2008 has been included to show the pre-2009 position, as 2009 was a

transition year with three CEO incumbents.

£:000 2008 2009+ : 2010 2011 2012 2013

CEO SirCrispin SirCrispin lan Erik Erik Erik Erik Erik
Davis : Davis Smith  Engstrom : Engstrom  Engstrom  Engstrom Engstrom

Annualised base salary 1,181 1,181 900 1,000 1,000 1,025 1,051 1,077

Annualincentive payout as 61% 30% 37% 71% 67% 66% 73% 70%

a % of maximum : :

Multi-year incentive vesting 100% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 70%5 96%*

asa % of maximum : :

CEO total (New UK basis]' 7193 706 1,033 426 3,140 2,738 11,145¢ 5,425

CEO total [Dutch Civil Code 6,631 (514) 1,033 431 2,675 5,045 5,443 6,067

basis)? : :

CEO total (Consistent with 7,673 693 1,033 378 2,737 2,535 8,011¢ 4,068

priordisclosure)?

oL =

New UKbasis: Thisis described infootnote 1 to the Single Total Figure table on page 86.

Dutch CivilCode basis: Thisis described in footnote 2 to the Single Total Figure table on page 86.

Consistentwith prior disclosure: Thisis describedin footnote 3 to the Single Total Figure table on page 86.

SirCrispin Daviswas CEO from 1 January to 31 March, lan Smithwas CEO from 1 Aprilto 10 Novemberand Erik Engstromwas CEO from 11 Novemberto 31 December.

The 2012 percentage reflects BIPand REGP and the 2013 percentage reflects BIPand ESOS.

The 2012 figure for Erik Engstrom reflects the vesting of tranche 1 of the REGP and the 2010 BIP, both measured overthe 2010-12 period. The REGP figure reflects the entire

amount thatwas performance tested overthe 2010-12 period, including the 50% of shares deferred until 2015 in accordance with the planrules.

Comparison of change in CEO pay with change inemployee pay
The table below shows the percentage change in remuneration
(salary, benefits and annualincentive) from 2012 to 2013 for the
CEO comparedwith the average employee.

% change from 2012t0 2013

CEO Average employee*
Salary 2.5% 2.5%
Benefits -1.5% 2.5%
Annualincentive -1.4% 2.5%

*This reflects asubstantial proportion of our globalemployee population.

Relative importance of spend on pay

The following table sets out the total employee costs forall
employees, aswellas the amounts paid in dividends and
share repurchases.

2013(Em)  2012(Em)  %change
Employee costs* 1,775 1,845 -46%
Dividends 549 521 5%
Sharerepurchases 600 250 140%

*Employee costsincludewages and salaries, social security costs, pensions and
share-basedandrelated remuneration.

Implementation of remuneration policyin 2014

Salary: The Committee has awarded a salaryincrease of 2.5% to
Erik Engstrom, which means that, from 1 January 2014, his salary
rose to£1,103,813. This is within the guidelines agreed for
employeesin Reed Elsevier's most significant locations globally
for 2014. There was noincrease to Duncan Palmer’s salary.

AIP: The operation of the AIP in 2014 remains the same asin 2013,
with the exception of the introduction of claw-back provisions.
Annualfinancialtargetsand KPOs are not disclosed as the Board
believes thatthese are commercially sensitive and that disclosing
them would give competitors an unfairinsightinto our strategic
directionand annual execution plans. The targets are designed to
be challenging relative to the 2014 execution plan.

Multi-year incentives: The award levels (% of salary) for 2014 are:

CEO CFO
BIP opportunity 100% 100%
LTIP 250% 200%
ESOS 250% 200%

Thetargets andvesting scales for the multi-yearincentive awards
grantedin 2014 are asfollows:

BIP:2014-16 cycle
ROICinthe third

Average growthin adjusted yearofthe
Match earned on personal EPSoverthethree-year performance
investment performance period* period*
0% below 4% p.a. below 11.6%
50% 4% p.a. 11.6%
75% 6.5%p.a. 12.1%
100% 9% p.a.orabove 12.6% or above

*EPSandROIC have equalweighting and straight-line vesting applies to
performance betweenthe points.

LTIP: 2014-16 cycle
Vesting is dependent on three separate performance measures

of equalweighting:a TSR measure, an EPS measureand a
ROIC measure.!

Vesting percentage of each third TSR rankingwithinthe relevant

ofthe TSR tranche? TSR comparator group
0% Below median
30% Median
100% Upper quartile

1. Thecalculation methodology for TSR, EPSand ROICis set outinthe 2013 Notices
of Annual General Meetings, which can be found on the company’s website. The
methodology for selecting the TSR comparator group companiesis unchanged
from 2013 (see page 89).

2. Vestingisonastraight-line basis for performance between the minimum and
maximum levels.
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ROICinthethird

Average growthin adjusted yearofthe
Vesting percentage of EPS EPSoverthethree-year performance
and ROIC tranches* performance period period
0% below 5% p.a. below 11.6%
33% 5% p.a. 11.6%
52.5% 6%p.a. 11.85%
65% 7% p.a. 12.1%
75% 8% p.a. 12.35%
85% 9% p.a. 12.6%
92.5% 10%p.a. 12.85%
100% 11% p.a. or above 13.1% or above

*Vestingisonastraight-line basis for performance between the stated average
adjusted EPS growth/ROIC percentages.

ESOS: 2014-2016 cycle

Average growthinadjusted EPS overthe

Proportion of the award vesting three-year performance period*

0% below 4% p.a.
33% 4% p.a.
80% 6%p.a.
100% 8% p.a.orabove

*Vestingisonastraight-line basis for performance between the stated average
adjusted EPS growth percentages.

Non-Executive Directors’fees: Changes to Non-Executive Director
fee levels, from 1 January 2014, are as follows:

Feesforthe SeniorIndependent Director and the
Remuneration Committee Chairmanwill be increased from
£20,000to0 £25,000; and
The following Committee membership fees apply:
Audit Committee member £12,500 perannum
Remuneration Committee member  £12,500 perannum
Nominations Committee member £7,500/€9,000 per
annum.

Shareholder Vote at 2013 Annual General Meetings

Remuneration Committee advice

The Committee consists of independent Non-Executive Directors
and the Chairman of Reed Elsevier Group plc. Details of members
and their attendance are contained in the section, “Structure and
corporate governance”, on page 73. The Chief Legal Officer and
Company Secretary attends meetings as secretary to the
Committee. Atthe invitation of the Chairman of the Committee,
the CEO of Reed Elsevier Group plc attends appropriate parts of
the meetings. The CEO of Reed Elsevier Group plcis notin
attendance during discussions about his remuneration.

The Human Resources Director advised the Committee during
theyear.

Towers Watson is the external adviser, appointed by the
Committee through a competitive process. Towers Watson also
provided actuarialand other human resources consultancy
services tosome Reed Elsevier companies during the year. The
Committee is satisfied that the firm’'s advice continues to be
objective and independent, and that no conflict of interest exists.
Theindividual consultants who work with the Committee do not
provide advice to the Executive Directors, oract on their behalf.
Towers Watson isamember of the Remuneration Consultants’
Group and conductsitswork in line with the UK Code of Conduct
for executive remuneration consulting. During 2013, Towers
Watsonreceived fees of £58,172 for advice given to the Committee,
chargedonatime and expense basis.

Atthe Annual General Meeting of Reed Elsevier NV, on 24 April 2013, votes cast by proxy and at the meeting in respect of the Directors’

remunerationwere as follows:

Resolution Votes For % For Votes Against %Against  Totalvotescast  VotesWithheld
Amendment to remuneration 458,169,301 97.49% 11,809,279 2.51% 469,978,580 2,019,615
policy (approval)

New LTIP 2013 (approval) 458,632,132 97.42% 12,147,289 2.58% 470,779,421 1,218,774
Renewal of ESOS 2013 (approval) 437,897,046 93.02% 32,880,775 6.98% 470,777,821 1,220,374

Atthe Annual General Meeting of Reed Elsevier PLC, on 25 April 2013, votes cast by proxy and at the meeting in respect of the Directors’

remuneration were as follows:

Resolution Votes For % For Votes Against % Against Totalvotes cast Votes Withheld
Remuneration Report (advisory) 756,447,901 84.99% 133,639,746 15.01% 890,087,647 32,006,721
New LTIP 2013 (approval) 816,986,538 91.78% 73127112 8.22% 890,113,650 31,981,467
Renewal of ESOS 2013 (approval) 826,736,423 89.84% 93,459,084 10.16% 920,195,507 1,899,610

Wolfhart Hauser
Chairman, Remuneration Committee
26 February 2014
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Report of the Audit Committees

Thisreport has been prepared by the Audit Committees of
Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NVin conjunction with the
Audit Committee of Reed Elsevier Group plc (the Committees)
and has been approved by the respective Boards. It provides an
overview of the membership, responsibilities and activities of
the Committees. The functions of an audit committee in respect
of the financing activities are carried out by the Supervisory
Board of Elsevier Reed Finance BV. The Reed Elsevier PLC and
Reed Elsevier NV Audit Committees fulfil their roles from the
perspective of the parent companies and both Committees
have accessto the reportstoand the work of the Reed Elsevier
Group plc Audit Committee and the Elsevier Reed Finance BV
Supervisory Board in thisrespect.

Membership

The Committees comprise at least three independent
Non-Executive Directors. The members of each of the
Committees that served during theyearare: Benvan derVeer
(Chairman of the Committees), Sir David Reid (until April 2013),
Adrian Hennah and Linda Sanford. Adrian Hennah, a UK chartered
accountant,and BenvanderVeer, aregistered accountantin the
Netherlands, are considered to have significant, recentand
relevant financial experience.

Responsibilities

The mainrole and responsibilities of the Committees are to assist
the respective Boards in fulfilling their oversight responsibilities
regarding:

theintegrity of Reed Elsevier’s interim and financial
statementsand reporting process;

risk managementand internal controls, and the effectiveness
of theinternal auditors; and

the effectiveness, performance and qualifications of the
externalauditors, including monitoring theirindependence
and objectivity.

The Committees report to the respective Boards on their
activities, identifying any mattersin respect of which they consider
thataction orimprovementis needed and making
recommendations as to the steps to be taken.

The terms of reference of each Audit Committee are reviewed
annuallyand a copy of eachis published on the Reed Elsevier
website, www.reedelsevier.com.

Committee meetings

The Committees met five times during 2013. The Audit Committee
meetings are typically attended by the Chief Executive Officer, the
Chief Financial Officer, the Reed Elsevier Group plc group financial
controller, the Reed Elsevier Group plc chief legal officer and
director of internal audit, and audit partners from the external
auditors. Additionally, in 2013, senior representatives of the
externalauditors of Elsevier Reed Finance BV attended the July
and February meetings of the parent company Audit Committees.

Financialreporting
Indischarging their responsibilities in respect of the 2013 interim
and financial statements, the Committees have:

reviewed and discussed areas of significantjudgementin the
preparation of the financial statements, including in particular:

i. thecarryingvaluesof goodwilland intangible assets - the
judgementsinrespect of asset carrying values relate to the
assumptions underlying the value in use calculations
including discount rates and long-term growth
assumptions. The Committees received and discussed a
reportfrom the Reed Elsevier Group plc group financial
controller onthe methodology and the basis of the
assumptions used.

ii. capitalisation of internally generated intangible assets - the
capitalisation of costs related to the development of new
products and businessinfrastructure, together with the
useful economic lives applied to the resulting assets,
requiresthe exercise of judgement. The Committees
received reports from the Reed Elsevier Group plc financial
controller onthe amounts capitalised and asset lives
selected for major projects.

uncertain tax positions - assessing potential liabilities
across numerous jurisdictionsis complex and requires
judgementin making tax determinations. The Committees
received and discussed reports from the Reed Elsevier
Group plc head of group taxation on the potential liabilities
identified and estimates applied.

The Committees alsoreceived detailed written and verbal
reports from the external auditors on these matters. The
Committees were satisfied with the explanations provided and
conclusions reached.

reviewed the critical accounting policies and compliance with
applicable accounting standards and other disclosure
requirements and received regular update reportson
accountingand regulatory developments.

considered whetherthe annualreporttakenasawhole was
fair,balanced and understandable.

Risk managementand internal controls
With respect to their oversight of risk management and internal
controls, the Committees have:

received and discussed regular reports summarising the
status of Reed Elsevier risk management activities and the
findings frominternal audit reviews and the actions agreed
with management. Areas of focus in 2013 included:
management of investment programmes; regulatory
compliance and review of information security including the
management of data privacy; business continuity planning; and
continued compliance with the requirements of Section 404 of
the US Sarbanes-Oxley Act relating to the documentation and
testing of internal controls over financial reporting.

reviewed and approved the internal audit plan for 2013 and
monitored execution, including progressin respect of
recommendations made.

reviewed the resources, terms of reference and effectiveness
of the Reed Elsevier Group plc risk managementand internal
audit functions.
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received presentations from: the Reed Elsevier Group plc chief
compliance officer on the compliance programmes, including
the operation of Reed Elsevier’s codes of conduct, training
programmes and whistleblowing arrangements; the Reed
ElsevierInc.general counsel onthe management of data
privacy, security and compliance; the Reed Elsevier Group plc
IT security officer oninformation technology security; and

the Reed Elsevier Group plc chief legal officer on legalissues
and claims.

received updates from the Reed Elsevier Group plc group
treasureronpensionarrangements and funding, treasury
policies and risk management, compliance with treasury
policies, and globalinsurance arrangements.

received presentations from the Reed Elsevier Group plc head
of group taxation ontax policies and related matters.

received regular updates from the Chief Financial Officer on
developments within the finance function.

received presentations on a rotational basis from the chief
financial officers of major businesses on the priorities for the
finance functions and the risk managementandinternal
controlactivities.

External audit effectiveness

Reed Elsevier has awell-established policy on audit effectiveness
and independence of auditors that sets out inter alia: the
responsibilities of each Audit Committee in the selection of
auditors to be proposed for appointment or re-appointmentand
foragreement onthe terms of their engagement, scope and
remuneration; the auditorindependence requirements and the
policy onthe provision of non-audit services; the rotation of audit
partners and staff; and the conduct of meetings between the
auditors and the Audit Committees. The policy is available on the
Reed Elsevier website, www.reedelsevier.com.

The auditors are precluded from engaging in non-audit

services that would compromise theirindependence orviolate
any professional requirements or regulations affecting their
appointment as auditors. The auditors may, however, provide
non-audit services which do not conflict with theirindependence,
and where their skills and experience make them a logical
supplier, subject to pre-approval by the Audit Committees. The
Committees have, each quarter, reviewed and agreed the
non-audit services providedin 2013, together with the associated
feeswhichare setoutin note 3 to the combined financial
statements. The non-audit services provided were in the areas of
audit-related activities such as royalty assurance, tax advice and

compliance, due diligence and other transaction-related services.

Non-audit services performed inthe Netherlands are limited to
audit-related activities.

The external auditors have confirmed theirindependence and
compliance with the Reed Elsevier policy on auditorindependence
to the Audit Committees.

Deloitte LLP and Deloitte Accountants BV or their predecessor
firms were first appointed auditors of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed
Elsevier NVrespectively for the financial year ended 31 December
1994. The auditors are required to rotate the lead audit partners
responsible for the audit engagements every five years. The lead
engagement partner for Reed Elsevier PLC has now completed his
fifthyearandis required to rotate off the audit. The lead engagement
partner for Reed Elsevier NV has completed fouryears.

The Committees conducted theirannual review of the
performance of the external auditors and the effectiveness of
the external audit process for the year ended 31 December 2013.
The reviewwas based on a survey of key stakeholders across
Reed Elsevier, consideration of public reports by regulatory
authorities on key Deloitte member firms and the quality of the
auditors’ reporting toand interaction with the Audit Committees.
Based on this review, the Audit Committees were satisfied with
the performance of the auditors and the effectiveness of the
audit process.

Anydecision to open the audit to tenderis taken only on the
recommendation of the Audit Committees. The Committees have
monitored regulatory developmentsinthe UKand the Netherlands
regarding length of audit tenure, tendering and audit firm rotation.
Inlight of the transition of the Reed Elsevier Chief Financial Officer
and the continued objectivity, independence and effectiveness of
Deloitte LLP and Deloitte Accountants BV, the Audit Committees
have concluded thatit will neither be appropriate nor necessary to
change auditors or hold atender during 2014.

The Committees have, therefore, recommended to the respective
Boards that resolutions for the re-appointment of the external
auditors be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meetings.

Anaudittenderwill, however, be undertaken in due coursein
line with the transitionalarrangements applicable in the UK
and the Netherlands; the timing of this will be discussed by

the Committees during 2014. Under current legislationin the
Netherlands, Deloitte would not be eligible to participate in any
suchtender.

The effectiveness of the operation of the Audit Committees was
reviewed as part of the effectiveness review of the Boards in
February2014.

BenvanderVeer
Chairman of the Audit Committees
26 February 2014
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COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Combined income statement

Restated
2013 2012
Note £m £m
Revenue 1 6,035 6,116
Costof sales (2,118) (2,139)
Grossprofit 3,917 3977
Selling and distribution costs (1,005) (1,015)
Administration and other expenses (1,565) (1,653)
Operating profit beforejointveh'tmu“r:é”s' """""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""" 1,347 1309
Share of results of joint ventures 29 24
Operatingprofit ey 1,376 1333
Financeincome 10 16
Finance costs 7 (208) (243)
Netfinancecosts (196) (227)
Disposals and othernon operat‘iﬂh‘;c‘jui'fé‘r'ﬁé """""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""" 8 16 45
Profitbeforetax 1,196 1151 "
Current tax (352) (153)
Deferred tax 271 51
Taxexpense 9 (81) (102)
Netprofitfortheyear 1,115 1049
Attributable to:
Parentcompanies’ shareholders 1,110 1,044
Non-controlling interests 5 5
Netprofitfortheyear 1,115 1049
Combined statement of comprehensive income
Restated
2013 2012
Note £m £m
Net profit for theyear 1,115 1,049
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit pension schemes 5 40 (293)
Taxonitems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 9 (24) 96
Totalitems that will not be reclasslfledtoproflt orless 16 (197]
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences ontranslation of foreign operations (88) (136)
Transferto net profit on disposal of available for sale investments - "
Fairvalue movements on cash flow hedges 65 70
Transfer to net profit from cash flow hedge reserve (net of tax) 18 (2) 21
Tax onitems that may be reclassified to profit or loss 9 (15) (19)
Totalitems that may be reclassﬁi‘fi‘ékt‘i"fa‘ﬁrﬁfi‘tﬂaf tess (40) (53)
Other comprehensive loss for theyear """""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""" (24) (250]
Total comprehensiveincome fortheyear """"""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""" 1,091 799
Attributable to:
Parentcompanies’ shareholders 1,086 794
Non-controlling interests 5 5
Totalcomprehensiveincome fortheyear """"""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""" 1,091 799
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2013 2012
Note £m £m

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 11 1,943 1,847
Interest paid (200) (231)
Interest received 5 7
Tax paid (net) (362) (216)
Net cash from operating activities 1,386 1,407
Cash flows frominvesting activities
Acquisitions 11 (221) (316)
Purchases of property, plantand equipment (57) (70)
Expenditure oninternally developed intangible assets (251) (263)
Purchase of investments (10) (7)
Proceeds from disposals of property, plantand equipment 6 7
Gross proceeds from business disposals 31 235
Payments on business disposals (116) (82)
Dividends received from joint ventures 22 20
Net cashusedininvesting activities (316) (476)
Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid to shareholders of the parent companies (549) (521)
Distributions to non-controlling interests (6) (4)
Increase/(decrease) in shortterm bank loans, overdrafts and commercial paper 169 (434)
Issuance of term debt 184 592
Repayment of term debt (915) (437)
Repayment of finance leases (10) (4)
Disposal of non-controlling interests - 7
Repurchase of ordinary shares (600) (250)
Proceeds onissue of ordinary shares 125 48
Net cashusedin financing activities (1,602) (1,003)
Decreasein cashand cash equivalents 1" (532) (72)
Movement in cash and cash equivalents
At startof year 641 726
Decreasein cash and cash equivalents (532) (72)
Exchangetranslationdifferences 23 (18]
Atend of year 132 641
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Combined statement of financial position

2013 2012
Note £m £m
Non-currentassets
Goodwill 14 4,576 4,545
Intangible assets 15 3,124 3,275
Investmentsinjointventures 16 125 100
Otherinvestments 16 92 79
Property, plantand equipment 17 237 264
Deferredtaxassets 19 442 79
Derivative financialinstruments b4 138
"""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""" 8,660 8480
Currentassets o
Inventories and pre-publication costs 20 142 159
Trade and otherreceivables 21 1,416 1,380
Derivative financialinstruments 124 57
Cashand cash equivalents " 132 641
"""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""" 1,814 2237
Assetsheldforsale 2 21 297
Totalassets S 10,495 1 1014
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 23 2,595 2,544
Derivative financialinstruments A 1"
Borrowings 24 648 730
Taxation 588 603
Provisions 26 17 30
3,852 3,918
Non-current liabilities
Derivative financialinstruments 13 -
Borrowings 24 2,633 3,162
Deferred tax liabilities 19 1,076 919
Net pension obligations 5 379 466
Provisions 26 116 139
4,217 4,686
Liabilities associated with assets held forsale 2 3 7S
Totalliabilites 8072 8700
Netassets 2,423 2314
Capitalandreserves
Combined share capitals 27 224 223
Combined share premiums 27 2,887 2,727
Combined shares held intreasury 27 (1,464) (899)
Translation reserve (137) (23)
Other combined reserves 28 880 252
Combined shareholders’ equity 2,390 2,280
Non-controlling interests 33 34
Total equity 2,423 2,314
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Combined Combined Combined Other Combined Non-
share share sharesheld Translation combined shareholders” controlling Total
capitals premiums intreasury reserve reserves equity interests equity
Note £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Balanceat 1 January 2012 223 2,723 (663) 88 (199) 2,172 25 2,197
Total comprehensive income
fortheyear - - - (136) 930 794 5 799
Dividends paid 13 - - - - (521) (521) (4) (525)
Issue of ordinary shares, net of
expenses 1 47 - - - 48 - 48
Repurchase of ordinary shares - - (250) - - (250) - (250)
Increasein share based
remuneration reserve - - - - 31 31 - 31
Settlement of share awards - - 7 - (7) -
Acquisitions - - - - - -
Disposal of non-controlling
interests - - - - 6 6 1 7
Exchange differences on
translation of capitaland
reserves (1) (43) 7 25 12 - (2) (2)
Balanceat 1 January 2013 223 2,727 (899) (23) 252 2,280 34 2,314
Total comprehensive income
fortheyear - - - (88) 1,174 1,086 5 1,091
Dividends paid 13 - - - - (549) (549) (6) (555)
Issue of ordinary shares, net of
expenses 1 124 - - - 125 - 125
Repurchase of ordinary shares - - (600) - - (600) - (600)
Increase in share based
remuneration reserve
(netoftax) - - - - 48 48 - 48
Settlement of share awards - - 40 - (40) - - -
Exchange differences on
translation of capital and
reserves - 36 (5) (26) (5) - - -
Balance at 31 December 2013 224 2,887 (1,464) (137) 880 2,390 33 2,423
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Accounting policies

The Reed Elsevier combined financial statements are preparedin
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) as adopted by the European Union and asissued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB). The combined
financial statements are prepared onagoing concern basis,
asexplained on page 76.

The Reed Elsevieraccounting policies under IFRS are set
out below.

Basis of preparation

The equalisation agreement between Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed
Elsevier NV hasthe effect that their shareholders can be regarded
as having the interests of a single economic group. The Reed
Elsevier combined financial statements (“the combined financial
statements”) represent the combined interests of both sets of
shareholders and encompass the businesses of Reed Elsevier
Group plcand Elsevier Reed Finance BV and their respective
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, together with the two
parent companies, Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV (“the
combined businesses”).

In preparing the combined financial statements, subsidiaries of
Reed Elsevier Group plc and Elsevier Reed Finance BV are
accounted forunder the acquisition method and investmentsin
associates and jointventures are accounted for under the equity
method. Alltransactions and balances between the combined
businesses are eliminated.

Onacquisition of a subsidiary, orinterestin anassociate or joint
venture, fairvalues, reflecting conditions at the date of acquisition,
are attributed to the netassets, including identifiable intangible
assetsacquired. Thisincludes those adjustments made to bring
accounting policies into line with those of the combined
businesses. The results of subsidiaries sold oracquired are
included in the combined financial statements up to or from the
date that control passes from or to the combined businesses.

Non-controlling interests in the net assets of the combined
businesses are identified separately from combined
shareholders’ equity. Non-controlling interests consist of the
amount of those interests at the date of the original acquisition
and the non-controlling share of changes in equity since the
date of acquisition.

These financial statements form part of the statutory information
tobe provided by Reed Elsevier NV, butare not for a legal entity
anddo notinclude all the information required to be disclosed by a
companyinits financial statements under the UK Companies Act
2006 orthe Dutch Civil Code. Additionalinformationis givenin the
Annual Reports and Financial Statements of the parent
companies set out on pages 155to 199. Alist of principal
businessesis setouton page 211.

Foreign exchange translation

The combined financial statements are presented in pounds
sterling. Additionalinformation providing a translation into euros
of the primary Reed Elsevier combined financial statements and
selected notesis presented on pages 142 to 154.

Transactionsinforeign currencies are recorded at the rate of
exchange prevailing on the date of the transaction. At each
statement of financial position date, monetary assets and
liabilities that are denominated in foreign currencies are

retranslated at the rate prevailing on the statement of financial
position date. Exchange differences arising are recorded in the
income statement other than where hedge accounting applies as
setoutbelow.

Assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated at
exchange rates prevailing on the statement of financial position
date.Income and expense items and cash flows of foreign
operations are translated at the average exchange rate for the
period. Significantindividualitems of income and expense and
cash flowsinforeign operations are translated at the rate
prevailing on the date of transaction. Exchange differences arising
are classified as equity and transferred to the translation reserve.
When foreign operations are disposed of, the related cumulative
translation differences are recognised within the income
statementin the period.

Reed Elsevier uses derivative financialinstruments, primarily
forward contracts, to hedge its exposure to certain foreign
exchange risks. Details of Reed Elsevier's accounting policiesin
respect of derivative financial instruments are set out below.

Revenue

Revenue represents the invoiced value of sales less anticipated
returns ontransactions completed by performance, excluding
customer sales taxes.

Revenuesare recognised for the various categories of turnover
as follows: subscriptions - on periodic despatch of subscribed
product or rateably over the period of the subscription where
performance is not measurable by despatch; transactional -
ondespatch oroccurrence of the transaction and advertising -
on publication or over the period of online display.

Where sales consist of two or more independent components
whose value canbe reliably measured, revenue is recognised on
each componentasitis completed by performance, based on
attribution of relative value.

Employee benefits

The expense of defined benefit pension schemes and other
post-retirement employee benefitsis determined using the
projected unit credit method and charged in the income statement
asanoperating expense, based on actuarial assumptions
reflecting market conditions at the beginning of the financial year.
Actuarial gainsand losses are recognised in fullin the statement
of comprehensive income in the period in which they occur.

Pastservice costs are recognised immediately at the earlier of
when planamendments or curtailments occurand when related
restructuring costs or termination benefits are recognised.
Settlements are recognised when they occur.

Net pension obligations inrespect of defined benefit schemesare
includedin the statement of financial position at the presentvalue
of scheme liabilities, less the fair value of scheme assets. Where
schemesareinsurplus, i.e. assets exceed liabilities, the net
pension assets are separatelyincluded in the statement of
financial position. Any net pension asset is limited to the extent that
the assetisrecoverable through reductionsin future contributions.

The expense of defined contribution pension schemes and other
employee benefitsis chargedinthe income statementasincurred.



Reed Elsevier AnnualReportsandFinancial Statements 2013

Share based remuneration

The fairvalue of share based remuneration is determined at the
date of grantand recognised as an expense inthe income
statement on a straight line basis over the vesting period, taking
account of the estimated number of shares that are expected to
vest. Market based performance criteria are taken into account
when determining the fairvalue at the date of grant. Non-market
based performance criteria are taken into account when
estimating the number of shares expected to vest. The fair value of
share based remuneration is determined by use of a binomial or
Monte Carlo simulation model as appropriate. All Reed Elsevier’s
share based remuneration is equity settled.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs thatare directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset that takes a substantial
period of time to bring to use are capitalised. All otherinterest
onborrowingsis expensed asincurred. The cost of issuing
borrowingsis generally expensed over the period of borrowing
soas to produce a constant periodic rate of charge.

Taxation

Tax expense comprises currentand deferred tax. Currentand
deferred tax are charged or credited in the income statement
excepttothe extent thatthe tax arises fromatransaction or event
whichis recognised, inthe same or a different period, outside profit
or loss [eitherin other comprehensive income, directly in equity, or
through a business combination) in which case the tax appearsin
the same statement as the transaction that gaverise toit.

Currenttaxisthe amount of corporate income taxes payable or
recoverable based on the profit for the period as adjusted foritems
thatare not taxable or notdeductible, and is calculated using tax
rates and laws that were enacted or substantively enacted at the
date of the statement of financial position. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect
to situationsin which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. Provisions are established where appropriate on
the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferredtaxisrecognised ontemporary differences arising
betweenthe tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amountsin the statement of financial position. Deferred tax is
calculated using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period, and which
are expected toapplywhenthe related deferred taxassetis
realised or the deferred tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporarydifferences but not recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, associates and
jointventures where the reversal of the temporary difference can
be controlled anditis probable that the difference will not reverse
inthe foreseeable future. Deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised on temporary differences thatarise from goodwill
whichis notdeductible for tax purposes.

Deferred taxassets are recognised to the extentitis probable that
taxable profits will be available against which the deductible
temporarydifferences can be utilised, and reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent thatitis no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all
or partofthe asset to be recovered.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised in respect of
temporarydifferences thatarise oninitial recognition of assets
and liabilities acquired other thanin a business combination.
Deferredtaxis notdiscounted.

Goodwill

Onthe acquisition of a subsidiary or business, the purchase
considerationis allocated between the nettangible and intangible
assetsonafairvalue basis, with any excess purchase
consideration representing goodwill. Goodwill arising on
acquisitions also includes amounts corresponding to deferred tax
liabilities recognisedin respect of acquired intangible assets.

Goodwillisrecognised as an assetand reviewed forimpairment
when thereis anindicatorthatthe asset may be impaired and at
leastannually. Any impairmentis recognised immediately in the
income statementand not subsequently reversed.

Ondisposal of asubsidiary or business, the attributable amount
of goodwillisincluded in the determination of the profit or loss
ondisposal.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired as part of a business combinationare
stated in the statement of financial position at their fair value as at
the date of acquisition, less accumulated amortisation. Internally
generated intangible assets are stated in the statement of
financial position at the directly attributable cost of creation of the
asset, lessaccumulated amortisation.

Intangible assets acquired as part of business combinations
comprise: market related assets (e.g. trademarks, imprints,
brands); customerrelated assets (e.g. subscription bases,
customer lists, customer relationships); editorial content;
software and systems (e.g. application infrastructure, product
delivery platforms, in process research and development];
contract based assets (e.g. publishing rights, exhibition rights,
supply contracts); and otherintangible assets. Internally
generated intangible assets typically comprise software and
systems development where anidentifiable assetis created thatis
probable to generate future economic benefits.

Intangible assets, other than brands and imprints determined to
have indefinite lives, are amortised on a straight line basis over
their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful lives of
intangible assets with finite lives are as follows: market and
customer related assets - 3to 40 years; content, software and
otheracquiredintangible assets - 3to 20 years; and internally
developedintangible assets -3 to 10years. Brands and imprints
determined to have indefinite lives are notamortised and are
subject toimpairment review at least annually.

Property, plantand equipment

Property, plantand equipment are stated in the statement of
financial position at cost less accumulated depreciation. No
depreciationis provided on freehold land. Freehold buildings and
long leases are depreciated over their estimated useful livesuptoa
maximum of 50 years. Short leases are written off over the duration
of the lease. Depreciationis provided on other assets onastraight
line basis over their estimated useful lives as follows: leasehold
improvements - shorter of life of lease and 10 years; plant - 3to 20
years; office furniture, fixtures and fittings - 5to 10 years; computer
systems, communication networks and equipment -3 to 7 years.
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Accounting policies

Investments

Investments, other than investmentsin jointarrangements and
associates, are stated in the statement of financial position at fair
value. Investments held as part of the venture capital portfolio are
classified as held for trading, with changes in fair value reportedin
disposals and othernon operatingitemsin the income statement.
All otherinvestments are classified as available for sale with
changesin fairvalue recognised directly in equity until the
investmentis disposed of oris determined to be impaired, at which
time the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity is
broughtinto the net profit or loss for the period. Allitems
recognised inthe income statement relating to investments, other
thaninvestmentsinjointarrangements and associates, are
reported as disposals and other non operating items.

Available for sale investments and venture capitalinvestments
held fortrading representinvestmentsin listed and unlisted
securities. The fairvalue of listed securities is determined based
on quoted market prices, and of unlisted securities on
management’s estimate of fair value based on standard valuation
techniques, including market comparisons and discounts of future
cashflows, having regard to maximising the use of observable
inputs and adjusting for risk. Advice from valuation expertsis used
asappropriate.

Alljointarrangements are classified as joint ventures because
Reed Elsevier shares joint controland has rights to the net assets
of the arrangements. Investmentsin joint ventures and associates
are accounted for under the equity method and stated in the
statement of financial position at cost as adjusted for post-
acquisition changesin Reed Elsevier’s share of net assets, less
anyimpairmentinvalue.

Impairment

At each statement of financial position date, the carryingamounts
oftangible and intangible assets and goodwill are reviewed to
determine whetherthereisanyindication that those assets have
suffered animpairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount, whichis the higher of value in use and fair
value less coststosell, of the assetis estimated in order to
determine the extent, if any, of the impairment loss. Where the
assetdoes not generate cash flows that are independent from
otherassets, value in use estimates are made based on the cash
flows of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.
Intangible assets with anindefinite useful life are tested for
impairment at least annually and whenever there is any indication
thatthe asset may be impaired.

Ifthe recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating unitis
estimatedtobe lessthanits netcarryingamount, the net carrying
amount of the asset or cash generating unitis reduced toits
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised
immediately in the income statement in administration and

other expenses.

Inventories and pre-publication costs

Inventories and pre-publication costs are stated at the lower of
cost, including appropriate attributable overhead, and estimated
netrealisable value. Pre-publication costs, representing costs
incurredin the origination of content prior to publication, are
expensed systematically reflecting the expected sales profile over
the estimated economic lives of the related products, generally up
tofiveyears.

Leases

Assets held under leases which confer rights and obligations
similar to those attaching to owned assets are classified as assets
held underfinance leases and capitalised within property, plant
and equipment or software and the corresponding liability to pay
rentalsis shown net of interest in the statement of financial
position as obligations under finance leases. The capitalised value
of the assetsis depreciated on a straight line basis over the
shorter of the periods of the leases or the useful lives of the assets
concerned. Theinterest element of the lease payments is
allocated soasto produce a constant periodic rate of charge.

Operating lease rentals are charged to the income statementon a
straight line basis over the period of the leases. Rentalincome
from operating leasesisrecognised on a straight line basis over
the term of the relevant lease.

Cashand cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances, call deposits
and other shortterm highly liquid investments and are held in the
statement of financial position at fair value.

Assetsheld forsale

Assets of businesses that are available forimmediate salein their
current condition and for which a sales process is considered
highly probable to complete are classified as assets held for sale,
and are carried at the lower of carrying value and fair value less
coststosell. Fairvalue is based on anticipated disposal proceeds,
typically derived from firm or indicative offers from potential
acquirers. Non-currentassets are notamortised or depreciated
following their classification as held for sale. Liabilities of
businesses held for sale are also separately classified on the
statement of financial position.

Financialinstruments

Financialinstruments comprise investments (other than
investmentsin jointventures or associates), trade receivables,
cashand cash equivalents, payables and accruals, borrowings
and derivative financialinstruments.

Investments (other than investmentsin joint ventures and
associates] are classified as either held for trading or available for
sale, asdescribed above. (These investments are typically
classified as either Level 1 or 2in the IFRS13 fair value hierarchy.)
The fairvalue of such investments is based on either quoted
market prices or other observable market inputs.

Tradereceivables are carried in the statement of financial position
atinvoicedvalue less allowance for estimated irrecoverable
amounts. Irrecoverable amounts are estimated based on the
ageing of trade receivables, experience and circumstance.

Borrowings and payables are recorded initially at fair value and
subsequently carried atamortised cost (other than fixed rate
borrowingsin designated hedging relationships for which the
carryingamount of the hedged portion of the borrowings is
subsequently adjusted for the gain or loss attributable to the
hedged risk).

Derivative financialinstruments are used to hedge interest rate

and foreign exchange risks. Changesin the fair value of derivative
financialinstruments that are designated and effective as hedges
of future cash flows are recognised (net of tax] directly in equity in
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the hedge reserve. If a hedged firm commitment or forecasted
transaction results in the recognition of a non financial asset or
liability, then, at the time that the asset or liability is recognised,
the associated gains or losses on the derivative that had previously
beenrecognisedin equityareincluded intheinitial measurement
of the asset or liability. For hedges thatdo not resultin the
recognition of an asset or a liability, amounts deferred in equity are
recognised in theincome statementin the same period in which
the hedged item affects net profit or loss. Any ineffective portion of
hedgesisrecognised immediately in the income statement.

Derivative financialinstruments thatare not designated as
hedging instruments are classified as held for trading and
recorded in the statement of financial position at fair value, with
changesin fairvalue recognised in the income statement.

Where an effective hedge isin place against changes in the fair
value of fixed rate borrowings, the hedged borrowings are
adjusted for changes in fair value attributable to the risk being
hedged with a correspondingincome or expense includedin the
income statement within finance costs. The offsetting gains or
losses from remeasuring the fair value of the related derivatives
arealsorecognised inthe income statement within finance costs.
When the related derivative expires, is sold or terminated, or no
longer qualifies for hedge accounting, the cumulative change in
fairvalue of the hedged borrowingis amortised in the income
statement over the period to maturity of the borrowing using the
effective interest method.

The fairvalues of interest rate swaps, interest rate options,
forward rate agreements and forward foreign exchange contracts
represent the replacement costs calculated using observable
market rates of interestand exchange. The fair value of long term
borrowings is calculated by discounting expected future cash
flows at observable market rates. (These instruments are
accordingly classified as Level 2in the IFRS13 fair value hierarchy.)

Cash flow hedge accounting is discontinued when a hedging
instrument expires oris sold, terminated or exercised, or no
longer qualifies for hedge accounting. At that time, any cumulative
gainorlossonthe hedginginstrumentrecognised in equityis
either retained in equity until the firm commitment or forecasted
transaction occurs, or, where a hedged transactionis no longer
expected tooccur, isimmediately credited or expensed in the
income statement.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when a present obligation existsasa
result of a past event, the obligationis reasonably estimable, and
itis probable that settlementwill be required. Provisions are
measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the obligation at the statement of financial position date.

Shares held intreasury

Shares of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NVthatare
repurchased by the respective parent companies and not
cancelled are classified as shares heldin treasury. The
consideration paid, including directly attributable costs, is
recognised as a deduction from equity. Shares of the parent
companies thatare purchased by the Reed Elsevier Group plc
Employee Benefit Trust are also classified as shares held in
treasury, with the costrecognised as a deduction from equity.
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Criticaljudgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty
The most significantaccounting policies in determining the
financial condition and results of the Reed Elsevier combined
businesses, and those requiring the most subjective or complex
judgement, relate to the valuation of goodwill and intangible
assets, capitalisation of development spend and taxation.

Goodwilland acquired intangible assets

On acquisition of a subsidiary or business, the purchase
considerationis allocated between the net tangible and intangible
assets otherthan goodwill on a fair value basis, with any excess
purchase consideration representing goodwill. The valuation of
acquiredintangible assets represents the estimated economic
valueinuse, using standard valuation methodologies, including as
appropriate, discounted cash flow, relief from royalty and
comparable market transactions. Acquired intangible assets are
capitalised and amortised systematically over their estimated
useful lives, subject toimpairment review.

Appropriate amortisation periods are selected based on
assessments of the longevity of the brands and imprints, the
strength and stability of customer relationships, the market
positions of the acquired assets and the technological and
competitive risks that they face. Certain intangible assetsin
relation toacquired science and medical publishing businesses
have been determined to have indefinite lives. The longevity of
these assetsis evidenced by their long established and well
regarded brands andimprints, and their characteristically stable
market positions.

The carryingamounts of goodwill and indefinite lived intangible
assetsineach businessare reviewed forimpairment at least
annually. The carryingamounts of all otherintangible assets are
reviewed where there are indications of possible impairment. An
impairment review involves a comparison of the carrying value of
the asset with estimated valuesin use based on latest
management cash flow projections. Key areas of judgementin
estimating the valuesin use of businesses are the growth in cash
flows over aforecast period of up to five years, the long term
growth rate assumed thereafterand the discount rate applied to
the forecast cash flows.

The discount rates used are based on the Reed Elsevier weighted
average cost of capital, adjusted to reflect a risk premium specific
toeach business. The pre-tax discount rates applied are 11.1% for
Scientific, Technical & Medical, 11.6% for Risk Solutions,
11.5-12.8% for Business Information, 10.9-12.5% for Legal and
9.5-13.0% for Exhibitions. The nominal long term growth rates,
which are based on historical growth rates and the growth
prospects for businessesis 3%. There were no charges for
impairment of acquired intangible assets and goodwillin 2013
(2012:nil).

Asensitivity analysis has been performed based on changesin key
assumptions considered to be reasonably possible by
management: anincrease in the discount rate of 0.5%; a decrease
inthe compound annual growth rate for adjusted operating cash
flowin the five-year forecast period of 2.0%; and a decrease in
perpetuity growth rates of 0.5%. The sensitivity analysis shows
thatimpairment charges resulting from these scenarios
individually would be less than £5m. Further information is
provided in note 14 to the combined financial statements.
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Accounting policies

Development spend

Development spend embraces investmentin new products and
otherinitiatives, ranging from the building of online delivery
platforms, to launch costs of new services, to building new
infrastructure applications. Launch costs and other ongoing
operating expenses of new products and services are expensed
asincurred. The costs of building product applications, platforms
and infrastructure are capitalised as intangible assets, where the
investment they representhas demonstrable value and the
technicaland commercial feasibility is assured. Costs eligible for
capitalisation must be incremental, clearly identified and directly
attributable toa particular project. The resulting assets are
amortised over their estimated useful lives. Impairment reviews
are carried out at least annually. Judgementis requiredin the
assessment of the potential value of a development project, the
identification of costs eligible for capitalisation and the selection
of appropriate asset lives.

Taxation

Reed Elsevieris subjectto taxin numerous jurisdictions, giving
rise tocomplex taxissues thatrequire managementto exercise
judgement in making tax determinations. While Reed Elsevieris
confident thattax returnsare appropriately prepared and filed,
amounts are provided in respect of uncertain tax positions that
reflectthe risk with respect to tax matters under active discussion
with tax authorities, or which are otherwise considered to involve
uncertainty. Amounts are provided using the best estimate of tax
expected to be paid based on a qualitative assessment of all
relevantfactors. However, itis possible that at some future date
liabilities may be adjusted as aresult of audits by taxing
authorities. Discussions with tax authorities relating to cross
bordertransactions and other matters are ongoing. Although the
outcome of these discussions cannot be predicted, no significant
impacton the financial position of Reed Elsevieris expected.

Inaddition, estimation ofincome taxes includes assessments of
the recoverability of deferred tax assets. Deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that they are considered recoverable
based on existing tax laws and forecasts of future taxable profits
againstwhich the underlying tax deductions can be utilised. The
recoverability of these assetsis reassessed at the end of each
reporting period, and changesin recognition of deferred tax
assetswillaffect the tax liability in the period of that
reassessment.

Other significant accounting policies

The accounting policiesin respect of revenue recognition,
pre-publication costs, property provisioning and pensions are
alsosignificantin determining the financial condition and results
of the Reed Elsevier combined businesses, although the
application of these policies is more straightforward.

Revenue recognition policies, while an area of management focus,
are generally straightforward in application as the timing of
productor service deliveryand customer acceptance for the
various revenue types can be readily determined. Allowances for
product returns are deducted from revenues based on historical
return rates. Where sales consist of two or more components
that operate independently, revenueis recognised as each
componentis completed by performance, based on attribution

of relative value.

Pre-publication costsincurred in the creation of content prior to
productionand publication are typically deferred and expensed
overtheir estimated useful lives based on sales profiles. Such
coststypically comprise directinternal labour costs and
externally commissioned editorial and other fees. Estimated
useful lives generally do not exceed five years. Annualreviews are
carried outto assess the recoverability of carryingamounts.

Reed Elsevier has exposures to sub lease shortfalls in respect of
certain property leases for periods up to 2024. Provisions are
recognised for net liabilities expected to arise on these exposures.
Estimation of the provisions requires judgementin respect of
future head lease costs, sub lease income and the length of
vacancy periods. The charge for property provisions was nil
(2012: £62m)] relating to surplus property arising on the
restructuring, sale and closure of Business Information
businessesandincludes expected losses on sub leases entered
into during 2013 and an estimate of vacancy periods and future
market conditions. Furtherinformationis provided in note 26 to
the combined financial statements.

Accounting for defined benefit pension schemes involves
judgement about uncertain events, including the life expectancy
ofthe members, salaryand pension increases, inflation and the
rate at which the future pension payments are discounted.
Estimates for these factorsare used in determining the pension
costand liabilities reported in the financial statements. These
best estimates of future developments are made in conjunction
withindependentactuaries. Each scheme is subject to a periodic
review by independentactuaries. Details of key assumptions
and sensitivity analysisis provided in note 5 to the combined
financial statements.

Standards and amendments effective for the year

With effect from 1 January 2013, 1AS19 - Employee Benefits
(revised) interalia changes the methodology used in the
calculation of the net pension financing credit or charge in relation
to defined benefit pension schemes. Under the revised standard,
pension asset returnsincluded within the net pension financing
credit or charge are calculated by reference to the discount rate of
high quality corporate bonds (being also the discount rate applied
inthe calculation of pension obligations) and are no longer based
onthe expected returns on scheme assets. The effectis to reduce
theassetreturnsrecognisedintheincome statement.

Adoption of IAS19 (revised) has had noimpact on Reed Elsevier’s
combined statement of financial position and statement of cash
flows. The net pension financing credit or charge is now presented
within net finance costs in Reed Elsevier's combined income
statement, rather than within operating profit as previously
reported. Given thatthe revised standard may introduce greater
volatility to the income statement, the net pension financing credit
or charge has been excluded from the adjusted figures used by
Reed Elsevier as additional performance measures.

Asrequired underthe revised standard, comparative figures have
beenrestated. Fortheyearended 31 December 2012, operating
profits are £25m lower and net finance costs are £11m higher than
previously reported. Onan adjusted basis, profit before taxis
£25m lower.
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With effect from 1 January 2013, Reed Elsevier adopted IAS1 -
Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income
(amendments to IAS1). The standard amends the grouping of
items presented in the statement of comprehensive income into
items that may be reclassified to the profitor lossina future
period and items that will never be reclassified.

With effect from 1 January 2013, Reed Elsevieralso adopted
IFRS10 Consolidated Financial Statements, IFRS11 Joint
Arrangements, IFRS12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities,
and IFRS13 Fair Value Measurement, in addition toamendments
to IAS27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements and
IAS28 Investmentsin Associates. Adoption of these new
accounting standards and amendments has not had a significant
impact on Reed Elsevier'saccounting policies or reporting. With
the exception of IFRS13, these standards and amendments have
been early adopted for the purposes of Reed Elsevier's application
of IFRS as adopted by the EU.

Standards, amendments and interpretations not yet effective
New accounting standards and amendments and their expected
impact on the future accounting policies and reporting of Reed
Elsevierare setoutbelow.

IFRS9 - Financial Instruments (effective for the 2015 financial
year). The standard replaces the existing classification and
measurementrequirementsinlAS39 for financial assets by
requiring entities to classify them as being measured either at
amortised cost or fair value depending on the business model and
contractual cash flow characteristics of the asset. For financial
liabilities, IFRS9 requires an entity choosing to measure a liability
atfairvalue to present the portion of the change inits fair value
due tochangesinthe entity’s own credit risk in the other
comprehensive income rather than the income statement.
Adoption of the standard is not expected to have a significant
impact onthe measurement, presentation or disclosure of
financialassets and liabilities in the combined financial
statements.

Amendments to IAS36 - Impairment of Assets (effective for the
2014 financialyear). These amendments require disclosure of the
recoverable amounts forthe assets or CGUs for which an
impairment loss has been recognised or reversed during the
reporting period and are effective retrospectively. Adoption of the
standard is not expected to have a significantimpact on disclosure
inthe combined financial statements.

Additionally, anumber of amendments and interpretations have
beenissued which are not expected to have any significantimpact
on Reed Elsevier'saccounting policies and reporting.
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1 08 FINANCIALSTATEMENTS AND OTHER INFORMATION
NOTESTO THE COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the combined financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2013

Reed Elsevier'sreported segments are based on the internal reporting structure and financialinformation provided to the Chief

Executive Officer and Boards.

Reed Elsevierisaworld leading provider of professional information solutions organised as five business segments: Scientific,
Technical & Medical, providing information and tools to help its customers improve scientificand healthcare outcomes; Risk Solutions,
providing tools that combine proprietary, public and third-party information with advanced technology and analytics; Business
Information, providing data services, information and marketing solutions to business professionals; Legal, providing legal, tax,
regulatory news & businessinformation to legal, corporate, government, accounting and academic markets; and Exhibitions,

organising exhibitions and conferences.

Adjusted operating profitis the key segmental profit measure used by Reed Elsevierin assessing performance. Adjusted operating

profitis reconciled to operating profitin note 10.

Revenue Operating profit Adjusted operating profit

Restated Restated

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

£m £m £m £m £m £m

Scientific, Technical & Medical 2,126 2,063 742 706 826 780
Risk Solutions 933 926 312 281 414 392
Business Information 547 663 7 76 107 119
Legal 1,567 1,610 139 146 238 234
Exhibitions 862 854 161 171 213 210
Sub-total 6,035 6,116 1,425 1,380 1,798 1,735
Corporate costs - - (49) (47) (49) (47)
Total 6,035 6,116 1,376 1,333 1,749 1,688

Share of post-tax results of joint ventures of £29m (2012: £24m) included in operating profit comprises £6m (2012: £2m)] relating to Legal

and £23m (2012: £22m] relating to Exhibitions.

2013 2012

£m £m

North America 3,103 3,122
United Kingdom 985 966
The Netherlands 656 611
Rest of Europe 698 788
Rest of world 593 629
Total 6,035 6,116
2013 2012

£m £m

North America 3,082 3,154
United Kingdom 443 442
The Netherlands 166 165
Rest of Europe 1,074 1,176
Rest of world 1,270 1,179
Total 6,035 6,116
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2013 2012
£m £m
Electronic 3,971 3,896
Print 1,168 1,305
Facetoface 896 915
Total 6,035 6,116
2013 2012
£m £m
Subscriptions 3,112 2,978
Transactional 2,683 2,788
Advertising 240 350
Total 6,035 6,116
Expenditure on Capital Amortisation

acquired goodwilland expenditure of acquired Depreciationand

intangible assets additions intangible assets other amortisation
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Scientific, Technical & Medical 50 120 93 106 76 68 95 82
Risk Solutions 164 15 25 21 97 109 22 23
Business Information 5 - 18 17 31 37 10 14
Legal 15 80 170 173 74 83 108 92
Exhibitions 56 178 15 25 40 32 14 16
Total 290 393 321 342 318 329 249 227

Capital expenditure comprises additions to property, plantand equipment and internally developed intangible assets. Amortisation of
acquiredintangible assets includes amounts in respect of joint ventures of £1m (2012: £1m] in Exhibitions. Other than the depreciation
and amortisation above, non cashitemsinclude £31m (2012: £31m)] relating to the recognition of share based remuneration, comprising
£6m (2012: £5m)in Scientific, Technical & Medical, £3m (2012: nil) in Risk Solutions, £2m (2012: £3m) in Business Information,

£6m (2012: £7m)in Legal, £4m (2012: £4m) in Exhibitions and £10m (2012: £12m) in Corporate.

2013 2012

£m £m

North America 6,291 6,514
United Kingdom 584 524
The Netherlands 125 120
Rest of Europe 753 729
Rest of world 401 376
Total 8,154 8,263

Non-currentassets by geographical location exclude amounts relating to deferred tax and derivative financialinstruments.
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1 1 0 FINANCIALSTATEMENTS AND OTHER INFORMATION
NOTESTO THE COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the combined financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013

Operating profitis stated after charging/(crediting) the following:

Restated
2013 2012
Note £m £m
Staff costs
Wagesand salaries 1,508 1,543
Social security costs 175 187
Pensions 5 61 89
Share based remuneration 31 26
Total staff costs 1,775 1,845
Depreciationand amortisation
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 15 317 328
Share of joint ventures” amortisation of acquired intangible assets 1 1
Amortisation of internally developed intangible assets 15 160 151
Depreciation of property, plantand equipment 17 89 76
Total depreciationand amortisation 567 556
Other expensesandincome
Pre-publication costs, inventory expenses and other cost of sales 2,118 2,139
Operating lease rentals expense 108 112
Operating lease rentalsincome (10) (10)
The amortisation of acquired intangible assets isincluded within administration and other expenses.
2013 2012
£m £m
Auditors’ remuneration
Payable to the auditors of the parent companies 0.6 0.5
Payable to the auditors of the operating and financing businesses 4.3 4.4
Forauditservices 4.9 49
Audit related assurance services 0.4 0.7
Tax services 1.8 0.8
Duediligence and othertransactionrelated services - 0.3
For non auditservices 2.2 1.8
Total auditors’ remuneration 7.1 6.7

Amounts payable to the auditors of the operating and financing businesses include amounts for the review and testing of internal
controls over financial reporting in accordance with the US Sarbanes-0Oxley Act. Non audit services performed in the Netherlands or by
Deloitte B.V. are limited to audit related assurance services. Reed Elsevier’s policy on auditor independence is set out in the Report of the
Audit Committees on page 96.
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At31December Averageduringtheyear

2013 2012 2013 2012
Business segment
Scientific, Technical & Medical 6,700 7,000 6,900 7,000
Risk Solutions 3,300 4,100 3,500 4,000
Business Information 3,900 4,800 4,200 5,200
Legal 10,000 10,400 10,400 10,400
Exhibitions 3,400 3,200 3,300 3,000
Sub-total 27,300 29,500 28,300 29,600
Corporate/shared functions 900 900 900 900
Total 28,200 30,400 29,200 30,500
Geographical location
North America 13,900 15,700 14,800 15,900
United Kingdom 4,100 4,100 4,100 4,200
The Netherlands 1,600 1,600 1,600 1,600
Rest of Europe 2,800 3,600 3,100 3,700
Rest of world 5,800 5,400 5,600 5,100
Total 28,200 30,400 29,200 30,500

Anumber of pension schemes are operated around the world. Historically, the major schemes have been of the defined benefit type with
assets held in separate trustee administered funds. The largest defined benefit schemesareinthe UK, the US and the Netherlands.

The UK schemeisafinalsalaryscheme andis closed to new hires. Members accrue a portion of their final pensionable earnings based
onthe number of years of service. The US schemeis a cash balance scheme andis closed to new hires. Members earn pay credits
dependent onage andyears of service which are added to an account balance that accrues interest ata minimum rate of 4% perannum.
The Netherlands scheme is a career average salary scheme and remains open to new hires. Members accrue a portion of their current
salaryatarate calculated to enable them to reach a pension level based on their average salary.

Each of the major defined benefit schemes is administered by a separate fund thatis legally separated from Reed Elsevier. The trustees
of the pension funds inthe UKand the Netherlands and plan fiduciaries of the US scheme are required by law to actin the interest of the
funds’ beneficiaries. Inthe UKand in the Netherlands the trustees of the pension fund are responsible for the investment policy with
regard to the assets of the fund. The boards of trustees consist of an equal number of Reed Elsevier appointed and member nominated
directors. Inthe US, the fiduciary duties for the scheme are allocated between committees which are staffed by senior employees of
Reed Elsevier; the investment committee has the primary responsibility for the investmentand management of plan assets.

The funding of Reed Elsevier's major schemes reflects the different rules within each jurisdiction.

Inthe UK the level of funding is determined by statutory triennial actuarial valuations in accordance with pensions legislation. Where the
scheme falls below 100% funded status, Reed Elsevier and the scheme trustees must agree on how the deficitis to be remedied. The UK
Pensions Regulator has significant powers and sets outin codes and guidance the parameters for scheme funding.

The US scheme has an annual statutory valuation which forms the basis for establishing the employer contribution each year (subject to
ERISAand IRS minimums). Should the statutory funded status fall to below 100%, the US Pensions Protection Act requires the deficit to
be rectified with additional contributions over a 7 year period.

Inthe Netherlands, the scheme funding level is determined by an annual actuarial valuation as prescribed by the Dutch Pension Act.
Ifthe funding level falls below the statutory minimum a short term recovery plan is negotiated between the plan trustees and filed with
the Dutch Central Bank (DCB). An evaluation of the recovery planis required to be filed at the DCB annually.

Total regular employer contributions to defined benefit pension schemes inrespect of 2014 are expected to be approximately £46m.
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1 1 2 FINANCIALSTATEMENTS AND OTHER INFORMATION
NOTESTO THE COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the combined financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013

The pension expense recognised within operating expense is:

Restated

2013 2012

£m £m

Defined benefit pension expense 14 43
Defined contribution pension expense 47 46
Total 61 89

The amounts recognised inthe income statementin respect of defined benefit pension schemes during the year are presented by major
scheme as follows:

Restated
2013 2012
UK us NL Total UK us NL Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Service cost 29 29 15 73 27 28 8 63
Settlement, past service and curtailment
credits - (51) (8) (59) (1) (19) - (20)
Defined benefit pension expense 29 (22) 7 14 26 9 8 43
Netinterest on net defined benefit obligation 6 9 4 19 5 7 (1) 1
Net defined benefit pension expense 35 (13) 1 33 31 16 7 54

Netinterest on defined benefit pension scheme liabilities is presented within net finance costs in the income statement. Service cost,
including settlements, past service credits and curtailments is presented within operating expenses.

Settlements and past service creditsin 2013 principally relate to plan design changes and the transfer out of certain deferred members
inthe US scheme and areductioninaccrued benefitsinrespect of the scheme in the Netherlands. Settlements and curtailments
recognisedin 2012 were aresult of changes to plan design and staff reductions.

The significant valuation assumptions, determined for each major scheme in conjunction with the respective independent actuaries are
presented below. The net defined benefit pension expense for each yearis based onthe assumptions and scheme valuations set at
31 December of the prioryear.

2013 2012
Asat31December UK us NL UK us NL
Discountrate 4.60% 5.05% 3.60% 4.65% 4.25% 3.50%
Inflation 3.25% 3.00% 2.00% 2.85% 3.00% 2.00%

Discountrates are set by reference to AA corporate bondyields.

Mortality assumptions make allowance for future improvements in longevity and have been determined by reference to applicable
mortality statistics. The average life expectancy assumptions are set out below:

2013 2012
Male average life expectancy (at 31 December) UK us NL UK us NL
Member currently aged 60years 90 84 86 90 84 86
Member currently aged 45years 92 83 87 92 83 87
2013 2012
Female average life expectancy (at 31 December) UK us NL UK us NL
Member currently aged 60years 89 86 89 89 86 89

Member currently aged 45years 91 85 89 91 85 89
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2
2
Theamountrecognised in the statement of financial position in respect of defined benefit pension schemes at the startand end of the
year and the movements during the year were as follows:
Restated
2013 2012
UK us NL Total UK us NL Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Defined benefit obligation @
Atstartof year (2,654) (922) (696) (4,272) (2,479) (858) (539) (3,876) 2
Service cost (29 (29 (15) (73) (27) (28) (8) (63) a
Settlement, past service and curtailment @
credits - 51 8 59 1 19 - 20 z
Interest on pension scheme liabilities (122) (41) (25) (188) (124) (44) (30) (198)
Actuarial (loss)/gain on financial
assumptions (173) 86 18 (69) (92) (145) (145) (382)
Actuarial (loss)/gain arising from
experience assumptions 8 (10) (3 (5) (15) (18] 1 (32
Contributions by employees (6) - (5) (11) (7) - (4) (1)
Benefits paid* 9% 93 19 206 89 112 15 216
Exchange translation differences - 10 (17) (7) - 40 14 54
Atendofyear (2,882) (762) (716) (4,360) (2,654) (922) (696) (4,272) .
Fair value of scheme assets é
Atstartofyear 2,516 710 580 3,806 2,371 726 537 3,634 5
Interestincome on plan assets 116 32 21 169 119 37 31 187 E
Return onassets excludingamounts
includedininterestincome 111 4 (1) 114 45 53 23 121
Contributions by employer 36 33 14 83 63 38 15 116
Contributions by employees 6 - 5 1" 7 - 4 11
Benefits paid* (94) (93) (19) (206) (89) (112) (15) (216)
Exchange translation differences - (10) 14 4 - (32) (15) (47)
Atend of year 2,691 676 614 3,981 2,516 710 580 3,806
Net defined benefit obligation (191) (86) (102) (379) (138) (212) (116) (466) .
*included in benefits paid are settlements of £52m (2012: £75m). g
Asat 31 December 2013 the defined benefit obligations comprise £4,200m (2012: £4,112m]) in relation to funded schemes and £160m §

(2012: £160m) in relation to unfunded schemes.

The weighted average duration of defined benefit scheme liabilities for 2013and 2012 is 19 years in the UK, 16 yearsin the USand
21yearsinthe Netherlands. Deferred tax assets of £104m (2012: £153m) are recognised in respect of the pension scheme deficits.

Amountsrecognised in the statement of comprehensive income are set out below:

Restated

2013 2012

£m £m

Gainsand losses arising during the year:

Experience losses on scheme liabilities (5) (32) n
Experience gains on scheme assets 114 121 §
Actuarial gains /(losses) arising on the present value of scheme liabilities due to changesin: i
-discount rates 78 (552) =
-inflation (171) 74 g
- otheractuarialassumptions 24 96 %
40 (293) 3
Net cumulative losses at start of year (515) (222) 2
Net cumulative losses at end of year (475) (515) g
c
3
5
g
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NOTESTO THE COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the combined financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013

The major categories and fair values of scheme assets at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2013 2012
UK us NL Total UK us NL Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Equities 1,351 174 222 1,747 1,207 409 169 1,785
Government bonds 1,089 68 358 1,515 1,088 164 376 1,628
Corporate bonds - 411 - 411 - 88 - 88
Cash 87 4 - 91 106 1 - 107
Other 164 19 34 217 115 48 35 198
Total 2,691 676 614 3,981 2,516 710 580 3,806

The actualreturn on scheme assets for the year ended 31 December 2013 was £283m (2012: £308m).

Assets and obligations associated with the schemes are sensitive to changes in the market values of assets and the market related
assumptions used to value scheme liabilities. In particular, adverse changes to asset values, discount rates orinflation could increase
future pension costs and funding requirements.

Typically Reed Elsevier's schemes are exposed to: investment risks, whereby actual returns on plan assets may be below those rates
used to determine the defined benefit obligations and interest rate risks whereby scheme deficits may increase if bondyields in the UK,
US and the Netherlands decline and are not offset by returns in government and corporate bond portfolios. The schemes are also
exposedtootherrisks such as unanticipated future increases in: member mortality patterns; inflation; and future salaries, all
potentially leading to anincrease in scheme liabilities (particularly in the Netherlands which is the only major scheme which remains
open to new members).

Investment policies of each scheme are intended to ensure continuous payment of defined benefit pensionsin the shortterm and long
term. Efforts are made to limit risks on marketable securities by adopting investment policies that diversify assets across geographies
and among equities, governmentand corporate bonds and cash. Asset allocations are dependent on avariety of factors including the
duration of scheme liabilities and the statutory funded status of the plan.

Allequities and governmentand corporate bonds have quoted prices in active markets. The majority of other assets are investmentsin
property funds which have quoted prices in active markets.

Sensitivity analysis

The valuation of Reed Elsevier’s pension scheme liabilities involves significant actuarial assumptions, being the life expectancy of
the members, inflation and the rate at which the future pension payments are discounted. Differences arising from actual experience
or future changes inassumptions may materially affect future pension charges. In particular, changes in assumptions for discount
rates, inflation and life expectancies thatare reasonably possible would have the following approximate effects on the defined benefit
pension obligations:

£m
Increase/decrease of 0.25% in discount rate: 191
Increase/decrease of 0.25% in the expected inflation rate: 113
Increase/decrease of one yearin assumed life expectancy: 108

The above analysis has been calculated on the same basis used to determine the defined benefit obligation recognised in the statement
of financial position. There has been no change inthe methods used to prepare the analysis compared with prioryears. This sensitivity
analysis may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation asitis unlikely that the change in the above
assumptions would occurinisolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.



Reed Elsevier AnnualReportsandFinancial Statements 2013 1 1 5

Reed Elsevier provides a number of share based remuneration schemes to Directors and employees. The principal share based
remuneration schemes are the Executive Share Option Schemes (ESOS), the Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP), the Reed Elsevier Growth
Plan (REGP), the Retention Share Plan (RSP) and the Bonus Investment Plan (BIP). Share options granted under ESOS and LTIP are
exercisable after threeyearsand up totenyears from the date of grantata price equivalent to the market value of the respective shares
atthe date of grant. Conditional shares granted under ESOS, LTIP, RSP and BIP are exercisable after three years for nil consideration if
conditions are met. Conditional shares granted under REGP are exercisable for nil consideration if conditions are met after three and
fiveyears. Otherawards principally relate to allemployee share based saving schemes in the UK and the Netherlands.

Share based remuneration awards are, other than upon retirement or in exceptional circumstances, subject to the condition that the
employee remains in employment at the time of exercise.

Conditional shares granted under LTIP, REGP, RSP and BIP between 2010 and 2013 are subject to the achievement of growth targets of
Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV adjusted earnings per share measured at constant exchange rates as well as the achievement
of atargeted percentage return oninvested capital of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV. LTIP grantsin 2011,2012and 2013 and
REGP grantsare alsovariable subject to the achievement of a total shareholder return performance target.

The weighted average fair value peraward is based on full vesting on achievement of non market related performance conditions and
stochastic models for market related components. The conditional shares and option awards are recognised in the income statement
over the vesting period, being between three and five years, on the basis of expected performance against the non market related
conditions, with the fair value related to market related components unchanging. Further details of performance conditions are givenin
the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 78 to 94.

Inrespect of
ReedElsevier PLC
ordinaryshares

Inrespect of
Reed Elsevier NV
ordinaryshares

Weighted Weighted
average fair average fair
Number of value per Number of value per
shares award shares award
'000 £ '000 £
Share options

-ESOS 1,521 1.12 1,058 1.52
- Other 645 1.29 257 1.10
Total share options 2,166 1.17 1,315 1.44

Conditional shares
-ESOS 524 6.51 365 9.28
-LTIP 1,338 6.14 930 8.90
-RSP 10 7.35 7 10.65
- REGP 322 6.49 450 9.34
-BIP 987 7.40 615 10.69
Total conditional shares 3,181 6.63 2,367 9.51

Inrespectof
Reed Elsevier PLC
ordinaryshares

Inrespectof
Reed Elsevier NV
ordinary shares

Weighted Weighted
average fair average fair
Number of value per Number of value per
shares award shares award
‘000 £ ‘000 £
Share options

-ESOS 1,801 0.90 1,263 1.20
- Other 702 1.04 293 0.95
Total share options 2,503 0.94 1,556 1.15

Conditional shares
-ESOS 797 4.60 560 6.41
-LTIP 1,807 4.45 1,144 6.13
-RSP 256 6.00 5 7.82
-BIP 1,542 5.20 696 7.41
Total conditional shares 4,402 4.83 2,405 6.57
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1 1 6 FINANCIALSTATEMENTS AND OTHER INFORMATION
NOTESTO THE COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the combined financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013

The mainassumptions used to determine the fair values, which have been established with advice from and data provided by
independentactuaries, are set out below:

Inrespect of Inrespect of
ReedElsevier PLC ReedElsevier NV
ordinaryshares ordinaryshares
2013 2012 2013 2012
Weighted average share price at date of grant
-ESOS £7.35 £5.19 €12.53 €9.07
-LTIP £7.35 £5.25 €12.54 €8.91
-RSP £7.35 £6.00 €12.53 €9.65
-BIP £7.39 £5.20 €12.53 €9.15
-REGP £7.76 €13.15
- Other £7.45 £5.49 €11.89 €9.63
Expected share price volatility 28% 30% 28% 30%
Expected option life 4Lyears 4years 4Lyears 4years
Expecteddividendyield 41% 3.9% 4. 7% 4.5%
Risk freeinterestrate 0.5% 0.8% 0.4% 0.9%
Expected lapse rate 2-5% 2-5% 2-4% 2-4%

Expected share price volatility has been estimated based on relevant historic datain respect of the Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier
NVordinary share prices. Expected share option life has been estimated based on historical exercise patternsin respect of Reed
Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV share options.

The share based remuneration awards outstandingas at31 December 2013, in respect of both Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV
ordinary shares, are set out below:

Inrespect of Inrespectof

ReedElsevier PLC Reed Elsevier NV

ordinaryshares ordinaryshares
Weighted Weighted
Number of average Number of average
shares under exercise  sharesunder exercise
option price option price
'000 (pence) ’000 (€)
Outstandingat 1 January 2012 29,540 534 21,641 10.99
Granted 2,503 497 1,556 9.19
Exercised (6,694) 497 (1,913) 9.36
Forfeited (1,022) 498 (581) 9.33
Expired (4,992) 592 (5,121) 12.34
Outstanding at 1 January 2013 19,335 529 15,582 10.63
Granted 2,166 694 1,315 12.41
Exercised (9,102) 542 (7,628) 10.72
Forfeited (112) 535 (167) 11.30
Expired (560) 537 (462) 11.30
Outstanding at 31 December 2013 11,727 549 8,640 10.77
Exercisable at 31 December 2012 12,573 553 12,329 11.12

Exercisable at 31 December 2013 5,150 537 5,535 11.09
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2
Inrespectof Inrespectof
ReedElsevier PLC Reed Elsevier NV
ordinaryshares ordinaryshares
Number of shares Number of shares
"000 "000
Outstanding at 1 January 2012 13,896 8,267
Granted 4,402 2,405
Vested (601) (391) g
Forfeited/lapsed (5,885 (3,575) 3
Outstanding at 1 January 2013 11,812 6,706 ﬁ
Granted 3,181 2,367 )
Vested (3,256) (1,966)
Forfeited/lapsed (1,395) (923)
Outstanding at 31 December 2013 10,342 6,184
The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of share options and vesting of conditional shares during 2013 was 761p
(2012:593p) for Reed Elsevier PLC ordinary shares and €13.15(2012: €10.43) for Reed Elsevier NV ordinary shares.
2013 2012
Weighted Weighted
average average
Numberof  remaining Numberof  remaining s
sharesunder perioduntil sharesunder perioduntil E]
option expiry option expiry 2.
'000 (years) ‘000 (years) 5
Reed Elsevier PLC ordinary shares (pence) §
401-450 1,772 1.9 1,925 2.8
451-500 1,161 4.2 4,415 3.5
501-550 5,284 5.6 8,981 5.7
551-600 695 3.9 189 5.4
601-650 1,338 4.0 3,825 4.8
701-750 1,462 9.4 - -
801-850 10 9.6 - -
851-900 2 9.9 - -
901-950 3 9.0 - -
Total 11,727 5.1 19,335 4.7 é’
Reed Elsevier NV ordinary shares (euro) §
7.01-8.00 41 5.0 58 6.1 2
8.01-9.00 1,834 6.8 2,736 7.7
9.01-10.00 1,813 7.2 3,142 6.9
10.01-11.00 619 1.4 2,697 1.6
11.01-12.00 1,670 2.3 3,982 2.6
12.01-13.00 1,864 71 1,806 5.1
13.01-14.00 134 4.7 118 4.1
14.01-15.00 663 3.1 1,043 4.1
15.01-16.00 2 9.9 - -
Total 8,640 5.4 15,582 4.6

Share options are expected, upon exercise, to be met principally by the issue of new ordinary shares but may also be met from shares held
by the Reed Elsevier Group plc Employee Benefit Trust (EBT) (see note 27). Conditional shares will be met from shares held by the EBT.
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1 1 8 FINANCIALSTATEMENTS AND OTHER INFORMATION
NOTESTO THE COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the combined financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2013

Restated

2013 2012

£m £m

Intereston shortterm bank loans, overdrafts and commercial paper (11) (27)
Interest on term debt (168) (196)
Interest on obligations under finance leases (1) (1)
Total borrowing costs (180) (224)
Losses on loans and derivatives not designated as hedges (7) (8)
Net financing charge on defined benefit pension schemes (19) (11)
Financecosts (206) (243)
Interest on bank deposits 4 7
Gainson loans and derivatives not designated as hedges 6 9
Financeincome 10 16
Netfinancecosts (196) (227)

Finance costsinclude £3m (2012: £16m] transferred from the hedge reserve. Anet gain of £1m (2012: £2m loss) on interest rate

derivatives designated as cash flow hedges was recognised directly in equity in the hedge reserve to be recognised in future periods.

2013 2012
£m £m
Revaluation of held for trading investments 5 19
Property provisions on disposed businesses - (60)
Gainondisposal of businesses and assets held for sale 11 86
Net gains ondisposals and other non operatingitems 16 45
Restated
2013 2012
£m £m

Current tax
United Kingdom (50) (73)
The Netherlands (80) (68)
Rest of world (222) (12)
Total currenttax charge (352) (153)
Deferred tax 271 51
Taxexpense (81) (102)

Theincreasein the deferred tax creditin 2013 principally relates to the alignment of certain business assets with their global
management structure. It does not affect cash tax paid of £362min 2013. The decrease in UK current taxin 2013 reflects the settlement

of prioryear tax matters.
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The nettax expense charged on profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average of tax rates
applicable to accounting profits and losses of the consolidated entities, as follows:

Restated

2013 2012

£m £m

Profit before tax 1,196 1,151
Taxataverage applicable rates (280) (244)
Taxonshare of results of joint ventures 10 7
Expenses notdeductible fortax purposes and US state taxes (38) (30)
Non-taxable costs of share based remuneration 3 3
(Non-deductible)/non-taxable disposal related gains and losses (22) 69
Tax losses of the period not recognised (4) (6)
Recognition and utilisation of tax losses thatarose in prioryears 9 6
Exceptional prioryeartax credit - 96
Deferred tax creditonthe alignment of business assets 221 -
Otheradjustmentsinrespect of prior periods 24 (2)
Deferred tax effect of changesin tax rates (4) (1)
Taxexpense ...................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... T s

The weighted average applicable tax rate for the year was 23% (2012 restated: 21%). This increase is caused by a change in the relative
profitability of Reed Elsevier entities in the countries in which they operate, partially offset by the impact of the reduction in the tax rate of the
United Kingdom (see below]).

During 2013, Reed Elsevieraligned certain business assets with their global management structure. As a result of this alignment the tax
deductible value of these assets was updated to market value. As at 31 December 2013, Reed Elsevier has recognised a deferred tax credit
of £22Tmin respect of these assets, which has been excluded from adjusted earnings.

During 2012, Reed Elsevier resolved a number of significant prior year tax matters and reassessed its exposure to other tax matters across
the jurisdictions in which Reed Elsevier operates. As aresult of this reassessment, current tax liabilities were reduced by £96m to reflect the
lower cash tax expected to be payable.

The following tax has been recognised directly in equity during the year:

Restated
2013 2012
£m £m
Taxonitems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Tax on actuarial movements on defined benefit pensions schemes (24) 91
Tax credit on otheritems - 5
Taxonitemsthat may be reclassified to profit or loss o
Taxon fairvalue movements on cash flow hedges (15) (19)
PP /credltrecognlsedmothercomprehenswemcome .............................................................................................................................. G
Tax credit on share based remuneration recognised directly in equity 20 -

Anumber of changes to the UK corporation tax system, including reductions of the main rate of corporation tax from 23% to 21% with effect
from 1 April 2014, and from 21% to 20% with effect from 1 April 2015, were substantively enacted on 2 July 2013. Reed Elsevier has therefore
remeasured its UK deferred tax assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting period at 20%, which has resulted in recognition of a deferred
tax debit of £4min the income statement.
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Notes to the combined financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2013

Reed Elsevier uses adjusted figures as additional performance measures. Adjusted operating profit excludes amortisation of acquired

intangible assets, acquisition related costs and the share of taxes in joint ventures. Acquisition related costs relate to acquisition

integration, transaction related fees, and those elements of deferred and contingent consideration required to be expensed under IFRS.
Adjusted profit before tax also excludes disposal related and other non operating items and the net financing charge or credit on defined
benefit pension schemes. The adjusted tax charge excludes the tax effect of these adjusting items, exceptional tax credits (in 2012 only)
and movements on deferred tax assets and liabilities related to goodwill and acquired intangible assets. It includes the benefit of tax
amortisation where available on goodwilland acquired intangible assets. Adjusted operating cash flow is measured after net capital
expenditure and dividends from joint ventures, but before paymentsin relation to prior year exceptional restructuring programmes and

acquisition related costs. Adjusted figures are derived as follows:

Restated
2013 2012
£m £m
Operating profit 1,376 1,333
Adjustments:
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 318 329
Acquisition related costs 43 21
Reclassification of taxin joint ventures 12 5
Adjusted operating profit 1,749 1,688
Profit before tax 1,196 1,151
Adjustments:
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 318 329
Acquisition related costs 43 21
Reclassification of taxin joint ventures 12 5
Net financing charge on defined benefit pension schemes 19 "
Disposals and other non operating items (16) (45)
Adjusted profit before tax 1,572 1,472
Tax charge (81) (102)
Adjustments:
Deferred tax movements on goodwill and acquired intangible assets 7 7
Tax onacquisition related costs (12) (5)
Reclassification of taxin jointventures (12) (5)
Tax on netfinancing charge on defined benefit pension schemes (6) (3)
Taxondisposals and other non operating items 34 (58)
Other deferred tax credits from intangible assets* (300) (84)
Exceptionalprioryeartaxcredit - (96)
Adjusted taxcharge (370) (346)
Net profit attributable to parent companies’ shareholders 1,110 1,044
Adjustments (post tax):
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 325 336
Acquisition related costs 31 16
Net financing charge on defined benefit pension schemes 13 8
Disposalsand other non operating items 18 (103)
Other deferred tax credits fromintangible assets* (300) (84)
Exceptionalprioryeartaxcredit - (96
Adjusted net profit attributable to parent companies’ shareholders 1,197 1,121
Cash generated from operations 1,943 1,847
Dividends received from joint ventures 22 20
Purchases of property, plantand equipment (57) (70)
Proceeds from disposals of property, plantand equipment 6 7
Expenditure oninternally developed intangible assets (251) (263)
Paymentsinrelation to exceptional restructuring costs 12 25
Paymentsin relation to acquisition related costs 28 37
Adjusted operating cash flow 1,703 1,603

*movements on deferred tax liabilities arising on acquired intangible assets that do not qualify for taxamortisationand in 2013
non-recurring deferred tax credits arising on the alignment of certain business assets with their global management structure.
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Restated
2013 2012
£m £m
Operating profit before joint ventures 1,347 1,309
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 317 328
Amortisation of internally developed intangible assets 160 151
Depreciation of property, plantand equipment 89 76
Share based remuneration 31 31
Totalnoncashitems 597 586
Decreaseininventories and pre-publication costs 10 21
Decreaseinreceivables 5 4
Decrease in payables (16) (73)
Increase inworking capital (1) (48)
Cash generated from operations 1,943 1,847
2013 2012
Note £m £m
Purchase of businesses 12 (194) (276)
Investmentin jointventures (6) (10)
Deferred payments relating to prior year acquisitions (21) (30)
Total (221) (316)
Related
Cashand derivative
cash financial
equivalents Borrowings instruments 2013 2012
£m £m £m £m £m
Atstartofyear 641 (3,892) 124 (3,127) (3,433)
Decreasein cash and cash equivalents (532) - - (532) (72)
Net movementin shortterm bank loans, overdrafts and commercial paper - (155) (14) (169) 434
Issuance of term debt - (184) - (184) (592)
Repayment of term debt - 915 - 915 437
Repayment of finance leases - 10 - 10 4
Changein net borrowings resulting from cash flows (532) 586 (14) 40 211
Inception of finance leases - (12) - (12) (13)
Fairvalue and other adjustments to borrowings and related derivatives - 32 (33) (1) 1
Exchange translation differences 23 5 - 28 107
Atendofyear 132 (3,281) 77 (3,072) (3,127)

Net borrowings comprise cash and cash equivalents, loan capital, finance leases, promissory notes, bank and other loans, derivative
financialinstruments that are used to hedge the fair value of fixed rate borrowings, and payable/receivable balancesin respect of cash

collateral received/paid.
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Notes to the combined financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013

During the year a number of acquisitions were made for a total consideration of £239m (2012: £341m), after taking account of net cash
acquired of £14m (2012: £12m). The net assets of the businesses acquired are incorporated at their fair value to the combined
businesses. Provisional fair values of the consideration given and of the assets and liabilities acquired are summarised below:

Fair Fair

value value

2013 2012

£m £m

Goodwill 157 165
Intangible assets 133 229
Property, plant & equipment - 1
Currentassets 9 21
Current liabilities (21) (61)
Borrowings - -
Current tax - 2
Deferred tax (39) (16)
Netassetsacquired 239 341
Consideration (after taking account of £14m (2012: £12m) net cash acquired) 239 341
Less: consideration deferred to future years (36) (23)
Less: acquisition date fair value of equity interest (9) (42)
Net cashflow 194 276

Goodwill, being the excess of the consideration over the nettangible and intangible assets acquired, represents benefits which do not
qualify for recognition asintangible assets, including the ability of a business to generate higher returns thanindividual assets, skilled
workforces, acquisition synergies that are specific to Reed Elsevier, and high barriers to market entry. In addition, goodwill arises on the
recognition of deferred tax liabilities in respect of intangible assets for which amortisation does not qualify for tax deductions.

The fairvalues of the assets and liabilities acquired are provisional pending the completion of the valuation exercises. Final fair values
willbeincorporatedinthe 2014 combined financial statements. There were no significant adjustments to the provisional fair values of
prioryearacquisitions established in 2012.

The businessesacquiredin 2013 contributed £27m to revenue, increased adjusted operating profit by £8m, increased adjusted net profit
by £8m, decreased net profit by £1m, and contributed a net cash outflow of £3m from operating activities for the partyear under Reed
Elsevier ownership and before taking account of acquisition financing costs. Had the businesses been acquired at the beginning of the
year, ona pro forma basis the Reed Elsevier revenues, adjusted operating profit, adjusted net profit attributable to parent companies’
shareholders and net profit attributable to parent companies’ shareholders for the year would have been £6,067m, £1,751m, £1,199m
and £1,112m respectively before taking account of acquisition financing costs.

2013 2012

£m £m

Reed Elsevier PLC 278 264

Reed Elsevier NV 273 259
Total 551 523

Ordinarydividends declared in the year, inamounts per ordinary share, comprise: a 2012 final dividend of 17p and a 2013 interim dividend
of 6.65p giving a total of 23.65p (2012: 21.9p) for Reed Elsevier PLC; and a 2012 final dividend of €0.337 and a 2013 interim dividend of
€0.132 giving a total of €0.469 (2012: €0.456) for Reed Elsevier NV.

The directors of Reed Elsevier PLC have proposed a final dividend of 17.95p (2012: 17p). The directors of Reed Elsevier NV have proposed
afinaldividend of €0.374 (2012: €0.337). The total cost of funding the proposed final dividends is expected to be £422m, for which no
liability has beenrecognised at the statement of financial position date.



Reed Elsevier AnnualReportsandFinancial Statements 2013 1 2 3

2013 2012

£m £m

Reed Elsevier PLC 286 273
Reed Elsevier NV 291 262
Total o s77 535

Dividends paid to Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV shareholders are, other than in special circumstances, equalised at the gross
levelinclusive of the UK tax credit of 10% received by certain Reed Elsevier PLC shareholders. The cost of funding the Reed Elsevier PLC
dividends is therefore similarto that of Reed Elsevier NV.

2013 2012

£m £m

Atstartofyear 4,545 4,729
Acquisitions 157 165
Disposals/reclassified as held for sale (46) (152)
Exchange translation differences (80) (197)
Atendofyear 4,576 4,545

The carrying amount of goodwillis after cumulative amortisation of £1,154m (2012: £1,180m) which was charged prior to the adoption of
IFRS and £9m (2012: £20m) of subsequentimpairment charges recorded in prioryears.

Impairment review

Impairment testing of goodwill and indefinite lived intangible assets is performed at least annually based on cash generating units
(CGUs). ACGU is the smallestidentifiable group of assets that generate cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows
from other groups of assets. Goodwillimpairment testing is performed on the basis of 25 CGUs (2012: 22 CGUs). CGUs which are not
individually significant have been aggregated for presentation purposes. Typically, acquisitions are fully integrated into existing
business units, and the goodwill arising is allocated to the CGUs, or groups of CGUs that are expected to benefit from the synergies
of the acquisition.

The carrying value of goodwill recorded in the major groups of CGUs is set out below:

2013 2012

£m £m

Scientific, Technical & Medical 1,051 1,026
Risk Solutions 1,604 1,559
Business Information 374 408
Legal 1,121 1,150
Exhibitions 426 402
Total 4,576 4,545

Reed Elsevier’s goodwillimpairment testing methodology, assumptions and sensitivity analysis are disclosed within critical judgements
and key sources of estimation uncertainty on pages 105 and 106.
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Notes to the combined financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2013

Total Internally
Marketand Content, acquired  developed
customer software intangible intangible
related and other assets assets Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 January 2012 2,802 3,263 6,065 1,422 7,487
Acquisitions 201 27 228 1 229
Additions - - - 261 261
Disposals/reclassified as held for sale (56) (97) (153) (114) (267)
Exchange translation differences (131) (103) (234) (53) (287)
At 1 January 2013 2,816 3,090 5,906 1,517 7,623
Acquisitions 49 84 133 - 133
Additions - - - 251 251
Disposals/reclassified as held for sale (55) (216) (271) (27) (298)
Exchange translation differences (65) (16) (81) (24) (105)
At 31 December 2013 2,745 2,942 5,687 1,717 7,404
Accumulated amortisation
At 1January 2012 744 2,422 3,166 827 3,993
Charge fortheyear 173 155 328 151 479
Disposals/reclassified as held for sale (11) (89) (100) (79 (179)
Exchange translation differences (36) (80) (116) (29 (145)
At 1January 2013 870 2,408 3,278 870 4,148
Charge fortheyear 178 139 317 160 477
Disposals/reclassified as held for sale (55) (216) (271) (22) (293)
Exchange translation differences (26) (15) (41) (11) (52)
At 31 December 2013 967 2,316 3,283 997 4,280
Netbook amount
At31December 2012 1,946 682 2,628 647 3,275
At 31 December 2013 1,778 626 2,404 720 3,124

Intangible assets acquired as part of business combinations comprise: market related assets (e.g. trademarks, imprints, brands);

customerrelated assets (e.g. subscription bases, customer lists, customer relationships); and content, software and other intangible
assets (e.g. editorial content, software and product delivery systems, other publishing rights, exhibition rights and supply contracts).
Included in content, software and other acquired intangible assets are assets with a net book value of £353m (2012: £431m) that arose on
acquisitions completed prior to the adoption of IFRS that have not been allocated to specific categories of intangible assets. Internally

developed intangible assets typically comprise software and systems developmentwhere an identifiable asset is created that is

probable to generate future economic benefits.

Included in marketand customer related intangible assets are £347m (2012: £354m) of brands and imprints relating to Scientific,

Technical & Medical determined to have indefinite lives based on an assessment of their historical longevity and stable market positions.
Indefinite lived intangibles are tested forimpairment at least annually using the same value in use assumptions as set out in critical

judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty on pages 105and 106.

Alsoincluded in market and customer related intangible assets are £952m (2012: £1,037m) of customer relationship assets arising on
the acquisition of ChoicePoint in 2008 with a remaining useful economic life of approximately 15 years.
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2013 2012
£m £m
Investmentsin jointventures 125 100
Available for sale investments 2 3
Venture capitalinvestments held for trading 90 76
Total 217 179
2
The value of venture capitalinvestments held for trading, determined by reference to quoted market prices, amounted to £12m z
. . . . . (o]
(2012: £27m). The value of other venture capital investments and available for sale investments has been determined by reference 9
toother observable marketinputs. E
[}
Ananalysis of changesin the carrying value of investments in joint ventures is set out below: =
2013 2012
£m £m
Atstart of year 100 124
Share of results of joint ventures 29 24
Dividends received from joint ventures (22) (20)
Disposals and transfers (3) (33)
Additions 21 10
Exchange translation differences - (5) -
Atend ofyear 125 100 =
3
8
The principaljointventures at 31 December 2013 are exhibition joint ventures within Exhibitions and Giuffre and Martindale within Legal. 1
<.
Summarised aggregate informationin respect of joint ventures and Reed Elsevier’s share is set out below: 2
Totaljointventures Reed Elseviershare
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m £m
Revenue 225 187 110 91
Net profitfor theyear 57 45 29 24
Totalassets 246 227 117 104
Total liabilities (134) (126) (64) (59)
Netassets 112 101 53 45 g
Goodwill 72 55 3
Total 125 100 2

Reed Elsevier's combined other comprehensive income includes nil (2012: nil) relating to joint ventures.
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2013 2012
Landand Fixturesand Landand Fixturesand
buildings  equipment Total buildings  equipment Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m

Cost
Atstartof year 218 537 755 238 582 820
Acquisitions - - - - 1 1
Capital expenditure 4 66 70 10 70 80
Disposals/reclassified as held for sale (8) (34) (42) (21) (97) (118)
Exchange translation differences (4) (11) (15) (9) (19) (28)
Atend of year 210 558 768 218 537 755
Accumulated depreciation
At startof year 116 375 491 118 414 532
Disposals/reclassified as held for sale (6) (32) (38) (5) (94) (99)
Charge fortheyear 9 80 89 8 68 76
Exchange translation differences (2) 9 (1) (5) (13) (18]
Atendofyear 117 414 531 116 375 491
Netbook amount 93 144 237 102 162 264

No depreciation is provided on freehold land of £14m (2012: £15m). The net book amount of property, plantand equipment at
31 December2013includes £17m (2012: £11m] in respect of assets held under finance leases relating to fixtures and equipment.

Details of the objectives, policies and strategies pursued by Reed Elsevierin relation to financialinstruments and capital management
aresetouton pages58and 59 of the Financial Review. The main financial risks faced by Reed Elsevier are liquidity risk, market risk -
comprisinginterest rate risk and foreign exchange risk —and credit risk. Financialinstruments are used to finance the Reed Elsevier
businesses and to hedge interest rate and foreign exchange risks. Reed Elsevier's businesses do not enterinto speculative derivative
transactions. Details of financialinstruments subject to liquidity, market and credit risks are described below.

Liquidity risk

Reed Elsevier maintains a range of borrowing facilities and debt programmes to fund its requirements, at short notice and at
competitive rates. The remaining contractual maturities for borrowings and derivative financialinstruments are shown in the table
below. The table shows undiscounted principaland interest cash flows and includes contractual gross cash flows to be exchanged as
partof cross currency interest rate swaps and forward foreign exchange contracts where thereis a legal right of set-off.

Contractual cash flow
Carrying Within Morethan

amount 1year 1-2years 2-3years 3-4years 4-5years 5years Total
At 31 December 2013 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Borrowings
Fixed rate borrowings (2,931) (497) (243) (524) (420) (264) (1,909) (3,857)
Floating rate borrowings (350) (288) (61) - (1) - (2) (352)
Derivative financial liabilities
Interest rate derivatives (4) - - - (1) (4) (7) (12)
Cross currencyinterest rate swaps (6) (180) (3) (5) (7) (193) - (388)
Forward foreign exchange contracts (7) (1,031) (402) (222) - - - (1,655)
Derivative financial assets
Interest rate derivatives 19 13 1" [ 1 - - 31
Cross currency interest rate swaps 70 247 2 2 3 189 - 443
Forward foreign exchange contracts 99 1,082 431 233 - - - 1,746

Total 3110 (654) (265) (510) (425) (272)  (1,918)  (4,044)
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Contractual cash flow

Carrying Within More than

amount 1year 1-2years 2-3years 3-4years 4-5years Syears Total
At 31 December 2012 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Borrowings
Fixed rate borrowings (3,695) (803) (797) (251) (530) (428) (1,940) (4,749)
Floating rate borrowings (197) (132) (1) (63) - (1) (3) (200)
Derivative financial liabilities
Interest rate derivatives (2) (3) - - - - (5) (8)
Cross currency interest rate swaps - (166) (180) - - - - (346)
Forward foreign exchange contracts (9) (1,382) (442) (194) - - - (2,018)
Derivative financial assets
Interest rate derivatives 47 35 13 12 9 6 - 75
Cross currency interest rate swaps 93 202 243 - - - - 445
Forward foreign exchange contracts 55 1,400 460 202 - - - 2,062
Total (3,708) (849) (704) (294) (521) (423) (1,948) (4,739)

The carrying amount of derivative financial liabilities comprises £10m (2012: nil) in relation to fair value hedges, £7m (2012: £7m] in
relation to cash flow hedges and nil (2012: £4m) not designated as hedging instruments. The carrying amount of derivative financial
assets comprises £84m (2012: £124m)in relation to fair value hedges, £88m (2012: £46m) in relation to cash flow hedges and £29m
(2012: £25m) not designated as hedging instruments, less £13m (2012: nil) of cash collateral received from swap counterparties which
has been offset against the related derivative financial assets (see ‘Credit risk” below). The expected cash flows in respect of the cash
collateral have beenincludedin the tables above together with the cash flows for the related cross currencyinterest rate swaps.

At 31 December 2013, Reed Elsevier had access toa $2,000m committed bank facility maturing in July 2018, which was undrawn.

The bank facility, together with certain private placements, are subject to financial covenants typical to Reed Elsevier’s size and financial
strength. Reed Elsevier had significant headroom within these covenants for the year ended 31 December 2013. There are no financial
covenantsinany outstanding public bonds.

Aftertaking account of the maturity of committed bank facilities that back short term borrowings at 31 December 2013, and after utilising
available cashresources, no borrowings mature within two years (2012: nil), no borrowings mature in the third year (2012: 27%), 50% in
the fourth and fifth years (2012: 23%), 42% in the sixth to tenth years (2012: 39%), and 8% beyond the tenth year (2012: 11%).

Marketrisk

Reed Elsevier’s primary market risks are to interest rate fluctuations and exchange rate movements. Derivatives are used to hedge or
reduce the risks of interest rate and exchange rate movements and are not entered into unless such risks exist. Derivatives used by
Reed Elsevier for hedging a particularrisk are not specialised and are generally available from numerous sources. The impact of
market risks on net post employment benefit obligations and taxation is excluded from the following market risk sensitivity analysis.

Interest rate risk
Reed Elsevier'sinterest rate exposure management policy is aimed at reducing the exposure of the combined businesses to changesin
interest rates.

At 31 December 2013, 57% of gross borrowings were either fixed rate or had been fixed through the use of interest rate swaps, forward
rate agreements and options. A 100 basis point reductionininterest rates would resultin an estimated decrease in net finance costs of
£12m (2012: £8m), based on the composition of financial instruments including cash, cash equivalents, bank loans and commercial
paper borrowings at 31 December 2013. A 100 basis pointrise ininterest rates would result in an estimated increase in net finance costs
of £12m (2012: £8m).

The impacton net equity of atheoretical changeininterestratesas at 31 December 2013 is restricted to the change in carrying value of
floating rate to fixed rate interest rate derivatives in a designated cash flow hedge relationship and undesignated interest rate
derivatives. A 100 basis point reduction in interest rates would result in an estimated reduction in net equity of nil (2012: £1m)and a

100 basis pointincrease in interest rates would increase net equity by an estimated £1m (2012: £2m). The impact of a change in interest
rates onthe carryingvalue of fixed rate borrowings in a designated fair value hedge relationship would be offset by the changein
carryingvalue of the related interest rate derivative. Fixed rate borrowings notin a designated hedging relationship are carried at
amortised cost.
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Foreign exchange rate risk
Translation exposures arise onthe earnings and net assets of business operations in countries with currencies other than sterling, most
particularlyin respect of the US businesses. Some of these exposures are offset by denominating borrowings in US dollars (see note 24).

Atheoretical weakening of all currencies by 10% against sterling at 31 December 2013 would decrease the carrying value of net assets,
excluding net borrowings, by £500m (2012: £495m). This would be offset to a degree by a decrease in net borrowings of £246m (2012:
£286m). A strengthening of all currencies by 10% against sterling at 31 December 2013 would increase the carrying value of net assets,
excluding net borrowings, by £500m (2012: £495m) and increase net borrowings by £246m (2012: £286).

Aretranslation of the combined businesses’ net profit for the year assuming a 10% weakening of all foreign currencies against sterling
but excluding transactional exposures would reduce net profit by £92m (2012: £80m). A 10% strengthening of all foreign currencies
against sterling on this basis would increase net profit for the year by £92m (2012: £80m).

Creditrisk

Reed Elsevier seeks to limitinterest rate and foreign exchange risks described above by the use of financialinstruments and as aresult
has a credit risk from the potential non performance by the counterparties to these financial instruments, which are unsecured.

The amount of this credit risk is normally restricted to the amounts of any hedge gain and not the principalamount being hedged.

Reed Elsevieralso has a credit exposure to counterparties for the full principalamount of cash and cash equivalents. Creditrisks are
controlled by monitoring the credit quality of these counterparties, principally licensed commercial banks and investment banks with
strong long term credit ratings, and the amounts outstanding with each of them.

In certain situations, Reed Elsevier enters into credit supportarrangements with derivative counterparties to mitigate the credit
exposures arising from hedge gains on the related financial instruments. Under these arrangements, Reed Elsevier receives (or pays)
cash collateral equal to the mark to market valuation of the related derivative asset (or liability] on monthly settlement dates.

At 31 December 2013, £13m (2012: nil) of cash collateral had been received, and the resulting payable balance was offset against the
related derivative assets of £12m (2012: nil) in the statement of financial position.

Reed Elsevier hastreasury policies in place which do not allow concentrations of risk with individual counterparties and do not allow
significant treasury exposures with counterparties which are rated lower than A-/A3 by Standard & Poor’s, Moody's and Fitch.

Reed Elsevieralso has credit risk with respect to trade receivables due fromits customers thatinclude national and state governments,
academicinstitutions and large and small enterprisesincluding law firms, book stores and wholesalers. The concentration of credit
risk fromtrade receivablesis limited due to the large and broad customer base. Trade receivable exposures are managed locally in the
business units where they arise. Where appropriate, business units seek to minimise this exposure by taking payment in advance and
through management of credit terms. Allowance is made for bad and doubtful debts based on management’s assessment of the risk
takingintoaccount the ageing profile, experience and circumstance. The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carryingamount of each financial asset, including derivative financialinstruments, recorded in the statement of financial position.

Included within trade receivables are the following amounts which are past due but for which no allowance has been made. Past due up
to one month £156m (2012: £148m); past due two to three months £76m (2012: £58m); past due four to six months £26m (2012: £14m); and
pastdue greater than sixmonths £7m (2012: £1m). Examples of trade receivables which are past due but for which no allowance has
been madeinclude those receivables where thereis no concern over the creditworthiness of the customerand where the history of
dealings with the customerindicate the amount will be settled.
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Hedge accounting
The hedging relationships that are designated under IAS39 - Financial Instruments are described below:

Fairvalue hedges

Reed Elsevier has entered into interest rate swaps and cross currency interest rate swaps to hedge the exposure to changes in the fair
value of fixed rate borrowings due to interest rate and foreign currency movements which could affect the income statement. Interest
rate derivatives (including cross currency interest rate swaps) with a principal amount of £1,104m (2012: £1,502m) were in place at

31 December 2013 swapping fixed rate term debt issues denominated in US dollars (USD), sterling, euros and Swiss francs (CHF) to
floating rate USD, sterling, euroand USD debt respectively for the whole or part of their term.

The gains and losses on the borrowings and related derivatives designated as fair value hedges, which are included in the income
statement, for the twoyears ended 31 December 2013 were as follows:

Fairvalue Fairvalue
1January movement De- Exchange 1January movement Exchange 31December
2012 gain/(loss) designated gain/(loss) 2013 gain/lloss) gain/(loss) 2013
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
USD debt - - - - - 6 - 6
Related interest rate swaps - - - - - (6) - (6)
GBP debt e [301 B "[‘6] . e B ié(,] B 17 s B [19] .
Related interest rate swaps 30 6 - - 36 (17) - 19
U ——— "'(‘8] e s B ”[‘8] e
Related interest rate swaps 8 (9) - 8 (13)
G g - s —— B '[‘é[]) T e
Related CHF to USD cross
currencyinterestrate
TotalUSD, GBP, EURandCHF
debt (123) (14) 9 4 (124) 50 - (74)
Totalrelated interest rate
derivatives 123 14 (9) (4) 124 (50) - 74

Net gain - - - - - - - -

Allfairvalue hedges were highly effective throughout the two years ended 31 December 2013.

Gross borrowings as at 31 December 2013 included £31m (2012: £37m) in relation to fair value adjustments to borrowings previously
designatedinafairvalue hedge relationship which were de-designated in 2008. The related derivatives were closed out on
de-designation with a cash inflow of £62m. £5m (2012: £5m) of these fair value adjustments were amortised in the year as a reduction
tofinance costs.

Gross borrowings included nil (2012: £2m)]in relation to fair value adjustments to borrowings previously designated in a fair value hedging
relationship which were de-designated during 2012. £2m (2012: £7m) of these fair value adjustments were amortised in the yearas a
reduction tofinance costs.

M3IAIBAQ

MaIAaJ SSauIsSNg

MaIASJ eIDUBUIS

9dUBUIBA09

e
3
[
3
a,
2
(4]
-
[
-~
(]
3
(]
3
-
[
[
3
=3
o
-~
=
o
=
3
=
(=]
=
3
[
=
o
=




1 30 FINANCIALSTATEMENTS AND OTHER INFORMATION
NOTESTO THE COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the combined financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013

Cash flowhedges
Reed Elsevier entersinto two types of cash flow hedge:

(1) Debthedges comprisinginterest rate derivatives which fix the interest expense on a portion of forecast floating rate debt (including
commercial paper, shortterm bank loans and floating rate term debt), and cross currency interest rate derivatives which hedge the

cash flow exposure arising from foreign currency denominated debt.

(2) Revenuehedges comprising forward foreign exchange contracts which fix the exchange rate on a portion of future foreign currency

subscription revenues forecast by the Scientific, Technical & Medical businesses for up to 50 months.

Movements in the hedge reserve (pre-tax)in 2012 and 2013, including gains and losses on cash flow hedging instruments, were

as follows:
Totalhedge
Debt Revenue reserve
hedges hedges pre-tax
£m £m £m
Hedgereserve at 1 January 2012: losses deferred (17) (46) (63)
(Losses)/gains arisingin 2012 (2) 72 70
Amountsrecognisedinincome statement 16 10 26
Exchange translation differences 1 1 2
Hedgereserve at 1 January 2013: (losses)/gains deferred (2) 37 35
Gainsarisingin 2013 1 64 65
Amounts recognised inincome statement (6) (3)
Exchange translation differences - (1) (1)
Hedgereserve at 31 December 2013: gains deferred 2 94 96

Allcash flow hedges were highly effective throughout the two years ended 31 December 2013.

Ataxcharge of £23m (2012: £9m) in respect of the above gains and losses at 31 December 2013 was also deferredin the hedge reserve.

Of the amounts recognised in the income statement in the year, gains of £6m (2012: losses of £10m) were recognised in revenue, and
losses of £3m (2012: £16m) were recognised in finance costs. Atax charge of £1m (2012: credit of £5m) was recognised in relation to

theseitems.

The deferred gains and losses on cash flow hedges at 31 December 2013 are currently expected to be recognised in theincome

statementin future years as follows:

Totalhedge

Debt Revenue reserve

hedges hedges pre-tax

£m £m £m

2014 (2) 38 36
2015 (1) 37 36
2016 - 17 17
2017 - 2 2
2018 5 - 5
Gainsdeferredin hedgereserve atend of year 2 94 96

The cash flows for these hedges are expected to occurin line with the recognition of the gains and losses in the income statement, other
thaninrespect of certain forward foreign exchange hedges on subscriptions, where cash flows may be expected to occurin advance of

the subscriptionyear.
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2013 2012
£m £m
Deferred taxassets 442 79
Deferred tax liabilities (1,076) (919)
Total O (634) (840)

Movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets (before taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within the same jurisdiction)
aresummarised as follows:

Deferredtaxliabilities Deferredtaxassets
Excess of tax Excess of
allowances Acquired Other  amortisation  Taxlosses Other
over intangible  temporary over tax carried Pensions temporary
amortisation assets differences allowances forward liabilities differences Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Deferred tax (liability)/asset
at1January 2012 (231) (900) (105) 16 48 86 62 (1,024)
(Charge)/credit to profit (5) 85 (9) (3] (19) (21) 23 51
(Chargel/credit to equity/other 82
comprehensive income - - (3) - - 91 (6)
Acquisitions 1 (10) - (3) (2) - (2) (16)
Disposals/reclassified as held for sale 2 18 - (1) - (1) 25
Exchange translation differences 10 35 2 (1) (3) (3] 2 42
Deferred tax (liability)/asset
at1January 2013 (223) (772) (108) 9 23 153 78 (840)
(Chargel/creditto profit (138) 98 (106) 346 (8 (26) 105 271
(Chargel/credit to equity/other
comprehensiveincome - - (6) - - (24) 12 (18)
Acquisitions - (39) - - - - - (39)
Disposals/reclassified as held for sale (3) (18) (9) - - - - (30)
Exchange translation differences 13 13 4 (6) (1) 1 (2) 22
Deferred tax (liability)/asset
at31December 2013 (351) (718) (225) 349 14 104 193 (634)

Other deferred tax liabilities includes temporary differences in respect of plant, property and equipment, capitalised development
spend and financialinstruments. Other deferred tax assetsincludes temporary differences in respect of share based remuneration
and provisions.

Deferredtaxassetsinrespectoftax lossesand other deductible temporary differences have only been recognised to the extent thatitis
more likely than not that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the asset to be recovered. Accordingly, no deferred tax asset
has been recognisedinrespectof unused trading losses of approximately £84m (2012: £129m)] carried forward atyear end. The deferred
taxasset notrecognised in respect of these losses is approximately £20m (2012: £34m). Of the unrecognised losses, £56m (2012: £47m)
will expire if not utilised within 10 years, and £28m (2012: £82m)] will expire after more than 10 years.

Deferred tax assets of approximately £14m (2012: £9m) have not been recognised in respect of tax losses and other temporary
differences carried forward of £69m (2012: £41m) which can only be used to offset future capital gains.

2013 2012

£m £m

Raw materials 3 3
Pre-publication costs 90 101
Finished goods 49 55
Total 142 159
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NOTESTO THE COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the combined financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013

2013 2012
£m £m
Tradereceivables 1,299 1,256
Allowance for doubtful debts (57) (51)
1,242 1,205
Prepayments and accrued income 174 175
Total 1,416 1,380
Trade receivables are predominantly non-interest bearing and their carrying amounts approximate to their fair value.
Tradereceivables are stated net of allowances for bad and doubtful debts. The movements in the provision during the year were
as follows:
2013 2012
£m £m
Atstartofyear 51 63
Charge fortheyear 17 13
Trade receivables written off (11 (18]
Disposals - (6)
Exchange translation differences - (1)
Atendofyear 57 51
The major classes of assets and liabilities of operations classified as held for sale are as follows:
2013 2012
£m £m
Goodwill 16 134
Intangible assets - 84
Property, plant & equipment - 3
Deferredtaxassets - 4
Inventories - 1
Trade and otherreceivables 5 71
Totalassets held for sale 21 297
Trade and other payables 3 69
Deferred tax liabilities - 27
Total liabilities associated with assets held for sale 3 96
2013 2012
£m £m
Payablesand accruals 1,192 1,150
Deferredincome 1,403 1,394
Total 2,595 2,544

The carryingamount of trade and other payables approximates to their fair value.
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2013 2012

Fallingdue Fallingduein Fallingdue Fallingduein

within morethan within morethan
1year 1year Total 1year 1year Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m

Financial liabilities measured atamortised cost:

Shortterm bank loans, overdrafts and commercial paper 287 - 287 131 - 131
Term debt - 1,223 1,223 - 1,526 1,526
Finance leases 9 8 17 7 9 16
Termdebtin fairvalue hedging relationships 240 938 1,178 102 1,036 1,138
Term debt previouslyin fair value hedging relationships 112 464 576 490 591 1,081
Total 648 2,633 3,281 730 3,162 3,892

In2013, £186m principal amount of term debt maturing in 2019 was exchanged for £235m principal amount of term debt maturingin
2022 and cash. The exchangeis treated as a debt modification for accounting purposes. The premium arising is offset against the
carryingamount of the newly issued term debt maturing in 2022 and will be amortised overits life.

The total fair value of financial liabilities measured at amortised cost is £1,709m (2012: £1,996m). The total fair value of term debt in fair
value hedging relationshipsis £1,288m (2012: £1,177m). The total fair value of term debt previously in fair value hedging relationships is

£650m (2012: £1,189m).

Analysis by year of repayment

2013 2012

Shortterm Shortterm

bank loans, bank loans,

overdrafts overdrafts

and and

commercial Finance commercial Finance

paper Termdebt leases Total paper Termdebt leases Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Within 1year 287 352 9 648 131 592 7 730
Within 1to 2years - 174 5 179 - (YA 6 650
Within 2to 3years - 400 3 403 - 178 3 181
Within 3to 4years - 341 - 341 - 400 - 400
Within 4to 5years - 181 - 181 - 359 - 359
After Syears - 1,529 - 1,529 - 1,572 - 1,572
After 1year - 2,625 8 2,633 - 3,153 9 3,162
Total 287 2,977 17 3,281 131 3,745 16 3,892

Shortterm bank loans, overdrafts and commercial paper were backed up at 31 December 2013 by a $2,000m (£1,207m) committed bank

facility maturing in July 2018, which was undrawn.

Analysis by currency

2013 2012

Shortterm Shortterm

bankloans, bank loans,

overdrafts overdrafts

and and

commercial Finance commercial Finance

paper Termdebt leases Total paper Term debt leases Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
USdollars 87 1,800 17 1,904 25 2,059 16 2,100
£ sterling 27 719 - 746 - 736 - 736
Euro 167 458 - 625 103 950 - 1,053
Other currencies 6 - - 6 3 - - 3
Total 287 2,977 17 3,281 131 3,745 16 3,892

Included inthe US dollar amounts for term debt above is £427m (2012: £347m) of debt denominated in Swiss francs (CHF 625m:;

2012: CHF 500m) that was swapped into US dollars onissuance and against which there are related derivative financial instruments,
which, asat31 December 2013, had a fairvalue of £81m (2012: £80m). £65m (2012: £80m) of these derivatives were designated as fair
value hedges of the related Swiss franc debt, and £16m (2012: nil) were undesignated.
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Notes to the combined financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013

Finance leases
At 31 December 2013 future finance lease obligations fall due as follows:

2013 2012
£m £m
Within one year 9 7
Inthe second tofifthyearsinclusive 8 9
""""" 17 16
Lessfuture finance charges - -
Total 17 16
Presentvalue of future finance lease obligations payable:
Within oneyear 9 7
Inthe second tofifthyearsinclusive 8 9
Total 17 16
The fairvalue of the lease obligations approximates to their carrying amount.
Operating leases
Reed Elsevier leases various properties, principally offices and warehouses, which have varying terms and renewal rights that are
typicaltothe territoryin which theyare located.
At 31 December 2013 outstanding commitments under non-cancellable operating leases fall due as follows:
2013 2012
£m £m
Within one year 103 117
Inthe second to fifth yearsinclusive 275 309
Afterfive years 169 184
Total 547 610

Of the above outstanding commitments, £528m (2012: £577m) relate to land and buildings.

Reed Elsevier has anumber of properties thatare sub-leased. The future lease receivables contracted with sub-tenants fall as follows:

2013 2012

£m £m

Within oneyear 16 16
Inthe second tofifthyearsinclusive 43 33
Afterfiveyears 25 17
Total 84 66
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2012
Property Restructuring Total Property Restructuring Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
At startof year 164 5 169 109 17 126
Transfers - - - 22 - 22
Charged - - - 62 - 62
Utilised (32) (3) (35) (24) (12) (36)
Exchange translation differences (1) - (1) (5) - (5)
Atend of year 131 2 133 164 5 169
Property provisions relate to estimated sub lease shortfalls and guarantees givenin respect of certain property leases for various
periods up to 2024. The charge in 2012 predominantly relates to property exposures on disposed businesses.
At 31 December 2013 provisions are included within currentand non-current liabilities as follows:
2013 2012
£m £m
Current liabilities 17 30
Non-current liabilities 116 139
Total 133 169

Combined share capitals exclude the shares of Reed Elsevier NV held by a subsidiary of Reed Elsevier PLC. Disclosures in respect of
share capitalare givenin note 12to the Reed Elsevier PLC consolidated financial statements and note 13 to the Reed Elsevier NV
consolidated financial statements. Combined share premiums exclude the share premium in respect of shares of Reed Elsevier NV held
by asubsidiary of Reed Elsevier PLC.

During the year Reed Elsevier repurchased 41,961,920 Reed Elsevier PLC ordinary shares, 24,282,106 Reed Elsevier NVordinary shares
and 94,053 Reed Elsevier NV R shares for consideration of £600m. These shares are held intreasury.

The EBT purchases Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV shares which, atthe trustees’ discretion, can be used in respect of the
exercise of share options and to meet commitments under conditional share awards. At 31 December 2013, shares held by the EBT were
£112m (2012: £152m) at cost.

Details of the shares held intreasuryare provided in note 12 of the Reed Elsevier PLC consolidated financial statements and note 13 of
the Reed Elsevier NV consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the combined financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013

Hedge Other Total

reserve reserves Total Restated

2013 2013 2013 2012

£m £m £m £m

Atstartof year 26 226 252 (199)
Profitattributable to parent companies’ shareholders - 1,110 1,110 1,044

Dividends paid - (549) (549) (521)

Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit pension schemes - 40 40 (293)
Transfer to net profit on disposal of available for sale investments - - - "
Fairvalue movements on cash flow hedges 65 - 65 70
Taxrecognised in other comprehensive income (15) (24) (39) 77
Increase in share based remuneration reserve (net of tax) - 48 48 31
Settlement of share awards - (40) (40) (7)
Transferto net profit from cash flow hedge reserve (net of tax) (2) - (2) 21
Disposal of non-controlling interests - - - 6
Exchange translation differences (1) (4) (5) 12
Atend of year 73 807 880 252

Otherreserves principally comprise retained earnings and the share based remuneration reserve.

Transactions between the Reed Elsevier combined businesses have been eliminated within the combined financial statements.
Transactions with joint ventures were made on normal market terms of trading and comprise sales of goods and services of £1m

(2012: £1m). As at 31 December 2013, amounts owed by joint ventures were £7m (2012: £1m) and amounts due to joint ventures were £6m
(2012: £1m). Key management personnel are also related parties as defined by IAS24 - Related Party Disclosures and comprise the
Executive and Non-Executive Directors of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV.

Key management personnel remunerationis set out below: The remuneration details of Executive Directors employed during 2013 are
giveninthe Directors’ Remuneration Report single total remuneration table (page 86), with these details forming anintegral part of the
financial statements. In addition to the Directors reported in the Remuneration Report, Mark Armour served as an Executive Director
until 31 December 2012. Details of Mr Armour’s remuneration are shown below. For reporting purposes, salary, benefits and annual
incentive payments are considered short term employee benefits.

2013 2012
£m £m
Salaries, other shortterm employee benefits and non-executive fees 4 5
Post employment benefits 1 1
Share based remuneration* 4 5
Total 9 11
Costof Costof
Annual sharebased pension
Salary Benefits Incentive remuneration* provision* Total
£°000 £000 £°000 £°000 £°000 £000
2013 1,677 260 1,743 3,898 642 8,220
Total Executive Directors 2012 1,910 62 2,074 5,079 770 9,895
2013 - - - - - -
Of which: Mark Armour** 2012 645 24 694 2,067 259 3,689

*The share based remuneration charge comprises the multi-year incentive scheme chargesin accordance with IFRS2 - Share Based
Payment. These IFRS2 charges do not reflect the actual value received on vesting. The cost of pension provision comprises the transfer
value of the increase in accrued pension during the year (net of inflation, Directors’ contributions and participation fee) for defined
benefit schemes and payments made to defined contribution schemes orin lieu of pension.

**Mark Armour served as an Executive Director until31 December 2012.
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2013 2012
€000 £:000
Feesand benefits 1,088 1,066

The remuneration details of Non-Executive Directors are set out in the Remuneration Report (page 87), with these details forming an
integral part of the financial statements. No termination benefits were paid to any Directorin 2013 (2012: nil). No loans, advances or
guarantees have been provided on behalf of any Director. The aggregate gains made by Executive Directors on the exercise of options
during 2013 were £2,526,305. Details are shown on page 90. As disclosed in last year’s Remuneration Report, the current Executive
Directors did not exercise any options during 2012. Details of Directors’ remuneration are set outin the Directors’ Remuneration Report
on pages 78to %4.

The following exchange rates have been applied in preparing the combined financial statements:

Statement of
Income statement financial position
2013 2012 2013 2012
Eurotosterling 1.18 1.23 1.20 1.23
USdollarstosterling 1.56 1.59 1.66 1.62

The combined financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Boards of Directors of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed
Elsevier NVon 26 February 2014.
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Independent auditors’ report

to the members of Reed Elsevier PLC and shareholders of Reed Elsevier NV

Opinion on our audit of the combined financial statements of
Reed Elsevier
Inour opinion the combined financial statements:

give atrue andfairview of the state of affairs of Reed Elsevier
PLC, Reed Elsevier NV, Reed Elsevier Group plc, Elsevier Reed
Finance BVand their respective subsidiaries, associates and
jointventures (together “the combined businesses”) as at

31 December 2013 and of their profit and their cash flows for the
year then ended; and

have been properly prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the
European Union.

We have audited the combined financial statements of the
combined businesses which comprise the combined income
statement, the combined statement of comprehensive income, the
combined statement of cash flows, the combined statement of
financial position, the combined statement of changes in equity,
asummary of significantaccounting policies and the related

notes 1to31. The financial reporting framework that has been
appliedintheir preparationisapplicable lawand IFRSs as adopted
by the European Union.

Our assessment of risks of material misstatement

The assessed risks of material misstatement described below are
those that, in our professional judgement, had the greatest effect
onour audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the audit and
directing the efforts of the engagement team:

The assessment of the carrying value of goodwill and acquired
intangible assets;

The combined businesses had £4,576m of goodwilland £2,404m
ofacquiredintangible assetsasat31 December2013. The
quantum of these balances together with the inherentjudgements
required to be made when performing animpairment review have
resulted in us considering this a significant risk.

We challenged management’'s assumptions used in the
impairment model for goodwilland acquired intangible assets,
described in note 14 to the combined financial statements,
including specifically the cash flow projections, discount rate,
perpetuity growth rates and sensitivities used.

The carrying value of internally developed intangible assets in
accordance with IAS38 “Intangible Assets”;

The closing net book value of all capitalised development projects
is £720m. The quantum of these balances together with the
inherent judgements required to be made when performingan
impairment review have resulted in us considering this a
significantrisk.

development projectsin-progress were still expected to deliver
sufficient positive economic benefits to the combined businesses
upon their completion, and for completed development projects,
considered whether the useful economic lives selected remained
appropriate.

Revenuerecognition, including the timing of revenue recognition
and the accounting for multiple element arrangements;

Reed Elsevier’s businesses continue to evolve and new business
models canresultin new revenue arrangements. This can result
in circumstances which require careful consideration to
determine how revenue should be recognised.

including the timing of revenue recognition and the accounting for
revenue recognition in multiple elementarrangements, as wellas
substantive testing, analytical procedures and assessing whether
therevenue recognition policies adopted complied with IFRS.

The valuation of amounts recorded for uncertain tax positions;
Reed Elsevier operatesinasignificant number of jurisdictions
around the world, all with differing tax regimes with complex
cross-borderarrangements, andis therefore open to challenge
from multiple tax authorities.

assumptions and estimates in relation to uncertain tax positions,
challenging those assumptions and considering advice received
by management from external parties to support their position.

The above matters are selected from the matters communicated
tothe Audit Committees, butare notintended to representall
matters that were discussed with them. The Audit Committees’
consideration of these risks is set out on page 95.

Our audit procedures relating to these matters were designedin
the context of our audit of the financial statements as awhole, and
not to expressan opinion onindividualaccounts or disclosures.
Our opinion on the financial statements is not modified with
respecttoany of the risks described above, and we do not express
anopinionontheseindividual matters.

Our application of materiality

We have considered a number of benchmarks in order to guide our
determination of our materiality. We determined materiality for
the combined businesses to be £85m, which is around 7% of
pre-tax profitand below 5% of equity. Our audit work at the
operating locations was executed at levels of materiality lower
than the materiality for the combined businesses and was capped
at£30mor $50m.

We agreed with the Audit Committees that we would report to the
Committees all audit differencesin excessof £1.7m, aswell as
differences below that threshold that, in our view, warranted
reporting on qualitative grounds.

Anoverview of the scope of our audit

Our audit of the combined financial statements was scoped by
obtaining an understanding of the combined businesses and its
environment, including the entity-wide controls, and assessing
therisks of material misstatement at the combined businesses
level. Based on thatrisk assessment, we designed and performed
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtained audit
evidence thatis sufficientand appropriate to provide a basis for
ouropinion. In making those risk assessments, we considered
internal controlrelevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statementsin order to design audit
procedures thatare appropriatein the circumstances. As part of
anauditinaccordance with the applicable standards, we exercised
professionaljudgmentand maintained professional scepticism
throughout the planning and performance of the audit.
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Based on thatassessment, our audit scope for the combined
businesses focused primarily on the audits of seventeen operating
locations, which represent the principal business units within the
combined businesses’ five reportable segments. These locations,
together with the combined businesses” head office functions,
whichwere also subject to a full scope audit, account for 95% of
the combined businesses’total assets, 92% of the combined
businesses’ total liabilities, 80% of the combined businesses’
revenue, 84% of the combined businesses” adjusted operating
profitand 87% of the combined businesses’ profit before tax. They
were also selected to provide an appropriate basis for undertaking
auditwork to address the risks of material misstatement
identified above.

The combined businesses” audit team continued to follow a
programme of planned visits that has been designed so that the
Audit Partners of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV
frequently visit the key locations. The Audit Partners also attend
audit close meetings with management of each of the combined
businesses’ five operating segments, alongside the local auditors
of the business units.

We also tested the consolidation process and carried out analytical
procedures to confirm our conclusion that there were no significant
risks of material misstatement of the aggregated financial
information of the remaining components not subject to audit.

We obtain sufficientappropriate audit evidence regarding the
financialinformation of the entities and business activities to
expressan opinion onthe combined financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervisionand performance of the
combined businesses’ audit. We remain responsible for our
audit opinion.

Going concern

The financial statements of the combined businesses have been
prepared using the going concern basis of accounting. The use of
this basis of accounting is appropriate unless management either
intends to liquidate the combined businesses orto cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

We have reviewed the Report of the Boards on page 76 where the
Board has notidentified a material uncertainty that may cast
significant doubt on the combined businesses’ ability to continue
asagoing concern. We confirm that:

we have notidentified material uncertainties related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the combined
businesses’ ability to continue as a going concern which we
believe would need to be disclosed in accordance with IFRSs as
adopted by the European Union; and

we have concluded that the Board’s use of the going concern
basis of accountingin the preparation of the financial
statementsis appropriate.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be
predicted, this statementis nota guarantee as to the combined
businesses’ ability to continue asa going concern.

Other matters

The separate audit reports on the consolidated financial
statements of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV, which
have been audited under locally adopted auditing standards and
which include the other opinions required by local laws and
regulations, appear on pages 174to 175and 197 to 198.

139

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fullyin the Directors’ responsibilities
statement, the Boards are responsible for the preparation of the
combined financial statementsin accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union
and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view and for
suchinternal controlas they determineis necessarytoenable the
preparation of combined financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due tofraud orerror.

Ourresponsibility is to auditand express an opinion on the
combined financial statements in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) as issued by the United
Kingdom Auditing Practices Board and Dutch Law, including the
Dutch Standards on Auditing. The standards require us to comply
with our respective professions’ ethical requirements, including
the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors and
the International Ethical Standards Board of Accountants Code of
Ethics. We are independent of the group within the meaning of the
applicable law and regulation and have fulfilled our other
responsibilities under those ethical requirements. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficientand appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

We are required to communicate with the Audit Committees
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the auditand significantaudit findings, including any significant
deficienciesininternal control that we identify during our audit.
We are also required to provide the Audit Committees with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirementsregardingindependence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thoughttobearonourindependence, and where applicable
related safeguards.

Scope of the audit of the combined financial statements

An auditinvolves obtaining evidence about the amounts and
disclosuresin the combined financial statements sufficient to give
reasonable assurance that the combined financial statements are
free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or
error. Thisincludes an assessment of: whether the accounting
policies are appropriate to the combined businesses’
circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately
disclosed; the reasonableness of significantaccounting estimates
made by the directors; and the overall presentation of the
combined financial statements. In addition, we read all the
financialand non-financialinformation in the annualreport to
identify materialinconsistencies with the audited combined
financial statements and to identify any information thatis
apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially
inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of
performing the audit. If we become aware of any apparent
material misstatements orinconsistencies we consider the
implications forourreport.

Douglas King (Senior statutory auditor) ASandler

Forandon behalf of

Deloitte LLP Deloitte Accountants B.V.
Chartered Accountants Amsterdam
and Statutory Auditor The Netherlands
London, United Kingdom

26 February 2014 26 February 2014
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1 42 FINANCIALSTATEMENTS AND OTHER INFORMATION
SUMMARY COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN EUROS

The Reed Elsevier combined financial statements are presented in pounds sterling. This summary financialinformation presents the

primary combined financial statements and selected notes in euros using the exchange rates provided in note 30 to the combined
financial statements.

Combined income statement

Restated
2013 2012
Note €m €m
Revenue 1 7,121 7,523
Cost of sales (2,499) (2,631)
Grossprofit 4,622 4,892
Selling and distribution costs (1,186) (1,249)
Administration and other expenses (1,847) (2,033)
Operating profit beforejointveh'tmuuruéus' """"""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""" 1 1,589 1610
Share of results of joint ventures 35 29
Operatingprofit 1,624 1639
Financeincome 12 20
Finance costs (243) (299)
Netfinancecosts (231) (279)
Disposalsand othernon operat‘i'ﬁ‘é‘]”i"‘t'é‘r'ﬁé """""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""" 19 56
Profitbeforetax 1,412 1416
Current tax (416) (189)
Deferred tax 320 63
Taxexpense (96) (126]
Netprofitfortheyear 1,316 1290
Attributable to:
Parent companies’ shareholders 1,310 1,284
Non-controlling interests 6 6
Netprofitfortheyear 1,316 1290
Combined statement of comprehensive income
Restated
2013 2012
€m €m
Net profit for theyear 1,316 1,290
Items thatwill not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit pension schemes 47 (360)
Tax onitems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (28) 118
Totalitems thatwill not be reclaSS|f|edtoprof|t orloss 19 [242]
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences ontranslation of foreign operations (171) (102)
Transferto net profit on disposal of available for sale investments - 14
Fairvalue movements on cash flow hedges 77 86
Transfer to net profit from cash flow hedge reserve (net of tax) (2) 26
Tax onitems that may be reclassified to profit or loss (18) (24)
Totalitems that may be reclassmedtoprofltorloss """""""""""""""""""""""""""""""" (114) -
Other comprehensive loss for theyear """""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""" (95) (242)
Totalcomprehensive income fortheyear """"""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""" 1,221 1048
Attributable to:
Parentcompanies’ shareholders 1,215 1,042
Non-controlling interests 6 6
Total comprehensiveincome fortheyear """"""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""" 1,221 1048
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Combined statement of cash flows
<
2
2013 2012
Note €m €m
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 4 2,293 2,272
Interest paid (236) (284)
Interest received 6 9
Tax paid (net) (427) (266)
Net cashfrom operating activities 1,636 1,731
g’
Cash flows frominvesting activities 3
Acquisitions 4 (261) (389) &
Purchases of property, plantand equipment (67) (86) %
Expenditure oninternally developed intangible assets (296) (323) 2
Purchase of investments (12) (9)
Proceeds from disposals of property, plantand equipment 7 9
Gross proceeds from business disposals 367 289
Payments on business disposals (137) (101)
Dividends received from joint ventures 26 25
Net cashusedininvesting activities (373) (585)
Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid to shareholders of the parent companies (648) (641) n
Distributions to non-controlling interests (7) (5) B
Increase/(decrease] in shortterm bank loans, overdrafts and commercial paper 199 (534) 5
Issuance of term debt 217 728 g
Repayment of term debt (1,080) (538) 2
Repayment of finance leases (12) (5)
Disposal of non-controlling interests - 9
Repurchase of ordinary shares (708) (308)
Proceeds onissue of ordinary shares 148 59
Net cash used infinancing activities (1,891) (1,235)
Decreasein cashand cash equivalents 4 (628) (89)
Movementin cash and cash equivalents @
Atstartof year 788 871 3
Decreasein cash and cash equivalents (628) (89) g
Exchange translation differences (2) 6 ®
Atend of year 158 788
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144 FINANCIALSTATEMENTS AND OTHER INFORMATION
SUMMARY COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN EUROS

Combined statement of financial position

2013 2012
Note €m €m
Non-currentassets
Goodwill 5,491 5,591
Intangible assets 3,749 4,028
Investmentsinjointventures 150 123
Otherinvestments 110
Property, plantand equipment 285
Deferredtaxassets 530
Derivative financialinstruments 77
10,392
Currentassets
Inventories and pre-publication costs 171
Trade and otherreceivables 1,699
Derivative financialinstruments 149
Cashand cash equivalents 4 158
2,177
Assets held for sale 25
Totalassets 12,594
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 3,114 3,129
Derivative financialinstruments 5 14
Borrowings 6 778 898
Taxation 705 742
Provisions 7 20 37
4,622 4,820
Non-currentliabilities
Derivative financialinstruments 16 -
Borrowings b 3,159 3,889
Deferred tax liabilities 1,291 1,130
Net pension obligations 2 455 573
Provisions 7 139 171
5,060 5,763
Liabilities associated with assets held for sale 4 118
Totalliabilities 9,686 10,701
Netassets 2,908 2,846
Capitalandreserves
Combined share capitals 269 274
Combined share premiums 3,464 3,354
Combined shares held intreasury (1,757) (1,106)
Translationreserve 25 161
Other combinedreserves 8 867 121
Combined shareholders’ equity 2,868 2,804
Non-controlling interests 40 42
Total equity 2,908 2,846
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Combined statement of changes in equity

145

Combined
Combined Combined Combined Other share- Non-
share share sharesheld Translation combined holders’ controlling Total
capitals premiums intreasury reserve reserves equity interests equity
€m €m €m €m €m €m €m €m
Balanceat 1 January 2012 268 3,268 (796) 297 (431) 2,606 30 2,636
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - (102) 1,144 1,042 6 1,048
Dividends paid - - - - (641) (641) (5) (646)
Issue of ordinary shares, net of expenses 1 58 - - - 59 - 59
Repurchase of ordinary shares - - (308) - - (308) - (308)
Increase in share based remuneration
reserve - - - 38 38 - 38
Settlement of share awards - - - (9) - - -
Acquisitions - - - - [ [N
Disposal of non-controlling interests - - - - 1 9
Exchange differences ontranslation of
capitalandreserves 5 28 (11) (34) 12 - (1) (1)
Balance at 1 January 2013 274 3,354 (1,106) 161 121 2,804 42 2,846
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - (171) 1,386 1,215 6 1,221
Dividends paid - - - - (648) (648) (7) (655)
Issue of ordinary shares, net of expenses 147 - - - 148 - 148
Repurchase of ordinary shares - - (708) - - (708) - (708)
Increase in share based remuneration
reserve (netof tax) - - - - 57 57 - 57
Settlement of share awards - - 47 - (47) - - -
Exchange differences ontranslation of
capitaland reserves (6) (37 10 35 (2) - 1] (1]
Balance at31December 2013 269 3,464 (1,757) 25 867 2,868 40 2,908
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FINANCIALSTATEMENTS AND OTHER INFORMATION
NOTESTO THESUMMARY COMBINED FINANCIAL INFORMATION IN EUROS

Notes to the summary combined financial information

in euros

Revenue Operating profit Adjusted operating profit

Restated Restated

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

€m €m €m €m €m €m

Scientific, Technical & Medical 2,509 2,538 876 868 975 960
Risk Solutions 1,101 1,139 368 346 489 482
Business Information 645 815 84 93 126 146
Legal 1,849 1,980 164 180 281 288
Exhibitions 1,017 1,051 190 210 251 258
Sub-total 7,121 7,523 1,682 1,697 2,122 2,134
Corporate costs - - (58) (58] (58) (58)
Total 7,121 7,523 1,624 1,639 2,064 2,076

Share of post-tax results of joint ventures of £35m (2012: €29m) included in operating profit comprises €7m (2012: €2m) relating
toLegaland €28m (2012: €27m) relating to Exhibitions.

2013 2012

€m €m

North America 3,661 3,840
United Kingdom 1,162 1,188
The Netherlands 774 752
Rest of Europe 824 969
Rest of world 700 774
Total 7,121 7,523
2013 2012

€m €m

North America 3,637 3,879
United Kingdom 523 544
The Netherlands 196 203
Rest of Europe 1,267 1,447
Rest of world 1,498 1,450
Total 7,121 7,523
2013 2012

€m €m

Electronic 4,686 4,792
Print 1,378 1,605
Facetoface 1,057 1,126
Total 7,121 7,523
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g
<.
2
2013 2012
€m €m
Subscriptions 3,672 3,663
Transactional 3,166 3,429
Advertising 283 431
Total 7121 7,523 ®
&
Expenditureon Capital Amortisation é
acquiredgoodwilland expenditure ofacquired Depreciationand a
intangible assets additions intangible assets otheramortisation g
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 z
€m €m €m €m €m €m €m €m
Scientific, Technical & Medical 59 148 110 130 90 84 112 101
Risk Solutions 193 18 30 26 114 134 26 28
Business Information 6 - 21 21 37 46 12 17
Legal 18 98 200 213 87 102 127 113
Exhibitions 66 219 18 31 47 39 17 20
Total 342 483 379 421 375 405 294 279
Capital expenditure comprises additions to property, plantand equipment and internally developed intangible assets. Amortisation of -
acquiredintangible assetsincludes amountsin respect of joint ventures of €1m (2012: €1m) in Exhibitions. Other than the depreciation 2
and amortisation above, non cash items include €37m (2012: €38m) relating to the recognition of share based remuneration and é
comprise €7m (2012: €6m) in Scientific, Technical & Medical, €4m (2012: nil) in Risk Solutions, €2m (2012: €4m) in Business 1
Information, €7m (2012: €8m) in Legal, €5m (2012: €5m] in Exhibitions and €12m (2012: €15m) in Corporate. E
2013 2012
€m €m
North America 7,549 8,012
United Kingdom 701 645
The Netherlands 150 148
Rest of Europe 904 897
Rest of world 481 462
Total 9,785 10,164
Non-currentassets by geographical location exclude amounts relating to deferred tax assets and derivative financialinstruments. %?
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1 48 FINANCIALSTATEMENTS AND OTHER INFORMATION
NOTESTO THESUMMARY COMBINED FINANCIAL INFORMATION IN EUROS

Notes to the summary combined financial information
in euros

The pension expense recognised within operating expense is:

Restated

2013 2012

€m €m

Defined benefit pension expense 16 53
Defined contribution pension expense 56 56
Total 72 109

The amountsrecognisedintheincome statementin respect of defined benefit pension schemes during the year are presented by major
scheme as follows:

Restated
2013 2012
UK us NL Total UK us NL Total
€m €m €m €m €m €m €m €m
Service cost 34 34 18 86 33 35 10 78
Settlement, past service and curtailment
credits - (60) (10) (70) (1) (24) - (25)
Defined benefit pe 34 (26) 8 16 32 11 10
Netinterest on net defined benefit obligation 7 10 5 22 6 9 (1) 14
Netdefined benefit pension expense 41 (16) 13 38 38 20 9 67

Netinterest on defined benefit pension scheme liabilities is presented within net finance costs in the income statement. Service cost,
including settlements, past service credits and curtailmentsis presented within operating expenses.

The amountrecognised in the statement of financial position in respect of defined benefit pension schemes at the startand end of the
year and the movements during the year were as follows:

Restated
2013 2012
UK us NL Total UK us NL Total
€m €m €m €m €m €m €m €m

Defined benefit obligation
At startof year (3,264) (1,135) (856) (5,255) (2,975) (1,029) (647) (4,651)
Service cost (34) (34) (18) (86) (33) (35) (10 (78]
Settlements, pastservice and

curtailment credits - 60 10 70 1 24 - 25
Interest on pension scheme liabilities (144) (49) (30) (223) (153) (54) (37) (244)
Actuarial (loss)/gain on financial

assumptions (204) 101 21 (82) (113) (179) (178) (470)
Actuarial (loss)/gain arising from

experience assumptions 9 (12) (3) (6) (18) (22) 1 (39)
Contributions by employees (7) - (6) (13) (9) - (5) (14)
Benefits paid* 111 110 22 243 110 138 18 266
Exchange translation differences 75 44 1 120 (74) 22 2 (50)
Atend of year (3,458) (915) (859)  (5,232) (3,264) (1,135) (856) (5,255)
Fairvalue of scheme assets
Atstartofyear 3,095 874 713 4,682 2,845 871 645 4,361
Interestincome on planassets 137 39 25 201 147 45 38 230
Returnonassets excludingamounts

included ininterestincome 131 5 (1 135 56 65 28 149
Contributions by employer 42 39 17 98 78 47 18 143
Contributions by employees 7 - 6 13 9 - 5 14
Benefits paid* (111) (110) (22) (243) (109) (138) (19) (266)
Exchange translation differences (72) (38) (1) (109) 69 (16) (2) 51
Atend of year 3,229 811 737 4,777 3,095 874 713 4,682
Net defined benefit pension obligation (229) (104) (122) (455) (169) (261) (143) (573)

*included in benefits paid are settlements of €61m (2012: €92m).

As at31 December 2013 the defined benefit obligations comprise €5,040m (2012: €5,058m) in relation to funded schemes and €192m
(2012: €197m] in relation to unfunded schemes.
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5
<.
2
Reed Elsevier uses adjusted figures as additional performance measures. Adjusted operating profit excludes amortisation of acquired
intangible assets, acquisition related costs and the share of taxes in joint ventures. Acquisition related costs relate to acquisition
integration, transaction related fees, and those elements of deferred and contingent consideration required to be expensed under IFRS.
Adjusted profit before tax also excludes disposal related and other non operating items and the net financing charge or credit on defined
benefit pension schemes. The adjusted tax charge excludes the tax effect of these adjusting items, exceptional tax credits (in 2012 only)
and movements on deferred tax assets and liabilities related to goodwill and acquired intangible assets. It includes the benefit of tax
amortisation where available on goodwilland acquired intangible assets. Adjusted operating cash flow is measured after net capital -
expenditure and dividends from joint ventures but before paymentsin relation to prior year exceptional restructuring programmes and G.
acquisition related costs. Adjusted figures are derived as follows: §
g
Restated s
2013 2012 2
€m €m
Operating profit 1,624 1,639
Adjustments:
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 375 405
Acquisition related costs 51 26
Reclassification of taxin joint ventures 14 6
Adjusted operating profit 2,064 2,076
Profit before tax 1,412 1,416 -
Adjustments: =l
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 375 405 é
Acquisition related costs 51 26 5
Reclassification of taxin joint ventures 14 6 5
Net financing charge on defined benefit pension schemes 22 14 2
Disposals and other non operating items (19) (56)
Adjusted profit before tax 1,855 1,811
Taxcharge (96) (126)
Adjustments:
Deferred tax movements on goodwill and acquired intangible assets 9 8
Taxon acquisition related costs (14) (6)
Reclassification of taxin joint ventures (14) (6)
Tax on netfinancing charge on defined benefit pension schemes (7) (4) o
Tax ondisposals and other non operating items 40 (71) 3
Other deferred tax credits fromintangible assets* (354) (103) g
Exceptional prioryear tax credit - (118) ®
Adjusted tax charge (436) (426)
Profitattributable to parent companies’ shareholders 1,310 1,284
Adjustments (post tax):
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 384 413
Acquisition related costs 37 20
Net financing charge on defined benefit pension schemes 15 10
Disposals and other non operating items 21 (127)
Other deferred tax credits fromintangible assets* (354) (103)
Exceptional prioryear tax credits - (118)
Adjusted profit attributable to parent companies’ shareholders 1,413 1,379 %
3
Cash generated from operations 2,293 2,272 ;’:
Dividends received from joint ventures 26 25 =
Purchases of property, plantand equipment (67) (86) g
Proceeds from disposals of property, plantand equipment 7 9 @
Expenditure oninternally developed intangible assets (296) (323) §.
Paymentsinrelation to exceptional restructuring costs 14 30 5
Paymentsin relation to acquisition related costs 33 45 5
Adjusted operating cash flow 2,010 1,972 g
*movements on deferred tax liabilities arising on acquired intangible assets that do not qualify for taxamortisation and in 2013 %’

non-recurring deferred tax credits arising on the alignment of certain business assets with their global management structure.



FINANCIALSTATEMENTS AND OTHER INFORMATION
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Notes to the summary combined financial information
in euros

Restated
2013 2012
€m €m
Operating profit before joint ventures 1,589 1,610
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 374 404
Amortisation of internally developed intangible assets 189 186
Depreciation of property, plantand equipment 105 93
Share based remuneration 37
Totalnoncashitems 705
Decreaseininventories and pre-publication costs 12
Decreaseinreceivables 6
Decreasein payables (19) (90)
Increaseinworkingcapital (1 T (59)
Cashgenerated fromoperations 2,293 2272
2013 2012
€m €m
Purchase of businesses (229) (339)
Investmentin jointventures (7) (13)
Deferred payments relating to prior year acquisitions (25) (37)
Total (261 (389
Related
derivative
Cash&cash financial
equivalents Borrowings instruments 2013 2012
€m €m €m €m €m
At startof year 788 (4,787) 153 (3,846) (4,119)
Decreasein cash and cash equivalents (628) - - (628) (89)
Net movementin shortterm bank loans, overdrafts and commercial paper - (182) (17) (199) 534
Issuance of term debt - (217) - (217) (728)
Repayment of term debt - 1,080 - 1,080 538
Repayment of finance leases - 12 - 12 5
Changein netborrowings resulting from cash flows (628) 693 (17) 48 260
Inception of finance leases - (14) - (14) (16)
Fairvalue and other adjustments to borrowings and related derivatives - 38 (39) (1) 1
Exchange translation differences (2) 133 (4) 127 28
Atendofyear 158 (3,937) 93 (3,686)  (3846)

Net borrowings comprise cash and cash equivalents, loan capital, finance leases, promissory notes, bank and other loans, derivative
financialinstruments that are used to hedge the fair value of fixed rate borrowings, and payable/receivable balances in respect of cash

collateral received/paid.
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During the year anumber of acquisitions were made for a total consideration of €282m (2012: €419m), after taking account of net cash
acquired of €17m (2012: €15m). The net assets of the businesses acquired are incorporated at their fair value to the combined
businesses. Provisional fair values of the consideration given and of the assets and liabilities acquired are summarised below.

Fair Fair

value value

2013 2012

€m €m

Goodwill 185 203
Intangible assets 157 281
Property, plant & equipment - 1
Currentassets 1 26
Current liabilities (25) (75)
Current tax - 3
Deferred tax (46)  (20)
Netassetsacquired 282 419
Consideration (after taking account of €17m (2012: €15m) net cash acquired) 282 419
Less: consideration deferred to futureyears (42) (28)
Less: acquisition date fairvalue of equity interest (11) (52)
Net cash flow 229 339

Goodwill, being the excess of the consideration over the net tangible and intangible assets acquired, represents benefits which do not
qualify for recognition as intangible assets, including the ability of a business to generate higher returns than individual assets, skilled
workforces, acquisition synergies that are specific to Reed Elsevier, and high barriers to market entry. Inaddition, goodwill arises on the
recognition of deferred tax liabilities in respect of intangible assets for which amortisation does not qualify for tax deductions.

The fairvalues of the assets and liabilities acquired are provisional pending the completion of the valuation exercises. Final fair values
willbeincorporatedinthe 2014 combined financial statements. There were no significant adjustments to the provisional fair values of
prioryearacquisitions established in 2012.

The businesses acquiredin 2013 contributed €32m to revenue, increased adjusted operating profit by €9m, increased adjusted net
profitby €9m, decreased reported net profit by €1m, and contributed a net cash outflow of €4m from operating activities for the part
year under Reed Elsevier ownership and before taking account of acquisition financing costs. Had the businesses been acquired at the
beginning of the year, ona pro forma basis the Reed Elsevier revenues, adjusted operating profit, adjusted net profit attributable to
parent companies’ shareholders and net profit attributable to parent companies’ shareholders for the year would have been €7,159m,
€2,066m, €1,415mand €1,312m respectively before taking account of acquisition financing costs.

M3IAIBAQ

MaIAaJ SSauIsSNg

MaIASJ eIDUBUIS

9dUBUIBA09

o
3
o
3
a,
o
0
o
o
)
(]
El
(]
3
3
0
o
3
o
o
e
=
(]
]
3
EX
(=]
S
3
Q
=
o
3




1 52 FINANCIALSTATEMENTS AND OTHER INFORMATION
NOTESTO THESUMMARY COMBINED FINANCIAL INFORMATION IN EUROS

Notes to the summary combined financial information
in euros

2013 2012

Fallingdue Fallingduein Fallingdue Fallingduein

within morethan within morethan
1year 1year Total 1year 1year Total
€m €m €m €m €m €m

Financial liabilities measured atamortised cost:

Shortterm bank loans, overdrafts and commercial paper 344 - 344 161 - 161
Term debt - 1,468 1,468 - 1,877 1,877
Finance leases 1" 9 20 9 " 20
Termdebtin fairvalue hedging relationships 288 1,126 1,614 125 1,274 1,399
Term debt previouslyin fair value hedging relationships 135 556 691 603 727 1,330
Total 778 3,159 3,937 898 3,889 4,787

In2013, €223m principalamount of term debt maturingin 2019 was exchanged for €282m principal amount of term debt maturing in
2022 and cash. The exchangeis treated as a debt modification for accounting purposes. The premium is offset against the carrying
amount of the newly issued term debt maturing in 2022 and will be amortised overits life.

The total fair value of financial liabilities measured at amortised cost is €2,051m (2012: €2,455m). The total fair value of other loansin
fairvalue hedging relationshipsis €1,546m (2012: €1,448m). The total fair value of other loans previously in fair value hedging
relationshipsis €780m (2012: €1,462m).

Analysis by year of repayment

2013 2012
Shortterm Shortterm
bank loans, bank loans,
overdrafts overdrafts
and and
commercial Finance commercial Finance
paper Termdebt leases Total paper Termdebt leases Total
€m €m €m €m €m €m €m €m
Within 1year 344 423 1" 778 161 728 9 898
Within 1to 2years - 209 [ 215 - 792 7 799
Within 2to 3years - 480 3 483 - 219 4 223
Within 3to 4years - 409 - 409 - 492 - 492
Within 4to 5years - 217 - 217 - 442 - 442
After Syears - 1,835 - 1,835 - 1,933 - 1,933
After 1year - - 3150 9 3159 - 3878 " 3889
Total 344 3,573 20 3,937 161 4,606 20 4,787

Shortterm bank loans, overdrafts and commercial paper were backed up at 31 December 2013 by a $2,000m (€1,448m) committed bank
facility maturing in July 2018, which was undrawn.
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Analysis by currency

2013 2012

Shortterm Shortterm

bankloans, bank loans,

overdraftsand overdraftsand

commercial Finance commercial Finance

paper Termdebt leases Total paper Termdebt leases Total
€m €m €m €m €m €m €m €m
USdollars 104 2,160 20 2,284 30 2,532 20 2,582
£ sterling 32 863 - 895 - 905 - 905
Euro 201 550 - 751 127 1,169 - 1,296
Other currencies 7 - - 7 4 - - 4
Total 344 3,573 20 3,937 161 4,606 20 4,787

Included in the US dollar amounts for term debt above is €512m (2012: €427m) of debt denominated in Swiss francs (CHF 625m;

2012: CHF 500m) that was swapped into US dollars on issuance and against which there are related derivative financial instruments
which, as at31 December 2013, had a fair value of €97m (2012: €98m). €78m (2012: €98m) of these derivatives were designated as fair
value hedges of the related Swiss franc debt, and €19m (2012: nil) were undesignated.

2013 2012

Property Restructuring Total Property Restructuring Total

€m €m €m €m €m €m

Atstartof year 202 6 208 131 21 152
Transfers - - - 27 - 27
Charged - - - 76 - 76
Utilised (38) (4) (42) (30] (15) (45)
Exchange translation differences (7) - (7) (2) - (2)
Atendofyear 157 2 159 202 6 208

Property provisions relate to estimated sub-lease shortfalls and guarantees givenin respect of certain property leases for various
periods up to 2024. The charge in 2012 predominantly relates to property exposures on disposed businesses.

At 31 December 2013 provisions are included within currentand non-current liabilities as follows:

2013 2012

€m €m
Current liabilities 20 37
Non-current liabilities 139 171
Total 159 208
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NOTESTO THESUMMARY COMBINED FINANCIAL INFORMATION IN EUROS

Notes to the summary combined financial information

in euros

Hedge Other Total

reserve reserves Total Restated

2013 2013 2013 2012

€m €m €m €m

Atstartof year 32 89 121 (431)
Profit attributable to parent companies’ shareholders - 1,310 1,310 1,284
Dividends paid - (648) (648) (641)
Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit pension schemes - 47 47 (360)
Transfer to net profit on disposal of available for sale investments - - - 14
Fairvalue movements on cash flow hedges 77 - 77 86
Tax recognised in other comprehensive income (18) (28) (46) 94
Increasein share based remuneration reserve [net of tax) - 57 57 38
Settlement of share awards - (47 (47) (9)
Transfer to net profit from cash flow hedge reserve (net of tax) (2) - (2) 26
Disposal of non-controlling interests - - - 8
Exchange translation differences (1) (1) (2) 12
Atend of year 88 779 867 121

Otherreserves principally comprise retained earnings and the share based remuneration reserve.
Statement of
Income statement financial position

2013 2012 2013 2012

Sterlingtoeuro 0.85 0.81 0.83 0.81
USdollarstoeuro 1.32 1.29 1.38 1.32
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Directors’ report

The Directors presenttheirreport, together with the financial
statements of the group and company, for the year ended
31 December 2013.

Asaconsequence of the merger of the company’s businesses with
those of Reed Elsevier NVin 1993, described on page 69, the
shareholders of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV can be
regarded as having the interests of a single economic group.

The Reed Elsevier combined financial statements represent the
combined interests of both sets of shareholders and encompass
the businesses of Reed Elsevier Group plc, Elsevier Reed Finance
BV and theirrespective subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, together with the parent companies, Reed Elsevier PLC
and Reed Elsevier NV (“the combined businesses” or “Reed
Elsevier”). This Directors’ report and the financial statements of
the group and company should be read in conjunction with the
combined financial statements and other reports set out on pages
2t0139. Areview of the Reed Elsevier combined businesses and
their performanceintheyearis set outon pages 7to 39, a
summary of the principalrisks facing Reed Elsevieris set out on
pages 60to 62, and the Reed Elsevier statement on corporate
responsibility is set out on pages 41to 50.

Financial statement presentation

The consolidated financial statements of Reed Elsevier PLC
include the 52.9% economic interest that shareholders have under
the equalisationarrangementsin the Reed Elsevier combined
businesses, accounted for on an equity basis.

Underthe terms of the mergeragreement, dividends paid to Reed
Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV shareholders are, otherthanin
special circumstances, equalised at the gross levelinclusive of the
UKtax creditreceived by certain Reed Elsevier PLC shareholders.
Because of the tax credit, Reed Elsevier PLC normally requires
proportionately less cash to fund its net dividend than Reed
Elsevier NVdoestofundits gross dividend. An adjustmentis
therefore required in the consolidated income statement of Reed
Elsevier PLC to share this tax benefit between the two sets of
shareholdersinaccordance with the equalisation agreement. The
equalisation adjustmentarises on dividends paid by Reed Elsevier
PLCtoits shareholdersanditreduced the consolidated
attributable earnings by £15m (2012: £14m), being 47.1% of the
totalamount of the tax credit.

In addition to the reported figures, adjusted profit figures are
presented as additional performance measures used by
management. These exclude the tax credit equalisation adjustment
and, inrelation to the results of joint ventures, the company’s share
of amortisation of acquired intangible assets, acquisition-related
costs, disposal gains and losses and other non-operating items,
related tax effects, exceptional prior year tax credits (in 2012 only)
and movements in deferred taxation assets and liabilities related to
acquiredintangible assets and include the benefit of tax amortisation
where available on acquired goodwill and intangible assets.

Consolidated income statement

Comparative figures have been restated following the adoption
of IAS19 Employee Benefits (revised). Reed Elsevier PLC's
shareholders’ 52.9% share of the adjusted profit before tax of the
Reed Elsevier combined businesseswas £832m (2012: £779m).
Reported profit before tax, including the Reed Elsevier PLC
shareholders’ share of amortisation charges, acquisition-related
costsanddisposals and other non-operating items, was £576m

(2012: £532m). The increase reflects the improved trading
performance offset by lower disposal gains.

Elsevierachieved good growthin primary research submissions
and usage, and in databases and tools, across the scientific,
technicaland medical segments. At Risk Solutions, all business
segments achieved strong growth. At Business Information
underlying revenue growth accelerated reflecting continued good
growth in data services, modest growth elsewhere, and portfolio
development. Legal maintained positive underlying revenue
growth despite subdued market conditions in the US and Europe.
Exhibitions achieved strong underlying growth excluding the
effect of biennial show cycling; while growth in Europe was
modest, the US, Japan, Braziland other markets grew well.

The overall adjusted operating margin was 1.4 percentage points
higher despite investmentin global technology platforms and
new products and services, reflectinga combination of process
innovation, portfolio developmentand currency effects.

Reed Elsevier PLC’s shareholders’ share of the adjusted profit
attributable of the combined businesses was £633m (2012:
£593m). After deducting the company’s share of the post tax
charge foramortisation of acquired intangible assets, and
acquisition-related costs, disposal-related and other non-
operating items, the net financing charge on defined benefit
pension schemes, exceptional prioryear tax credits (in 2012
only) and movements on deferred taxes related to acquired
intangible assets, the reported net profit for the year was
£572m (2012: £538m).

Adjusted earnings per share increased 9% to 54.0p (2012: 49.4p).
At constant rates of exchange, the adjusted earnings per share
were 7% higher. Including the effect of the tax credit equalisation
aswellasamortisation of acquired intangible assets, acquisition-
related costs, disposal-related and other non-operating items, the
netfinancing charge on defined benefit pension schemes, and tax
adjustments, the basic earnings per share were 48.8p (2012: 44.8p).

Consolidated statement of financial position

The consolidated statement of financial position of Reed Elsevier
PLC reflectsits 52.9% economic interestin the net assets of
Reed Elsevierwhichasat31 December2013was £1,264m

(2012: £1,206m). The £58mincrease in net assets reflects the
company’s share in the comprehensive income of Reed Elsevier
partially offset by dividends paid and shares repurchased.

Dividends

The Board isrecommending an equalised final dividend of 17.95p
perordinary share (2012: 17.0p). This gives total ordinary dividends
for the year of 24.60p (2012: 23.0p). The final dividend will be paid
on 23 May 2014 to shareholders on the Register on 2 May 2014.

Dividend cover, based on adjusted earnings per share and the
totalinterim and proposed final dividends for the year, is 2.2 times.
The Boards of the company and Reed Elsevier NV have adopted
dividend policiesinrecentyearsinrespectof their equalised
dividends that, subject to currency considerations, grow dividends
broadlyin line with adjusted earnings per share whilst maintaining
dividend cover (being the number of times the annual dividend is
covered by the adjusted earnings per share) of at least 2.0 times
overthe longerterm.

The totaldividend paid on the ordinary shares in the financial year
was £278m (2012: £264m).
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Parent company financial statements

The individual parent company financial statements of Reed
Elsevier PLC are presented on pages 172to 173, and are prepared
under UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice. Parent
companyshareholders’ fundsasat 31 December 2013 were
£3,044m (2012: £3,490m).

Corporate governance

The company has complied throughout the year with the
provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code issued by the
Financial Reporting Councilin September 2012 (the UK Code).
The UK Code s publicly available at www.frc.org.uk. Details of
how the principles of the UK Code have been applied and the
Directors’ statementoninternal controlare set outin the
Structure and Corporate Governance report on pages 69 to 77.

Details of the role and responsibilities, membership and activities
of the Reed Elsevier Audit Committees, including the company’s
Audit Committee, are set outin the Report of the Audit Committees
onpages 95and 96.

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

The companyis required to state the annual quantity of emissions
intonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent from activities for which the
groupisresponsible. Details of our emissions during the year ended
31 December 2013 and the actions being taken to reduce themare
setoutinthe Corporate Responsibility section of the Strategic
Reporton pages49and 50and form part of the Directors’ report
disclosures. Further details can be foundin our online Corporate
Responsibility Report atwww.reedelsevier.com/go/CRReport.

Directors
The following served as Directors of the company during the year:

A JHabgood (Chairman)

E Engstrom (Chief Executive Officer]
D J Palmer (Chief Financial Officer)
MW Elliott (retired 25 April 2013)

W Hauser (appointed 25 April 2013)
AN Hennah

L Hook (Senior Independent Director as of 23 April 2013)
R B Polet

Sir David Reid (retired 25 April 2013)
L SSanford

BvanderVeer

Biographical details of the Directors at the date of thisreportare
given on pages 64 and 65.

Directorsare appointed inaccordance with the Articles of
Association (the Articles), which provide thatany director
appointed during the year holds office only until the next following
Annual General Meeting (AGM] and is then eligible for election by
the shareholders. The company’s Articles provide that at every
AGM of the company, one-third of the directors (or if their number
is notamultiple of three the number nearest to one-third) shall
retire from office and, if they wish, put themselves up for
re-election by the shareholders. The UK Code recommends that
alldirectors should seek re-election by shareholders annually.
Accordingly, the Board has adopted this practice.
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The office of director shall be vacated if he or she: (i) resigns;

(ii) becomes bankrupt or compounds with his or her creditors
generally; (iii) is or may be suffering from a mentalillness; (iv) is
prohibited by law from being a director; or (v} is removed from
office pursuant tothe company’s Articles. Subject to the
shareholders’ rights to appointindividuals to the Board in
accordance with the company’s Articles, no individual may be
appointed to the Board unless such appointmentis recommended
by the Nominations Committee.

Mark Elliottand Sir David Reid retired as Directors at the
conclusion of the AGM in April 2013 and Wolfhart Hauser was
appointed to the Board on 25 April 2013.

Inaccordance with the provisions of the UK Code, all of the
Directorswillretire from the Board atthe AGMin 2014 and, being
eligible, theywill each offer themselves for re-election. Takinginto
account the assessment by the Corporate Governance Committee
of the qualifications, performance and effectiveness of each
individual Director seeking re-election, the Board has accepted a
recommendation from the Nominations Committee that each
Director be proposed for re-election at the 2014 AGM.

In September 2013, Duncan Palmer gave notice of his resignation
as Chief Financial Officer effective as of 25 September 2014 or
such earlier date as Reed Elsevier may designate. In January 2014,
Reed Elsevier announced the appointment of Nick Luff as Chief
Financial Officer to be effective at a date to be confirmed but is
expected to be no later than 15 December 2014.

Inaccordance with the Articles, Directors are normally subject
to election by shareholders at the first AGM following their
appointment by the Board. Notwithstanding the effective date of
Nick Luff’'s appointment remains to be confirmed, shareholders
willbe asked to elect Mr Luffatthe AGM in April 2014.

The notice period applicable to the service contracts of

Erik Engstrom, Duncan Palmerand Nick Luffis 12 months.
The remaining Directors seeking re-election at the 2014 AGM
do not have service contracts.

Details of Directors’ remuneration and their interestsin the share
capital of the company are provided in the Directors’ Remuneration
Reporton pages 78to 94.

Share capital

The company’'sissued share capital comprises a single class of
ordinary shares, all of which are listed on the London Stock
Exchange. Allissued shares are fully paid up and carry no
additional obligations or specialrights. Each share carries the
right to one vote at general meetings of the company. In a general
meeting, subjecttoany rights and restrictions attached toany
shares, onashow of hands every memberwhois presentin
personshall have one vote and every proxy present who has been
duly appointed by one or more members entitled to vote on the
resolution has one vote (although a proxy has one vote for and one
vote against the resolution if: (i) the proxy has been duly appointed
by more than one member entitled to vote on the resolution; and (ii)
the proxy has beeninstructed by one or more of those members to
vote for the resolution and by one or more other of those members
tovote againstit]. Subject to any rights or restrictions attached to
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Directors’ report

anyshares, onavote onaresolutionona poll every member
presentin person or by proxy shall have one vote for every share of
which heis the holder. Proxy appointments and voting instructions
must be received by the company’s registrars not less than 48
hours before ageneral meeting. There are no specific restrictions
onthesize of aholding nor on the transfer of shares, which are
both governed by the general provisions of the Articles and
prevailing legislation. The company is not aware of any
agreements between shareholders that may resultin restrictions
onthetransfer of sharesoronvotingrights attached to the shares.

Atthe 2013 AGM, shareholders passed a resolution authorising
the Directorsto allot shares up toanominalvalue of £9m,
representing less than 5% of the company’s issued share capital.
Since the 2013 AGM, no shares have been issued under this
authority. The shareholder authority also permitted the Directors
toallot sharesinorderto satisfy entittements under employee
share plans, and details of such allotments are noted below. The
authority to allot shares will expire at the 2014 AGM, and a
resolution to further extend the authority will be submitted to the
shareholders atthe 2014 AGM.

Duringtheyear, 9,438,719 ordinary sharesin the company were
issuedin orderto satisfy entitlements under employee share
plans as follows:

440,685 under a UK Sharesave option scheme at prices
between 401.60p and 596p per share;

7,983,028 under executive share option schemes at prices
between 420p and 734.50p per share; and

1,015,006 under the Long Term Incentive Plan at prices
between 478p and 487.25p per share.

Theissued share capitalasat 31 December 2013 is shownin note 12
tothe consolidated financial statements.

Authority to purchase shares

Atthe 2013 AGM, shareholders passed a resolution authorising
the purchase of up to 125.9 million ordinary sharesin the company
(representing less than 10% of the issued ordinary shares) by
market purchase. During the year, 41,961,920 ordinary shares were
purchased underthisandthe previous authority. Asat 31 December
2013 therewere 99,446,834 ordinary shares held in treasury,
representing 7.8% of the issued ordinary shares. Afurther
6,045,270 ordinary shares were purchased between 1 January
2014 and the date of this report. The authority to make market
purchaseswill expire at the 2014 AGM, at which a resolution to
further extend the authority will be submitted to shareholders.

Substantial shareinterests

As at 26 February 2014, the company had been notified by the
following shareholders that they held aninterest of 3% or morein
voting rights of the issued share capital of the company:

Franklin Mutual Advisers LLC 5.04%
BlackRock Inc. 5.03%
Invesco Limited 5.03%
Lloyds Banking Group plc 3.47%
Legal & General Group plc 3.40%

The percentage interests stated above are as disclosed at the date
onwhich the interests were notified to the company.

Employee benefit trust

The Trustee of the Reed Elsevier Group plc Employee Benefit Trust
held aninterestin 10,120,537 ordinary shares in the company
(representing 0.80% of the issued ordinary shares) as at

31 December2013. The Trustee may vote or abstain from voting
any sharesitholdsinanyway itseesfit.

Significant agreements - change of control

The Governing Agreement between Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed
Elsevier NV states that upon a change of control of Reed Elsevier
PLC (forthese purposes, the acquisition by a third party of 50% or
more of the issued share capital having voting rights), should there
not be a comparable offer from the offeror for Reed Elsevier NV,
Reed Elsevier NV may serve notice upon Reed Elsevier PLC
varying certain provisions of the Governing Agreement, including
the governance and the standstill provisions.

There areanumber of borrowing agreements including credit
facilities thatin the event of a change of control of both Reed
Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NVand, in some cases, a
consequential credit rating downgrade to sub-investment grade
may, at the option of the lenders, require repayment and/or
cancellation as appropriate.

Powersof directors

Subjecttothe provisions of the Companies Act 2006, the
company’s Articles and any directions given by special
resolutions, the business of the company shall be managed by the
Board which may exercise all the powers of the company.

Directors’indemnity

Inaccordance with the company’s Articles, the company has
granted Directors anindemnity, to the extent permitted by law, in
respect of liabilities incurred as aresult of their office. The
company also purchased and maintained throughout the year
Directors”and Officers’ liability insurance inrespect of itselfand
its Directors.

Related party transactions

Internalcontrols arein place to ensure thatany related party
transactions involving Directors or their connected persons are
carriedoutonanarm’s length basisand are properly recorded.

Conflicts of interest

The Company’s Articles permit the Board to approve situations
where a Director has aninterest that conflicts, or may possibly
conflict, with the interests of the company. The Board has
established a formal system whereby the Nominations Committee
considers any such conflict or potential conflictand makesa
recommendation to the Board on whetherto authoriseit. In
reachingits decision, the Board is required toactinaway it
considers would be most likely to promote the success of the
company and may impose limits or conditions when giving its
authorisation, ifit thinks this is appropriate.

Political donations

Reed Elsevier does not make donations to European Union (EU)
political organisations orincur EU political expenditure. In the
United States, Reed Elsevier companies donated £48,000
(2012: £57,201) to political organisations. In line with US law,
these donations were not made at federal level, but only to
candidates and political parties at the state and local levels.
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Financial Statements and accounting records

The Directorsare responsible for preparing the Directors’ report
and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law
andregulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial
statements for each financialyear. Under that law the Directors
arerequired to prepare the consolidated financial statementsin
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) as adopted by the EU and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation.
The Directors have elected to prepare the parent company
financial statementsin accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom
Accounting Standards and applicable law). Under company law
the Directors must notapprove the accounts unless theyare
satisfied that they give atrue and fair view of the state of affairs of
the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that period.

In preparing the parent company financial statements, the
Directorsare required to: select suitable accounting policies and
then apply them consistently; make judgements and accounting
estimates thatare reasonable and prudent; state whether
applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject
toany material departures being disclosed and explained in the
financial statements; and prepare the financial statementsona
going concernbasis unlessitis inappropriate to presume that the
companywill continue in business.

In preparing the group financial statements, IAS1 requires that
directors: properly selectand apply accounting policies; present
information, including accounting policies, ina manner that
providesrelevant, reliable, comparable and understandable
information; provide additional disclosures when compliance with
the specificrequirementsin IFRS are insufficient to enable users
tounderstand the impact of particular transactions, other events
and conditions on the entity’s financial position and financial
performance; and make an assessment of the company’s ability to
continue asagoing concern.

The Directorsare responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the company’s

transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy atany time
the financial position of the company and enable them to ensure

that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006.

Theyarealsoresponsible for safeguarding the assets of the
company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and otherirregularities.

Directors’ responsibility statement
The Board confirms that, to the best of its knowledge:

the consolidated financial statements, preparedin accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards asissued by
the International Accounting Standards Board and as adopted
by the European Union, give a true and fair view of the financial
position and profit or loss of the group; and

the Directors’reportincludes a fair review of the development
and performance of the business and the position of the group,
togetherwith a description of the principal risks and
uncertainties thatit faces.
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Having takeninto accountall the matters considered by the Board
and broughtto the attention of the Board during the year, the
Directors are satisfied that the Annual Reportand Accounts taken
asawhole, is fair, balanced and understandable and provides the
information necessary for shareholders to assess the Company’s
performance, business model and strategy.

Neither the company nor the Directors accept any liability to any
personinrelation tothe Annual Report except to the extent that
such liability could arise under English law. Accordingly, any
liability to a person who has demonstrated reliance on any untrue
or misleading statement or omission shall be determinedin
accordance with Section 90A of the Financial Services and
Markets Act 2000.

Disclosure of information to auditors

As part of the process of approving the company’s 2013 financial
statements, the Directors have taken steps pursuant to section
£418(2) of the Companies Act 2006 to ensure that they are aware of
anyrelevantauditinformation and to establish that the company’s
auditors are aware of that information. In that context, so far as the
Directorsare aware, thereis no relevant auditinformation of
which the company’s auditors are unaware.

Going concern

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that
adequate resources exist for the combined businesses to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future and that, therefore,
itisappropriate to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the
2013 financial statements. Inreaching this conclusion, the Directors
have had due regard to the combined businesses’ financial position
asat31 December 2013, the strong free cash flow of the combined
businesses, Reed Elsevier’s ability to access capital markets and
the principalrisks facing Reed Elsevier.

Acommentaryon the Reed Elsevier combined businesses’

cash flows, financial position and liquidity for the year ended

31 December2013issetoutinthe Chief Financial Officer's Report
on pages 52to 59. This shows that, after taking account of available
cashresources and committed bank facilities that back up short
term borrowings, none of Reed Elsevier’s borrowings fall due
within the next two years. Reed Elsevier’s policies on liquidity,
capital managementand management of risks relating to interest
rate, foreign exchange and credit exposures are set outon pages
58and 59. Furtherinformation on liquidity of the combined
businesses canbe found in note 18 of the combined financial
statements. The principalrisks facing Reed Elsevierare set out
onpages 60to62.

Auditors

Resolutions for the re-appointment of Deloitte LLP as auditors of
the company and to authorise the Directors to fix their
remuneration will be submitted to shareholders at the 2014 AGM.

By order of the Board Registered Office
HenryUdow 1-3 Strand
Company Secretary London

26 February 2014 WC2N5JR
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Consolidated income statement

Restated

2013 2012
Note £m £m
Administrative expenses 1 (2) (2)
Effect of tax credit equalisation on distributed earnings 2 (15) (14)
Share of results of joint ventures " 583 547
Operating profit S 566 531
Financeincome 5 10 1
Profit before tax 576 532
Tax (expense)/credit 6 (4) 6
Profitattributable to ordinary shareholders 572 538
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
Restated
2013 2012
£m £m
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders 572 538
Share of jointventures’ other comprehensive loss for year (13) (132)
Total comprehensive income for theyear 859 404
Earnings per ordinary share
Restated
2013 2012
Note pence pence
Basic earnings pershare 8 48.8 44.8
Diluted earnings per share 8 48.2 44.3
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Consolidated statement of cash flows
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2013 2012
Note £m £m
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash used by operations 10 (2) (2)
Interest received 10 1
Tax paid (3) (2)
Net cashusedin operatingactivities 5 (3)
Cash flows from investing activities
Dividends received from joint ventures [N 102 694
Net cashreceived from investing activities 102 694
Cash flows from financing activities
Equity dividends paid 7 (278) (264)
Repurchase of ordinary shares (326) (143)
Proceeds onissue of ordinary shares 50 33
Decrease/lincrease] in net funding balances due from joint ventures 10 447 (317)
Net cashusedin financing activities (107) (691)

Movementin cashand cash equivalents
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Consolidated statement of financial position

2013 2012
Note £m £m
Non-currentassets
Investmentsinjointventures " 1,266 1,207
Totalassets 1,266 1,207
Current liabilities
Taxation 2 1
Total liabilities 2 1
Netassets 1,264 1,206
Capitalandreserves
Called up share capital 12 182 181
Share premium account 1,257 1,208
Shares held in treasury (including in joint ventures) (752) (447)
Capitalredemption reserve 4 4
Translation reserve 40 87
Otherreserves 13 533 173
1,264 1,206

Total equity

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors, 26 February 2014.

A JHabgood DJPalmer
Chairman Chief Financial Officer
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity
<.
2
Shares Capital
Share Share heldin redemption Translation Other
capital premium treasury reserve reserve reserves Totalequity
Note £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Balanceat 1 January 2012 180 1,176 (308) 4 159 (62) 1,149
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - (72) 478 406
Equity dividends paid 7 - - - - - (264) (264)
Issue of ordinary shares, net of expenses 1 32 - - - - 33
Repurchase of ordinary shares - - (143) - - - (143)
Share of jointventures’increasein share ?
based remuneration reserve - - - - - 16 16 =3
Share of joint ventures’ settlement of share §
awards by the employee benefit trust - - 4 - - (4) - %
Share of joint ventures’ disposal of z
non-controlling interests - - - - - 3 3
Equalisation adjustments - - - - - 6 6
Balanceat 1 January 2013 181 1,208 (447) 4 87 173 1,206
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - (47) 606 559
Equity dividends paid 7 - - - - - (278) (278)
Issue of ordinary shares, net of expenses 1 49 - - - - 50
Repurchase of ordinary shares - - (326) - - - (326)
Share of jointventures’increase in share
based remuneration reserve (net of tax) - - - - - 25 25 n
Share of jointventures’ settlement of share §
awards by the employee benefit trust - - 21 - - (21) - g
Equalisation adjustments - - - - - 28 28 g
Balance at 31 December 2013 182 1,257 (752) 4 40 533 1,264 g
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Group accounting policies

Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost conventioninaccordance with applicable accounting
standards. They reportthe consolidated statements of income,
comprehensive income, cash flow, financial position and changes
in equity of Reed Elsevier PLC (incorporated and domiciled in the
United Kingdom), and have been prepared inaccordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by
the European Union and asissued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB).

The consolidated financial statements are prepared onagoing
concern basis, as explained on page 159. Unless otherwise
indicated, allamounts shown in the financial statementsarein
millions of pounds.

The basis of the merger of the businesses of Reed Elsevier PLC
and Reed Elsevier NVis set out on page 69.

Determination of profit

The Reed Elsevier PLC share of the Reed Elsevier combined results
has been calculated on the basis of the 52.9% economic interest of
the Reed Elsevier PLC shareholdersinthe Reed Elsevier combined
businesses, after taking account of results arising in Reed Elsevier
PLC andits subsidiaries. Dividends paid to Reed Elsevier PLC

and Reed Elsevier NVshareholders are, other thanin special
circumstances, equalised at the gross levelinclusive of the UK
tax credit received by certain Reed Elsevier PLC shareholders.

In Reed Elsevier PLC’s consolidated financial statements, an
adjustmentisrequired to equalise the benefit of the tax credit
betweenthe two sets of shareholdersinaccordance with the
equalisation agreement. This equalisation adjustmentarises on
dividends paid by Reed Elsevier PLC toits shareholders and
reduces the consolidated attributable earnings by 47.1% of the
totalamount of the tax credit. The accounting policies adopted in
the preparation of the combined financial statements are set out
on pages 102to 107.

Investments

Reed Elsevier PLC's 52.9% economic interestin the net assets of the
combined businesses has been shown on the statement of financial
positionasinvestmentsinjointventures, net of the assets and liabilities
reported as part of Reed Elsevier PLC and its subsidiaries. Investments
injointventures areaccounted for using the equity method. The results
of the Reed Elsevier combined businesses are set out on pages 98 to 137.

Foreign exchange translation

Transactionsinforeign currencies are recorded at the rate of exchange
prevailing on the date of the transaction. At each statement of financial
position date, monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated
inforeign currencies are retranslated at the rate prevailing on the
statement of financial position date. Exchange differences arising
arerecorded inthe income statement. The exchange gains or
lossesrelating to the retranslation of Reed Elsevier PLC's 52.9%
economicinterestinthe netassets of the combined businesses
are classified as equity and transferred to the translation reserve.
When foreign operations are disposed of, the related cumulative
translation differences are recognised within the income
statementinthe period.

Taxation

Tax expense comprises currentand deferred tax. Currentand
deferredtax are charged or credited in the income statement
excepttothe extentthatthe taxarises fromatransaction or event

whichis recognised, inthe same or a different period, outside profit
or loss (eitherin other comprehensive income, directly in equity,
orthrough a business combination) in which case the tax appears
inthe same statementas the transaction that gave rise toiit.

Currenttaxisthe amount of corporate income taxes payable or
recoverable based onthe profit for the period as adjusted foritems
thatare not taxable or not deductible, andis calculated using tax
rates and laws that were enacted or substantively enacted at the
date of the statement of financial position. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect
to situationsinwhich applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. Provisions are established where appropriate on
the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferredtaxisrecognised ontemporary differences arising
betweenthe tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the statement of financial position. Deferred taxis
calculated using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period, and which
are expected toapplywhen the related deferred tax assetis
realised or the deferred tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporarydifferences but not recognised for taxable temporary
differencesarising oninvestmentsin subsidiaries, associates and
jointventures where the reversal of the temporary difference can
be controlled and itis probable that the difference will not reverse
inthe foreseeable future. Deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised ontemporary differences thatarise from goodwill
whichis not deductible for tax purposes.

Deferredtaxassetsarerecognised to the extentitis probable that
taxable profits will be available against which the deductible
temporarydifferences can be utilised; and reviewed at the end of
eachreporting period and reduced to the extent thatitis no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all
or partoftheassettobe recovered.

Deferred taxassetsand liabilities are not recognised in respect of
temporarydifferencesthatarise oninitial recognition of assets
and liabilities acquired other thanin a business combination.
Deferred taxis notdiscounted.

Criticaljudgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty
Critical judgementsinthe preparation of the combined financial
statements are set out on pages 105to 106.

Standards and amendments effective for the year

Asdescribed on page 106 of the combined accounts, the combined
businesses adopted IAS19 Employee Benefits (revised) with effect
from 1 January 2013. As required under the revised standard,
comparative figures have beenrestated. For the year ended 31
December 2012, Reed Elsevier PLC’s share of results of joint
venturesis £14m lower and basic earnings per shareis 1.2p lower
than previously reported. Onan adjusted basis, earnings per share
is 0.7p lower than previously reported.

With effect from 1 January 2013, the combined businesses also
adopted various other standards, interpretations and amendments
to IFRS, none of which have had a significantimpact on Reed
Elsevier'saccounting policies or reporting.

Standards, amendments and interpretations not yet effective
Recentlyissued standards, amendments and interpretations and
theirimpacton future accounting policies and reporting have been
considered on page 107 of the combined financial statements.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

o
3
<
for the year ended 31 December 2013 2
Administrative expensesinclude £972,000 (2012: £877,000) paid in the year to Reed Elsevier Group plc undera contract for the services
of Directors and administrative support. Reed Elsevier PLC has no employees (2012: nil).
The tax credit equalisation adjustmentarises on ordinary dividends paid by Reed Elsevier PLC to its shareholders and reduces the o
consolidated profit attributable to ordinary shareholders by 47.1% of the total amount of the tax credit, as set out in the accounting G
policies on page 164. e
[}
3
Audit fees payable by Reed Elsevier PLC were £29,000 (2012: £28,000). Further information on the audit and non audit fees paid by the
Reed Elsevier combined businesses to Deloitte LLP and its associates is set outin note 3 to the combined financial statements.
Alltransactions with jointventures, which are related parties of Reed Elsevier PLC, are reflected in these financial statements.
Key management personnelare also related partiesand comprise the Executive Directors of Reed Elsevier PLC. Transactions with
key management personnel are set outin note 29 to the combined financial statements. g
3
2
[}
3
2013 2012
£m £m
Financeincome from joint ventures 10 1
2013 2012
£m £m -
UK corporation tax [expense)/credit (4) 6 2
2
Areconciliation of the notionaltax charge based on the applicable rate of tax to the actual total tax expense is set out below. 2
Restated
2013 2012
£m £m
Profit before tax 576 532
Tax atapplicable rate 23.25% (2012: 24.5%) (134) (131)
Tax atapplicable rate on share of results of joint ventures 136 134
Other (6) 3
Tax (expense)/credit (4) 6
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2013

2013 2012 2013 2012
pence pence £m £m

Ordinary shares
Finalfor prior financialyear 17.0p 15.9p 200 191
Interim for financialyear 6.65p 6.0p 78 73
Total 23.65p 21.9p 278 264

The Directors of Reed Elsevier PLC have proposed a final dividend of 17.95p (2012: 17.0p). The cost of funding the proposed final dividend

is expected tobe £208m. No liability has been recognised at the statement of financial position date.

2013 2012
pence pence
Ordinary shares
Interim (paid) 6.65p 6.0p
Final (proposed) 17.95p 17.0p
Total 24.60p 23.0p
2013 2012
Weighted Weighted
average average
number of number of Restated Restated
shares Earnings EPS shares Earnings EPS
(millions) £m pence (millions) £m pence
Basic earnings per share 1,172.2 572 48.8 1,200.6 538 44.8
Based on 52.9% interestin total operations
of the combined businesses 1,172.2 587 50.1 1,200.6 552 46.0
Diluted earnings per share 1,187.2 572 48.2 1,215.1 538 44.3

The diluted EPS figures are calculated after taking account of the effect of potential additional ordinary shares arising from share

options and conditional shares.
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o
3
s
2
The weighted average number of shares is after deducting shares held in treasury. Movements in the number of shares inissue net of
treasury shares for the year ended 31 December 2013 are shown below.
Yearended 31 December
2013 2012
Sharesin Sharesin
issuenetof issuenetof
Sharesin Treasury treasury treasury o
issue shares shares shares E
(millions) (millions) (millions) (millions) a
Atstartof year 1,257.6 (71.0) 1,186.6 1,202.6 g
Issue of ordinary shares 9.4 - 9.4 6.7 §
Repurchase of ordinary shares - (41.9) (41.9) (23.3)
Net release of shares by the employee benefit trust - 33 3.3 0.6
Atend of year 1,267.0 (109.6) 1,157.4 1,186.6
Weighted average number of equivalent ordinary shares during the year 1,172.2 1,200.6
Adjusted profitand earnings per share figures are used by management as additional performance measures. The adjusted figures are
derived as follows: s
3
Profitattributable to Basicearnings i
ordinaryshareholders pershare a
Restated Restated %'
2013 2012 2013 2012 z
£m £m pence pence
Reportedfigures 572 538 48.8 448
Effect of tax credit equalisation on distributed earnings 15 14 1.3 1.2
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders based on 52.9% economicinterestin the
Reed Elsevier combined businesses 587 552 50.1 46.0
Share of adjustmentsinjointventures:
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 172 178 14.6 14.8
Acquisition related costs 16 8 1.4 0.7
Net financing charge on defined benefit pension schemes 7 5 0.6 0.4 ®
Disposals and other non operating items 10 (55) 0.9 (4.6) S
Other deferred tax credits fromintangible assets* (159) (44) (13.6) (3.7) 2
Exceptional prioryear tax credit - (51) - (4.2) 3
Adjusted figures 633 593 54.0 49.4

* movements on deferred tax liabilities arising on acquired intangible assets that do not qualify for taxamortisationand in 2013
non-recurring deferred tax credits arising on the alignment of certain business assets with their global management structure.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013

2013 2012

£m £m

Administrative expenses (2) (2)
Cash used by operations (2) (2)
2013 2012

£m £m

Atstart of year 949 632
Cash flow (447) 317
Atendofyear 502 949
Restated

2013 2012

£m £m

Share of results of joint ventures 583 547
Share of joint ventures’ other comprehensive loss (13) (132)
Share of jointventures’ disposal of non-controlling interests - 3
Share of jointventures’ increase in share based remuneration reserve (net of tax) 25 16
Equalisation adjustments 13 (8)
Dividends received from joint ventures (102) (694)
(Decreasel/increase in net funding balances due from joint ventures (447) 317
Net movementintheyear 59 49
Atstartofyear 1,207 1,158
Atend of year 1,266 1,207

During the yearthe company received dividends of £102m from Elsevier Reed Finance BV.

Summarised information showing total amountsin respect of joint ventures and Reed Elsevier PLC shareholders’ 52.9% share is set

out below:
ReedElsevier PLC
Total jointventures shareholders’ share
Restated Restated
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m £m
Revenue 6,035 6,116 3,193 3,235
Net profit for theyear 1,115 1,049 583 547

Reed Elsevier PLC’s share of joint ventures’ net profit attributable to parent company shareholders for the year excludes the net profit

thatarose directly in Reed Elsevier PLC of £4m (2012: £5m).

Reed Elsevier PLC’s other comprehensive income includes a loss of £13m (2012: £132m] relating to joint ventures.
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2
5
ReedElsevier PLC
Totaljointventures shareholders’share
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m £m
Totalassets 10,495 11,014 5,552 5,826
Total liabilities (8,072) (8,700) (4,788) (5,568)
Netassets 2,423 2,314 764 258 @
Attributable to: %
Jointventures 2,390 2,280 764 258 t
Non-controlling interests 33 34 - - g
2,423 2,314 764 258 2
Funding balances due from jointventures 502 949
Total 1,266 1,207
The above amounts for Reed Elsevier PLC's shareholders’ share of total assets and total liabilities exclude assets and liabilities held
by Reed Elsevier PLC, butinclude the counterparty balances of amounts owed to and by other Reed Elsevier businesses. Included
within Reed Elsevier PLC’s share of assets and liabilities are cash and cash equivalents of £70m (2012: £339m) and borrowings of
£1,736m (2012: £2,059m)] respectively.
-
2013 2012 3
No.of shares £m No. of shares £m E
Atstartofyear 1,257,597,977 181 1,250,913,565 180
Issue of ordinary shares 9,438,719 1 6,684,412 1
Atend of year 1,267,036,696 182 1,257,597,977 181
Allof the ordinary shares rank equally with respect to voting rights and rights to receive dividends, except for shares held in treasury by
the parent company, which do not attract voting or dividend rights. There are no restrictions on the rights to transfer shares.
Theissue of ordinary sharesrelates to the exercise of share options. Details of share option and conditional share schemes are set outin
note 6 to the Reed Elsevier combined financial statements.
At31December 2013, shares held intreasuryrelated to 10,120,537 (2012: 13,451,468) Reed Elsevier PLC ordinary shares held by the g
Reed Elsevier Group plc Employee Benefit Trust (EBT); and 99,446,834 (2012:57,484,914) Reed Elsevier PLC ordinary shares held by the 3
parent company. 3

The EBT purchases Reed Elsevier PLC shares which, atthe Trustee’s discretion, can be used in respect of the exercise of share options
and to meet commitments under conditional share awards. At 31 December 2013, Reed Elsevier PLC shares held by the EBT were
£64m (2012: £84m) at cost.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013

Restated
2013 2012
£m £m
Atstart of year 173 (62)
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders 572 538
Share of jointventures”:
Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit pension schemes 21 (155)
Transferto net profit on disposal of available for sale investments - 6
Fairvalue movements on cash flow hedges 34 37
Taxrecognisedin other comprehensive income (20) 41
Increase in share based remuneration reserve (net of tax) 25 16
Settlement of share awards (21) (4)
Transferto net profit from cash flow hedge reserve (net of tax) (1) "
Disposal of non-controlling interests - 3
Equalisation adjustments 28 6
Equity dividends paid (278) (264)

Atend of year 533 173
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There are contingent liabilities in respect of borrowings of joint ventures guaranteed by Reed Elsevier PLC as follows:

2013 2012
£m £m
Guaranteed jointly and severally with Reed Elsevier NV 3,063 3,595

Financialinstruments disclosuresin respect of the borrowings covered by the above guarantees are givenin note 18 to the Reed Elsevier
combined financial statements.

% holding
Reed Elsevier Group plc
Incorporated and operating in Great Britain 18,385 ordinary R shares 100%
1-3 Strand 18,385 ordinary E shares -
London WC2N 5JR 100,000 7.5% cumulative preference nonvoting shares 100%
Holding company for operating businesses involved in
science & medical, risk management, legaland business
publishing and organisation of trade exhibitions Equivalenttoa50% equity interest
Elsevier Reed Finance BV
Incorporated inthe Netherlands 133 ordinary Rshares 100%
Radarweg 29 205ordinary E shares -
1043 NX Amsterdam, the Netherlands Holding company
forfinancing businesses Equivalenttoa 39% equity interest
The Esharesin Reed Elsevier Group plcand Elsevier Reed Finance BV are owned by Reed Elsevier NV.

% holding
Reed Holding BV
Incorporated in the Netherlands 191 ordinary shares 100%

Radarweg 29
1043 NX Amsterdam, the Netherlands

At 31 December 2013 Reed Holding BV owned 4,146,785 (2012: 4,240,838) shares of a separate class in Reed Elsevier NV.
The equalisation arrangements entered into between Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV at the time of the merger give
Reed Elsevier PLC a5.8% economicinterestin Reed Elsevier NV.
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Parent company balance sheet

2013 2012
Note £m £m
Fixed assets
Investmentsin subsidiary undertakings 1 309 309
Investmentsinjointventures 1 2,312 2,310
2,621 2,619
Currentassets
Debtors: amounts due from jointventures 502 949
502 949
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Taxation (2) (1)
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings (77) (77)
(79) (78)
Net currentassets 423 871
Netassets 3,044 3,490
Capitalandreserves
Called up share capital 182 181
Share premium account 1,257 1,208
Shares heldintreasury (693) (367)
Capital redemption reserve 4 4
Otherreserves 152 150
Profitand lossreserve 2,142 2,314
Shareholders’ funds 3,044 3,490
The parent company financial statements were approved by the Board of directors, 26 February 2014.
AJHabgood DJPalmer
Chairman Chief Financial Officer
g s . »
Parent company reconciliation of shareholders’ funds
Share Shares Capital Profit
Share premium heldin redemption Other and loss
capital account treasury reserve reserves reserve Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 1January 2012 180 1,176 (224) 4 148 1,879 3,163
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders - - - - - 699 699
Equity dividends paid - - - - - (264) (264)
Repurchase of ordinary shares - - (143) - - - (143)
Issue of ordinary shares, net of expenses 1 32 - - - - 33
Equity instruments granted to employees of
combined businesses - - - - 2 - 2
At 1January 2013 181 1,208 (367) 4 150 2,314 3,490
Profitattributable to ordinary shareholders - - - - - 106 106
Equity dividends paid - - - - - (278) (278)
Repurchase of ordinary shares - - (326) - - - (326)
Issue of ordinary shares, net of expenses 49 - - - - 50
Equity instruments granted to employees of
combined businesses - - - - 2 - 2
At 31 December 2013 182 1,257 (693) 4 152 2,142 3,044
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Parent company accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The parent company financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention in accordance with UK
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (UK GAAP). Unless
otherwise indicated, allamountsin the financial statements arein
millions of pounds.

The parent company financial statements are prepared on a going
concern basis, as explained on page 159.

As permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the
company has not presented its own profitand loss account.

The Reed Elsevier PLC accounting policies under UK GAAP are
setout below.

Investments

Fixed assetinvestmentsinthe Reed Elsevier combined
businesses are stated at cost, less provision, if appropriate, for
any impairmentinvalue. The fairvalue of the award of share
options and conditional shares over Reed Elsevier PLC ordinary
sharesto employees of the Reed Elsevier combined businesses
aretreated as a capital contribution.

Principaljointventures and subsidiaries are set outin notes 15and
16 of the Reed Elsevier PLC consolidated financial statements.

Shares heldintreasury

The consideration paid, including directly attributable costs, for
sharesrepurchasedisrecognised as shares held intreasuryand
presented as a deduction from total equity. Details of share capital
andsharesheldintreasuryare setoutin note 12 of the Reed
Elsevier PLC consolidated financial statements and note 27 of the
Reed Elsevier combined financial statements.

Foreign exchange translation
Transactions entered intoin foreign currencies are recorded at
the exchange rates applicable at the time of the transaction.

Taxation

Deferredtaxis providedin full for timing differences using the
liability method. Deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extentthattheyare considered recoverable in the shortterm.
Deferredtax balancesare notdiscounted.

Note to the parent company financial statements

Subsidiary Joint
undertaking ventures Total
£m £m £m
At 1January 2012 309 2,308 2,617
- 2 2

Equity instruments granted to Reed Elsevier employees

At 1 January 2013
Equity instruments granted to Reed Elsevier employees

- 2 2

At 31 December 2013

309 2,310 2,619

309 2,312 2,621
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Reed Elsevier PLC

Opinion on our audit of the consolidated and parent company
financial statements of Reed Elsevier PLC (“the Company”)

Inouropinion:

the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state
ofthe Company’s affairs as at 31 December 2013 and of the
consolidated profitand their cash flows for the year then ended;

the consolidated financial statements have been properly
preparedinaccordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union;

the parent company financial statements have been properly
preparedinaccordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice and inaccordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 2006; and

the financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and, as
regards the group financial statements, Article 4 of the

IAS Regulation.

We have audited the consolidated financial statements which
comprise the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated cash flow
statement, the consolidated statement of financial position, the
consolidated statements of changes in equity, a summary of the
consolidated accounting policies and the related notes 1to 16.
The financial reporting framework that has been appliedin the
preparation of the consolidated financial statementsis applicable
law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as
adopted by the European Union. The parent company financial
statements comprise the parent company balance sheet, the
parent company reconciliation of shareholders’ funds, a summary
of the parent company significantaccounting policies and the
related note. The financialreporting framework that has been
appliedinthe preparation of the parent company financial
statementsis applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting
Standards.

Our assessment of risks of material misstatement, application
of materiality and overview of the scope of our audit

Given the nature of the Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier

NV legal structure, ourassessment of risks of material
misstatement, materiality and audit scoping for the Combined
Businesses equally applies to the audit of the parent company
and the consolidated financial statements of Reed Elsevier PLC.
See page 138 for further details.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

Anauditinvolves obtaining evidence about the amounts and
disclosuresinthe financial statements sufficient to give
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free

from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error.
Thisincludes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies
are appropriate tothe Company’s circumstances and have

been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the
directors; and the overall presentation of the financial statements.

Inaddition, we read all the financial and non-financial information
inthe annual reporttoidentify materialinconsistencies with the
audited financial statements and to identify any information that is
apparently materially incorrectbased on, or materially
inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of
performing the audit. If we become aware of any apparent
material misstatements orinconsistencies we consider the
implications for our report.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities
Statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements and for being satisfied that they give atrue
and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion
onthe financial statementsin accordance with applicable law and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those
standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices
Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Thisreportis made solely to the company’s members, asabody, in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006.
Our auditwork has been undertaken so that we might state to the
company’'s members those matters we are required to state to
theminanauditor'sreportand for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept orassume responsibility
toanyone other than the company and the company’s members as
abody, for ourauditwork, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.

We are required to communicate with the Audit Committee
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the auditand significant audit findings, including any significant
deficienciesininternal control that we identify during our audit.
We are alsorequiredto provide the Audit Committee with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
themallrelationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thoughttobearonourindependence, and where applicable
related safeguards.

Going Concern

Asrequired by the Listing Rules we have reviewed the directors’
statement contained on page 76 that the Companyis agoing
concern. We confirm that given the nature of the Reed Elsevier
PLC and Reed Elsevier NV legal structure, our assessment of the
combined businesses’ ability to continue as a going concern
equally applies tothe parent company and the consolidated
financial statements of Reed Elsevier PLC.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be
predicted, this statementis nota guarantee as to the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.
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Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
Inour opinion:

the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited
has been properly preparedinaccordance with the Companies
Act 2006; and

the information givenin the Strategic Reportand the Directors’
Reportforthe financial year for which the financial statements
are preparedis consistent with the financial statements.

Matters onwhich we arerequired toreport by exception
Adequacy of explanations received and accounting records
Underthe Companies Act 2006 we are required to report toyou if,
inour opinion:

we have notreceived all the information and explanations we
require for our audit; or

adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent
company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches notvisited by us; or

the parentcompany financial statements are notin agreement
with the accountingrecords and returns.

We have nothing to reportin respect of these matters.

Directors’remuneration

Underthe Companies Act 2006 we are also required toreportifin
our opinion certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration have
not been made or the partof the Directors’ Remuneration Report
tobe audited is notin agreement with the accounting records and
returns. Underthe Listing Ruleswe are required to review certain
elements of the Directors’ Remuneration Report. We have nothing
toreportarising from these matters or our review.

Corporate Governance Statement

Underthe Listing Rules we are also required to review the part of
the Corporate Governance Statement relating to the company’s
compliance with nine provisions of the UK Corporate Governance
Code. We have nothing to reportarising from our review.

Ourdutyto read other information in the Annual Report
Underthe ISAs (UK and Ireland), we are required to report toyouif,
inouropinion, informationinthe annual reportis:

materially inconsistent with the informationin the audited
financial statements; or

apparently materiallyincorrect based on, or materially
inconsistent with, our knowledge of the Company acquiredin
the course of performing our audit; or

is otherwise misleading.

175

In particular, we are required to consider whether we have
identified any inconsistencies between our knowledge acquired
during the auditand the directors’ statement that they consider
theannualreportis fair, balanced and understandable and
whetherthe annualreportappropriately discloses those matters
that we communicated to the Audit Committee which we consider
should have beendisclosed.

We have nothing to reportinrespect of these matters.
Douglas King (Senior statutory auditor]

Forandon behalf of

Deloitte LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
London

United Kingdom

26 February 2014
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byear summary

I1AS19 (revised)®

Asreported

2013 2012 2012 2011 2010 2009
Note £m £m £m £m £m £m
Combined financial information
Revenue 6,035 6,116 6,116 6,002 6,055 6,071
Reported operating profit 1,376 1,333 1,358 1,205 1,090 787
Adjusted operating profit 1 1,749 1,688 1,713 1,626 1,555 1,570
Reported net profit attributable to shareholders 1,110 1,044 1,069 760 642 391
Adjusted net profit attributable to shareholders 1 1,197 1,121 1,138 1,060 983 982
Reed Elsevier PLC consolidated financialinformation
Reported net profit attributable to shareholders 2 572 538 552 389 327 195
Adjusted net profit attributable to shareholders 3 633 593 602 561 520 519
Reported earnings per ordinary share (pence) 2 48.8 44.8p 46.0p 32.4p 27.3p 17.2p
Adjusted earnings per ordinary share (pence) 3 54.0 49.4p 50.1p 46.7p 43.4p 45.9p
Dividend per ordinary share (pence) 4 24.60p 23.0p 23.0p 21.55p 20.4p 20.4p

(1) Adjusted figuresare presented as additional performance measures used by management and are stated before amortisation and

impairment of acquired intangible assets and goodwill, the net financing cost on defined benefit pension schemes, exceptional
restructuring (2008 - 2010) and acquisition related costs, exceptional prior year tax credits (in 2012 only), and in respect of

attributable net profit, reflect a tax rate that excludes the effect of movements in deferred taxation assets and liabilities that are not

expectedtocrystallise inthe nearterm andincludes the benefit of tax amortisation where available on acquired goodwill and

intangible assets. Acquisition related financing costs and profit and loss from disposal gains and losses and other non operating

items are also excluded from the adjusted figures.

(2

Reported net profit attributable to shareholders and reported earnings per share are based on the 52.9% share of the Reed Elsevier

combined profit attributable to shareholders, adjusted to equalise the benefit of the UK dividend tax credit with Reed Elsevier NV

shareholdersasareductioninreported profits.

(3

combined profit attributable to Reed Elsevier PLC shareholders.

(4

(5

Dividend perordinary shareis based on the interim dividend and proposed final dividend for the relevant year.

Comparative figures for 2012 have been restated following the adoption of IAS19 Employee Benefits (revised).

Adjusted net profit attributable to shareholders and adjusted earnings per share are based on the 52.9% share of the Reed Elsevier
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Report of the Board

The non-executive and executive directors present their joint
report, together with the financial statements of the group and of
the company, for the year ended 31 December 2013.

As aconsequence of the merger of the company’s businesses with
those of Reed Elsevier PLC in 1993, described on page 69, the
shareholders of Reed Elsevier NVand Reed Elsevier PLC can be
regarded as having the interests of a single economic group. The
Reed Elsevier combined financial statements represent the
combined interests of both sets of shareholders and encompass
the businesses of Reed Elsevier Group plc, Elsevier Reed Finance
BV and theirrespective subsidiaries, associates and jointventures,
togetherwith the parentcompanies, Reed Elsevier NVand Reed
Elsevier PLC (“the combined businesses” or “Reed Elsevier”).

Thisreport of the Board and the consolidated and parent company
financial statements should be read in conjunction with the Reed
Elsevier combined financial statements and other reports set out
onpages 2to 154, whichare incorporated by reference herein.
Summary combined financialinformationin euros is set out

on pages 141to 154. The combined financial statements on pages
97to 139 areto be considered as part of the notes to the statutory
financial statements. The annual report of Reed Elsevier NV
within the meaning of article 2:391 of the Dutch Civil Code
consists of pages 177 to 181 and, incorporated by reference, pages
210 154.The Corporate Governance Statement of Reed Elsevier
NV dated 26 February 2014 is published on the Reed Elsevier
website (Wwww.reedelsevier.com)andisincorporated by reference
herein as perthe Vaststellingsbesluit nadere voorschriften
inhoud jaarverslag January 2010 article 2a under 1 sub b.

Principalactivities

The companyis a holding company and its principalinvestments
areitsdirect 50% shareholding in Reed Elsevier Group plcand its
direct 61% shareholdingin Elsevier Reed Finance BV, which are
engaged in publishing and information activities and financing
activities respectively. The remaining shareholdings in these two
companies are held by Reed Elsevier PLC.

Reed Elsevier NVand Reed Elsevier PLC have retained their
separate legalidentities and are publicly held companies. Reed
Elsevier NV's securities are listed in Amsterdam and New York
and Reed Elsevier PLC’s securities are listed in London and
New York.

Financial statement presentation

The consolidated financial statements of Reed Elsevier NVinclude
the 50% economic interest thatits shareholders (including Reed
Elsevier PLC, which hasanindirect5.8% interestin the company)
have under the equalisation arrangements in the Reed Elsevier
combined businesses, accounted for on an equity basis.

Under the terms of the merger agreement, dividends paid to Reed

Elsevier NVand Reed Elsevier PLC shareholders are, otherthanin
special circumstances, equalised at the gross levelinclusive of the
UKtax credit received by certain Reed Elsevier PLC shareholders.

Inadditionto the reported figures, adjusted profit figures are
presented as additional performance measures used by
management. These exclude in relation to the results of joint
ventures, the company’s share of amortisation of acquired

intangible assets, acquisition related costs, disposal related

and other non operating items, the net pension financing charge
or credit, exceptional prioryear tax credits and movementsin
deferred taxation assets and liabilities not expected to crystallise
inthe neartermandinclude the benefit of taxamortisation where
available onacquired goodwilland intangible assets.

Consolidated income statement

Comparative figures have been restated following the adoption of
IAS19 Employee Benefits (revised). Reed Elsevier NV's
shareholders’ 50% share of the adjusted profit before tax of the
Reed Elsevier combined businesses was €928m (2012: €906m).
Reported profit before tax, including the Reed Elsevier NV
shareholders’ share of amortisation, acquisition related costs and
disposals and non operating items, was €659m (2012: €644m).
Theincrease reflects the improved trading performance offset by
lower disposal gains.

Elsevierachieved good growth in primary research submissions
and usage, and in databases & tools, across the scientific,
technicaland medical segments. At Risk Solutions, all business
segments achieved strong growth. At Business Information
underlying revenue growth accelerated reflecting continued good
growthin data services, modest growth elsewhere, and portfolio
development. Legal maintained positive underlying revenue
growth despite subdued market conditions inthe US and Europe.
Exhibitions achieved strong underlying growth excluding the
effect of biennial show cycling; while growth in Europe was
modest, the US, Japan, Braziland other markets grew well.

The overalladjusted operating margin was 1.4 percentage points
higher despite investmentin global technology platforms and
new products and services, reflectinga combination of process
innovation, portfolio developmentand currency effects.

Reed Elsevier NV's shareholders’ share of the adjusted profit
attributable of the combined businesses was €707m (2012:
€689m). After deducting the company’s share of the post tax
charge foramortisation of acquired intangible assets, acquisition
related costs, disposal related and other non operating items,
the netfinancing charge on defined benefit pension schemes
exceptional prioryear tax credits (in 2012 only) and movements

in deferred taxes related to acquired intangible assets

the reported net profit for the year was €655m (2012: €642m).

Adjusted earnings per shareincreased 5% to €0.99 (2012: €0.94).
At constant rates of exchange, the adjusted earnings per share
were 7% higher. Including amortisation of acquired intangible
assets, acquisition related costs, disposal related and other non
operating items, the net financing charge on defined benefit
pension schemes and tax adjustments, the basic earnings per
sharewere €0.91(2012: €0.87).

Consolidated statement of financial position

The consolidated statement of financial position of Reed
Elsevier NVreflectsits 50% economicinterestinthe netassets
of Reed Elsevier whichasat 31 December2013was €1,434m
(2012:€1,402 m). The €32mincrease in net assets reflects the
company’s shareinthe comprehensive income of Reed Elsevier
partially offset by dividends paid and shares repurchased.
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Parent company financial statements

Inaccordance with article 2:362(1) of the Dutch Civil Code, the
individual parent company financial statements of Reed Elsevier NV
(presented on pages 194 to 198) are prepared under UK Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (UK GAAP). The profit attributable
tothe shareholders of Reed Elsevier NVwas €199m (2012: €758m)
and netassetsasat31 December 2013, principally representing
theinvestmentsin Reed Elsevier Group plc and Elsevier Reed
Finance BV underthe historical cost method and loans to their
subsidiaries, were €4,579m (2012: €4,948 m). Free reserves as at
31 December 2013 were €4,329m (2012: €4,701m), comprising
reservesand paid-in surplus less shares held in treasury.

Dividends

The Boardisrecommending an equalised final dividend of €0.374
perordinary share, up 11% compared with the prioryear. This
gives total ordinary dividends for the year of €0.506 (2012: €0.467),
up 8% on 2012. The final dividend will be paid on 23 May 2014.

Dividend cover, based on adjusted earnings per share and the
totalinterim and proposed final dividends for the year, is 2.0 times.
The Boards of the company and Reed Elsevier PLC have adopted
dividend policiesinrecentyearsinrespect of their equalised
dividends that, subject to currency considerations, grow dividends
broadlyin line with adjusted earnings per share whilst maintaining
dividend cover (being the number of times the annual dividend is
covered by the adjusted earnings per share] of at least two times
overthe longerterm.

The totaldividend paid on the ordinary shares in the financial year
was €321m (2012: €319m).

Share capital
During 2013, 8,165,731 ordinary shares in the company were
issued as follows:

under convertible debentures at prices between €11.19
and €15.87

under executive share option schemes at prices between
€11.155and €15.825

Information regarding shares outstanding at 31 December 2013is
shownin note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

At 31 December 2013 the total shares held intreasury were
67,451,493. Of these 4,992,360 ordinary shares were held by the
Reed Elsevier Group plc Employee Benefit Trustand 60,895,193
ordinary shares and 156,394 R shares (equivalent to 1,563,940
ordinary shares) were held by Reed Elsevier NV.

Substantial holdings

Asat 26 February 2014, based on the public database of and on
notification received from the Netherlands Authority for the
Financial Markets, the company is aware of interests in the capital
and voting rights of the issued share capital of the company of at
least 3% by the following persons or organisations:

FIL Limited

The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation
Causeway Capital Management LLC
BlackRock, Inc

Credit Suisse Group AG

ING Groep N.V.

Reed Elsevier PLC

179

Authority to purchase shares

Atthe 2013 Annual General Meeting, shareholders passed a
resolution delegating the authority to the Board to acquire shares
inthe Company fora period of 18 months from the date of the
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders and therefore up toand
including 23 October 2014, for the maximum amount of 10% of the
issued capital. During the year, 24,282,106 ordinary shares and
additionally 94,053 R shares (equivalent to 940,530 ordinary
shares), were purchased under this and the previous delegation of
authority. Asat 31 December 2013 there were 65,887,553 ordinary
shares heldintreasury, representing 9% of the issued ordinary
shares. Afurther 3,511,668 ordinary shares were purchased
between 1 January 2014 and the date of this report.

Aresolutiontorenewthe delegation of the authority to the
Board will be submitted to the shareholders at the 2014 Annual
General Meeting.

Corporate Governance

Reed Elsevier NVand Reed Elsevier PLC are subject tovarious
corporate governance principles and best practice codes, in
particularthe Dutch Corporate Governance Code issuedin
December 2008 (the Dutch Code) and the UK Corporate Governance
Codeissued by the UK Financial Reporting Councilin September
2012 (the UK Code). Reed Elsevier NV may notapply fully the
verbatim language of these codes, but does fully apply the
principles and best practice provisions other than, in respect of the
Dutch Code, the following for reasons explained below:

Best practice provision1l.2.5: Executive directors are required
to build up a minimum shareholding and meeting the relevant
shareholding requirementis both a condition of the vesting of
awards as well as a pre-requisite to maintain eligibility to
receive future awards under the multi-yearincentives. Reed
Elsevier useslongtermincentive arrangementsin the form of
awards of shares which mayvest after three years. The intent
of this shareholding policyisto align the interests of senior
executives and shareholders. Thisintentisin compliance with
the Dutch Code. Shares received on joining Reed Elsevierin
compensation for benefits forfeited underincentive schemes
froma previous employer are not to be considered as part of
the minimum shareholding in this context.

Best practice provision|l.2.8: Reed Elsevier has
arrangements thatare commensurate with local and legal
requirements to ensure a competitive employment offer to its
Board Members. Executive directors have service contracts
under English law that provide for notice periods not exceeding
oneyear. There are currently no executive directors with
employment agreements under Dutch law. In the event of
dismissal, notice is given in accordance with the agreed notice
period. The notice period applicable to the service contracts of
executive directorsis 12 months. The payment during the
notice period may be mitigated if the director finds other
employmentwithin this period. The application of this
arrangement may fall within the best practice provision that
remunerationin the event of dismissal may not exceed the fixed
component of oneyear’s salary. There are noother severance
arrangements in place for the executive directors and none of
the service contracts contain severance pay arrangements.
Although the principle that severance pay should not exceed
the fixed component of oneyear’s salaryis supported, there
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may be exceptional circumstances where this maximum would
be manifestly unreasonable that could justify additional
compensation ontermination for loss of variable remuneration
components. Full disclosure on remuneration in event of
dismissalis providedin the Directors’ Remuneration Report.

Best practice provisions|l.2.13and I1.2.14: In view of their
detailed specificity and complexity and because of the
confidential or potentially commercially sensitive nature of the
information concerned, individual performance targets and
achievements relevant for variable executive remuneration
willonly be disclosedin generalterms.

Best practice provisionll.3.4and 11.6.3: The disclosure of
transactionswhere directors have a conflict of interest, as
required by these provisions, shall be qualified to the extent
required under applicable rules and laws pertaining to the
disclosure of price sensitive information, confidentiality and
justified aspects of competition.

Principlelll.7: The remuneration of non-executive directors is
determined by the Board in the context of the board
harmonisation with Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier Group
plc, having regard for the maximum perannum approved by the
general meeting of shareholders.

Best practice provisionV.1.1: Appointments, suspensions and
removal procedures for executive directors are set outin the
Reed Elsevier NV Corporate Governance Statement2013. In
orderto safeguard the agreed board harmonisation with the
Board of Reed Elsevier PLC, the articles of association of Reed
Elsevier NV provide thataresolution of the General
Shareholders’ Meeting to appointan executive director other
thaninaccordance with the proposal of the Board shall require
amajority of at least two thirds of the votes cast if less than

one half of the company’sissued capitalis represented at

the meeting. Given the still generally low attendance rate
atshareholders’ meetingsinthe Netherlands, the Board
believes that this qualified majority requirementis appropriate
forthis purpose.

Best practice provision1V.3.1: Itis considered impractical and
unnecessary to provide access for shareholders to all
meetings with analysts and all presentations toinvestorsin
realtime. Price sensitive and other information relevant to
shareholdersisdisclosed as required or as appropriate and
made available on the website. Presentations made following
the announcement of the interim and full year results are
simultaneously webcast. Investor seminars are also webcast.

Forfurtherinformation on the application of the Dutch Code,
seethe Corporate Governance Statement of Reed Elsevier NV
published on the Reed Elsevier website, www.reedelsevier.com.

The Board

Theimplementation of the unitary board governance structure at
Reed Elsevier NVwas approved at the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholdersin April 2013. On 8 May 2013, the articles of
association of Reed Elsevier NVwere amended and the unitary
governance structure became effective. Reed Elsevier NV now has
aunitary board comprising both executive and non-executive
directors. Atthe same time, it was determined that Executive
Board memberswould become executive directorsand members
of the Supervisory Board would become non-executive directors.

The Boards of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier Group plcare
alsounitary boards. Itis established board practice at Reed
Elsevier NVthatthe executive and the non-executive directors
meet together.

Significant agreements - change of control

The Governing Agreement between Reed Elsevier NVand Reed
Elsevier PLC states that upon a change of control of Reed Elsevier
NV (for these purposes, the acquisition by a third party of 50% or
more of the issued share capital having voting rights), should there
not be a comparable offer from the offeror for Reed Elsevier PLC,
Reed Elsevier PLC may serve notice upon Reed Elsevier NVvarying
certain provisions of the Governing Agreement, including the
governance and the standstill provisions.

Thereareanumberof borrowing agreementsincluding credit
facilities that in the event of a change of control of both Reed
Elsevier NVand Reed Elsevier PLC and, in some cases,
aconsequential credit rating downgrade to sub-investment grade
may, at the option of the lenders, require repaymentand/or
cancellationas appropriate.

Directors
Thefollowingindividuals served as directors during the year:

Executivedirectors
E Engstrom

(Chief Executive Officer)
D Palmer

(Chief Financial Officer)

Non-executive directors

AHabgood (Chairman)

M Elliott (retired 24 April 2013)

W Hauser (appointed 24 April 2013)

AHennah

L Hook (seniorindependent director
asof 23 April 2013)

Mvan Lier Lels

R Polet

Sir David Reid (retired 24 April 2013)

L Sanford

BvanderVeer

Atthe Annual General Meeting held in April 2013, Wolfhart Hauser
was appointed as a non-executive director with effect from

24 April 2013. Mark Elliott and Sir David Reid retired as
non-executive directors at the conclusion of the Annual General
Meetingin April 2013.

In September 2013, Duncan Palmer gave notice of his resignation
as Chief Financial Officer effective as of 25 September 2014 or
such earlier date as Reed Elsevier may designate. The
Nominations Committee retained an external search consultancy
toconductasearch processin conjunction with the Boards to
identify a suitable candidate to succeed Mr Palmer. Following the
conclusion of the search process and on the recommendation of
the Nominations Committee, the Board selected Nick Luff as Chief
Financial Officer. In January 2014, Reed Elsevier announced that
Nick Luff will be appointed to the Boards of Reed Elsevier PLC,
Reed Elsevier Group plc and Reed Elsevier NV as Chief Financial
Officer subject to the approval of shareholders at the Annual
General Meetingsin April2014. The effective date of his
appointment remains to be confirmed but is expected to be no
laterthan 15 December 2014.

Alldirectorswill stand for re-appointment at the Annual General
Meetingin April 2014.
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Biographical details of the Directors at the date of this reportare
given on pages 64 and 65. Details of the remuneration of the
Directorsandtheirinterestsin the share capital of the company
are provided in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages

78 to 94.

Financial statements and accounting records

The financial statements provide a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the company and the group as of 31 December 2013 and of
the profitor lossin 2013. In preparing the financial statements, the
Board ensures that suitable accounting policies, consistently
applied and supported by reasonable judgements and estimates,
have been used and applicable accounting standards have been
followed. The Board is responsible for keeping proper accounting
records, which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the company and enable them to ensure that
the financial statements comply with the law. The Board has
generalresponsibility for taking reasonable steps to safeguard
the assets of the company and to prevent and detect fraud and
otherirregularities.

Internal control

Asrequired under sections|l.1.4.and I1.1.5. of the Dutch Code, the
Audit Committee and the Board have reviewed the effectiveness of
the systems of internal controland risk management during the
last financialyear. The objective of these systems is to manage,
ratherthan eliminate, the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives. Accordingly, they can only provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss. The
outcome of thisreview has been discussed with the external
auditors. The Board confirmed that as regards financial reporting,
therisk managementand control systems provide reasonable
assurance against materialinaccuracies or loss and have
functioned properly during the financial year.

Directors’ responsibility statement
The Board confirms, to the best of its knowledge, that:

the consolidated financial statements, prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards asissued by
the International Accounting Standards Board and as adopted
by the European Union, give a true and fair view of the financial
position and profit or loss of the group; and

the Report of the Board includes a fair review of the
developmentand performance of the business during the
financialyearandthe position of the group as at 31 December
2013 togetherwith a description of the principal risks and
uncertainties that it faces.

Neither the company nor the directors acceptany liability toany
personin relationtothe Annual Report except to the extent that
such liability arises under Dutch law.

Disclosure of information to auditors

As part of the process of approving the company’s 2013 financial
statements, the Board has taken steps to ensure that all relevant
information was provided to the company’s auditors and, so far as
the Boardisaware, thereis norelevant audit information of which
the company’s auditors are unaware.

181

Going concern

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that
adequate resources exist for the combined businesses to continue
in operational existence for the foreseeable future and that,
therefore, itis appropriate to adopt the going concern basisin
preparing the 2013 financial statements. Inreaching this
conclusion, the Directors have had due regard to the combined
businesses’ financial position as at 31 December 2013, the

strong free cash flow of the combined businesses, Reed Elsevier’s
ability toaccess capital markets and the principal risks facing
Reed Elsevier.

Acommentary on the Reed Elsevier combined businesses’ cash
flows, financial position and liquidity for the year ended 31
December 2013is set outin the Chief Financial Officer’s Report on
pages 52 to 59. This shows that, after taking account of available
cash resources and committed bank facilities that back up short
term borrowings, none of Reed Elsevier’s borrowings fall due
within the nexttwo years. Reed Elsevier’s policies on liquidity,
capital managementand management of risks relating to interest
rate, foreign exchange and credit exposures are set out on pages
58and 59. Furtherinformation on liquidity of the combined
businesses can be foundin note 18 of the combined financial
statements. The principal risks facing Reed Elsevierare setouton
pages 60to 62.

Auditors

Resolutions for the re-appointment of Deloitte Accountants BV as
auditors of the company and to authorise the Board to determine
theirremuneration will be submitted to the forthcoming Annual
General Meetingon 23 April 2014.

Signed by:

Non-executive directors Executivedirectors

AHabgood [Chairman) E Engstrom

W Hauser (Chief Executive Officer)
AHennah D Palmer

L Hook (Chief Financial Officer)
Mvan Lier Lels

R Polet

L Sanford

BvanderVeer

Registered office
Radarweg 29
1043 NXThe Netherlands

Chamber of Commerce Amsterdam
Register file No: 33155037
26 February 2014
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Consolidated income statement

Restated
2013 2012
Note €m €m
Administrative expenses 2 (2) (2)
Share of results of joint ventures " 642 638
Operating profit 640 636
Financeincome 5 19 8
Profit before tax 659 644
Taxexpense 6 (4) (2)
Profitattributable to shareholders 655 642
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
Restated
2013 2012
€m €m
Profit attributable to shareholders 655 642
Share of jointventures’ other comprehensive loss for the year (48) (121)
Total comprehensiveincome for theyear 607 521
Earnings per ordinary share
Restated
2013 2012
Note € €
Basicearnings pershare 8 0.91 0.87
Diluted earnings per share 8 0.90 0.87
Consolidated statement of cash flows
2013 2012
Note €m €m
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash used by operations 10 (3) (5)
Interest received 19 6
Tax paid (1 (2)
Net cash from/(used in) operating activities 15 (1)
Cash flows from investing activities
Dividends received from joint ventures 1M 186 754
Net cash frominvesting activities 186 754
Cash flows from financing activities
Equity dividends paid 7 (321) (319)
Repurchase of shares (337) (141)
Proceedsonissue of ordinary shares 88 18
Decrease/lincrease)in netfunding balances due from jointventures 10 370 (313)
Net cash usedin financing activities (200) (755)
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Consolidated statement of financial position
<.
g
2013 2012
Note €m €m
Non-current assets
Investmentsinjointventures [N 1,488 1,455
Currentassets
Amounts due fromjointventures 4 4
Cash and cash equivalents 2 1
6 5
Totalassets 1,494 1,460 2
g.
Current liabilities P
Payables 12 6 7 5
Taxation 54 51 <
Total liabilities 60 58
Netassets 1,434 1,402
Capitalandreserves
Share capitalissued 13 55 54
Paid-in surplus 2,276 2,189
Shares held intreasury (including in joint ventures) (881) (571)
Translationreserve (131) (42)
Otherreserves 14 115 (228) g
Total equity 1,434 1,402 é
2
Consolidated statement of changes in equity
Share Paid-in Sharesheld Translation Other Total
capital surplus intreasury reserves reserves equity
Note €m €m €m €m €m €m
Balance at 1 January 2012 54 2,171 (432) 6 (496) 1,303
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - (51) 572 521 -
Equity dividends paid 7 - - - - (319) (319) 2
Issue of ordinary shares, net of expenses - 18 - - - 18 3
Repurchase of shares - - (141) - - (141) 2
Share of jointventures’increase in share based
remuneration reserve - - - - 19 19
Share of joint ventures’ settlement of share awards by
the employee benefittrust - - 5 - (5) -
Share of joint ventures’ disposal of non-controlling
interests - - - - 4 4
Equalisation adjustments - - - - (3) (3)
Exchange translation differences - - (3) 3 - -
Balanceat 1 January 2013 54 2,189 (571) (42) (228) 1,402
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - (86) 693 607
Equity dividends paid 7 - - - - (321) (321) x
Issue of ordinary shares, net of expenses 1 87 - - - 88 %
Repurchase of shares - - (337) - - (337) n
Share of jointventures’increasein share based g
remuneration reserve (net of tax) - - - - 29 29 3
Share of jointventures’ settlement of share awards by s
the employee benefit trust - - 24 - (24) - 3
Equalisation adjustments - - - - (34) (34) =Y
Exchange translation differences - - 3 (3) - - g
Balance at 31 December 2013 55 2,276 (881) (131) 115 1,434 g
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Group accounting policies

These consolidated financial statements, which have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, report the
consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income,

cash flow, financial position and changes in equity of

Reed Elsevier NV (incorporated and domiciled in the Netherlands).
Unless otherwise indicated, allamounts shownin the

financial statementsarein millions of euros.

Asrequired by aregulation adopted by the European Parliament,
the consolidated financial statements have been preparedin
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) as adopted by the European Union and as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

The consolidated financial statements are prepared on a going
concern basis, as explained on page 181.

The Reed Elsevier combined financial statements presentedin
pounds sterling on pages 97 to 139 form anintegral part of the
notesto Reed Elsevier NV’s statutory financial statements. The
primary combined financial statements and selected notes are
presentedin euros on pages 142to 154.

Asaconsequence of the merger of the company’s businesses
with those of Reed Elsevier PLC, described on page 69, the
shareholders of Reed Elsevier NVand Reed Elsevier PLC can be
regarded as having the interests of a single economic group,
enjoying substantially equivalent ordinary dividend and capital
rightsinthe earnings and net assets of the Reed Elsevier
Combined Businesses. The Combined Businesses are composed
of Reed Elsevier Group plcand Elsevier Reed Finance BV and their
respective subsidiaries andjointventures, together with the two
parentcompanies, Reed Elsevier NVand Reed ElsevierPLC. The
Combined Businesses are jointly controlled by Reed Elsevier NV
and Reed Elsevier PLC.

The Reed Elsevier NV consolidated financial statements are
presented incorporating Reed Elsevier NV's investmentsin the
Reed Elsevier Combined Businesses accounted for using the
equity method, as adjusted for the effects of the equalisation
arrangement between Reed Elsevier NVand Reed Elsevier PLC.
The arrangement lays down the distribution of dividends and net
assetsinsuch awaythat Reed Elsevier NV’'s share in the profit
and netassets of the Reed Elsevier Combined Businesses equals
50%, with all settlements accruing to shareholders from the
equalisation arrangements taken directly to reserves.

Because the dividend paid to shareholders by Reed Elsevier NVis
equivalenttothe Reed Elsevier PLC dividend plus, otherthanin
special circumstances, the UK tax credit received by certain Reed
Elsevier PLC shareholders, Reed Elsevier NV normally distributes
ahigher proportion of the combined profit attributable than Reed
Elsevier PLC. Reed Elsevier PLC’s share in this difference in
dividend distributions is settled with Reed Elsevier NVand s
credited directly to consolidated reserves under equalisation.
Reed Elsevier NV can payanominaldividend onits Rshares held
by a subsidiary of Reed Elsevier PLC that is lower than the dividend
ontheordinary shares. Equally, Reed Elsevier NV has the
possibility to receive dividends directly from Dutch affiliates.

Reed Elsevier PLC is compensated by direct dividend payments by
Reed Elsevier Group plc. The settlements flowing from these
arrangements are also taken directly to consolidated reserves
under equalisation.

Combined financial statements
The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the
combined financial statements are set out on pages 102 to 107.

Basis of valuation of assets and liabilities

Reed Elsevier NV's 50% economicinterestin the netassets of the
combined businesses has been shown on the consolidated
statement of financial position as investments in joint

ventures, net of the assets and liabilities reported as part of

Reed Elsevier NV. Joint ventures are accounted for using the
equity method.

Cashand cash equivalents are stated at fair value. Other assets
and liabilities are stated at historical cost, less provision, if
appropriate, foranyimpairmentinvalue.

Foreign exchange translation

Transactionsin foreign currencies are recorded at the rate of
exchange prevailing on the date of the transaction. At each
statement of financial position date, monetary assets and
liabilities that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rate prevailing on the statement of financial
position date. Exchange differences arising are recorded in the
income statement. The gains or losses relating to the
retranslation of Reed Elsevier NV's 50% interestin the netassets
of the combined businesses are classified as equity and
transferredtothe translationreserve.

When foreign operations are disposed of, the related cumulative
translation differences are recognised within the income
statementinthe period.

Taxation

Tax expense comprises currentand deferred tax. Current and
deferred taxare charged or credited in the income statement
except to the extent that the tax arises fromatransaction or event
whichisrecognised, inthe same ora different period, outside
profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income, directly

in equity, or through a business combination) in which case the
tax appearsin the same statement as the transaction that gave
risetoit.

Currenttaxisthe amount of corporate income taxes payable or
recoverable based on the profit for the period as adjusted foritems
thatare nottaxable or notdeductible, andis calculated using tax
rates and laws that were enacted or substantively enacted at the
date of the statement of financial position. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect
to situationsinwhich applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. Provisions are established where appropriate on
the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred taxisrecognised ontemporary differences arising
betweenthe tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the statement of financial position. Deferred taxis
calculated using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period, and which
are expected toapplywhen the related deferred tax assetis
realised or the deferred tax liability is settled.
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Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporarydifferences but not recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investmentsin subsidiaries, associates and
jointventures where the reversal of the temporary difference can
be controlled and itis probable that the difference will not reverse
inthe foreseeable future. Deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised ontemporary differences thatarise from goodwill
whichis not deductible for tax purposes.

Deferredtaxassetsare recognised to the extentitis probable that
taxable profits will be available against which the deductible
temporarydifferences can be utilised; and reviewed at the end of
eachreporting period and reduced to the extent thatitis no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all
or partoftheassettobe recovered.

Deferredtaxassets and liabilities are not recognised in respect of
temporary differences thatarise oninitial recognition of assets
and liabilities acquired other thanin a business combination.
Deferred taxis notdiscounted.

Criticaljudgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty
Critical judgements inthe preparation of the combined financial
statementsare set out on pages 105to 106.

Standards and amendments effective for the year

Asdescribed on page 106, of the combined accounts, the
combined businesses adopted IAS19 Employee Benefits (revised)
with effectfrom 1 January 2013. Asrequired under the revised
standard, comparative figures have beenrestated. For the year
ended 31 December 2012, Reed Elsevier NV's share of results of
jointventuresis €16m lower and basic earnings per shareis €0.03
lower than previously reported. On an adjusted basis earnings per
shareis €0.01 lower than previously reported.

With effect from 1 January 2013, the combined businesses
alsoadopted various other standards, interpretations and
amendments to IFRS, none of which have had a significant
impact on Reed Elsevier'saccounting policies or reporting.

Standards, amendments and interpretations not yet effective
Recentlyissued standards, amendments and interpretations and
theirimpacton future accounting policies and reporting have been
considered on page 107 of the combined financial statements.
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REED ELSEVIERNV

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013

The consolidated financial statements of Reed Elsevier NV reflect the 50% economic interest thatits shareholders have under the
equalisation arrangementsin the Reed Elsevier combined businesses, accounted for on an equity basis.

The Reed Elsevier combined financial statements are presented in pounds sterling, which is the functional currency of Reed Elsevier
Group plc, a UKregistered company which owns the publishing and information businesses of Reed Elsevier. The following analysis
presents how the consolidated financial statements of Reed Elsevier NV, presented in euros, are derived from the Reed Elsevier
combined financial statements.

Restated
2013 2012
Reed Elsevier combined businesses net profit attributable to parent company shareholdersin
pounds sterling £1,110m  £1,044m
Reed Elsevier combined businesses net profit attributable to parent company shareholdersin
pounds sterling translated into euros at average exchange rates €1,310m €1,284m
Reed Elsevier combined businesses net profit attributable to parent company shareholders in euros €1,310m €1,284m
Reed Elsevier NV's 50% share of combined net profit attributable to shareholders €655m €642m
2013 2012
Reed Elsevier combined shareholders’ equity in pounds sterling £2,390m £2,280m
Reed Elsevier combined shareholders’ equity in pounds sterling translated into euros at year end
exchange rates €2,868m €2,804m
Reed Elsevier NV's 50% share ofcombmedeqmty """""""""""""""""""""""""""" €1,434m €1,402m

Administrative expensesinclude the remuneration for presentand former Directors of Reed Elsevier NVin respect of services rendered
to Reed Elsevier NV and the combined businesses. Fees for Non-Executive Directors of Reed Elsevier NV of €0.3m (2012: €0.3m) are
included inremuneration. Insofaras remunerationis related to services rendered to Reed Elsevier Group plc group and Elsevier Reed
Finance BV group, itis borne by these groups. Reed Elsevier NV has no employees (2012: nil).

Audit fees payable by Reed Elsevier NV were €129,000 (2012: €126,000). Further information on the audit and non audit fees paid
by the Reed Elsevier combined businesses to Deloitte Accountants B.V. and its associates is set out in note 3to the combined
financial statements.
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Alltransactions with joint ventures, which are related parties of Reed Elsevier NV, are reflected in these financial statements.
Key management personnelare also related parties and comprise the Directors of Reed Elsevier NV. The remuneration of key
management personnel are set out in note 29 to the combined financial statements.
@©
c
2013 2012 g
€m €m o
Financeincome fromjoint ventures 19 8 3
E.
Areconciliation of the notionaltax charge based on the applicable rate of tax to the actual total tax expense is set out below:
Restated
2013 2012
€m €m
Profit before tax 659 A
Taxatapplicable rate: 25% (2012: 25%) (165) (161) .
Tax atapplicable rate on share of results of joint ventures 161 159 >
Other - - é
Taxexpense (4) (2) 3
s
2
2013 2012 2013 2012
€ € €m €m
Ordinary shares:
Finalfor priorfinancialyear €0.337 €0.326 230 228
Interim for financialyear €0.132 €0.130 bAl 2
Total €0.469 €0.456 321 319 °
Rshares - - 2
2
The Board of Reed Elsevier NV has proposed a final dividend of €0.374 (2012: €0.337). The cost of funding the proposed final dividend 2

is expected tobe €252m. No liability has been recognised at the statement of financial position date.

2013 2012
€ €

Ordinary shares:
Interim (paid) €0.132 €0.130
Final (proposed) €0.374 €0.337
Total €0.506 €0.467

R shares - -
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REED ELSEVIERNV

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013

2013 2012

Weighted Weighted

average average
number of number of Restated Restated
shares Earnings EPS shares Earnings EPS
(millions) €m € (millions) €m €
Basicearnings pershare 717.6 655 0.91 734.0 642 0.87
Diluted earnings per share 726.9 655 0.90 7421 642 0.87

The diluted EPS figures are calculated after taking account of the effect of potential additional ordinary shares arising from share
options and conditional shares.

The weighted average number of shares reflects the equivalent ordinary shares amount taking into account the R shares and is after
deducting shares held in treasury. Movementsin the number of ordinary shares or equivalents for the year ended 31 December 2013
are shown below.

Yearended 31 December

2013 2012

Ordinary Ordinary

share share

equivalents equivalents

Ordinary netof net of

sharesin  Rsharesin Treasury treasury treasury

issue issue shares shares shares

(millions) (millions) (millions) (millions) (millions)

Atstartofyear 726.0 43.0 (44.2) 724.8 735.8
Issue of ordinary shares 8.1 - - 8.1 1.9
Repurchase of ordinaryand R shares - - (25.2) (25.2) (13.3)
Net release of shares by the employee benefit trust - - 2.0 2.0 0.4
Atendofyear 734.1 43.0 (67.4) 709.7 724.8
Weighted average number of equivalent ordinary shares during the year 717.6 734.0

The average number of equivalent ordinary shares takes into account the R sharesin the company held by a subsidiary of
Reed Elsevier PLC, which representsa5.8% interestin the company’s share capital.

At31 December 2013 treasury sharesincluded 156,394 R shares (2012: 62,341), equivalent to 1,563,940 Reed Elsevier NV ordinary shares
(2012: 623,410).

At31 December 2013, 4,146,785 R shares (2012: 4,240,838) were held by a subsidiary of Reed Elsevier PLC . The R shares are convertible
atthe election of the holdersinto ten ordinary shares each and each Rshare carries an entitlement to cast ten votes. They have
otherwise the same rights as the ordinary shares, except that Reed Elsevier NV may pay a lower dividend on the R shares.
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Adjusted profitand earnings per share figures are used by management as additional performance measures. The adjusted figures are
derived as follows:
Profitattributable to Basicearnings
shareholders pershare
Restated Restated
2013 2012 2013 2012
€m €m € € o
Reportedfigures 655 642 0.91 0.87 %
Share of adjustmentsinjoint ventures: §
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 192 207 0.27 0.28 %
Acquisition related costs 18 10 0.03 0.02 S
Net financing charge on defined benefit pension schemes 8 5 0.01 0.01
Disposals and other non operating items 1 (64) 0.02 (0.09)
Other deferred tax credits fromintangible assets* (177) (52) (0.25) (0.07)
Exceptional prioryear tax credit - (59) - (0.08)
Adjusted figures 707 689 0.99 0.94
* movements on deferred tax liabilities arising on acquired intangible assets that do not qualify for tax amortisation and in 2013
non-recurring deferred tax credits arising on the alignment of certain business assets with their global management structure.
o
3
2
2013 2012 2
€m €m
Administrative expenses (2) (2)
Net movementin payables (1) (3)
Cash used by operations (3) (5)
2013 2012
€m €m
Atstartofyear 1,397 1,084
Cashflow (370) 313 ®
Atendof year 1,027 1,397 3
2
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013

Restated

2013 2012

€m €m

Share of results of joint ventures 642 638
Share of jointventures’ other comprehensive loss (48) (121)
Share of jointventures’ disposal of non-controlling interests - 4
Share of jointventures’ increase in share based remuneration reserve (net of tax) 29 19
Equalisation adjustments (34) (3)
Dividends received from joint ventures (186) (754)
(Decreasel/increase in net funding balances due from joint ventures (370) 313
Net movementintheyear 33 96
Atstartofyear 1,455 1,359
Atendofyear 1,488 1,455

During the yearthe company received dividends of €186m from Elsevier Reed Finance BV.

Summarised information showing total amounts in respect of joint ventures and Reed Elsevier NV shareholders' 50% share is set
outbelow:

Reed Elsevier NV

Totaljointventures shareholders’ share
Restated Restated
2013 2012 2013 2012
€m €m €m €m
Revenue 7,121 7,523 3,561 3,762
Net profit for theyear 1,316 1,290 642 638

Reed Elsevier NV's share of joint ventures’ net profit attributable to parent company shareholders for the year excludes the net profit
thatarose directly in Reed Elsevier NV of €13m (2012: €4m).

Reed Elsevier NV's other comprehensive income includes a loss of €48m (2012: €121m] relating to joint ventures.

Reed Elsevier NV

Totaljointventures shareholders’ share

2013 2012 2013 2012

€m €m €m €m

Totalassets 12,594 13,547 6,295 6,773

Total liabilities (9,686) (10,701) (5,834) (6,715)

Netassets 2,908 2,846 461 58
Attributable to:

Jointventures 2,868 2,804 461 58

Non-controlling interests 40 42 - -

2,908 2,846 461 58

1,027 1,397

Total 1,488 1,455

The above amounts for Reed Elsevier NV's shareholders share of total assets and total liabilities exclude assets and liabilities held
by Reed Elsevier NV, butinclude the counterparty balances of amounts owed to and by other Reed Elsevier businesses. Included
within Reed Elsevier NV's share of assets and liabilities are cash and cash equivalents of €77m (2012: €393m) and borrowings of
€1,963m (2012: €2,386m] respectively.
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Included within payables are employee convertible debenture loans of €5m (2012: €7m) with a weighted average interest rate of 1.95%
(2012:2.65%). Depending on the conversion terms, the surrender of €200 par value debenture loans qualifies for 50 Reed Elsevier NV
ordinary shares.
o
c
No.of shares €m 2
o
Ordinary shares of €0.07 each 1,800,000,000 126 t
R shares of €0.70 each 26,000,000 18 g
e e et 3
Total 144 2
Ordinary Ordinary
Rshares shares Rshares shares Total
number number €m €m €m
At 1January 2012 4,303,179 724,077,755 3 51 54
Issue of ordinary shares - 1,906,470 - - -
At1January 2013 4,303,179 725,984,225 3 51 54
Issue of ordinary shares - 8,165,731 - 1 1
At 31 December 2013 4,303,179 734,149,956 3 52 55 -
e
Theissue of sharesrelates to the exercise of share options. Details of share option and conditional share schemes are set outin note 6 to é
the Reed Elsevier combined financial statements. 1
<
At 31 December 2013, 4,146,785 (2012: 4,240,838) R shares were held by a subsidiary of Reed Elsevier PLC. The R shares are convertible 2
atthe election of the holdersinto ten ordinary shares each and each R share carries an entitlement to cast ten votes. They have
otherwise the samerights as the ordinary shares, except that Reed Elsevier NV may pay a lower dividend on the R shares.
At 31 December 2013, shares held intreasury related to 4,992,360 (2012: 6,990,101) Reed Elsevier NV ordinary shares held by the
Reed Elsevier Group plc Employee Benefit Trust (EBT); and 60,895,193 (2012: 36,613,087) Reed Elsevier NV ordinary shares and
156,394 R shares (2012: 62,341) held by the parent company.
The EBT purchases Reed Elsevier NV shares which, at the trustees’ discretion, can be used in respect of the exercise of share options
and to meet commitments under conditional share awards. At 31 December 2013, Reed Elsevier NV shares held by the EBT were €56m
(2012: €84m) at cost. °
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013

Restated

2013 2012

€m €m

Atstartofyear (228) (496)

Profitattributable to shareholders 655 642

Share of joint ventures”:

Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit pension schemes 24 (180)

Transferto net profit on disposal of available for sale investments - 7

Fairvalue movements on cash flow hedges 38 43

Taxrecognised in other comprehensive income (23) 47

Increasein share based remuneration reserve [net of tax) 29 19

Settlement of share awards (24) (5)

Transfer to net profit from cash flow hedge reserve (net of tax) (1) 13

Disposal of non-controlling interests - 4

Equalisation adjustments (34) (3)

Equity dividends paid (321) (319)

Atend ofyear 115 (228)
There are contingent liabilities in respect of borrowings of joint ventures guaranteed by Reed Elsevier NV as follows:

2013 2012

€m €m

Guaranteed jointly and severally with Reed Elsevier PLC 3,676 4,422

Financialinstruments disclosuresinrespect of the borrowings covered by the above guarantees are givenin note 18 to the Reed Elsevier
combined financial statements.
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% holding
Reed Elsevier Group plc
Incorporated and operating in Great Britain 18,385 ordinary R shares -
1-3Strand 18,385 ordinary E shares 100%
London WC2N 5JR 100,000 7.5% cumulative preference non voting shares -
Holding company for operating businesses involved in science
& medical, risk management, legal and business publishing and
organisation of trade exhibitions Equivalenttoa50% equity interest
Elsevier Reed Finance BV
Incorporatedinthe Netherlands 133 ordinary R shares -
Radarweg 29 205ordinary E shares 100%
1043 NX Amsterdam, the Netherlands
Holding company for financing businesses Equivalenttoa 61% equity interest

The Rsharesin Reed Elsevier Group plc and Elsevier Reed Finance BV and the non-voting preference sharesin Reed Elsevier Group plc
are owned by Reed Elsevier PLC.

Inaddition, Reed Elsevier NV holds shares with special dividend rights in Reed Elsevier Overseas BV, a subsidiary of Reed Elsevier
Group plc with registered offices in Amsterdam. These shares are included in the amount shown underinvestments in joint ventures
and enable Reed Elsevier NVto receive dividends from companies within the same tax jurisdiction.

Alist of companies within Reed Elsevieris filed with the Amsterdam Chamber of Commerce in the Netherlands.

The consolidated financial statements were signed and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26 February 2014.

A JHabgood DJPalmer
Chairman of the Board Chief Financial Officer
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REED ELSEVIERNV

Parent company profit and loss account

2013 2012
€m €m
Administrative expenses (2) (2)
Dividends received from joint ventures 186 754
Finance income fromjointventures 19 8
Tax expense (4) (2)
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders 199 758
Parent company balance sheet
2013 2012
Note €m €m
Fixed assets
Investmentsinjointventures 3,606 3,604
Currentassets
Amounts due from jointventures - funding 1,027 1,397
Amounts due from jointventures - other 4 4
1,031 1,401
Cash 2 1
1,033 1,402
Creditors: amounts falling due withinone year
Taxation (54) (51)
Other creditors 1 (6) (7)
(60) (58)
Netcurrentassets 973 1,344
Netassets 4,579 4,948
Capitalandreserves
Share capitalissued 55 54
Paid-in surplus 2,276 2,189
Shares heldintreasury (814) (477)
Otherreserves 195 193
Reserves 2,867 2,989
Shareholders’ funds 4,579 4,948

The parent company financial statements were signed and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26 February 2014.

AJHabgood
Chairman of the Board

Chief Financial Officer
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Parent company reconciliation of shareholders’ funds

Share Shares
capital Paid-in heldin Other Reserves
issued surplus(i) treasury reserveslii) (iii) Total
€m €m €m €m €m €m
At 1January 2012 54 2,17 (336) 191 2,550 4,630
Profitattributable to shareholders - - - - 758 758
Equity dividends paid - - - - (319) (319)
Repurchase of shares - - (141) - - (141)
Issue of shares, net of expenses - 18 - - - 18
Equity instruments granted to employees of combined businesses - - - 2 - 2
At 1January 2013 54 2,189 (477) 193 2,989 4,948
Profitattributable to shareholders - - - - 199 199
Equity dividends paid - - - - (321) (321)
Repurchase of shares - - (337) - - (337)
Issue of shares, net of expenses 87 - - - 88
Equityinstruments granted to employees of combined businesses - - - 2 - 2
At31December 2013 55 2,276 (814) 195 2,867 4,579

(i)  Within paid-insurplus, anamount of €2,099m (2012: €2,012m] is free of tax.

(il Otherreservesrelate to equity instruments granted to employees of the combined businesses under share based remuneration

arrangements. Other reserves do not form part of free reserves.

(i) Freereservesofthecompanyat31December2013were €4,329m (2012: €4,701m), comprising reserves and paid-in surplus less

shares heldintreasury.

Parent company accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The parent company financial statements have been prepared
underthe historical cost convention. As permitted by 2:362
subsection 1 of the Dutch Civil Code for companies with
international operations, the parent company financial statements
have been preparedinaccordance with UK Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (UK GAAP), ensuring consistency. The
financialinformation relating to the companyisrecognisedin the
consolidated financial statements.

The parent company financial statements are prepared on a going
concern basis, as explained on page 181.

The Reed Elsevier NV accounting policies under UK GAAP are set
out below.

Investments

Fixed assetinvestmentsin the combined businesses are stated at
cost, less provision, if appropriate, forany impairmentin value.
The fairvalue of the award of share options and conditional
shares over Reed Elsevier NV ordinary shares to employees of
the Reed Elsevier combined businesses are treated as a capital
contribution.

Principaljointventures are setoutin note 11 of the Reed Elsevier NV
consolidated financial statements.

Shortterminvestments are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Other assets and liabilities are stated at
historical cost, less provision, if appropriate, for any impairment
invalue.

Shares heldintreasury

The amount of consideration paid, including directly attributable
costs, for sharesrepurchasedis recognised as shares held in
treasuryand presented as adeduction from total equity. Details of
share capitaland shares held intreasuryare set outin note 13 of
the Reed Elsevier NV consolidated financial statements and

note 27 of the Reed Elsevier combined financial statements.

Foreign exchange translation
Transactions entered intoin foreign currencies are recorded at
the exchange rates applicable at the time of the transaction.

Taxation

Deferred taxationis provided in full for timing differences using
the liability method. Deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extentthat theyare considered recoverable in the short term.
Deferred taxation balances are not discounted.
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Notes to the parent company financial statements

Other creditorsinclude €5m (2012: €7m) of employee convertible debenture loans with a weighted average interest rate of 1.95%
(2012: 2.65%). Depending on the conversion terms, the surrender of €200 par value debenture loans qualifies for 50 Reed Elsevier NV
ordinary shares.

Areconciliation of the parent company profit attributable to ordinary shareholders prepared under UK GAAP and the consolidated profit
attributable to ordinary shareholders prepared under IFRS and presented under the equity method is provided below:

Restated

2013 2012

€m €m

Parent company profit attributable to shareholders 199 758
Share of results of joint ventures 642 638
Dividends received from jointventures (186) (754)
Consolidated profit attributable to shareholders using the equity method 655 642

Areconciliation between the parent company shareholders’ funds prepared under UK GAAP and the consolidated shareholders’ funds
prepared under IFRS and presented under the equity method is provided below:

2013 2012

€m €m
Parent company shareholders’ funds 4,579 4,948
Cumulative share of results of joint ventures less cumulative dividends received from joint ventures (1,971) (2,427)
Cumulative currency translation adjustments (351) (262)
Cumulative equalisation and other adjustments 41 32
Share of treasury shares held by joint ventures” employee benefit trust (67) (94)
Share of IFRS adjustmentsin jointventures (602) (602)
Equity instruments granted to employees of combined businesses (195) (193)
Consolidated shareholders’ funds using the equity method 1,434 1,402

Transactions with Directorsincluding share based remuneration costs are set outin note 29 to the combined financial statements and
details of the directors’ remuneration areincluded in the directors’ remuneration report on pages 78 to 94.

Additional information

Rshares

Reed Elsevier NV has two types of shares: ordinary shares of €0.07 nominalvalue and R shares of €0.70 nominalvalue. Each R shareis
convertibleinto 10 ordinary shares and is entitled to cast 10 votes. Otherwise it has the same rights as an ordinary share, except that
Reed Elsevier NV may pay a lower dividend oniit, but not less than 1% of the nominalvalue of an R share.

Profit allocation

The Articles of Association provide that distributions of dividend may only be made insofar as the company’s equity exceeds the amount of
the paid in capital, increased by the reserves which must be kept by virtue of the law and may be made in cash orin shares, at the proposal of
the Board. Distribution of dividends on ordinary shares and on the class R shares shall be made in proportion to the nominalvalue of each
share. The Board may resolve that the dividend to be paid on each class R share shall be lower than the dividend to be paid on each ordinary
share, resolving at the same time whatamount of dividend shall be paid on each ordinary share and each class R share, respectively.

2013 2012
€m €m
Finaldividend on ordinary shares for prior financial year 230 228
Interim dividend on ordinary shares for financial year 91 91
Dividend on R shares - -
Retained (loss)/ profit (122) 439

ot B TT
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of Reed Elsevier NV

Opinion on our audit of the consolidated and parent company
financial statements of Reed Elsevier NV (“the Company”)

Inour opinion:

Thefinancial statements give a true and fair view of the state of
the Company’s affairsas at 31 December 2013 and of its profit
and its cash flows for the year then ended;

the consolidated financial statements have been properly
preparedinaccordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union andin
accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code; and

the parentcompany financial statements have been properly
preparedinaccordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice and in accordance with Part 9 of
Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

We have audited the consolidated financial statements which
comprise the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of cash flows, the consolidated statement of financial position and
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the related
notes 1to 17, including a summary of the significant accounting
policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied
inthe preparation of the consolidated financial statements is
applicable lawand IFRSs as adopted by the European Union. The
parent company financial statements comprise the parent
company profitand loss account, the parent company balance
sheet, the parent company reconciliation of shareholders’ funds,
asummary of the parent company significant accounting policies
and the related notes 1to 3. The financial reporting framework
thathas beenappliedinthe preparation of the parent company
financial statementsis applicable Dutch law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards.

Our assessment of risks of material misstatement, application
of materiality and overview of the scope of our audit

Given the nature of the Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV
legal structure, our assessed risks of material misstatement,
application of materiality and overview of the scope of our audit for
the combined business equally applies to the audit of the
consolidated and parent company financial statements of Reed
Elsevier NV.See page 138 for further details.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fullyin the Directors’ responsibilities
statement, the Board is responsible for the preparation of the
financial statementsinaccordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair
view and for such internal control as they determine is necessary
toenable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Ourresponsibilityistoauditand expressan opinion on the
financial statementsinaccordance with Dutch Law, including the
Dutch Standards on Auditing. The standards require us to comply
with our respective Dutch professions’ ethical requirements,
including the International Ethical Standards Board of
Accountants Code of Ethics. We are independent of the Company
within the meaning of the relevant Dutch ethical requirements and
have fulfilled our other responsibilities under those ethical
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficientand appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

We are required to communicate with the Audit Committee
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the auditand significantaudit findings, including any significant
deficienciesininternal control that we identify during our audit.
We are also required to provide the Audit Committee with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regardingindependence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bearonourindependence, and where applicable related safeguards.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

Anauditinvolves obtaining evidence about the amounts and
disclosuresinthe financial statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error, and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
thatis sufficientand appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Reasonable assuranceis a high level of assurance, butis nota
guarantee thatanaudit conducted in accordance with Dutch Law
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
materialif, individually orin the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected toinfluence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated and parent company financial
statements.

As partofanauditinaccordance with Dutch law, we exercise
professionaljudgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the planning and performance of the audit. We also
identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated and parent company financial statements, whether
duetofraudorerror, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence thatis
sufficientand appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higherthanforone resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

Inmaking those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
controlrelevantto the entity's preparation and fair presentation of
the financial statementsin orderto design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Anauditalsoincludesan
assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to
the businesses’ circumstances and have been consistently applied
and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by the Board; and the overall
presentation structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures and whether the financial statements
representthe underlying transactions and eventsina manner that
achieves fair presentation. We obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence regarding the financialinformation of the Company and
business activities to express an opinion on the financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the audit. We remain solely responsible for our
audit opinion. In addition, we read all the financial and
non-financialinformation in the annual report to identify material
inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to
identify any information thatis apparently materially incorrect
based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired
by usinthe course of performing the audit. If we become aware of
any apparent material misstatements orinconsistencies we
consider the implications for our report.
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Going concern

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared
using the going concern basis of accounting. The use of this basis
ofaccountingis appropriate unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative buttodo so.

We have reviewed the Report of the Board on page 76 where the
Board has notidentified a material uncertainty that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. We confirm that given the nature of the Reed Elsevier
PLC and Reed Elsevier NV legal structure, our assessment of the
combined businesses’ ability to continue as a going concern
equally applies tothe parent company and the consolidated
financial statements of Reed Elsevier NV.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be
predicted, this statementis nota guarantee astothe Company’s
ability to continue asa going concern.

Other legal and regulatory requirements

Pursuantto the legalrequirement under Section 2:393subbate
and f of the Dutch Civil Code, we have no deficiencies toreportasa
result of our examination whether the Report of the Board, to the
extentwe can assess, has been prepared inaccordance with Part
9 of Book 2 of this Code, and whether the information as required
under Section 2:392sub 1atb-h has beenannexed. Furtherwe
report thatthe Report of the Board, to the extent we can assess, is
consistentwith the financial statements as required by Section
2:391 sub 4 of the Dutch Civil Code.

Deloitte Accountants B.V.
ASandler

Amsterdam

The Netherlands

26 February 2014
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I1AS19 (revised)® Asreported
2013 2012 2012 2011 2010 2009
Note €m €m €m €m €m €m

Combined financialinformation
Revenue 7,121 7,523 7,523 6,902 7,084 6,800
Reported operating profit 1,624 1,639 1,670 1,386 1,275 881
Adjusted operating profit 1 2,064 2,076 2,107 1,870 1,819 1,758
Reported net profit attributable to shareholders 1,310 1,284 1,315 874 751 438
Adjusted net profit attributable to shareholders 1 1,413 1,379 1,400 1,219 1,150 1,099
Reed Elsevier NV consolidated financial information
Reported net profit attributable to shareholders 655 642 658 437 376 219
Adjusted net profit attributable to shareholders 707 689 700 610 575 550
Reported earnings perordinary share (€) €0.91 €0.87 €0.90 €0.59 €0.51 €0.32
Adjusted earnings perordinary share (€) €0.99 €0.94 €0.95 €0.83 €0.78 €0.79

Dividend per ordinary share (€]

2 €0.506 €0.467 €0.467 €0.436 €0.412 €0.400

(1) Adjusted figures are presented as additional performance measures used by management and are stated before amortisation and
impairment of acquired intangible assets and goodwill, the net financing cost on defined benefit pension schemes, exceptional
restructuring (2008 - 2010) and acquisition related costs, exceptional prior year tax credits (in 2012 only), and in respect of
attributable net profit, reflect a tax rate that excludes the effect of movements in deferred taxation assets and liabilities that are not
expectedtocrystallise in the nearterm and includes the benefit of tax amortisation where available on acquired goodwill and
intangible assets. Acquisition related financing costs and profit and loss from disposal gains and losses and other non operating

itemsare also excluded from the adjusted figures.

(2) Dividend perordinary shareis based on the interim dividend and proposed final dividend for the relevant year.

(3) Comparative figures for 2012 have been restated following the adoption of IAS19 Employee Benefits (revised).
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202 FINANCIALSTATEMENTS AND OTHER INFORMATION
REED ELSEVIER COMBINED BUSINESSES

Summary financial information in US dollars

Basis of preparation

The summary financialinformationis a simple translation of the Reed Elsevier combined financial statements into US dollars at
the stated rates of exchange. The financialinformation provided below is prepared under IFRS as used in the preparation of the
Reed Elsevier combined financial statements. It does not represent a restatement under US GAAP which would be differentin
some significant respects.

Statement of financial

Income statement position

2013 2012 2013 2012

US dollarstosterling 1.56 1.59 1.66 1.62
Combined income statement

Restated

2013 2012

US$m UsS$m

Revenue 9,415 9,724

Operating profit 2,147 2,119

Profit before tax 1,866 1,830

Net profitattributable to parent companies’ shareholders 1,732 1,660

Adjusted operating profit 2,728 2,684

Adjusted profit before tax 2,452 2,340

Adjusted net profit attributable to parent companies’ shareholders 1,867 1,782
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Combined statement of cash flows
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2013 2012

Us$m US$m
Net cash from operating activities 2,162 2,237
Net cash usedininvesting activities (493) (757)
Net cash used in financing activities (2,499) (1,594)
Decreasein cashand cash equivalents ~(830) (114)
Movementin cash and cash equivalents
At startof year 1,038 1,125
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents (830) (114)
Exchange translation differences 1" 27
Atend of year 219 1,038
Adjusted operating cash flow - ‘2‘,657 2,‘549“
Combined statement of financial position

2013 2012

Us$m US$m
Non-currentassets 14,376 13,738
Currentassets 3,011 3,624
Assets held for sale 35 481
Totalassets o 1‘7,422 17,‘843“
Current liabilities 6,395 6347
Non-current liabilities 7,000 7,591
Liabilities associated with assets held for sale 5 156
Total liabilities T 13,400 14,094
Net assets o ‘1;,022 3,‘749“
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REED ELSEVIERPLC

Summary financial information in US dollars

Basis of preparation

The summary financialinformationis a simple translation of the Reed Elsevier PLC consolidated financial statements into US dollars at
the stated rates of exchange. The financialinformation provided below is prepared under IFRS as used in the preparation of the Reed
Elsevier PLC consolidated financial statements. It does not represent a restatement under US GAAP which would be differentin some
significant respects.

2013 2012
US$:£ US$:€
Income statement 1.56 1.59
Statement of financial position 1.66 1.62
Consolidated income statement
Restated
2012 2012
Us$m US$m
Profitattributable to ordinary shareholders 892 855
Adjusted profitattributable to 52.9% interest in Reed Elsevier combined businesses 987 943
Share of jointventures”:
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets (267) (283)
Acquisition related costs (25) (13)
Net financing charge on defined benefit pension schemes (11) (8)
Disposals and other non operating items (16) 88
Other deferred tax credits fromintangible assets* 248 70
Exceptional prioryeartax credit - 81
Profit attributable to 52.9% interestin Reed Elsevier combined businesses 916 878

* movements on deferred tax liabilities arising on acquired intangible assets that do not qualify for tax amortisation and in 2013
non-recurring deferred tax credits arising on the alignment of certain business assets with their global management structure

Restated
2013 2012
us$ us$
Earnings per ADS based on 52.9% interestin Reed Elsevier combined businesses:

Adjusted $3.37 $3.14
Basic $3.05 $2.85
Netdividend per ADS paid in the year $1.48 $1.39
Net dividend per ADS paid and proposed in relation to the financialyear $1.54 $1.46

Consolidated statement of financial position
2013 2012
US$m Us$m
Shareholders’ equity 2,098 1,954

Adjusted earnings per American Depositary Share is based on Reed Elsevier PLC shareholders’ 52.9% share of the adjusted profit
attributable of the Reed Elsevier combined businesses, which excludes amortisation of acquired intangible assets, acquisition related
costs, disposal related and other non operating items, the net financing charge or credit on defined benefit pension schemes, exceptional
prioryeartax credits (in 2012 only) and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities that are not expected to crystallise in the near term
andinclude the benefit of taxamortisation where available on acquired goodwill and intangible assets. Adjusted figures are additional
performance measures used by managementand are described in note 9 to the Reed Elsevier PLC consolidated financial statements.

Reed Elsevier PLC shares are quoted on the New York Stock Exchange and trading is in the form of American Depositary Shares (ADSs),
evidenced by American Depositary Receipts (ADRs), representing four Reed Elsevier PLC ordinary shares. (CUSIP No. 758205207;
trading symbol, RUK; Bank of New York is the ADR Depositary.)
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Summary financial information in US dollars
Basis of preparation
The summary financialinformation is a simple translation of the Reed Elsevier NV consolidated financial statements into US dollars at
the stated rates of exchange. The financialinformation provided below is prepared under IFRS as used in the preparation of the Reed
Elsevier NV consolidated financial statements. It does not represent a restatement under US GAAP which would be differentin some
significant respects.
@©
2013 2012 G
Us$:€ US$:€ 2
Income statement 1.32 1.29 P
Statement of financial position 1.38 1.32 E
Restated
2013 2012
Us$m US$m
Adjusted profit attributable to shareholders 933 889
Share of jointventures’: g
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets (253) (267) é
Acquisition related costs (24) (13) 5
Net financing charge on defined benefit pension schemes (10) (7) 5
Disposals and other non operating items (15) 83 2
Other deferredtax credits fromintangible assets* 234 67
Exceptional prioryear tax credit - 76
Profit attributable to shareholders 865 828
* movements on deferred tax liabilities arising on acquired intangible assets that do not qualify for taxamortisationand in 2013
non-recurring deferred tax credits arising on the alignment of certain business assets with their global management structure.
Restated
2013 2012
us$ us$ g
<
Earnings per ADS based on 50% interestin Reed Elsevier combined businesses: 3
Adjusted $2.61 $2.43 5
Basic $2.40 $2.24 ®
Net dividend per ADS paid in the year $1.24 $1.18
Net dividend per ADS paid and proposed inrelation to the financial year $1.34 $1.20
2013 2012
Us$m US$m
Shareholders’ equity 1,979 1,851

Adjusted earnings per American Depositary Shareis based on Reed Elsevier NV shareholders’ 50% share of the adjusted profit
attributable of the Reed Elsevier combined businesses, which excludes amortisation of acquired intangible assets, acquisition related
costs, disposalrelated and other non operating items, the net financing charge or credit on defined benefit pension schemes, exceptional
prioryear tax credits (in 2012 only) and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities that are not expected to crystallise in the near term
and include the benefit of taxamortisation where available on acquired goodwill and intangible assets. Adjusted figures are additional
performance measures used by managementand are described in note 9 to the Reed Elsevier NV consolidated financial statements.

Reed Elsevier NV shares are quoted on the New York Stock Exchange and trading is in the form of American Depositary Shares (ADSs),
evidenced by American Depositary Receipts (ADRs), representing two Reed Elsevier NV ordinary shares. (CUSIP No. 758204200;
trading symbol, ENL; Bank of New York is the ADR Depositary.)
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Shareholder information

Annual Reports and Financial Statements 2013

The Annual Reports and Financial Statements for the Reed
Elsevier combined businesses, Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed
Elsevier NVfortheyearended 31 December 2013, and the
Corporate Governance Statement of Reed Elsevier NVare
available onthe Reed Elsevier website, and from the registered
offices of the respective parent companies shown on page 209.
Additional financialinformation, including the interim and
full-year results announcements, Interim Management
Statements and presentationsis also available on the Reed
Elsevier website, www.reedelsevier.com.

The Reed Elsevier combined financial statements set outin the
Annual Reportsand Financial Statements are expressed in
sterling, with summary combined financial information expressed
ineuros. The financial statements of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed
Elsevier NVare expressedinsterlingand euros respectively.

Interimresults

Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV no longer publish interim
resultsin hard copy. The interim results are available on the Reed
Elsevier website, www.reedelsevier.com.

Share priceinformation
Reed Elsevier PLC's ordinary shares are quoted on the London
Stock Exchange.

Reed Elsevier NV's ordinary shares are quoted onthe NYSE
Euronext Amsterdam Stock Exchange.

The Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV ordinary shares are
quoted onthe New York Stock Exchange in the form of American
Depositary Shares (ADSs), evidenced by American Depositary
Receipts (ADRs). Each Reed Elsevier PLC ADR represents four
Reed Elsevier PLC ordinary shares. Each Reed Elsevier NVADR
represents two Reed Elsevier NV ordinary shares.

The Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV ordinary share
pricesand the ADR prices may be obtained from the Reed Elsevier
website, other online sources and the financial pages of some
newspapers.

FORFURTHERINFORMATION VISITWWW.REEDELSEVIER.COM

Shareholder services

The Reed Elsevier PLC ordinary share register is administered
by Equiniti Limited. Equiniti provides a free online portal for
shareholders at www.shareview.co.uk. Shareview allows
shareholders to monitor the value of their shareholdings, view their
dividend payments and submit dividend mandate instructions.
Shareholders canalso submit their proxy voting instructions
ahead of company meetings, as well as update their personal
contact details. Shareview Dealing provides a share purchase
and sale facility. Equiniti’s contact details appear on page 209.

Electronic communications

While hard copy shareholder communications continue to be
available tothose shareholders requesting them, inaccordance
with the Companies Act 2006 and the company's articles of
association, Reed Elsevier PLC uses the Reed Elsevier website
as the main method of communicating with shareholders.

By registering their details online at Shareview, shareholders
can be notified by email when shareholder communications
are published on the website. Shareholders canalso use the
Shareview website to appoint a proxy to vote on their behalf at
shareholder meetings.

Shareholderswho hold their Reed Elsevier PLC shares through
CREST may appoint proxies for shareholder meetings through the
CREST electronic proxy appointment service by using the
procedures described inthe CREST manual.

Dividend mandates

Shareholders are encouraged to have their dividends paid directly
intoa UK bank or building society account. This method of payment
reduces therisk of delay or loss of dividend chequesin the post
and ensures the accountis credited on the dividend payment

date. Adividend mandate form can be obtained online at
www.shareview.co.uk, or by contacting Equinitiat the address
shown on page 209.

Equiniti has established a service for overseas shareholdersin
over 90 countries, which enables shareholders to have their
dividends automatically converted from sterling and paid directly
into their nominated bank account. Further details of this service,
and the fees applicable, are available at www.shareview.co.uk or
by contacting Equiniti at the address shown on page 209.

Dividend Reinvestment Plan

Shareholders can choose to reinvest their Reed Elsevier PLC
dividends by purchasing further shares through the Dividend
Reinvestment Plan (DRIP) provided by Equiniti. Further
information concerning the DRIP facility, together with the terms
and conditions and an application form can be obtained online at
www.shareview.co.uk/dividends or by contacting Equiniti at the
address shown on page 209.
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Share dealing service

Atelephone andinternetdealing serviceis available through Reed
Elsevier PLC’s Registrar, Equiniti, which provides a simple way for
UK-resident shareholdersto buy or sell Reed Elsevier PLC
shares. For telephone dealing call 08456 037 037 between 8.00am
and 4.30pm, Monday to Friday, and for internet dealing log on to
www.shareview.co.uk/dealing. Youwill need your shareholder
account number shown onyour dividend tax voucher.

Individual savings account (ISA)

Asingle company ISAfor Reed Elsevier PLC sharesis available
through Equiniti. Details may be obtained from
www.shareview.co.uk/ISA, by writing to Equiniti at the address
shown on page 209,or by calling their ISAhelpline on 0871384 2244.

ShareGift

The Orr Mackintosh Foundation operates a charity share donation
scheme for shareholders with small parcels of shares whose value
makes it uneconomic to sell them. Details of the scheme can be
obtained from the ShareGift website at www.sharegift.org, or by
telephoning ShareGift on 020 7930 3737.

Sub-division of ordinary shares and share consolidation

On 28 July 1986, each Reed Elsevier PLC ordinary share of £1
nominalvalue was sub-divided into four ordinary shares of 25p
each.On2May 1997, each 25p ordinary share was sub-divided into
two ordinary shares of 12.5p each. On 7 January 2008, the ordinary
shares of 12.5p each were consolidated on the basis of 58 new
ordinary shares of 14%/1nsp nominalvalue for every 67 ordinary
shares of 12.5p each held.

Capital gains tax

The mid-market price of Reed Elsevier PLC’s £1 ordinary shares
on 31 March 1982 was 282p. Adjusting for the sub-divisions and
share consolidation referred to above results in an equivalent
mid-market price of 40.72p for each existing ordinary share of
14%"/11ep nominalvalue.

From time to time shareholders may receive unsolicited calls
from fraudsters.

Fraudsters use persuasive and high-pressure tactics to lure
investorsinto scams, sometimes known as boiler room scams.

They may offer to sell shares that turn outto be worthless or
non-existent, orto buy sharesataninflated price in return for
anupfront payment.

While high profits are promised, if you buy or sell shares in this
way you will probably lose your money.

5,000 people contact the Financial Conduct Authority about
share fraud each year, with victims losing an average of
£20,000.

207

How to avoid share fraud and boiler room scans
The Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) has issued some guidance
on howtorecognise and avoid investment fraud:

Legitimate firms authorised by the FCAare unlikely to contact
you unexpectedly with an offer to buy or sell shares.

Ifyou receive an unsolicited phone call, do not getintoa
conversation, note the name of the person and firm contacting
you and then end the call.

Check the Financial Services Registeravailable at
www.fca.org.uk to see if the person and firm contacting you
isauthorised by the FCA. If you wish to call the person or
firm back, only use the contact details listed on the Register.

Callthe FCAon 0800 111 6768 if the firm does not have any
contact details onthe Register, orif you are told that they are
out of date.

Searchthe list of unauthorised firms to avoid at
www.fca.org.uk/scams.

Ifyoudo buy or sell shares through an unauthorised firm, you
will not have access to the Financial Ombudsman Service or the
Financial Services Compensation Scheme.

Consider obtaining independent financial and professional
advice before you hand over any money. Ifit sounds too good to
betrueitprobablyis.

Howtoreportascam

Ifyouare approached by fraudsters, please tell the FCAusing the
share fraud reporting form at www.fca.org.uk/scams, where you
canfind out more aboutinvestment scams. You can also call the
FCAConsumer Helpline on 0800 111 6768.

Ifyou have already paid money to share fraudsters, you should
contact Action Fraud on 0300 123 2040.
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Shareholder enquiries

Enquiries from holders of Reed Elsevier NV registered ordinary
sharesinrelation to share transfers, dividends, change of address
and bank accounts should be directed to the Company Secretary
of Reed Elsevier NV, at the registered office address shown on
page 209.

Dividends

Dividends on Reed Elsevier NV ordinary shares are declared and
paidineuros. Registered shareholdersin Reed Elsevier NV will
receive dividends from the company by transmission to the bank
accountwhich they have notified to the company. Dividends on
sharesin bearerformare paid through the intermediary of a bank
orbroker.

Dividend Reinvestment Plan

By instructing their bank orintermediary, shareholders can
choose toreinvest their Reed Elsevier NV dividends by purchasing
further shares through the Dividend Reinvestment Plan (DRIP)
provided by ABN AMRO Bank NV. Furtherinformation concerning
the DRIP facility can be obtained online at www.securitiesinfo.nl.

Consolidation of ordinary shares

On 7 January 2008, the Reed Elsevier NV ordinary share of €0.06
eachwere consolidated on the basis of 58 new ordinary shares of
€0.07 each forevery 67 ordinary shares of €0.06 each held.

The Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV ADR Depositary is
BNY Mellon.

Reed Elsevier PLC’s CUSIP numberis 758205207 and its trading
symbolis RUK. Each Reed Elsevier PLC ADR represents four
Reed Elsevier PLC ordinary shares.

Reed Elsevier NV's CUSIP numberis 758204200 and its trading
symbolis ENL. Each Reed Elsevier NVADR represents two
Reed Elsevier NVordinary shares.

ADRshareholder services

Enquiries concerning Reed Elsevier PLC or Reed Elsevier NV
ADRs should be addressed to the ADR Depositary at the address
shown on page 209.

Dividends
Dividend payments on Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV
ADRs are converted into US dollars by the ADR Depositary.

Annual Reporton Form 20-F

The Annual Report on Form 20-F for the Reed Elsevier combined
businesses, Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NVis filed
electronically with the United States Securities and Exchange
Commission. A copy of the Form 20-F is available on the Reed
Elsevier website, or from the ADR Depositary at the address
shown on page 209.
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Contacts

Reed Elsevier PLC

1-3 Strand

London WC2N5JR
United Kingdom

Tel: +44(0)207166 5500
Fax:+44(0)2071665799

Auditors

Deloitte LLP

2 New Street Square
London EC4A3BZ
United Kingdom

Registrar
Equiniti Limited
Aspect House
Spencer Road
Lancing

West Sussex
BN99 6DA
United Kingdom

WWW.SHAREVIEW.CO0.UK

Tel: 08713842960

(calls cost 8p per minute plus additional network charges

where applicable)

Tel: +44 121 4157047 (callers outside the UK)

Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NVADR Depositary

BNY Mellon Depositary Receipts
PO Box 43006

Providence, R102940-3006

USA

WWW.ADRBNY.COM

Email: shrrelations@bnymellon.com
Tel: +18882692377
+1201 6806825 (callers outside the US)

Reed Elsevier NV
Radarweg 29

1043 NXAmsterdam
The Netherlands

Tel: +31(0)20485 2222
Fax:+31(0)204852032

Deloitte Accountants BV
Orlyplein 10

1043 DP Amsterdam
The Netherlands

Listing/paying agent
ABN AMRO Bank NV

GustavMabhlerlaan 10
1082 PP Amsterdam

The Netherlands

WWW.SECURITIESINFO.NL
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2014 financial calendar

27February PLC/NV
23 April PLC/NV
23 April NV

24 April PLC
30April PLC/NV
1May NV

2 May PLC

5 May NV

23 May PLC/NV
30May PLC/NV
24 July PLC/NV
6 August PLC/NV
8 August PLC/NV
28 August PLC/NV
4 September PLC/NV

Resultsannouncement for the year ended 31 December 2013

Interim management statementissued in relation to the 2014 financial year

Annual General Meeting - Reed Elsevier NV, Hotel Okura, Ferdinand Bolstraat 33, 1072 LH Amsterdam
Annual General Meeting - Reed Elsevier PLC, Millennium Hotel, Grosvenor Square, London W1K 2HP
Ex-dividend date - 2013 final dividend, Reed Elsevier PLC ordinary shares and ADRs, and Reed Elsevier
NVordinary shares

Ex-dividend date - 2013 final dividend, Reed Elsevier NVADRs

Record date - 2013 final dividend, Reed Elsevier PLC ordinary shares and ADRs

Record date - 2013 final dividend, Reed Elsevier NV ordinary shares and ADRs

Payment date - 2013 final dividend, Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV ordinary shares

Payment date - 2013 final dividend, Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NVADRs

Interim results announcement for the six months to 30 June 2014

Ex-dividend date - 2014 interim dividend, Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV ordinary sharesand ADRs
Record date - 2014 interim dividend, Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV ordinary sharesand ADRs
Payment date - 2014 interim dividend, Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV ordinary shares
Payment date - 2014 interim dividend, Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NVADRs

The following tables set out dividends paid (or proposed] in relation to the three financial years 2011-2013.

perPLCordinaryshare per NVordinaryshare Paymentdate
Finaldividend for 2013* 17.95p €0.374 23 May 2014
Interim dividend for 2013 6.65p €0.132 29 August 2013
Finaldividend for 2012 17.00p €0.337 23 May 2013
Interim dividend for 2012 6.00p €0.130 31 August 2012
Finaldividend for 2011 15.90p €0.326 21 May 2012
Interim dividend for 2011 5.65p €0.110 26 August 2011

*Proposeddividend, to be submitted forapproval at the respective Annual General Meetings of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NVin April 2014.

per PLCADR per NVADR Paymentdate
Finaldividend for 2013 x ok 30May 2014
Interim dividend for 2013 $0.412 $0.34948 5September 2013
Finaldividend for 2012 $1.02578 $0.86555 30 May 2013
Interim dividend for 2012 $0.37898 $0.32515 7 September 2012
Finaldividend for 2011 $1.00379 $0.82940 29 May 2012
Interim dividend for 2011 $0.36860 $0.31618 2 September 2011

**Paymentwill be determined using the appropriate £/US$ and €/US$ exchange rate on 23 May 2014.

Note: The dividend rates shown for Reed Elsevier NV ordinary shares and ADRs are gross dividend rates before the deduction of Dutch

withholding tax.
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Principal operating locations

Reed Elsevier

1-3 Strand

London WC2N 5JR, UK
Tel: +44(0)207166 5500
Fax:+44(0)2071665799

Radarweg 29

1043 NXAmsterdam
The Netherlands

Tel: +31(0)204852222
Fax:+31(0)20 4852032

125 Park Avenue, 23rd Floor
New York, NY 10017, USA
Tel: +12123098100
Fax:+1212309 8187

FORFURTHERINFORMATION OR CONTACT DETAILS,
PLEASE CONSULTOURWEBSITE: WWW.REEDELSEVIER.COM

Elsevier

Radarweg 29

1043 NXAmsterdam

The Netherlands
WWW.ELSEVIER.COM

The Boulevard, Langford Lane
Kidlington, Oxford OX5 1GB, UK

1600 John F. Kennedy Blvd
Suite 1800, Philadelphia
PA 19103, USA

3251 RiverportLane
Maryland Heights, MO 63043, USA

LexisNexis Risk Solutions

1000 Alderman Drive

Alpharetta, GA30005, USA
WWW.LEXISNEXIS.COM/RISK

Reed Business Information

Quadrant House, The Quadrant

Sutton, Surrey SM2 5AS, UK
WWW.REEDBUSINESS.CO.UK

LexisNexis Legal & Professional

125 Park Avenue, 23rd Floor

New York, NY 10017, USA
WWW.LEXISNEXIS.COM

9443 Springboro Pike
Miamisburg, OH 45342, USA

Lexis House, 30 Farringdon Street
London EC4A4HH, UK
WWW.LEXISNEXIS.CO.UK

Reed Exhibitions

Gateway House, 28 The Quadrant

Richmond, Surrey TW9 1DN, UK
WWW.REEDEXPO0.COM

Elsevier Reed Finance BV
Radarweg 29

1043 NXAmsterdam

The Netherlands

Tel: +31(0)20485 2222
Fax:+31(0)20 4852032

211

M3IAIBAQ

MaIAaJ SSauIsSNg

MaIASJ eIDUBUIS

9dUBUIBA09

o
3
o
3
a,
o
0
]
o
2
(]
El
(]
3
=
0
o
3
o
o
2
=
(]
]
3
EX
(=]
S
3
Q
=
o
3







Credits

Designed and produced by

saslondon.com

Board photography by

lain Crockart

Printed by

Pureprint Group, 1IS014001, FSC®certified and CarbonNeutral®

The 2013 Annual Reports and Financial Statements is printed
using paper containing a minimum of 75% recycled content,

of which 100% is de-inked post-consumer waste. All of the pulp
is bleached using an elemental chlorine free process (ECF).
Printed inthe UK by Pureprintusing theiralcofree’and pureprint
environmental printing technology; vegetable inks were used
throughout. Pureprintisa CarbonNeutral® company. Both
manufacturing milland printer are ISO14001 registered and are
Forest Stewardship Council® (FSC) chain-of-custody certified.

A
FSC

wwwfsc.org

RECYCLED

Paper made from
recycled material

FSC® C022913




www.reedelsevier.com





